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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

A Delaware Corporation 

772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120 
American Fork, Utah 84003 

(801) 443-1034 (phone) 
(801) 785-0200 (fax) 

web: http://www.zerorez.com 
e-mail: info@zerorez.com 

The ZEROREZ franchisee will operate a business that will provide complete carpet, tile, fabric and 
living surfaces cleaning services, including upholstery, fabrics, hard surfaces floors, and potentially air 
duct cleaning, air filters, or other services as determined by Zerorez. 

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a ZEROREZ Franchise is between $262,394 and 
$618,706. This includes $17,260 to $63,230 that must be paid to the franchisor or affiliate.  

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other 
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements 
carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a 
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the 
proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the 
information contained in this document. 

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you.  
To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Chantelle Lawrence at 772 East 
Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 84003, by phone at (801) 376-3000 or by email at 
clawrence@zerorez.com. 

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the disclosure 
document alone to understand your contract. Read your entire contract carefully. Show your contract 
and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant. 

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you 
make up your mind. More information on franchising such as "A Consumer's Guide to Buying a 
Franchise," which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the 
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC's home page at 
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other 
sources of information on franchising. 

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them. 

Issuance date: March 31, 2025  
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document 

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise 
and tips on how to find more information: 

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION 

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet 
sales, costs, profits or losses.  You should 
also try to obtain this information from others, 
like current and former franchisees. You can 
find their names and contact information in 
Item 20 or Exhibit D. 

How much will I need to 
invest? 

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the 
franchisor or at the franchisor's direction. Item 
7 lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 
describes the suppliers you must use. 

Does the franchisor have the 
financial ability to provide 
support to my business? 

Item 21 or Exhibit C includes financial 
statements. Review these statements 
carefully. 

Is the franchise system 
stable, growing, or 
shrinking? 

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the 
number of company-owned and franchised 
outlets. 

Will my business be the only 
Zerorez business in my area? 

Item 12 and the "territory" provisions in the 
franchise agreement describe whether the 
franchisor and other franchisees can compete 
with you. 

Does the franchisor have a 
troubled legal history? 

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor 
or its management have been involved in 
material litigation or bankruptcy proceedings. 

What's it like to be a Zerorez 
franchisee? 

Item 20 or Exhibit D lists current and former 
franchisees. You can contact them to ask 
about their experiences. 

What else should I know? These questions are only a few things you 
should look for. Review all 23 Items and all 
Exhibits in this disclosure document to better 
understand this franchise opportunity. See 
the table of contents. 
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally 

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other 
fees even if you are losing money. 

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor 
to change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes 
may require you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may 
harm your franchise business. 

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or 
a limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more 
expensive than similar items you could buy on your own. 

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating 
a similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other 
restrictions. Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to 
customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation. 

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a 
territory, the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory. 

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, 
you may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order 
to continue to operate your franchise business. 

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from 
operating a similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have 
obligations to your landlord or other creditors. 

Some States Require Registration 

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law that requires franchisors 
to register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not 
mean that the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in 
this document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact 
your state, use the agency information in Exhibit A. 

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or 
amendments be made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the 
State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State 
Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise 

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted: 

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires 
you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration 
and/or litigation only in Utah. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or 
litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for 
disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the 
franchisor in Utah than in your own state. 

2. Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make mandatory minimum 
royalty payments regardless of your sales levels.  Your inability to make 
these payments may result in termination of your franchise and loss of 
your investment. 

3. Sales Performance Required. You must maintain minimum sales 
performance levels. Your inability to maintain these levels may result in 
loss of any territorial rights you are granted, termination of your 
franchise, and loss of your investment. 

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the "State 
Specific Addenda" (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be 
highlighted. 
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MICHIGAN STATE COVER PAGE 

ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE 

SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS.  IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE 

IN THESE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED 

AGAINST YOU. 

1. A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees. 

2. A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or 
estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This 
shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling 
any and all claims. 

3. A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its 
term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to 
comply with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after 
being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need 
be more than 30 days, to cure such failure. 

4. A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly 
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at 
the time of expiration of the franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and 
furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, 
supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of 
the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: 
(i) The term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the 
franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business 
under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other 
commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the 
franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor's intent not to 
renew the franchise. 

5. A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally 
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This 
section does not require a renewal provision. 

6. A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall 
not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to 
conduct arbitration at a location outside this state. 

7. A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a 
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from 
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exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but 
is not limited to: 

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then-current 
reasonable qualifications or standards. 

(ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or 
subfranchisor. 

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all 
lawful obligations. 

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the 
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of 
the proposed transfer. 

8. A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not 
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that 
grants to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the 
same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those 
assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to 
acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the 
franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed 
to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (3). 

9. A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or 
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless 
provision has been made for providing the required contractual services. 

If our most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than 
$100,000.00, you may request that we arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other funds 
you paid until our pre-opening obligations to provide real estate, improvements, equipment, 
inventory, training, or other items including in the franchise offering are fulfilled.  At our option, a 
surety bond may be provided in place of escrow. 

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY 

GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT 

BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL. 

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to the State of Michigan Consumer 
Protection Division, Attn:  Franchise Bureau at 525 West Ottawa Street, G. Mennen Williams 
Building, 7th Floor, Lansing MI 48933 or by telephone at (517) 373-7117. 
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ITEM 1. THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS,  
PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES 

The Franchisor is ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation. Zerorez 
Franchising Systems, Inc. was organized on February 26, 2001 under the laws of the state of 
Nevada, and on August 16, 2022, pursuant to a sale and reorganization, the state of incorporation 
was changed to Delaware.  We do business under the name “ZEROREZ Franchising Systems.” 
Our principal business address is 772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 
84003.  Our agent for service of process authorized to receive service of process, in Delaware, 
our state of incorporation, is Universal Registered Agents, Inc., 300 Creek View Road, Suite 209, 
Newark, New Castle, Delaware 19711. Please see Exhibit A to this franchise disclosure document 
for a list of the names and addresses of our agents for service of process in various other states.  
We have offered and sold franchises of this type since 2003.  We offered regional developer 
franchises from 2013 to 2020 but no longer do so and no regional developers will provide services 
to any franchisees on our behalf.  We operated under the name Aqua Care, Inc. until 2002; but 
we did not sell franchises under this name.  

To simplify the language in this franchise disclosure document (“Disclosure Document”), the 
terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “the Company,” “ZEROREZ” or “Franchisor,” refer to ZEROREZ 
Franchising Systems, Inc.  We will refer to the entity that buys the franchise as “you” or 
“franchisee” throughout this Disclosure Document.  Your ZEROREZ franchise business is 
sometimes referred to in this Disclosure Document as the “Franchise Business.”  If you are a 
corporation, a limited liability company or a partnership, certain provisions of the franchise 
agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) will also apply to the stockholders, members, and 
partners of that entity, and will be noted.  The term “System” as used in this Disclosure Document 
and the Franchise Agreement means our marks together with our methods of operation and 
management, standards, specifications, confidential information, procedures, record keeping 
techniques, materials and operating manuals, any or all of which we may modify, improve, delete 
from and/or add to the System. 

On August 15, 2022, in connection with the acquisition of ZEROREZ by Zerorez, Inc., ZEROREZ 
was converted from a Nevada corporation to a Delaware corporation. Zerorez, Inc., a Delaware 
corporation whose principal address is 772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, American Fork, 
Utah 84003 is our parent.  

Z Intellectual Property Holding Company, LLC, a Utah limited liability company (“ZIP”) is a wholly-
owned subsidiary.  Its principal business address is 772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, 
American Fork, Utah 84003.  In January 2017, we assigned the trademarks, patents, system, 
manuals and other intellectual property necessary to operate a Franchise Business (collectively, 
the “Franchise IP”) to ZIP.  ZIP licenses the Franchise IP to us pursuant to an exclusive license 
agreement dated January 1, 2017.  The license agreement is of perpetual duration, subject to our 
compliance with the terms of such agreement. 

We anticipate entering into contracts or arrangements to provide products and/or license use of 
the Patents (as defined in Item 14) and other technology used in operating a Zerorez franchise to 
governmental or quasi-governmental entities specifically for use in government contracts for 
which franchisees would not qualify to provide the services.  No services under any such 
arrangements would be offered using the Zerorez name or its trademarks and service marks 
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(collectively referred as the “Marks”), but services under such arrangements could be offered at 
government locations in your Territory. 

We have no other business activities except as outlined above. Neither we nor any of our affiliates 
have offered franchises in other lines of business.  We conduct business of the type being 
franchised through our affiliates but do not directly operate any such business.  We also rely on 
the past and present extensive experience of our staff in related activities, in setting up the 
franchise offered pursuant to this Disclosure Document.  Except as outlined above, we have no 
parent, predecessor or affiliated entities required to be disclosed under this Item.   

The ZEROREZ Franchise 

ZEROREZ is in the business of providing residential and business carpet, tile, fabric care, living 
surfaces, and restorative cleaning services, including upholstery, fabrics, hard surfaces floors, 
and optionally air duct cleaning, air filters, wood floor cleaning, limited restoration, other services 
as determined by Zerorez (the “Services”) and related products under the Marks, providing 
access to equipment and supplies related to those services and licensing franchisees to operate 
a ZEROREZ Franchise in a particular geographic area (the “Territory”).  Franchisees are 
prohibited from pursuing, marketing or providing products or Services to customers outside their 
Territory, unless approved in advance in writing by us.    

Each ZEROREZ franchisee must be organized as either a corporation, limited liability company, 
or other business entity prior to executing a franchise agreement and commencing operations as 
a ZEROREZ franchise.  Each ZEROREZ Franchise must offer our designated Services related 
to carpet, tile, upholstery, and rugs to individuals and businesses using methods and techniques 
specified by us.  We will allow you to offer optional services such as wood floor cleaning and 
restoration, air duct cleaning, and other optional services that we may approve from time to time, 
so long as you follow the guidelines we prescribe for such optional services.  The Services are 
provided using the proprietary ZEROREZ technology and equipment, contained in a cargo van 
as further specified in our confidential brand standards manuals (the, or our “Manuals” further 
defined in Item 11) bearing our distinctive colors and marks (the, or your “Mobile Unit”).  
ZEROREZ franchisees also offer various products and cleaning supplies specified by us for sale 
to the public.  The market for these products and Services is well developed and encompasses 
any individual(s) and business(es) with floor care needs in your Territory.  

If you become a ZEROREZ franchisee, you must compete with a large number of already 
established locally owned, regional or national floor care businesses, many of which have been 
in business for a significant period of time.  You should investigate your local market for 
businesses operating under such categories as “Carpet and Upholstery Cleaners” and “Tile and 
Stone Care” to determine the number of competitors in your area.  You can anticipate that, 
because of the number of competitors likely to be in your area of interest, consumers are likely to 
be very cost conscious.   

We began offering franchises in 2003.  We have not offered franchises in any other line of 
business. A ZEROREZ Franchise is subject to numerous laws and governmental regulations that 
apply to businesses generally.  In addition, certain areas of the country may have health and 
environmental regulations related to the handling and disposal of waste that may affect how you 
operate your ZEROREZ Franchise. Local water pollution control ordinances may also apply.  
Before you purchase a ZEROREZ Franchise, you should investigate the existence of those 
regulations in your area. 
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ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE  

BOARD MEMBER: Tanner Ainge 

Mr. Ainge has served on our Board of Directors since August 2022. Since March 2021, Mr. Ainge 
has been the Founder & Chief Executive Officer of Banner Capital Management, LLC, a private 
equity firm in Lehi, Utah. From July 2018 to March 2020, Mr. Ainge led the mergers and 
acquisitions strategy for Outbox Systems, Inc. (d.b.a. “Simplus”) in Salt Lake City, Utah.  

BOARD MEMBER: Tyler Price 

Mr. Price has served on our Board of Directors since August 2022. Since March 2021, Mr. Price 
has been a Managing Director at Banner Capital Management, LLC, a private equity firm in Lehi, 
Utah. From June 2019 to May 2021, Mr. Price led corporate development for Lucid Software, Inc., 
a privately-held, visual collaboration software-as-a-service business, in South Jordan, Utah.  

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER and BOARD MEMBER: Shawn D. Moon  

Mr. Moon is our Chief Executive Officer, a position he has held since September 2017. Mr. Moon 
has also been a member of the Board of Directors since 2014.  

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER: Jon Laudie 

Jon Laudie has been our President since March 2025 and our CFO since July 2022.  As the 
President and CFO, he oversees the operations, accounting and finance functions of the company 
and participates in developing corporate strategy.  Prior to joining ZEROREZ, Mr. Laudie was the 
Vice President of Finance at 1-800 Contacts in Draper, Utah from July 2020 to July 2022. He was 
also Sr. Director of Finance at Lucid Software in South Jordan, Utah from September 2018 to July 
2020.   

CHIEF DEVELOPMENT OFFICER: Ben Hulme  

Mr. Hulme has been our Chief Development Officer since March 2025 and was our Chief 
Operating Officer prior to that since August 2020. Mr. Hulme was also our Director of Marketing 
from April 2019 to July 2021. Mr. Hulme was the general manager of Zerorez Phoenix, one of our 
franchisees, in Phoenix, Arizona from June 2013 to August 2020.  

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICE: Benjamin Oyler 

Mr. Oyler has been our Chief Operating Officer since February of 2025. From August 2021 until 
September of 2024 Mr. Oyler was the Co-Founder and Chief Operating Officer of Nectar Life 
Sciences in New York, New York providing allergy testing and treatments. From January 2020 
until March of 2022, Mr. Oyler served as the Global Chief Operating Officer of Helio Genomics in 
Irvine, California delivering blood based testing for early cancer detection.  

CHIEF MARKETING OFFICER: Bill De Groot 

Mr. De Groot has been our Chief Marketing Officer since March 2023 and is responsible for 
planning and operating Zerorez's brand strategy and marketing technology platforms.  Mr. De 
Groot was our Senior Vice President of Marketing and Customer Experience from November 
2022 to March 2023. Mr. De Groot served as the General Manager of Canada at Ancestry from 
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August 2018 to July 2021, and as Chief Marketing Officer of Parent Lab, Inc. from July 2021 to 
June 2022.  

VICE PRESIDENT OF TRAINING AND OPERATIONS: Porter Trepanier 

Mr. Trepanier has been our Vice President of Training and Operations since September 2023 
Prior to that he was the General Manager of Zerorez Phoenix, our Phoenix, Arizona location, from 
August 2020 to August 2023 and the Operations Manager from August 2015 to August 2020.   

VICE PRESIDENT OF FRANCHISE COACHING: Rochelle Weathers  

Ms. Weathers has been our VP of Franchise Coaching since June 2024 and prior to that was a 
Regional Vice President of Corporate Stores from June 2023 to May 2024. Ms. Weathers was 
also our Vice President of Corporate Stores from July 2021 to May 2023. Ms. Weathers was also 
our Director of Franchise Operations from September 2016 to June 2021.  

DIRECTOR OF FRANCHISE SALES: Chantelle Lawrence 

Mrs. Lawrence has been our Director of Franchise Sales since October 2024 and was our 
Franchise Sales Developer since October 2022. She was the owner and operator at The Box 
Gym in Lindon, UT from February 2015 through October 2024. 

ITEM 3. LITIGATION 

On December 8, 2011, we entered into a Consent Order with the Commissioner of Commerce for 
the State of Minnesota in In the Matter of Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. a Nevada 
Corporation, File No. FR1100265.  The Commissioner alleged that we violated the Minnesota 
Statute §80C by failing to register in Minnesota before making sales to one franchisee.  We 
accepted the order to cease and desist from selling franchises in the State of Minnesota until we 
were registered to do so, to offer rescission to our Minnesota franchisee, and to pay a penalty of 
$1,000 for the alleged violation. 

Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. v. Hall, Case No.: 01-24-0004-4421, filed on April 12, 2024, in 
the American Arbitration Association. The parties are Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. (ZFS), 
Todd Hall (principal of franchisee) and Zerorez Great North, Inc.; Zerorez Canada, LLC; and 
Zerorez Alberta, LLC (current franchisee and predecessors). In 2020, the Company entered into 
a franchise agreement and then an amendment to that agreement with Zerorez Canada, Inc., as 
well as its principal, Todd Hall. Under the amendment, Zerorez Canada was to become a regional 
developer for the Company to sell Zerorez franchises in Canada, in addition to operating its own 
franchise. The amendment provides that Mr. Hall would pay $300,000 for those development 
rights, the Company would provide disclosures to enable franchises in Canada, and the parties 
would agree upon a regional development agreement. Zerorez Canada paid only part of its 
obligation for the development rights and the Company took an extended amount of time to 
provide needed disclosures. However, after many months of attempting to reach agreement on 
the regional development contract, negotiations recently failed. The Company sent a last 
proposed agreement to Hall that Hall rejected. On March 13, 2024, counsel for Zerorez Canada 
and Hall sent a demand letter, claiming that the Company breached the amendment. The 
Company attempted settlement several times. When that failed, the Company filed a demand for 
arbitration, seeking declaratory judgment that the First Amendment was terminated and related 
relief. Zerorez Canada filed a Counterclaim, seeking lost profits for the franchises it claims it could 
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have established in the past and future under claims of breach of contract and the covenant of 
good faith or alternatively fraudulent inducement, negligent misrepresentation, intentional 
interference with economic relations, and declaratory relief. ZFS has filed a motion to dismiss the 
Counterclaim and for partial summary judgment on the invalidity of the “agreement to agree” and 
Zerorez Canada’s improper damages, barred by the Franchise Agreement, economic loss 
doctrine, and other legal principles. Zerorez Canada has served written discovery requests and 
ZFS has responded to those requests. A final arbitration hearing has been scheduled. 

Other than as set forth above, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY 

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.   

ITEM 5. INITIAL FEES 

Initial Franchise Fee 

In order to acquire a ZEROREZ Franchise you must pay to ZEROREZ an initial lump sum 
franchise fee of $30,000, as a franchise fee (the “Franchise Fee”).  This Franchise Fee includes 
a specific geographic territory as agreed upon with up to 60,000 households, as determined 
according to the most recently available U.S. Census (the “Census”). If you purchase a territory 
with more than 60,000 households, you must pay ZEROREZ an additional Franchise Fee of 
$15,000 for every incremental 30,000 households (or portion thereof). For example, if you wish 
to purchase a territory with 90,000 households, you must pay ZEROREZ $45,000.00 as a 
Franchise Fee. If you purchase a territory with less than 30,000 households (a “Hometown 
Market”), the Franchise Fee is $15,000.  Some areas may not be divided or available as a 
Hometown Market because of its geographical size or number of households.  We determine in 
our sole discretion all territories including what areas in which we will grant Hometown Market 
territories. ZEROREZ franchisees typically pay between $15,000 and $60,000 for territories with 
30,000 to 120,000 households. 

The Franchise Fee is due upon execution of the Franchise Agreement and is nonrefundable.    

The Franchise Fee will allow you to operate in an exclusive territory as described and clearly 
designated in your Franchise Agreement (“Territory”).  With your prior written approval, you may 
also offer Services and products on a non-exclusive basis to customers located outside your 
Territory and inside your general market area, excluding persons located in the exclusive territory 
of another current ZEROREZ franchisee that is granted exclusive rights to such territory.   

An additional Franchise Fee is required if you and we agree to expand your Territory. If the 
additional area is contiguous with your Territory and will be operated from the same base, 
expansion will be done via amendment to your current Franchise Agreement but will include new 
development and minimum royalty schedules. If the additional territory expansion is not 
contiguous with your Territory and/or will be operated from a separate base, you must enter into 
a new franchise agreement. 

Discount Programs 

We provide the following discount programs: 
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Existing Business 

If you have an existing business with two years of gross sales and at least $50,000 in gross sales 
in the most recent trailing twelve months, we will provide the discount outlined below off the 
Franchise Fee if the existing business is rolled into the franchise. The amount of the discount is 
based on the annual gross sales of your existing business. Existing business is defined as a 
business that generates sales by providing services that are similar to the services provided by 
us. Franchisees who qualify for the existing business discount do not qualify for the minimum 
royalties and will pay royalties immediately upon commencement of the franchise business and 
according to the territory size (either a $750 flat fee or 6%). 

Annual Gross Sales of Existing Business Percent Discount on Franchise Fee 

$50,000 to $99,999 50% 

$100,000 to $299,999 60% 

$300,000 to $499,999 70% 

$500,000 to $749,999 80% 

$750,000 to $999,999 90% 

$1,000,000 or more 100% (Franchise Fee waived) 

Additional Territory Discount 

For franchisees who have been in the system for at least two years, we will provide a 10% 
discount on the Franchise Fee for an expansion of territory or additional franchises. 

Employee or Franchisee Employee Discount 

If you are a current employee of Zerorez, its affiliates or its franchisees and have been an 
employee for at least two consecutive years, we will provide the discount outlined below off the 
Franchise Fee. The amount of the discount is based on the number of consecutive years you 
have been an employee. 

Number of Consecutive Years Percent Discount on Franchise Fee 

2 10% 

3 15% 

4 20% 

5 or more 25% 

Veteran Discount 

If you are United States honorably discharged veteran (as determined by us in our sole discretion), 
we will provide a 20% discount on the Franchise Fee.  
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Training 

Initial training for up to two people at the same training session prior to the opening of your 
Franchise is included in the Franchise Fee.  If you want more than two people to receive the initial 
training, or if your training takes place in different training sessions, the charge is $1,500 per 
additional person.  After the initial training session, the charge for training is $1,500 per person.  
The training charge of $1,500 per person will apply after the initial training session even if fewer 
than two people are trained in the initial training session.  Amounts paid for training are 
nonrefundable and do not include any travel or lodging or per diem expenses.   

Software and Website 

You must use Zrware, our proprietary software management program, in conducting the 
Franchise Business. The cost for the initial license is $750 plus a per Mobile Unit monthly fee as 
further described in Item 7 Note 2 and Item 11. The cost you will incur prior to opening for Zrware 
for one to three Mobile Units ranges from $860 to $1,080. 

Prior to opening, you must pay us a $250 fee, which we will pay to our designated third-party 
provider, prior to opening for the setup of your webpage on the ZEROREZ domain, and from $950 
to $1,300 for subscriptions to Listen360, Quick Books Online, Podium, and Campaign Monitor, 
which we will pay to the designated third-party providers. Thereafter, these fees will be paid 
monthly as set forth in Item 11. 

You agree to pay the Company our then-current, annual management training fee (as reasonably 
determined by the Company) for unlimited access to our management training library with 
leadership and cultural development resources to assist you in the operation of the Franchised 
Business. This fee as of March 2025 is currently $200 per year per franchise (each Franchise 
must purchase one  license), though we recommend a license be purchased for each member of 
your management team. Franchisees typically purchase from one to three licenses, depending 
on the size of their management team, for a total fee ranging from $200 to $600 per year. The 
management training fee for the first year will be paid upon execution of this Agreement and each 
year thereafter on the anniversary of this Agreement.  

All fees disclosed in this Item are nonrefundable. The Franchise Fee and charge for training 
additional people required of franchisees through this Disclosure Document are uniform, except 
where a franchisee qualifies for a discount outlined above.  Those amounts will not necessarily 
be uniform with franchise fees and charges for training additional people that will be offered 
through subsequent Disclosure Documents. 

ITEM 6. OTHER FEES 

Type of Fee 
 (Note 1) 

Amount Due Date Remarks 

Royalty Fee  
(“Royalty Fee”) 

6% of gross sales, 
subject to minimum 

amounts.  If your 
territory is a 

Hometown Market 
the royalty amount is 

By the 15th of each 
month based upon 
the Gross Sales for 

the prior month 

You will pay your Royalty 
Fee to us through an 

Electronic Funds Transfer 
(“EFT”). 
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Type of Fee 
 (Note 1) 

Amount Due Date Remarks 

a $750 per month flat 
fee, subject to 

minimum amounts.  
(Note 2) 

Management 
Training Fee  

$200 per person per 
year 

Annually on the 
anniversary date of 

the Franchise 
Agreement 

You will pay this fee for 
the franchise.  We 

recommend a license for 
each member of your 
management team to 

have unlimited access to 
our management training 

library. 

National Brand Fund 
Contribution 

1% of Gross Sales 
currently, up to 3% of 

Gross Sales 
(Note 3) 

By the 15th of each 
month based upon 
the Gross Sales for 

the prior month 

The required contribution 
is currently 1%. You will 

pay your national 
advertising contribution to 
us through an EFT (Note 

3). 

Local Advertising 5% of Gross Sales 
(Note 4) 

Expended monthly (Note 4) 

Carpet & Rug 
Institute Certification 

Approximately $250 
per year 

Annually, as incurred We require you to 
become a certified Carpet 
& Rug Institute business 
and to pay the required 

annual fee. 

Non-Compliance 
Fee 

$100 per day per 
deviation from 

contractual 
requirement plus 

actual, reasonable 
expenses incurred 
related to ensuring 

compliance, if 
applicable 

After notice and 
opportunity to cure 

within 10 days, within 
five days after 

notification from us 
that the fee is being 

charged 

 

Late Charges 2% of late royalty 
payment if received 
after the 20th of the 

month; 2% per month 
interest on unpaid 

balances  
(Note 2) 

Immediately after 
notice from us 

 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
 9 4927-0094-0829 

Type of Fee 
 (Note 1) 

Amount Due Date Remarks 

Training Fee for 
Additional Persons 

$1,500 per person At time of training (Note 5) 

Additional 
Training/Assistance 

$250 per day plus 
expenses 

As incurred We charge a daily fee of 
$250 plus expenses for 
any special assistance 

you request. 

Transfer Fee $7,500 - $30,000 Before Transfer is 
effective 

(Note 6)  

Audit Expenses Cost of audit, plus 
late 
fees                

Immediately after 
notice from us 

You must pay this fee 
only if the audit shows 

that you understated your 
Gross Sales by more than 
2%; in addition to formal 
audits, you must give us 

access to your books and 
records.  

Services We Provide 
to Your Customers 

Varies As incurred (Note 7) 

Annual Conference 
Fee 

Varies As incurred  (Note 8) 

Subscription fees for 
required software 

(other than Zrware) 
website and toll-free 
telephone number 

$950 - $1,300 As incurred These monthly fees are 
paid to us or to various 

vendors.  See Item 11 for 
required software 
subscriptions and 

information regarding the 
toll-free telephone 

number.  

Subscription fees for 
Zrware 

$750 for initial 
license, thereafter 

varies by the number 
of Mobile Units (see 
Items 7 and 11 for 
additional detail)  

By the 15th of each 
month to be paid with 

the Royalty Fee  

See Item 7 for additional 
detail. 

National Customer 
Acquisition Fee 

Varies By the 15th of each 
month to be paid with 

the Royalty Fee 

(Note 9) 

 

Note 1.  Unless otherwise stated, all fees are paid to ZEROREZ and are nonrefundable. Except 
with respect to some of our current franchisees that pay lower royalty rates and/or contribute to 
the brand fund at a lower rate than what you are required to contribute based upon agreements 
with certain early franchisees, all fees are uniformly imposed and collected. 
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Note 2.  If your territory is a Hometown Market with 30,000 households or less, you shall pay a 
flat royalty fee of $750 per month, subject to the Minimum Royalty Payment during the first 27 
months after Operations Commencement. If your territory has more than 30,000 households, the 
Royalty Fee is 6% of Gross Sales. If your territory is a Hometown Market but you service territory 
outside your Exclusive Territory, you shall pay the Royalty Fee of 6% on all Gross Sales generated 
in territory outside your Exclusive Territory. “Gross Sales” include all revenues you receive, 
whether cash, check, credit, or value of any goods or services traded, bartered, or otherwise 
received by you from your ZEROREZ Franchise, from the Services done by you or any person 
employed by you whether or not our name and marks are used and from the sale of any products 
to customers whether residential or business.  The foregoing also includes fees charged to your 
customers for fuel charges, waste dumping fees or any other surcharge added to a customer’s 
invoice.  Gross Sales do not include sales or use taxes on goods or services collected on behalf 
of governmental authorities, refunds and credits actually made by you to customers, and receipts 
from the sale of used equipment.  If your state, or any governmental body in your state, charges 
us a tax on the Royalty Fee we receive from you, then we require you to pay an additional amount 
sufficient to ensure that we receive the amount we would have otherwise received had the tax not 
applied to the payment.  This does not apply to any federal income tax we have to pay.  You must 
pay a Royalty Fee on Gross Sales received by you during the entire term of the Agreement and 
any renewal terms.   

The current minimum Royalty Fee (the “Minimum Royalty Payment”) depends on the size of 
your territory. Beginning in the fourth full calendar month after Operations Commencement, the 
Minimum Royalty Payment is as follows: for territories with 120,000 or fewer households 
(including Hometown Markets), the Minimum Royalty Payment is $250 per month. For territories 
with more than 120,000 households but 400,000 or fewer households, the Minimum Royalty 
Payment is $375 per month and for territories with more than 400,000 households, the Minimum 
Royalty Payment is $500 per month.  

Beginning in the sixteenth full calendar month after your Operations Commencement, the 
minimum Royalty Payment is as follows: for territories 120,000 or fewer households (including 
Hometown Markets), the Minimum Royalty Payment is $500 per month. For territories with more 
than 120,000 households but 400,000 or fewer households, the Minimum Royalty Payment is 
$750 per month and for territories with more than 400,000 households, the Minimum Royalty 
Payment is $1,500 per month.  

Beginning in the twenty-eighth full calendar month after your Operations Commencement, the 
minimum Royalty Payment is as follows: for Hometown Markets, the Minimum Royalty Payment 
is $750 per month. For territories with more than 30,000 households but 120,000 or fewer 
households, the Minimum Royalty Payment is $1,000 per month. For territories with more than 
120,000 households but 400,000 or fewer households, the Minimum Royalty Payment is $1,500 
per month and for territories with more than 400,000 households, the Minimum Royalty Payment 
is $2,500 per month.  

Beginning in the fortieth full calendar month after your Operations Commencement, the minimum 
Royalty Payment is as follows: for Hometown Markets, the Minimum Royalty Payment is $750 
per month. For territories with more than 300,000 households but 120,000 or fewer households, 
the Minimum Royalty Payment is $1,500 per month. For territories with more than 120,000 
households but 400,000 or fewer households, the Minimum Royalty Payment is $2,250 per month 
and for territories with over 400,000 households, the Minimum Royalty Payment is $3,750 per 
month. 
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Either the Royalty Fee or the Minimum Royalty Payment is required to be paid beginning three 
(3) months from the commencement of your franchise operations (“Operations 
Commencement"). 

You must also transmit to us electronically, at least monthly, Gross Sales figures (less credits), 
sales tickets and monthly sales tax statements.  In addition, you must provide to us your monthly 
profit and loss statement by the 15th day following the end of each month and annual financial 
statements, including profit and loss statements and a balance sheet no later than 30 days after 
the end of each calendar year.  

All royalty payments are due and owing by the 15th of each month through an electronic funds 
transfer from your bank account to our designated bank account. If we do not receive your royalty 
payment, we will assess a late penalty in the amount of 2% on the amount of the royalty payment 
due and payable for that billing cycle (the “Late Fee”). If you do remit your royalty payment by 
the 30th day of each monthly billing cycle, in addition to the Late Fee, we will assess interest on 
the entire amount owing for that specific billing cycle at the rate of 2% per month (or 24% per 
annum) (the “Interest Charge”) or the maximum amount allowed under applicable law, 
whichever is less. The Interest Charge will continue to accrue on any portion of a royalty payment 
that is more than 30 days in arrears, until such delinquent royalty payment is paid in full, including 
payment of the Late Fee. 

Note 3.  We have established a national advertising program, and you are required to contribute 
to the national program 1% of your monthly Gross Sales.  Thereafter, the percentage of Gross 
Sales may be increased by no more than 1% per annum up to a maximum of 3%.  You must pay 
us the contribution to the national advertising program monthly by EFT at the same time as the 
Royalty Fee but as a separate transfer to an account designated by us.   

Note 4.  Beginning on the commencement of your Franchise, you must spend at least 5% of your 
monthly Gross Sales on local advertising and promotion.  Upon request, you must deliver to us a 
report providing proof that you have fulfilled your local advertising requirement.  You may use 
these local advertising funds individually or in a local cooperative advertising program.  We have 
the right to review any records to confirm that your expenditures meet the requirements.  In the 
future, if your Territory is located in an advertising market where other ZEROREZ franchisees or 
company owned locations are located, we may require you to participate in a market-wide 
advertising cooperative.  Amounts contributed to the local advertising cooperative will be credited 
toward your minimum required local advertising expenditure.  

Note 5.  We provide the initial training of up to two people at our expense. We charge a training 
fee for the training of any additional individuals.  You may repeat the training at a future date, as 
needed, on a space available basis upon payment of the training fee.  All training materials will 
be provided at no cost for up to two people from your Franchise Business.  You will be responsible 
for paying for your own lodging, meals, transportation, and other out-of-pocket expenses 
connected with any and all of this training.  

If you require additional training for the Services or ancillary services or consulting services 
outside the scope of our training regimen, we may charge additional fees for such training or 
consulting services. 

Note 6.  You may not sell, assign, transfer, or encumber your rights under the Franchise 
Agreement or sell all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchise Business (“Transfer”), 
unless you meet our requirements as outlined in the Franchise Agreement. The Transfer fee 
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depends on the buyer of your Franchise.   If you sell, assign, or transfer a majority interest in your 
Franchise but continue to hold an interest in the Franchise or transfer your entire Franchise to a 
current Franchisee in the ZEROREZ Franchise System, the Transfer fee is $7,500. If you sell, 
assign, or transfer your Franchise to a new Franchisee that is not in the Zerorez Franchising 
System, the Transfer Fee is $30,000, which will include training for up to two individuals, which 
training must occur prior to the Transfer for the Franchise and both individuals must attend at the 
same time. In addition, you must execute (i) a mutual termination and release agreement in a 
form acceptable to us; and (ii) the new entity must execute the then-current version of our 
franchise agreement.   

Note 7.  You must guarantee all of the work of you and your employees.  If we incur costs to 
inspect or correct your work as the result of a customer complaint and your failure to satisfactorily 
respond to such a complaint, you must reimburse us for our costs reasonably incurred to remedy 
the complaint. 

Note 8.  We hold annual or periodic conferences for our franchisees.  There will be no charge for 
you and up to four individuals, from your Franchise Business to attend the conference.  We 
reserve the right to charge a fee for any additional attendees that we approve to attend.  You will 
be responsible for all of the travel, lodging and food expenses for the individuals attending the 
conference.  

Note 9. We may institute national customer acquisition programs whereby fees are paid to third-
party advertisers based on customers you actually service.  If such programs are instituted, you 
must pay the designated fee to us for each customer serviced.  Participation in any such program 
is mandatory, but we may discontinue any program at any time.  

ITEM 7.  ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT  

Type of 
Expenditure 

Amount 
Method of 
Payment 

When Due 
To Whom 

Payment Is to 
Be Made 

Franchise Fee  
(Note 1) 

$15,000 - $60,000 
Lump Sum 
Payment 

Upon signing 
Franchise 
Agreement 

Us 

Management Training 
Fee (All Access Pass) 

$200 - $600 
depending on 

number of licenses 
needed 

Lump Sum 
Payment 

Upon signing 
Franchise 

Agreement to 
cover first 

year of 
access 

Us 

Zrware 
(Note 2) 

$860 - $1,080 

Lump sum 
license fee 

and monthly 
installments 
thereafter 

Upon signing 
franchise 

agreement 
and monthly 

thereafter 

Us 
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Type of 
Expenditure 

Amount 
Method of 
Payment 

When Due 
To Whom 

Payment Is to 
Be Made 

Equipment Package 
(Note 3) 

$72,024 - $178,131  As Agreed As Agreed 
Third-party  

vendor 

Initial Supplies (Note 
4) 

$2,500 - $3,000 
Lump Sum 
Payment 

Prior to 
opening 

Third-party  
vendor 

Mobile Unit (Note 5) $65,656 - $81,766 As Agreed As Agreed 
Third-party  

vendor 

Advertising (Note 6) $5,000 - $30,000 As Incurred As Incurred Various 

Travel & Living 
Expenses While 
Training (Note 7) 

$3,000 - $5,000 
(based on two 

persons) 
As Incurred 

Prior to 
Opening 

Vendor/Service 
provider 

Computer System & 
Equipment, and 

telephone  
$3,500 - $6,000 

Lump Sum 
Payment 

Prior to 
Opening 

Vendor 

Website (Dynamix) $250 Lump Sum As Incurred Us 

Subscriptions to 
Listen360, 

QuickBooks Online, 
Podium, Campaign 

Monitor 

$950 - $1,300 As Incurred As Incurred Us 

IICRC Certification 
(Note 8) 

$454 - $579 
Lump Sum 
payment 

Prior to 
Opening 

Third-party 

Real Property 
(Note 9) 

$0 - $4,500 
Lump Sum 
Payment 

Prior to 
Opening 

Landlord 

Insurance (Note 10) $3,000 - $5,000 As Incurred As Incurred 
Insurance 
provider 

Additional Funds 
(covers first 12 

months) 
(Note 11) 

$90,000 - $241,500 Various As Incurred Various  

Total 
(Note 12) 

$262,394 - 
$618,706 

   

The foregoing chart describes the estimated initial investment for a Franchise Business using one 
Mobile Unit to provide the Services. These numbers are based upon the Mobile Unit and 
equipment package total costs but many of our franchisees finance these items and pay a monthly 
payment to a creditor.  We prepared these estimates based on the experience and data collected 
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from our current franchisees.  Except as expressly indicated otherwise, these estimates include 
your initial cash investment up to the opening of your Franchise Business, and potential working 
capital needs for the first 12 months of operations thereafter.  You should not plan to draw income 
from the operation during the start-up and development stage of your business, the actual 
duration of which will vary materially from one franchisee to another and cannot be predicted by 
us for your Franchise Business.  You should consider having additional sums available, whether 
in cash or through a bank line of credit or have other assets that you may liquidate or against 
which you may borrow to cover other expenses and any operating losses you may sustain, 
whether during your start-up or thereafter. The amount of necessary financial reserves will vary 
greatly from franchisee to franchisee and will depend upon many factors, including the rate of 
growth and success of your Franchise Business, which in turn will depend upon factors such as 
public awareness of our business and the ZEROREZ brand, your ability to operate efficiently and 
in conformance with our recommended methods of doing business, and competition.   

The estimated expenditures listed in the table payable to Zerorez are nonrefundable.  Whether 
amounts paid to third parties are refundable is determined by your agreement with such third 
party.   

Note 1.  The Franchise Fee is $15,000 for a Hometown Market Territory with up to 30,000 
households or $30,000 for a Territory of more than 30,000 households up to 60,000 households.  
If we allow you to purchase additional Territory, the Franchise Fee will include an additional 
$15,000 for each additional 30,000 households (or portion thereof), as determined by the Census.  
See Item 5 for additional details. The Franchise Fee is nonrefundable.  

Note 2.  You must use Zrware, our proprietary software management program, in conducting the 
Franchise Business. The cost for the initial license is $750.  Thereafter, the cost varies based on 
the number of Mobile Units you use in your operations.  Currently the fee schedule is as follows:  
$110 per Mobile Unit per month for 1-10 Mobile Units; $105 per Mobile Unit per Month for 11-25 
Mobile Units; $100 per Mobile Unit per month for 26-49 Mobile Units; $95 per Mobile Unit per 
month for 50-74 Mobile Units; and $70 per Mobile Unit per month for 75 Mobile Units and over.  
The cost outlined here includes the monthly fee for one to three Mobile Units. The Zrware price 
is expected to increase in June 2025 by $10 per Mobile Unit per month. 

Note 3.  You must purchase the ZEROREZ equipment package as detailed in our Manuals from 
sources acceptable to and approved by us.  The figures stated in the table are the estimated cost 
of the equipment package required to operate one Mobile Unit in the Franchise Business based 
on current pricing from our sources.  The actual cost to you of the equipment packages will likely 
vary from time to time as a result of pricing changes by our equipment sources and may also vary 
as a result of factors specifically applicable to you, such as vendor, location, delivery or shipping 
charges, and other items.  

You can acquire the required equipment through sources we identify or through your own 
source(s), which must be approved by us. Based on our experience with current franchisees, the 
cost to finance the equipment required to operate the Franchised Business according to the 
System over a 60-month term at an interest rate at approximately 21% based on credit history. 
Monthly payments range from $1,893.74 to $2,705.34 with no down payment to 30% down 
payment. The actual cost of the financing will vary depending on your credit rating, the term, and 
any additional, non-required equipment you choose to purchase. 

The required equipment package is fully described in our Manuals, as further defined in Item 11, 
includes one electrolyzed reduced water generator (“ERW Generator”) or a sufficient amount of 
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mineralized water concentrate, a water-softening device, and a water storage tank which you 
must have to provide the Services.  Both the ERW Generator and the mineralized water 
concentrate produce the alkaline cleaning solution that must be used in your ZEROREZ Franchise 
(herein referred to as “Zr Water®”) operations. Failure to use Zr Water as we prescribe will 
constitute a violation of your Franchise Agreement. You must purchase either an ERW Generator 
or mineralized water concentrate to use in the Franchised Business from our approved third-party 
vendors. If you choose to purchase an ERW Generator, the terms of purchase and the warranty 
attached to your specific ERW Generator will vary depending on the ERW Generator you 
purchase and from which third-party vendor you purchase your ERW Generator and the range of 
the equipment package including the ERW Generator is from $127,068 to $178,131. We require 
that you fulfill all obligations required under the purchase of your ERW Generator. You must notify 
us of the third-party vendor that supplies your ERW Generator and the terms and conditions of 
your purchase. If you choose to purchase mineralized water concentrate, we require that you 
maintain the solution below a pH of 10. The cost range of the equipment package if you choose 
to purchase the mineralized water concentrate (instead of the ERW Generator) is from $72,024 
to $144,982.  If you choose this option, you will have additional costs related to purchasing the 
mineralized water concentrate throughout the term of your Franchise Agreement. 

Note 4.  You are required to purchase from us or approved third-party vendors an initial supply of 
cleaning products and supplies to commence operation of your ZEROREZ Franchise as detailed 
in the Manuals.  The amount disclosed is to operate one Mobile Unit and will be enough product 
for 4-5 months of operations. Supplies purchased from other suppliers must comply in all respects 
with our System standards.  See Item 8 of this Disclosure Document. 

Note 5.  The price for the Mobile Unit, as disclosed, varies based on the vans available to you 
plus the equipment that is installed inside the van. You must transport the cleaning equipment to 
the customer’s location on a Mobile Unit to perform the Services.  Accordingly, you cannot operate 
without an approved Mobile Unit that is equipped with options necessary for mounting and 
operating the cleaning equipment and that otherwise complies with our System standards as 
further described during training.  You can lease the required Mobile Unit through sources we 
identify or through your own source.  Based on our experience with current franchisees, the cost 
to finance the Mobile Unit required to operate the Franchised Business according to the System, 
over a 60 -month term at a rate at 8.25% based on your credit history and without a down payment 
monthly payments will range from $1,339 to $1,667.  The actual cost of the financing will vary 
depending on your credit rating, the term, and any additional, non-required equipment you choose 
to purchase. The estimated range includes your down payment and first three payments.    

Note 6.  The amounts shown reflect an estimate of cost of initial advertising to promote the 
opening of your ZEROREZ Franchise.  We require you to spend a minimum of 5% of your Gross 
Sales on advertising, therefore, the minimum initial cost will depend on the Gross Sales of your 
ZEROREZ Franchise Business during the initial period.  The initial advertising may consist of 
social media, electronic advertising, flyers, etc., however, most franchisees utilize radio 
advertising as the primary medium.  Advertising costs can vary considerably from area to area 
based upon the size of the area, the types of media available and other factors.   

Note 7.  The range of estimates presented above reflects that transportation expenses will vary 
according to distance traveled and mode of transportation. 

Note 8. We require you or your designated manager to complete certification with the 
Institute of Inspection, Cleaning & Restoration Certification (“IICRC”), a third-party certification 
program, as part of your initial training.  This training must be completed prior to opening your 
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ZEROREZ franchise. The cost is between $454 and $579. We require you to become a certified 
Carpet & Rug Institute (“CRI”) business, which will cost approximately $250 per year. You must 
always have, at a minimum, one employee that is IICRC Certified. 

Note 9.  To fulfill your requirement to fully develop the potential of the Franchise Business in your 
Territory, you are required to add Mobile Units when necessary to ensure you promptly and 
adequately provide service to all customers within the Territory.  The estimated amounts reflect 
the circumstance where some franchisees may initially operate from their residence, while others 
will choose to establish a separate facility.  The higher figure is an estimate of the lease rate for 
an office/storage facility of approximately 1,500 square feet to be large enough for a three-Mobile 
Unit operation.  Actual lease rates may vary considerably from area to area based upon local 
rental rates and availability of suitable commercial space.   

Note 10.  Insurance costs vary in different locations.  The estimate is for one year of liability 
insurance coverage, property and casualty insurance coverage and vehicle coverage.  If you have 
employees, you may incur expenses for workers’ compensation insurance.  We are unable to 
estimate amounts that you may be required to spend for workers’ compensation insurance.  The 
requirements and rates vary widely from place to place.  We reserve the right, upon 60 days prior 
written notice, to require you to obtain additional liability, property, vehicle or workers’ 
compensation coverage, as provided under the Franchise Agreement.   

Note 11.  This is an estimate that includes miscellaneous expenses you will incur in the first twelve 
months of operating the Franchise Business and includes security deposits, ongoing monthly 
software subscriptions and other initial expenses, such as advertising, rent, payroll, insurance 
and your transitional living expenses. You should be aware many of these costs will repeat on a 
monthly basis, and you should therefore make sure you have sufficient additional funds to meet 
the franchise business operation commitments. during the first 12 months of operation, and 
sometimes longer. The estimate of additional funds is based upon an owner-operated business 
and does not include any salaries or benefits for employees or any allowance for an owner’s draw. 
We estimate that, in general, a franchisee can expect to invest additional cash into the business 
during the first 12 months, and sometimes longer. This cost may vary based on factors such as 
the number of routes your franchise operates.  This estimate is based on our past experience 
operating the business and offered in this Disclosure Document as well as our franchisees 
experience. 

Note 12.  We have relied on our experience and our franchisees experience in the cleaning 
industry to compile these estimates.  Neither we nor our affiliates finance any part of the initial 
investment. 

ITEM 8.   RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

You must operate your ZEROREZ Franchise according to our System.  The System regulates 
most aspects of your Franchise Business, including the products and Services you offer, 
advertising materials, uniforms, office supplies, stationery, and other miscellaneous materials 
used in your Franchise Business.  All cleaning products, supplies, advertising materials and 
equipment used by you in the establishment and operation of your ZEROREZ Franchise must 
meet our specifications, as established by us from time to time.  We will provide written notice to 
you of any modifications to these specifications. The proprietary products and other cleaning 
products described in the Manuals must be purchased from us or approved third-party vendors, 
unless we determine otherwise. In addition, you may only offer Services authorized by us, and 
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you must offer those Services in accordance with our requirements, as established from time to 
time.  The System, to achieve the most proficient cleaning, requires that you use our ZrLifter, 
ZrWand and water from an approved ERW Generator or approved mineralized water vendor. You 
must use the ZrLifter, ZrWand and water from an approved ERW Generator or approved 
mineralized water vendor in your Franchise Business. You may not offer services that we do not, 
or cease to, authorize upon notification by us that those services are no longer authorized.  The 
source of these obligations is the Franchise Agreement, and the purpose of these requirements 
is to maintain the ZEROREZ image and preserve the integrity of the System, to ensure the 
identification of ZEROREZ franchisees by the public, to preserve and enhance the goodwill 
associated with the image, and to fulfill expectations of ZEROREZ’s customers.  Specifications 
may include minimum standards for quality, performance, safety, durability, appearance, size, 
color, fitness for purpose, design, material, and other characteristics. Upon termination of your 
ZEROREZ franchise, we will instruct you in the manner and method of disposition of your 
ZEROREZ equipment, including removing any and all Marks for your equipment, etc. 

Items Which You Must Purchase  

The ERW Generator and mineralized water concentrate produce ZrWater, the cleaning solution 
used in all ZEROREZ franchises.  You may only purchase ERW Generators and mineralized 
water concentrate from third-party vendors we have approved. The terms of purchase and the 
warranty attached to your specific ERW Generator will vary depending on the ERW Generator 
you purchase and from which third-party vendor you purchase your ERW Generator. We require 
that you fulfill all obligations required under the purchase of your ERW Generator.  You must notify 
us as to the third-party vendor that supplies your ERW Generator and the terms and conditions 
of your purchase. You must use Zr Water in your operations and for no other purpose. Failure to 
use Zr Water will constitute a violation of your Franchise Agreement. 

You will not be permitted to sell the ERW Generator to anyone, other than a person who 
purchases your Franchise Business or to another Zerorez Franchisee upon written approval by 
Company.  Additionally, you will not be allowed to sell any fluids generated by the ERW 
Generator(s) or by mineralized water concentrate in bottles or in bulk without our prior written 
consent.  

Both Zerorez and any vendor that supplies your ERW Generator will provide training on the 
installation of the ERW Generator during your initial training.  You will then be responsible for the 
actual installation of the ERW Generator.  You will be responsible to follow the manufacturer’s 
guidelines in your operation of the ERW Generator, including regular and consistent maintenance, 
which is required by the manufacturer in order for the ERW Generator to function properly and 
efficiently.  Each warranty respecting your ERW Generator will vary based upon the ERW 
Generator you purchase and the third-party vendor from whom you purchase the same. 

You must purchase and use in your ZEROREZ franchise, initially and throughout your term as a 
Zerorez franchisee, certain specific tools, accessories and equipment, as described in our 
manuals, which consist of six (6) manuals available for information and training to all franchisees 
(referred to collectively as the “Manuals”). In order to maintain the proprietary nature of your 
Franchise Business, and to assure the consistent delivery of the ZEROREZ Services, some of 
the items you will be required to purchase can only be obtained from or through us or approved 
vendors. The products described in the Manuals must be used in your Franchised Business for 
ongoing operations and can only be purchased through us or Zerorez-approved vendors.  You 
are required to purchase from approved vendors an initial supply of cleaning products and 
supplies to commence operation of your ZEROREZ Franchise.  These required products and 
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supplies are detailed in the Manuals.  We do not currently supply any of your initial supply of 
cleaning products or inventory besides the Zr Wand, although we may do more in the 
future.  Purchasing other or similar products (equipment and cleaning products) from 
unauthorized third parties constitutes a violation of the Franchise Agreement and may lead to the 
termination of your Franchise. You may only sell to customers products approved by us.  We may 
be the only supplier of such approved products, in which case you must cease sale of any similar 
products purchased from other sources. 

You must purchase or lease and use in your ZEROREZ franchise Mobile Units that meet the 
standards described in our Manuals. Each Mobile Unit you acquire for your franchise must be 
modified to include certain equipment and accessories required to mount the required cleaning 
equipment.  These Mobile Unit items may only be purchased and installed by approved suppliers 
we identify.  

You must purchase a license for Zrware, which is owned and operated by us, and use the latest 
available version of Zrware for your franchise.  You will also pay us a monthly fee based upon the 
number of Mobile Units used in your franchise. You must upgrade or supplement your hardware 
and/or software, including the purchase of additional equipment, if necessary, as specified by us 
from time to time to improve the overall effectiveness and competitiveness of your 
business.  Please review Item 11 for additional information regarding computer hardware and 
software you must purchase or license. 

We have obtained a toll-free telephone number 1-866-ZEROREZ, and you may be required to 
advertise the central 1-866-ZEROREZ telephone number in all of your advertising.  Calls to the 
central telephone number for jobs within your exclusive operating Territory will be routed to you.  
We will bill you a monthly fee for the use of this telephone number (See Item 6).  Calls for jobs 
within your market but that are outside your exclusive operating Territory will be routed to you 
and/or any other franchisee(s) operating within that market area, as determined, at our discretion.    

If we develop other proprietary equipment or products in the future, we may, as determined by us 
in our sole discretion, require you to purchase those items from us.   

Approved Suppliers 

You must purchase all products, including, but not limited to, cleaning products, chemicals, 
equipment, signs, uniforms, supplies, stationery, paper goods, business cards, and report forms 
used in the operation of your ZEROREZ Franchise only from suppliers who have been approved 
by us.  We, or our affiliates, may be an approved supplier for required purchases and in some 
cases may be the only approved supplier.  If we or an affiliate are an approve supplier, we will 
receive profits from sales to franchisees. We continually review and evaluate suppliers for this 
purpose and approve those who are able to meet our standards and specifications, who possess 
adequate quality controls, and who have the capacity to supply our needs and the needs of our 
franchisees promptly and reliably.  The criteria we use in approving suppliers are available to 
franchisees upon written request.  We reserve the right to limit the number of approved suppliers 
for the purposes of efficiency and effective buying power.  All items purchased from approved 
suppliers must meet our System standards. 

We will give you a list of approved suppliers before you start your Franchise Business.  If you 
want to purchase products from suppliers other than those we have approved, you must request 
our approval in writing before doing so.  Before giving our approval, we may ask the supplier to 
provide samples of materials they wish to provide to you, and we may investigate the ability of 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
 19 4927-0094-0829 

the supplier to provide materials that meet our specifications.  The prospective supplier must pay 
to us the actual costs associated with the investigation of their product(s), although we do not 
impose any fee upon you for such an investigation.  We will tell you within 30 days whether or not 
a supplier will be approved.  If we approve a supplier, we have the right to re-inspect its facilities, 
products and service record from time to time, and we can revoke our approval if the supplier fails 
to meet our standards or does not cooperate with us in our periodic re-approval process.  Our 
determination regarding approval or disapproval is final.     

ZEROREZ has not established and does not participate in any purchasing or distribution 
cooperatives and no purchasing or distribution cooperatives have been approved.  As described 
under Item 11 of this Disclosure Document, we may establish advertising cooperatives. 

We may, at our option, negotiate certain purchase and pricing arrangements with suppliers for 
the benefit of the entire ZEROREZ franchise organization and charge a markup and make a profit 
on such purchasing arrangements.  We do not provide any special benefits to franchisees based 
upon their use of such suppliers.      

Insurance 

You must obtain and maintain, at your own expense, the insurance coverage delineated in the 
Franchise Agreement, including "all risk" property and casualty insurance, commercial liability 
insurance, automobile liability insurance, statutorily required workers compensation insurance 
coverage, or any other insurance required by state law as described in the Manuals.  While you 
are free to obtain insurance from the company of your choice, we may from time to time have 
certain relationships with insurers you can use. The current description provides that you must 
maintain general liability insurance of at least $1,000,000 per accident or occurrence affecting 
one or more persons or property damage and $1,000,000 aggregate.  Your cost for this insurance 
will depend on where your franchise is located, insurance carrier’s rates, your insurance history 
and the level of your deductibles.  All policies of insurance maintained by you must contain a 
separate endorsement naming ZEROREZ as an additional insured and provide that we receive 
at least 30 days prior written notice of termination, cancellation or expiration of any insurance. 
You must provide us a copy of your insurance binder.  All insurance maintained by you must be 
placed with an insurance carrier or carriers with an A.M. Best’s rating of “A” and an A.M. Best’s 
Class rating of “xiv” or otherwise must be approved in writing by us.  The cost of this coverage 
will vary depending on the insurance carrier(s), the terms of payment and your history.   

Company-Acquired Accounts 

We may, at our option, enter into agreements to provide or accept services for third-party 
companies on a national or regional basis (“Company-Acquired Accounts”).  Company-
Acquired Accounts may be any non-residential customer requesting Zerorez services.  You 
should be aware that Company-Acquired Accounts may lead to high volume and, in some 
situations, discounted pricing. You are granted a first right of refusal to provide services to 
Company-Acquired Accounts in your Territory at the pricing established by us. If you choose not 
to service the Company-Acquired Account or do not meet the standards or requirements 
established by the Company-Acquired Account, we have the right, but not the obligation, to 
service the Company-Acquired Account or to engage a subcontractor to service the account who 
may be another Zerorez franchisee. In negotiating pricing schedules on Company-Acquired 
Accounts, ZEROREZ will negotiate on behalf of all of the franchisees.   
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Ownership Interest in Suppliers 

None of our officers own any interest in any supplier from whom you are required to purchase as 
a franchisee. 

Revenue Derived by Franchisor and Affiliates from Franchisee Purchases 

Our total revenue from all sources in our last fiscal year ending December 31, 2024 was 
$6,585,322 and the revenues to us from required purchases of products by our franchisees from 
our approved suppliers or us was $49,766 for the same period or 0.76% of our total revenues. 
Our revenue is accounted for as a separate account line item on our internal financial statements. 
During the most recently completed fiscal year, Zerorez, Inc. did not receive any derived revenue, 
rebates or other material consideration based on required purchases or leases by franchisees. 

We estimate that your purchases of goods and services in accordance with specifications will 
represent approximately 90 to 100% of your total purchase in connection with establishing your 
Franchised Business and approximately 90 to 100% of your total purchases in connection with 
operating your Franchised Business. 

In 2024, we received rebates from approved suppliers of equipment and supplies.  These rebates 
are calculated based on either (i) a flat amount per ERW Generator purchased of $5,000, or (ii) 
the gross sales by suppliers to our franchisees and range from 1% to 4% of such sales or of the 
amount financed.  We do not currently receive any other rebates from any approved suppliers, 
and we do not have any plans to do so, although we reserve the right to receive additional rebates 
in the future, however, the cost to franchisees shall not exceed open market rates for the same 
or reasonably similar products or services.  

ITEM 9. FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS  

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements.  It will 
help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and 
in other items of this Disclosure Document. 

OBLIGATION SECTION(S) IN AGREEMENT 
ITEM(S) IN DISCLOSURE 

DOCUMENT 

a. Site selection and 
acquisition/lease 

Section 3 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 8 & 11 

b. Pre-opening 
purchases/leases 

Sections 5 & 11 of Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 7 & 8 

c. Site development and 
other pre-opening 
requirements 

Section 1, 7 & Schedule A of 
the Franchise Agreement 

Items 7, 8 & 11 

d. Initial and on-going training  Section 4 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 7 & 11 
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OBLIGATION SECTION(S) IN AGREEMENT 
ITEM(S) IN DISCLOSURE 

DOCUMENT 

e. Opening Section 3 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 7, 8 & 11 

f. Fees Sections 2, 4 & 12 of the 
Franchise Agreement 

Items 5, 6 & 7 

g. Compliance with standards 
and policies / Operating 
Manual 

Section 4, 5 & 6 of the 
Franchise Agreement 

Items 8, 11, 15 & 16 

h. Trademarks and 
proprietary information 

Sections 4, 5, 6 & 8 of the 
Franchise Agreement 

Items 13 & 14 

i. Restrictions on 
products/services offered 

Sections 1 & 5 of the 
Franchise Agreement 

Items 8 & 16 

j. Warranty and customer 
service requirements 

Section 5 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 6 & 11 

k. Territorial development 
and sales quotas 

Sections 1, 2, 5 & Schedule A 
of the Franchise Agreement,  

Item 12 

l. On-going product/service 
purchases 

Section 5 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Item 8 

m. Maintenance, appearance, 
and remodeling 
requirements 

Section 5 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 7 & 11 

n. Insurance Section 11 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 7 & 8 

o. Advertising Section 7 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 6, 8 & 11 

p. Indemnification Section 11 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 6 & 13 

q. Owner’s participation/ 
management/staffing 

Section 5 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 11 & 15 

r. Records/Reports Sections 2, 5 & 10 of the 
Franchise Agreement 

Items 6 & 11 

s. Inspections/Audits Section 10 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Item 6 
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OBLIGATION SECTION(S) IN AGREEMENT 
ITEM(S) IN DISCLOSURE 

DOCUMENT 

t. Transfer Section 12 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Item 17 

u. Renewal Sections 1 & 13 of the 
Franchise Agreement 

Item 17 

v. Post-termination 
obligations  

Section 14 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Item 17 

w. Non-competition 
covenants 

Section 8 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Item 17 

x. Dispute Resolution Section 15 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Item 17 

ITEM 10.  FINANCING 

We have an arrangement with our preferred lender and receive compensation for assisting you 
in obtaining financing in the amount of 1% of the financed amount. The terms of the financing, 
including whether to lend to you at all, are solely determined by the lender based on its criteria for 
lending. Other than as set forth above, we do not offer any direct or indirect financing or have any 
arrangements where we receive compensation for assisting you in obtaining financing.  If we 
make additional arrangements, we will disclose them to you or any franchisees to whom we make 
it available and reserve the right to receive compensation for any such offer. 

We do not guarantee your note, lease or obligation.  If you are a corporation, limited liability 
company or other business entity, we require your shareholders, members and owners to 
guarantee all of your obligations to us.  

ITEM 11.  FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,  
COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING 

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide any assistance to you. 

Obligations Prior to Opening 

Before you begin to operate your ZEROREZ franchise, we will provide the following 
assistance: 

1. Designate your exclusive operating Territory at the time you sign your Franchise 
Agreement (Franchise Agreement, Section 1.1, Attachment A). 

2. Connect you with your ERW Generator third-party vendor in order to purchase one or 
more ERW Generators needed for your proposed Franchise operation (Franchise 
Agreement, Section 5.3).   
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3. Provide a list of approved vendors that will sell to you the equipment you are required to 
install on your ZEROREZ Mobile Units and assist you with the installation of equipment 
an outfitting of your Mobile Units for operation (Franchise Agreement, Section 5).   

4. Provide a list of approved vendors that will sell to you the equipment and supplies for 
which we are the sole source that you need to operate your Franchise Business (Franchise 
Agreement, Section 5.2).   

5. Provide you with a list of approved suppliers (Franchise Agreement, Section 5.2). 

6. Provide to you, for the term of the Franchise Agreement, our Manuals, as further defined 
in Item 11, which remains our property (Franchise Agreement, Section 4.3). 

7. Permit you to use the Marks and the ZEROREZ System, in accordance with our 
requirements (Franchise Agreement, Section 1.1, Section 6). 

8. Provide initial training of two persons, you and a person designated by you, at times and 
locations designated by us (Franchise Agreement, Section 4.1). 

9. Provide you and your management team access to our management training library 
(Franchise Agreement, Section 2.2). 

Obligations After Opening 

During the operation of your ZEROREZ franchise, we will provide the following assistance: 

1. Continuation of the Obligations Prior to Opening described above, as applicable and as 
those obligations and assistance are needed. (Franchise Agreement, Section 4) 

2. Provide marketing advice. You have the right to determine your local marketing strategy 
within the brand guidelines as provided, including through the Manuals and our brand and 
style guides (the, “Brandworks”). ZEROREZ reserves the right to review and determine, 
in its sole discretion, whether your marketing strategy and materials are in compliance 
with the brand guidelines. (Franchise Agreement, Section 7) 

3. Provide Pricing advice. You have the right to determine your local pricing for Services, 
except for Company-Acquired Accounts, for which we will establish pricing. (Franchise 
Agreement, Section 5.7 and Section 5.12) 

4. Conduct an annual conference for all ZEROREZ franchisees (Franchise Agreement, 
Section 4.3). 

5. Provide access to a digital asset manager, which is currently housed on the platform 
Brandworks(which contains advertising materials developed by us and our franchisees 
from time to time for use in a ZEROREZ Franchise.  (Franchise Agreement, Section 7.2) 

6. Use the national advertising program funds collected from you to formulate and conduct 
the program (Franchise Agreement, Section 7.3). 

7. Use commercially reasonable efforts to protect the Marks and proprietary products from 
infringement by any person (Franchise Agreement, Section 6.3). 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
 24 4927-0094-0829 

8. Periodically update our Manuals (Franchise Agreement, Section 4.3). 

9. Provide you and your management team access to our management training library and 
the Zr Academy (Franchise Agreement, Sections 2.2and Section 4.1). 

Advertising Programs 

We consider advertising and promotion to be critical to the establishment and growth of a 
ZEROREZ Franchise.  As a result, we require that you spend at least 5% but recommend you 
spend significantly more of your Gross Sales for local advertising. You are free to determine how 
the required local advertising funds are spent, provided that you request and receive our approval 
in advance for any use of the Marks, provide us with a summary of the advertising expenditures 
on at least a quarterly basis, and provided further that you will promptly discontinue any 
advertising upon our request.  You may employ the services of an advertising agency if you so 
desire.  We reserve the right to audit and reserve the right to deny use of advertising materials 
not prepared by us, or which were produced by us but altered by you or your representatives.  

You must contribute 1% of your Gross Sales per month to our national brand fund.  We may 
increase the percentage of Gross Sales by no more than 1% per annum up to a maximum of 3%.  
In connection with the national advertising program, we have the final right to approve all 
advertising vendors and advertising copy and will administer this fund or engage a third party to 
manage this fund if ever established.  Some of our current franchisees contribute to the brand 
fund at a lower rate than what you are required to contribute based upon agreements made as 
some early franchisees in our system. Other than these franchisees, all franchisees will contribute 
at the same rate. We and our company-owned bases and affiliate franchises will contribute the 
same percentage of Gross Sales in the same manner.  The fund will be used to assist the system 
as a whole to grow in recognition and to test various marketing techniques and advertising for the 
benefit of the entire system.  The fund will be audited annually, and franchisees will be allowed to 
request an accounting of the fund 90 days after the end of each calendar year in writing for the 
fund’s use in the previous year.  Franchisees are limited to one such request for an audit annually.  
The fund will not be used for solicitation of new franchisees. 

In 2024, 16.3% of the fund expenditures on branding and creative, 22.5% on personnel resources, 
53.2% on software development and services, and 7.5% on digital media testing and support. 

In the future, if your Territory is located in an advertising market where other ZEROREZ 
franchisees or company owned locations are located, we may require you to participate in a 
market-wide advertising cooperative. You will not be required to contribute more than 5% of your 
Gross Sales to any such cooperative, and all amounts contributed to the local advertising 
cooperative will be credited toward your minimum required local advertising expenditure.  Any 
ZEROREZ business owned by us or any of our affiliates will participate in any cooperative on the 
same basis as you are required to contribute.  Any cooperative will be administered by the 
cooperative according to bylaws or guidelines provided by us.  We may change any governing 
bylaws or guidelines as we deem reasonably necessary for the benefit of the members and the 
system.  Any governing documents will be made available to the members upon request. 

In order to maintain consistency and quality, you will be required to purchase most of your 
advertising through whatever media buyer or advertising company we may reasonably designate 
from time to time so long as the service fees charged by such buyer or company are reasonable 
and that such requirement is consistently applied to all franchisees.  You may advertise our central 
1-866-ZEROREZ telephone number in all of your advertising.  All calls to the central telephone 
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number originating within your exclusive operating Territory will be routed to you.  Calls for jobs 
within your market but that are outside your exclusive operating Territory and the exclusive 
territory of other franchisees will be routed to you and/or any other franchisees operating within 
that market area, as determined in our discretion.   

To maintain the consistency of our brand and advertising connected to our brand, all advertising 
and use of the Marks must be in compliance with the Brandworks.  If we determine, in our sole 
discretion, that any advertising or Marks are not in compliance with our guidelines, we may require 
and you must immediately cease use and take all effort necessary effort to take down or remove 
and such non-compliant advertising or use of our Marks.  Other than the responsibilities outlined 
above, we have no obligation to conduct advertising, whether local, regional or national to spend 
any amount on advertising in your Territory. 

We have established a marketing committee that meets monthly and consists initially of members, 
six of whom are elected. From the six who are elected, at least three individuals shall be 
franchisees and the remaining three may be franchisees or corporate base managers. 
Additionally, Franchisor designates two of its full-time employees (“Corporate Representatives'') 
as members and the Franchise Advisory Committee “FAC” shall appoint one of its members as 
a marketing committee member Each member will serve for a three-year term. With the exception 
of the FAC member appointed to the committee, each member represents one vote. In addition, 
the CEO of Zerorez shall have one vote. For purposes of clarity, this means the committee shall 
consist of a total of nine votes. The committee serves only in an advisory role to formulate 
marketing strategies both locally and nationally and to provide a marketing resource for 
franchisees.  

We also created and support the FAC, which consists of four representative franchisees, elected 
for a two or three-year term by our franchisees and one appointed ZEROREZ corporate 
representative.  Representative Franchisees may be corporate employees but must own at least 
33.33% of a Franchised Business and be an active operator in the Franchised Business. The 
FAC is an advisory board to help franchisees communicate with the entire ZEROREZ franchise 
organization, and its existence is governed by bylaws.  One member of the FAC is assigned 
specifically to marketing issues.  The FAC does not have decision making authority and does not 
bind us or franchisees in any way, other than with respect to speaking for franchisees.   

If we determine that a cooperative media area-advertising program should be formed, you must 
participate in and pay the designated fees related to that cooperative advertising program.  All 
ZEROREZ franchisees that have businesses, including us and our affiliates, in the media area 
must participate in the cooperative.  The media area will be determined by us using third-party 
media services such as Nielson for television and radio and areas of circulation for printed media.   

Cooperatives will operate under bylaws approved by us. Each cooperative is free to set its own 
budget and is self-administered. All cooperatives operate on a one ZEROREZ Franchise equals 
one-vote basis.  In the event of disputes or tie votes, which cannot be resolved by the members 
of the cooperative, we reserve the right to resolve the dispute.  Unless ZEROREZ is a member of 
an advertising cooperative in your media area, we have no obligation to spend any money on 
advertising in your area.  We do not require cooperatives to prepare or submit periodic financial 
statements, although they are free to do so. 

We may institute national customer acquisition programs whereby fees are paid to third-party 
advertisers based on customers you actually service.  If such programs are instituted, you must 
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pay the designated fee to us for each customer serviced.  Participation in any such program is 
mandatory, but we may discontinue any program at any time. 

We require you to set-up and manage a location-specific page within the ZEROREZ.COM 
domain. You will be required to pay a service fee of $250 per month.  You are not permitted to 
obtain or maintain any other Internet web site or domain name separate from this website, which 
contains anything related to the ZEROREZ franchise, business, approved services or any of our 
trademarks or service marks without our express written approval. We will own any domain that 
includes the name “ZEROREZ.”  Notwithstanding the foregoing, we allow you to establish and 
manage your own local presence within social media platforms such as Facebook, Instagram and 
TikTok, provided that if we, in our sole discretion, determine that any post is inappropriate, not 
consistent with the ZEROREZ brand or should otherwise be removed or taken down, you must 
do so immediately and you must transfer any such account to us upon termination or expiration 
of the Franchise Agreement.   

We will support the toll-free number, 1-866 ZEROREZ (937-6739), and Internet sites, 
www.zeroresidue.com, www.myzerorez.com and www.zerorez.com. 

Computer/Software Systems 

You must use computers, software, Internet connections and printers that meet our specifications 
and that integrate with our corporate server, to facilitate companywide Customer Relationship 
Management (“CRM”) for scheduling and managing operations. As of the date of this Disclosure 
Document our required CRM for use in your Franchise Business is Zrware, which is owned and 
operated by us. You will obtain a license from us for a $750 one-time license fee to use the latest 
available version of Zrware and will pay us a monthly fee, based upon the number of Mobile Units 
used in your franchise. Other than Zrware, we have no contractual obligation to provide 
maintenance, repairs, updates, or upgrades with respect to your computer systems.  You must 
upgrade or supplement your hardware and/or software, including the purchase of additional 
equipment, if necessary, as specified by us from time to time without contractual limit to improve 
the overall effectiveness and competitiveness of your business.  The cost of Zrware depends on 
the number of routes that you operate.  We estimate that the cost will average $110 per month 
for a one Mobile Unit operation but this average may increase in June 2025 when the price per 
Mobile Unit increases by $10 per month. You must grant us independent access to all financial 
information generated and stored in your computer systems.  We reserve the right to have 
independent access to your schedule for the purpose of scheduling appointments for Company-
Acquired Accounts.  There are no contractual limits to our access to this information. 

In addition to Zrware, we require that you subscribe to Listen360, a customer service satisfaction 
program that costs $58 per month as of the date of this Disclosure Document; QuickBooks Online, 
an accounting software program that costs, on average, $200 per month as of the date of this 
Disclosure Document; Podium, that costs $250 per month as of the date of this Disclosure 
Document, Dynamix, a website management program, that costs $250 per month as of the date 
of this Disclosure Document; Campaign Monitor that costs $150 to $500 per month as of the date 
of this Disclosure Document. If these amounts change, we will communicate the change to you. 

To operate these programs, you will need computer equipment meeting the specifications we may 
establish from time to time.  Other than the software requirement outlined above, we do not 
currently have any specification established regarding computers, Internet connections or 
printers.  We do not recommend any particular supplier of computer equipment and are under no 
obligation to help you find computer equipment.  You may purchase equipment meeting our 
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specifications from any supplier you choose.  We will provide you with online support to help you 
operate the software and to answer routine questions about the operation and maintenance of 
the software. The manufacturer of your computer will assist in providing technical support if 
necessary.   

You are prohibited from changing or modifying the software package we designate for your use, 
and you will be bound by the terms of the license agreement that comes with the software.   

We have private, secure sites on the Internet, which are available to ZEROREZ franchisees, 24 
hours per day, and 7 days per week.  These sites allow you and other franchisees to send e-mail 
to the corporate staff, post and respond to questions and view other responses in question-and-
answer forums, view and print news items, download files and software updates, update and 
order business forms, order products you will use in the operation of your business, conduct 
background checks on prospective employees, and access training courses and materials for you 
and your employees.  We will provide you with a specific ZEROREZ email address that you must 
use to communicate with us in regard to the franchise. 

Confidential Brand Standards Manuals 

Manuals means our confidential brand standards manuals, which currently includes each of the 
six manuals listed below, (referred to collectively herein as the “Manuals”), as may be amended 
and supplemented from time to time, containing our System standards, specifications and 
operating procedures relating to the development and operation of a ZEROREZ franchise.  We 
will provide you with electronic access to Manuals at the appropriate time during the initial training 
in our offices, and you will retain such electronic access to Manuals as a franchisee.   

The Manuals also include alternative or supplemental means of communicating that information 
by other media, including e-mails, videotapes, and audiotapes. The current Manuals total 2,733 
pages and include the following separate manuals: “Managing the Business: (707 pages); 
“Technician Success & Cleaning” (401 pages); “Software Training” (52 pages); “Chemicals 
Equipment Logistics” (1,347 pages); “Customer Service” (105 Pages); and “Marketing” (121 
pages). 

The Manuals will be made available to you to review in our offices prior to your signing the 
Franchise Agreement.  We may also show you the Manuals via Zoom if you prefer not to travel 
to our offices before signing. The Manuals will be accessible online through our secured site and 
access will be monitored.  The Manuals contain Confidential Information, and you agree not to 
copy any part of it or distribute it to anyone outside your Franchise Business.  

Site Selection 

You select the site for your business within your Territory.  We do not select or approve a business 
location for you, and we are not required to provide any assistance to you in selecting a location, 
although we will offer guidance if requested to do so by you.   

Time Before Opening 

You must commence operation of your ZEROREZ Franchise within 75 calendar days after you 
complete our initial training program.  The typical length of time from the signing of a Franchise 
Agreement to the commencement of operations by a franchisee is 90 to 120 days.  Factors 
affecting the length of time before opening usually include obtaining the necessary financing if 
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any, delivery of the Mobile Unit and installation of the required equipment, schedule of training 
classes and the termination of your current employment if necessary. 

Training 

Training Program 

We provide an initial training program that begins upon signing of your franchise agreement. The 
initial training will be provided through Zr Academy™, an online LMS (learning management 
system), which includes quick reference guides, videos, manuals, quizzes and other resource 
materials. This online training is all a lead-up to a week-long in-person training experience at our 
corporate offices in American Fork, Utah or another location designated by Zerorez and includes 
classroom and hands-on training.  The online and in-person training are in preparation for go-live 
training when your Franchise opens for business. 

Up to two individuals whom we approve in advance may attend the initial training for no charge 
beyond your franchise fee. Additional individuals whom we approve in advance in writing may 
attend at a cost of $1,500 per person. Expenses associated with attending the in-person training, 
including transportation, food, lodging, and any wages due to the person(s) attending training, if 
applicable, are to be covered by you.  

The typical in-person training begins on a Monday and concludes on Friday of the same week. 
The go-live training portion of the training program will take place over 4-5 days at your location. 

The training requirements include that you be an active participant in the IICRC (Institute of 
Inspection Cleaning and Restoration Certification). The IICRC is the governing board for the 
cleaning and restoration industry. The IICRC and The Carpet and Rug Institute (CRI) are the two 
organizations that set industry standards for cleaning. You must apply to become an IICRC 
Certified Firm. In addition, you are required to have at least two people IICRC certified as CCT’s 
(Carpet Cleaning Technicians) on staff. In Zr Academy™ there is a reference paper called IICRC 
Certifications. This is a good resource to get the applications and the name of an IICRC instructor. 
We have several instructors in the Zerorez system and other instructors that offer us discounts. 
The average cost of the CCT class runs between $454 to $579 depending upon whether it is 
online or if you have to travel to a city where the class is being held.  

Zr Academy™ is set up with quick reference guides (QRG’s), videos, manuals, courses and 
curricula and other reference materials. You will be required to have your cleaning technicians 
and customer service representatives (CSR) complete the specific courses for their field of 
expertise, which include quizzes required to assess understanding and to achieve the 
certifications for that particular training.  

The chart below generally summarizes the subjects we typically cover in training, the instruction 
materials we use, the approximate hours of instruction and the location of training.  Details of 
instruction and times for particular sessions may vary according to availability of staff, areas of 
concentration needed by trainees and other factors. Our training team will handle the training 
sessions and includes Portier Trepanier who has over 9 years of experience with us and over 13 
years of experience in the industry; Broc Hogan who has more than 7 years of experience with 
Zerorez and in the industry; Landon Clarke who has 3 years of experience with Zerorez and in 
the industry; and Brent Clark who has more than one year of experience with Zerorez and in the 
industry. All trainers will have been with Zerorez at least one month before taking on any training 
responsibilities. 
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TRAINING PROGRAM 

Subject 
Hours of 

Classroom 
Training 

Hours of 
On-the-Job 

Training 
Location 

ZEROREZ systems, including Zr 
Ware®, Zr Academy™, Zerorez 
Marketing Portal and FC All-
Access Pass 

2 8 Our training center in 
American Fork, UT and the 
Go-Live Week at your 
location. 

Carpet Cleaning, Upholstery, 
Tile/Hard Surfaces, and 
Hardwood 

12 26 Training Center in American 
Fork, UT and the Go-Live at 
your location.  

Mobile Unit, Equipment, 
Chemicals, and Maintenance 

6 6 Training Center in American 
Fork, UT and the Go-Live at 
your location. 

Call Center Operations 1 12 Training Center in American 
Fork, UT and the Go-Live at 
your location.  

Zerorez Culture 2 0 Training Center in American 
Fork, UT 

Marketing and Branding 4 2 Training Center in American 
Fork, UT and the Go-Live at 
your location. 

Key Performance Indicators, 
Proforma, Finance, HR 

5 3 Training Center in American 
Fork, UT and the Go-Live at 
your location.  

TOTAL 32 57  

Additional Training 

If you feel you need additional specialized training from Zerorez outside of the training and follow-
up training provided to all franchises, you can request the Zerorez training team provide the 
specific training you need. You will pay our then-current fees which are currently $250.00 per day 
fee, plus expenses for this type of training.  

There may be times we offer new products, services or advanced specialized training that may 
be required for your franchise. If directed to provide this training for your technicians and CSR’s, 
you must ensure that your employees satisfactorily complete the required training.  

Our training department is not a profit center for Zerorez. We do not expect to make a profit on 
any additional training. The fees we charge for that training will be limited to the amount necessary 
to recoup our costs. You and your employees are responsible for all of your out-of-pocket 
expenses (if any) to participate in such additional training, including transportation, meals and 
lodging.  

Zerorez has a contract with FranklinCovey, which provides access to the Zerorez/FranklinCovey 
Management Training Library (All Access Pass). Franchise owners must purchase the All Access 
Pass, which is available for a small annual fee, currently between $200 to $600 depending on the 
number of licenses you purchase. Your management teams, technicians, and CSR’s may also 
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participate as you seek to strengthen their leadership skills and to improve the culture of your 
teams. You will learn more about this during the initial training program.  

Annual Conference / Convention 

We hold an annual conference each year.  There is no charge for up to four total individuals 
associated with your Franchise to attend the conference, provided that we approve these 
individuals in advance in writing. However, you will be responsible for all approved attendees’ 
expenses for attending the conference, including transportation, meals and lodging. We reserve 
the right to charge a registration fee for franchisees to attend the annual conference in the future. 

ITEM 12. TERRITORY 

Prior to signing the Franchise Agreement, you will be given an exclusive Territory for providing 
residential and commercial Services, which will be a geographic region within a specific market 
area as defined by us and agreed to by you.  The number of households in the exclusive territories 
of franchisees will vary based on a number of factors, including, regional location, median income, 
home values, number of single-family dwellings, specific locale, and potential business accounts 
as we believe these factors are indicative of households and businesses more or less likely to 
use the services provided by ZEROREZ The Franchise Fee you pay varies based on the 
population in the territory ($15,000 for each 30,000 households, or portion thereof) based on the 
Census. We do not guarantee that the number of households at the beginning of your franchise 
will remain static or increase.   

In addition to having the exclusive right to provide the Services within your exclusive Territory, 
you will also have the non-exclusive right to provide the Services outside your exclusive Territory 
and within your market area, provided that the location of that service is not within the exclusive 
Territory of one of our corporate-owned locations (“Corporate Base”) or any other franchisee.  If 
you receive a request for Services outside your exclusive Territory, you will be required to refer 
the request for Services to the ZEROREZ franchisee of the exclusive territory in which the service 
is requested. If the request for Services is for Services inside the market area and outside any 
exclusive territory belonging to a ZEROREZ franchisee or a Corporate Base, then you may accept 
the job, even if the job is outside your exclusive Territory, subject to the royalty rates in Item 6, 
Note 2.  We may, in the future, grant to another franchisee an exclusive license to or operate a 
Corporate Base in a territory that is outside your exclusive Territory but that is within the same 
market area in which your exclusive Territory is located, and in such event, you will be required 
to cease doing business in that newly created exclusive Territory belonging to another franchisee 
or Corporate Base.  You should realize that all of your market area could be subject to exclusive 
territories of franchisees, in which case the only area where you can provide Services is in your 
exclusive Territory.   

Subject to the limitations described below, we retain the right to offer and sell franchises or operate 
Corporate Bases covering any territory other than the Territory covered by your exclusive 
Territory.   

We may sell products bearing the Marks in retail stores such as supermarkets, floor covering 
stores, hardware stores or home centers, or other channels of distribution, including but not limited 
to direct response marketing campaigns, infomercials, via the Internet or other similar marketing 
initiatives, without regard to your exclusive Territory.  We will not market and sell portable carpet 
or fabric cleaning systems by means of a company-owned or franchised outlet under the same or 
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similar trademarks or service marks. We reserve the right to promote and/or sell products and 
Services via the Internet, e-commerce or other similar marketing channels.  Neither we nor any 
affiliate must pay any compensation to you for soliciting and/or conducting such additional 
business activities in your exclusive Territory.  We reserve the right to license our processes for 
the Services, but not the Marks, to any third-party entity we may choose, and in which one or 
more Zerorez principals may have an interest, to perform cleaning services under contracts such 
third parties have the exclusive right to perform such services.  We reserve the right to enter into 
contracts or arrangements to provide products and/or license use of the Patents and other 
technology used in operating a Zerorez franchise to governmental or quasi-governmental entities 
specifically for use in government contracts for which franchisees would not qualify to provide the 
Services.  No services under any such arrangements would be offered using the Zerorez name 
or the Marks, but services under such arrangements could be offered at government locations in 
your Territory.  We may establish or acquire other franchise systems for similar or different 
products and services using different trademarks or service marks in your exclusive Territory, or 
the exclusive Territory belonging to any other ZEROREZ franchisee.  However, we will exercise 
care to reasonably ensure that any such activities will not detract from or adversely affect our 
franchisee(s) in its/their particular market(s). Under the Franchise Agreement, you have an 
obligation to use your best efforts to promote your ZEROREZ franchise and to increase demand 
for your Services within your exclusive Territory.  Continuation of your exclusive Territory is 
dependent upon meeting the development obligation outlined in the Franchise Agreement during 
each year of the term, and the failure to do so could result in termination of the Franchise 
Agreement, reduction of the size of your exclusive Territory or loss of exclusivity as determined 
by us.  The development obligation will be expressed as a revenue requirement based on the 
number of people in your Territory, as determined by the Census.  The revenue requirement for 
each year will be agreed upon by you and us and will be based upon the demographics of your 
Territory, including regional location, median income, home values, number of single-family 
dwellings, specific locale, and potential business accounts.  

The description of your exclusive Territory may not be changed unless you agree in writing or you 
fail to meet the development obligation.  You maintain rights to your exclusive Territory even if 
the population within the exclusive Territory increases during the term of your Franchise 
Agreement. The boundaries of your operating Territory will not change according to increases or 
decreases in population during the term of the Franchise Agreement.   

We will approve the relocation of a ZEROREZ franchise if the relocation is in your Territory or the 
proposed relocation is in a territory in which there is no other ZEROREZ franchisee and if you 
provide a compelling reason that in our sole discretion is in the best interest of both you and us.  
You have no options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to acquire additional franchises unless 
special offers are made available to you in writing. 

We reserve the right to develop, and to market and sell to commercial and residential end users 
anywhere in the world, including in your exclusive Territory, a portable carpet or fabric cleaning 
system. 

ITEM 13. TRADEMARKS 

The Franchise Agreement gives you the right to operate a ZEROREZ franchise under the trade 
names, and the Marks that we establish.  You must follow our rules when you use the Marks.  
You cannot use any of our names or marks as a part of a corporate name or with modifying words, 
designs or symbols, except those we license to you.  You may not use any of the names or the 
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Marks for the sale of any unauthorized products or Services or in a way we have not authorized 
in writing. ZIP is the owner of the Marks and licenses the exclusive right to use the Marks (along 
with the other Franchise IP). The license agreement with ZIP is dated January 1, 2017 and, 
subject to the terms of the agreement, is of perpetual duration.  There are no limitations on our 
use of the Marks. 

The following Marks are registered on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and 
Trademark Office (“USPTO”):  

ZEROREZ® – Registration #2912417 on December 21, 2004, renewed January 1, 2015 

ZERO RESIDUE® – Registration #4577711 on July 29, 2014 

ZEROREZ THE RIGHT WAY TO CLEAN® – Registration #5406605 on February 20, 2018 

ZERO RESIDUE MEANS CLEANER LONGER® – Registration #5704113 on March 19, 2019 

ALL WE LEAVE IS CLEAN® - Registration #6480159 on September 7, 2021 

INSANELY CLEAN® - Registration #7669595 on January 28, 2025 

INSANELY CLEAN CARPETS® - Registration #63308086 on May 4, 2021 

In addition to the above federal trademark registrations, we claim common law trademark 
protection in the following marks denoted with the “TM” symbol. We do not yet have federal 
registration for these trademarks, but have common law rights and may have filed applications 
with the United States Patent and Trademark Office.  Therefore, these trademarks do not have 
as many legal benefits and rights as a federally-registered trademark.  If our right to use the 
trademarks is challenged, you may have to change to an alternate trademark, which may increase 
your expenses.  

ZR™ 

A SMARTER LASTING CLEAN™ 

THE SMARTER WAY TO CLEAN CARPETS™ 

EXPERTS IN THE SCIENCE OF CLEAN™ 

NO RESIDUE CARPET CLEANING™ 

Your right to use the Marks and other symbols, logotypes, insignia, trademarks, or service marks 
developed for and used with your ZEROREZ Franchise is derived solely from the Franchise 
Agreement.  You use the Marks solely in connection with the operation of the franchise licensed 
by us.  You may not use the Marks with the sale of any unauthorized product or service or in any 
other way not explicitly authorized by the Franchise Agreement or otherwise approved by us in 
writing.  You must display the Marks only as we specifically direct or approve.  You may not use 
any portion of the Marks as part of your company name or as part of your trade name without our 
prior written consent.  You must display the following legend on all stationery, business cards, 
promotional material, and signs on your premises, Mobile Units, and other materials as we may 
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require: "This franchise is independently owned and operated under a ‘Franchise Agreement,’ 
with ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc." 

We have the right to approve all stationery, promotional items, displays, and other materials you 
prepare using the Marks.  If you fail to comply with any trademark use requirement described in 
the Franchise Agreement, we may terminate your right to use the Marks and may take any other 
action we deem appropriate to protect the Marks. 

The goodwill associated with these Marks will remain our or ZIP’s exclusive property and you will 
derive no tangible benefit from our goodwill, except for the general benefit you receive from the 
operation of your Franchise.  Upon termination of the Franchise Agreement, all rights to use the 
Marks will automatically revert to us without payment to you and without the execution or delivery 
of any document.  

We reserve the right to adopt new marks at any time, or to change the Marks.  If we adopt new 
marks, or change any of the Marks, you must use the new or modified marks, and discontinue 
the use of any marks we decide to change or discontinue.  In that case, we will either give you 
sufficient notice to allow you to use any trademarked stationery and/or marketing material 
purchased by you in the immediately preceding ninety days which will become obsolete, or at our 
option, purchase those materials from you at your cost. 

All required affidavits have been filed with the USPTO.  ZIP intends to file renewal applications 
for the Marks. There are no currently effective material determinations of the USPTO, the 
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, or any state trademark administrator or court. There are no 
pending infringement, opposition, or cancellation proceedings. There is no pending material 
federal or state court litigation regarding our use or ownership rights in a trademark.  There are 
no currently effective agreements that significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of 
trademarks listed above in a manner material to the franchise. We do not know of either superior 
prior rights or infringing uses that could materially affect your use of the principal trademarks. 

You must notify us of any use of, or claim of right to, a trademark, which is identical to our marks.  
You may not prosecute or defend any claim or action with respect to the marks without our 
consent.  We must use such efforts as we deem reasonable, considering the costs and other risks 
involved, to protect our marks from infringement by any person.  We have the right to control any 
administrative proceedings or litigation concerning any of the marks.  You must cooperate with 
us in any proceeding or litigation involving any of the marks.  

We agree to indemnify you against, and to reimburse you for, all damages for which you are held 
liable in any action for trademark infringement arising out of your authorized use of any Mark 
according to and in compliance with this Agreement and, except as otherwise provided, for all 
costs you reasonably incur in defending any claim brought against you, provided you have timely 
notified us of the claim and provided further that you are in compliance with this Agreement and 
all other agreements entered into with us or any of our affiliates.  We, at our sole discretion, are 
entitled to prosecute, defend and/or settle any action arising out of your use of any Mark, and if 
we undertake to prosecute, defend and/or settle any matter, we have no obligation to indemnify 
or reimburse you for any fees or disbursements of any legal counsel retained by you. 
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ITEM 14. PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION  

We filed eight U.S. patent applications on February 26, 2019 with the United States Patent and 
Trademark Office (“USPTO”) that each claim priority to U.S. Provisional Patent App. No. 
62/635,380 (together with the above and below patents and patent applications owned by ZIP, 
the “Patents”). Of the eight applications, the following patents have issued: United States Patent 
No. 11,440,820 entitled “SYSTEMS AND APPARATUS FOR PRODUCING ELECTROLYZED 
ALKALINE AND OXIDIZING WATER” which issued with the USPTO on September 13, 2022 and 
has a patent term until February 26, 2039; United States Patent No. 11,498,856 entitled 
“SYSTEMS AND APPARATUS FOR PRODUCING ELECTROLYZED WATER” which issued with 
the USPTO on November 15, 2022 and has a patent term until May 19, 2040; United States 
Patent No. 11,565,952 entitled “SYSTEMS AND METHODS FOR PROVIDING AN 
ELECTROLYTIC CELL” which issued with the USPTO on January 31, 2023 and has a patent 
term until November 16, 2041; United States Patent No. 11,383,993 entitled “SYSTEMS AND 
METHODS FOR PROVIDING A MAGNETICALLY TREATED ELECTROLYZED WATER” which 
issued with the USPTO on July 12, 2022 and has a patent term until November 25, 2039; United 
States Patent No. 11,479,484 entitled “SYSTEMS AND METHODS FOR CONDITIONING 
ELECTROLYZED WATER” which issued with the USPTO on October 25, 2022 and has a patent 
term until February 26, 2039; United States Patent No. 11,661,357 entitled “METHODS AND 
PROCESSES FOR PRODUCING ELECTROLYZED ALKALINE AND OXIDIZING WATER” 
which issued with the USPTO on May 30, 2023 and has a patent term until February 26, 2039; 
United States Patent No. 11,623,880 entitled “METHODS AND PROCESSES FOR PRODUCING 
ELECTROLYZED WATER” which issued with the USPTO on April 11, 2023 and has a patent 
term until February 26, 2039; and United States Patent No. 11,629,076 entitled “SYSTEMS AND 
METHODS FOR PROVIDING AN ELECTROLYTIC CELL THAT PRODUCES CONDITIONED 
ELECTROLYZED WATER” which issued with the USPTO on April 18, 2023 and has a patent 
term until October 12, 2041. 

We filed a U.S. patent application on September 12, 2022, namely, US Serial No. 17/943,042 
entitled “SYSTEMS AND APPARATUS FOR PRODUCING ELECTROLYZED ALKALINE AND 
OXIDIZING WATER” which is a continuation of and claims priority to US Patent No. 11,440,820 
entitled “SYSTEMS AND APPARATUS FOR PRODUCING ELECTROLYZED ALKALINE AND 
OXIDIZING WATER”.  This application is pending at the USPTO. 

ZIP is the owner of the Patents and licenses the exclusive right to use the Patents (along with the 
other Franchise IP). The license agreement with ZIP is dated January 1, 2017 and, subject to the 
terms of the agreement, is of perpetual duration.  There are no limitations on our use of the 
Patents. 

In addition, the ZEROREZ equipment package is proprietary and was developed exclusively for 
use in the ZEROREZ Franchise system.  We claim copyright and common law rights in our 
Manuals and our advertising and promotional materials, which are currently not registered with 
the United States Copyright Office.   

There are no agreements currently in effect that significantly limit our rights to use or license these 
copyrights or common law rights in any manner material to this franchise organization, nor are 
there any effective determinations of the United States Copyright Office or any court regarding 
any of the copyrighted material.  We do not know of any infringing uses that could materially affect 
your use of these copyrighted materials in any state.  We are not required by any agreement to 
protect or defend any copyrights or confidential information, although we will do so if taking that 
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action is in the best interest of the ZEROREZ System.  You are provided electronic access to the 
Manuals during the term of the Franchise Agreement.     

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, you will be exposed to proprietary information, 
including trade secrets that we have developed.  This information includes our Manuals and 
subsequent revisions, our advertising and marketing methods and strategies, sources of supply, 
operating methods, cleaning techniques and products, equipment specifications, service 
standards, sales techniques, national account relationships or affiliations, expansion plans and 
other facets of the ZEROREZ System.  The Franchise Agreement requires you to maintain the 
confidentiality of this information at all times and to prevent unauthorized persons from getting 
access to it.  This information remains our property at all times.  You must also take all appropriate 
precautions to prevent unauthorized copying or disclosure of any confidential information by your 
employees or agents.  The precautions include restricting access to the information on a "need 
to know" basis.  At our option, management personnel must execute a non-disclosure agreement, 
the form, of which we must approve, to ensure that they maintain the confidentiality of the 
information.   

ITEM 15. OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE 
FRANCHISE BUSINESS 

While we recommend that you participate in the operation of your business, you are under no 
obligation to do so. However, a minimum of two persons who can serve as manager must 
successfully complete our training program and must always directly supervise the business.  The 
manager is not required to have any ownership interest in your business.  However, we hold you 
personally responsible for the day-to-day management of your franchise and you will sign a 
guaranty that will individually bind you and your partners to all covenants, obligations and 
commitments contained in the Franchise Agreement.  Your spouse is not required to sign the 
guaranty or otherwise guaranty performance of the obligations in the Franchise Agreement unless 
they have an interest in the franchise or the entity as party to your Franchise Agreement. We will 
require you, your managers, technicians, employees and any other persons affiliated with you 
who come in contact with confidential information to sign a confidentiality agreement in the form 
attached as Schedule E to the Franchise Agreement.  We own all customers and customer lists 
during and after the term of the Franchise Agreement, and you will be required to turn over to us 
all of your customer lists upon termination or expiration.  You will be prohibited for a period of at 
least 18 months from providing any services of the nature provided by ZEROREZ for any of the 
customers for whom you provided Services.  

ITEM 16. RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL 

You must offer and provide the required services. Required services are residential and business 
carpet, tile, fabric care, living surfaces, and restorative cleaning services, including upholstery, 
fabrics, hard surfaces floor.  Optional services are air duct cleaning, air filters, wood floor cleaning, 
limited restoration, and other services as determined by us. You have the discretion to decide 
whether you want to offer and provide the optional services. You have no right to add additional 
services under your ZEROREZ franchise or use other equipment unless we agree in writing.  In 
providing the services that we authorize, you may only use equipment, materials, supplies, 
uniforms, forms, and products specified and/or approved by us as meeting our standards and 
specifications.  See Items 8, 9 and 11 for details.  We have the right to change our System as we 
reasonably deem appropriate for the benefit of franchisees, and you must operate your franchise 
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in compliance with our System as modified from time to time. You are only authorized to sell 
specific cleaning products that we have approved in writing. If we offer a product you wish to 
resell, you must purchase the product from us and if at any time we begin to offer a product and 
you are selling a comparable third-party product, you must cease selling such third-party product 
immediately and only offer our comparable product. You must fully indemnify us related to any 
product not purchased from us, even if such product has been approved by us.  You are not 
permitted to sell any products on the internet including social media platforms or third-party 
websites.  

ITEM 17. RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

This table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise Agreement and related 
agreements.  You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this 
disclosure document.  

PROVISION 
SECTION IN 
FRANCHISE 

AGREEMENT 
SUMMARY 

a. Length of the franchise 
term 

Section 1.2 10 years from date of Franchise 
Agreement 

b. Renewal or extension of 
the term 

Section 1.2 If you are in good standing, upon 
expiration of your original Franchise 
Agreement, you will have the right to 
renew your franchise for another 10-year 
term, provided you sign the then-current 
franchise agreement and pay a fee equal 
to $10,000. This means that you may be 
asked to sign an agreement with terms 
and conditions that are materially different 
from those in your original agreement. 

c. Requirements for 
franchisee to renew or 
extend 

Section 1.2 Compliance with Franchise Agreement 
during entire term; providing written 
notice of intent to renew; satisfying all 
monetary obligations owed by you to the 
company (including paying the required 
renewal fee equal to $10,000); signing 
the then-current franchise agreement 
(meaning that you may be asked to sign 
an agreement with terms and conditions 
that are materially different from those in 
your original agreement); and compliance 
with the then-current qualifications and 
training requirements. 

d. Termination by 
franchisee 

Section 13.2  If you are in compliance with the 
Franchise Agreement, and if we fail to 
comply with any substantial term of the 
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PROVISION 
SECTION IN 
FRANCHISE 

AGREEMENT 
SUMMARY 

Franchise Agreement and fail to cure the 
breach within thirty (30) days of your 
written notice of the breach, subject to 
applicable state law.  

e. Termination by 
franchisor without cause 

Sections 1.2 and 13.3 Upon expiration of the current term if not 
renewed by you; in the event you fail to 
commence the operation of the 
Franchised Business as required under 
the Franchise Agreement; or in the event 
you are unable to complete satisfactorily 
the initial training program 

f. Termination by 
franchisor with cause 

Sections 13.4 and 
13.5 

We can terminate if you engage in any of 
the stated prohibited activities, fail to pay 
any sum due to us, cease to be engaged 
in business or engage in any activity 
inconsistent with the provisions of the 
Franchise Agreement. 

g. “Cause” defined – 
curable defaults  

Section 13.5  You have ten days to cure non-payment 
of sums due us or abandonment of the 
business; two days to cure health or 
safety issues; three days to cure 
unauthorized sale of products; 60 days to 
cure failure to meet a development 
obligation; and 30 days to cure other 
defaults and operational deficiencies. 

h. “Cause” defined – non-
curable defaults  

Section 13.4 Non-curable defaults: file a petition in 
bankruptcy or a petition is filed against 
you and not contested in three days; if 
you are a corporation, partnership, or 
limited liability company and you are 
dissolved; if you make an assignment for 
the benefit of creditors or become 
insolvent; if you fail to contest, satisfy, or 
lift any execution, seizure, or foreclosure 
against the assets of the Franchised 
Business within ten days; if a final 
judgment exceeding an amount of 
$25,000 remains unsatisfied for 30 days 
or longer; if you take the benefit of any 
act or proceeding for winding up your 
affairs or compromising your debts; for 
any improper assignment of the 
Franchise Agreement; for any cessation 
of operation of business or misuse or an 
unauthorized use of the System or Marks 
or any other name; for commission of 
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PROVISION 
SECTION IN 
FRANCHISE 

AGREEMENT 
SUMMARY 

fraud or misrepresentation, making of 
false statements, acts inconsistent with a 
ZEROREZ franchise operation or the 
System; you disparage us after previously 
receiving a notice from us of a violation 
due to disparagement. 

i. Franchisee’s obligations 
on termination/non-
renewal 

Section 14 Cessation of use of System, confidential 
information, and Marks, return ERW 
Generator, return all advertising 
materials, cessation of use of all 
telephone lines including all advertising 
associated with the telephone numbers, 
cessation of use of radio or television 
advertising and assignment to us of rights 
to that advertising, payment of all sums 
owed to us and/or to local advertising 
cooperative(s), sell us your inventory 
upon our request; transfer of all social 
media and online accounts to us. 

j. Assignment of contract 
by franchisor 

Section 12.7 There is no restriction on our right to 
assign. 

k. “Transfer” by 
franchisee—defined  

Section 12.1 Includes sale of your business or of any 
of the assets of your business, transfer of 
contract, stock, partnership interest, or 
other interest in franchise and any pledge 
or mortgage of the Franchise Agreement. 

l. Franchisor approval of 
transfer by franchisee 

Section 12.1 We have the right to approve all 
prospective transferees. 

m. Conditions for franchisor 
approval of transfer 

Section 12.3 Your franchise is open and operating; you 
have paid all your obligations to us, your 
creditors and government agencies; you 
are not in default under the Franchise 
Agreement; new franchisee qualifies and 
completes training; then-current 
agreement signed by new franchisee; 
transfer fee paid; general release 
executed. 

n. Franchisor’s right of first 
refusal to acquire 
franchisee’s business 

Section 12.2 We can match any offer for your 
business. 

o. Franchisor’s option to 
purchase franchisee’s 
business 

Sections 12.2 and 
14.2 

We have a right of first refusal (see “17.n” 
above).  We also have the right, but not 
the obligation, upon notice to you within 
30 days of the effective date of 
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PROVISION 
SECTION IN 
FRANCHISE 

AGREEMENT 
SUMMARY 

termination or nonrenewal of your 
franchise, to purchase at fair market 
value the Mobile Unit and equipment, the 
ERW generator, and all other physical 
assets (excluding real property and 
personal assets used in the Franchised 
Business). 

p. Death or disability of 
franchisee 

Section 12.6 Franchise must be transferred by estate 
to approved buyer within 12 months. 

q. Noncompetition 
covenants during the 
term of the franchise  

Section 8.2 No involvement in any competitive 
business in the Territory’s DMA during 
term and for a period of eighteen months, 
subject to applicable state law. 

r. Noncompetition 
covenants after the 
franchise is terminated 
or expires 

Section 8.2 No involvement in any competitive 
business in the licensed Territory for a 
period of 18 months; no competing 
services to be provided to customers for 
18 months, subject to applicable state 
law.  

s. Modification of the 
agreement 

Section 15.5 No modifications generally unless in 
writing signed by both parties, but 
ZEROREZ System and Manuals subject 
to change by ZEROREZ in our sole 
discretion.  

t. Integration/merger 
clause 

Section 15.5 Only the terms of the Franchise 
Agreement and other related agreements 
are binding (subject to applicable state 
law).  Any representations or promises 
outside of the Disclosure Document and 
franchise agreement may not be 
enforceable.  

u. Dispute resolution by 
arbitration or mediation 

Section 15.11 Arbitration is mandatory and, except for 
certain claims, must be conducted in 
Utah, subject to applicable state law. 

v. Choice of forum Section 15.10 Arbitration must take place in the county 
in which our principal headquarters are 
located (currently Utah County, Utah), 
subject to applicable state law. Litigation 
may be filed in Utah, subject to applicable 
state law.  

w. Choice of law Section 15.10 Utah law applies, subject to applicable 
state law. 
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ITEM 18. PUBLIC FIGURES 

We currently do not use any public figures to promote our franchise. 

ITEM 19. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential 
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable 
basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial 
performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: 

(1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; 
or 

(2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by 
providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under 
particular circumstances. 

The following tables present unaudited information about the revenues, certain expenses and 
Contribution Margin (Gross Margin less Advertising & Marketing expense) of certain Zerorez 
franchise operations from each participating franchisee’s operations for the year 2024 (the 
“Operational Period”).  The numbers in Tables 1 below include all franchisees with at least one 
year of operating history and that operated during the Operational Period. The numbers presented 
in Table 2 represent the average percentage of total Gross Revenues received by month to show 
the seasonality of the business. Your actual percentage of revenues received in any given month 
may vary based on location and individual territory dynamics.   

TABLE 1 

Franchises with at least one year of operating history and that operated during the 
Operational Period 

We have 57 total franchisees, 44 of which are included in Table 1.  The information included in 
Table 1 does not include information from 13 of the franchises because such franchisees had less 
than one year operating history, did not properly report to us, and/or did not operate during the 
Operational Period.  Data from all 44 franchisees that meet the criteria are included in Table 1.  
14 of the 44 (or 32%) franchisees represented in Table 1 actually attained or surpassed the 
average Gross Revenues results. 22 of the 44 (or 50%) franchisees represented in Table 1 
actually attained or surpassed the median Gross Revenue results. All median, high and low 
numbers presented are for the franchise with the median, high or low gross revenues, 
respectively, and not the median, high or low of all franchises for each expense or earnings 
category.  

Average Revenue and Contribution Margin for the Fiscal Year 

 
Average % 
of Gross 

Revenues2 
Average Median High Low 

Gross Revenues1 100 1,513,566 877,874 13,602,937 3,132 
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Average Revenue and Contribution Margin for the Fiscal Year 

 
Average % 
of Gross 

Revenues2 
Average Median High Low 

Costs of Goods Sold3 41.1 621,909 279,502 5,683,372 1,801 

Gross Profit4 58.9 891,657 598,372 7,919,565   1,331 

Advertising & 
Marketing5 

18.4 278,089 254,270 2,030,805 4,807 

Contribution Margin 40.5 613,568 344,102 5,888,760   (3,476) 

Average Gross Revenues per Mobile Unit per Month: 16,920 

Average Number of Mobile Units in January 2024:  7 

Average Number of Mobile Units in December 2024: 8 

Percentage Change in Number of Mobile Units in 2023: 14% 

TABLE 2 

Average Percentage of Total Gross Revenue by Month (Seasonality) 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

6.0% 6.4% 7.7% 8.2% 9.3% 9.0% 9.2% 9.4% 8.3% 9.5% 9.5% 7.4% 

Item 19 Notes 

(1) Gross Revenues.  As used herein “Gross Revenues” means that aggregate amount 
of all sales of Zerorez products and Services made and rendered in connection with 
the operation of a Zerorez franchise, excluding all federal, state or municipal sales or 
use taxes collected from customers and paid to the appropriate taxing authority. 

(2) Percentage of Gross Revenues. This column lists the percent of Gross Revenues 
that each category represents. 

(3) Costs of Goods Sold. Costs of Goods Sold include the actual price paid for products, 
chemicals and all items used in a Zerorez franchise operation. Costs of Goods Sold 
also include customer refunds, cash discounts, charges for damaged products and 
other waste, as well as drop charges, packaging and shipping charges, certain 
supplies and other goods. Also not reflected in either Costs of Goods Sold or General 
Administrative Expenses below is compensation paid in cash distributions taken by 
the owner(s) of each Zerorez franchise. 

(4) Gross Profit. This is Gross Revenues minus Costs of Goods Sold as such terms are 
defined and described herein. 
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(5) Advertising and Marketing Expenses. These include all costs of marketing and 
advertising in a Zerorez franchise, such as national brand fund fees, radio, print, 
television ad other advertising media as well as fliers, point of sale advertising, etc. 

(6) Contribution Margin. This means Gross Profit less Advertising & Marketing 
expenses. 

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any financial 
performance representations.  We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to 
make any such representations either orally or in writing.  If you are purchasing an existing outlet, 
however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet.  If you receive any other 
financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the 
franchisor’s management by contacting Cameron Moon at 772 E Utah Valley Dr #120, American 
Fork, Utah 84003 or by phone at (801) 899-5116, the Federal Trade Commission, and the 
appropriate state regulatory agencies.  

Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be made available to you 
upon reasonable request. 

Some outlets have sold or earned this amount.  Your individual results may differ.  There 
is no assurance that you’ll sell or earn as much.  

ITEM 20. OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 

TABLE 1: SYSTEM-WIDE OUTLET SUMMARY FOR (FISCAL) YEARS 2022 TO 2024 

Outlet Type Year 
Outlets at the 

Start of the Year 
Outlets at the 

End of the Year 
Net  

Change 

Franchised 

2022 64 53 -11 

2023 53 55 +2 

2024 55 57 +2 

Company Owned 

2022 6 21 +15 

2023 21 20 -1 

2024 20 22 +2 

Total Outlets 

2022 70 74 +4 

2023 74 75 +1 

2024 75 79 +4 
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TABLE 2: TRANSFER OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEE TO NEW OWNERS (OTHER 
THAN THE FRANCHISOR) FOR (FISCAL) YEARS 2022 TO 2024 

State Year 
Number of  
Transfers 

Michigan 
2022 1 
2023 0 
2024 0 

South Carolina 
2022 1 
2023 0 
2024 0 

Total 
2022 2 
2023 0 
2024 0 

TABLE 3: STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS FOR (FISCAL) YEARS 2022 TO 2024 

State Year 
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Alabama 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Arizona 

2022 4 0 0 0 2 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

California 

2022 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 

2023 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 

2024 4 0 0 0 1 0 3 

Colorado 

2022 3 1 0 0 2 0 2 

2023 2 0 1 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Florida 

2022 5 2 0 0 0 0 7 

2023 7 1 0 0 1 1 6 

2024 6 0 1 0 0 0 5 

Georgia 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 

2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 
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State Year 
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Hawaii 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 

Idaho 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 

Indiana 

2022 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Iowa 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Kansas 

2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Kentucky 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Michigan 

2022 2 0 1 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Minnesota 

2022 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Missouri 

2022 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Nebraska 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
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State Year 
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Nevada 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

New Jersey 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 

2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

New Mexico 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

New York 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

North Carolina 

2022 2 1 0 0 1 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

North Dakota1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Ohio 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Oklahoma 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Oregon 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Pennsylvania 

2022 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 
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State Year 
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South Carolina 

2022 3 1 0 0 0 0 4 

2023 4 1 0 0 0 0 5 

2024 5 0 0 0 0 0 5 

Tennessee 

2022 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 

2023 3 2 0 0 0 0 5 

2024 5 0 0 0 0 1 4 

Texas 

2022 7 0 0 0 3 1 3 

2023 3 1 0 0 0 0 4 

2024 4 1 0 0 0 0 5 

Utah 

2022 4 0 0 0 1 0 3 

2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2024 3 1 0 0 0 0 4 

Virginia 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Washington 

2022 3 0 0 0 1 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 

Wisconsin 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Totals 

2022 64 7 1 0 14 3 53 

2023 53 7 2 0 1 2 55 

2024 55 6 1 0 1 2 57 

Note 1 – This franchise is located in Minnesota, but its territory and operations are primarily in 
North Dakota, so it is listed as being in North Dakota for purposes of Item 20. 
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 TABLE 4: STATUS OF COMPANY OUTLETS FOR YEARS 2022 TO 2024 

State Year 
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Arizona 

2022 0 0 2 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 0 0 0 0 2 

California 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 1 1 0 0 3 

Colorado 

2022 0 0 2 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Florida 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 1 0 0 2 

2024 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Indiana 

2022 0 0 1 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Minnesota 

2022 0 0 1 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Missouri 

2022 0 0 1 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1 

North 
Carolina 

2022 1 0 1 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Oklahoma 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Pennsylvania 

2022 0 0 1 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Texas 

2022 0 0 3 0 0 3 

2023 3 0 0 0 1 2 

2024 2 0 0 0 0 2 
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State Year 
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Utah1 

2022 0 1 1 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 2 

2024 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Virginia 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 1 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Washington 

2022 0 0 1 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Totals 

2022 6 1 14 0 0 21 

2023 21 0 1 1 1 20 

2024 20 1 1 0 0 22 

 

Note 1 – Additional company-owned outlet added in Utah for 2022. A company-owned outlet 
opened in Springville, Utah at the same time another outlet was acquired the Salt Lake City, Utah 
Franchise but were not previously separately disclosed in Item 20. 

TABLE 5: PROJECTED OPENINGS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024 (LAST DAY OF FISCAL 
YEAR) 

State 
Franchise 

agreements signed 
but outlet not opened 

Projected new 
franchised outlets in 
the next fiscal year 

Projected new 
company-owned 
outlets in the next 

fiscal year 

Alaska 0 1 0 

California 0 1 0 

Connecticut 0 1 0 

Florida 1 1 0 

Illinois 1 0 0 

Minnesota 0 1 0 

Massachusetts 1 0 0 

Oregon 1 0 0 

Washington 0 1 0 
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State 
Franchise 

agreements signed 
but outlet not opened 

Projected new 
franchised outlets in 
the next fiscal year 

Projected new 
company-owned 
outlets in the next 

fiscal year 

Totals 4 6 0 

 

Attached as Exhibit D is a list of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all 
current franchisees. Three franchisees had their franchise rights terminated, canceled, not 
renewed or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise 
agreement during the previous calendar year, one of which was terminated before it opened for 
business.  One franchise was acquired by us during the previous calendar year. No franchisees 
transferred their franchises to new owners.  One franchisee transferred its franchise to us. The 
names, city and state and business (or, if unknown, home) telephone number or email address 
for every franchisee who ceased doing business under the franchise agreement or had an outlet 
terminated, canceled, or not renewed within the last fiscal year is listed on Exhibit D.  No 
franchisee has not communicated with us or our representative within the last 10 week period. 

 If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when 
you leave the franchise system. 

In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability 
to speak only about their experience with ZEROREZ.  You may wish to speak with current and 
former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to communicate with 
you. 

Franchisee Associations 

We have created and support the ZEROREZ FAC, which consists of four representative 
franchisees, elected for a two or three-year term by our franchisees and one ZEROREZ appointed 
corporate representative. The FAC can be contacted as follows: 

 Benjamin Hulme, Chairperson 
772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120 
American Fork, Utah 84003  
(801) 443-1034 

ITEM 21. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Attached as Exhibit C to this Disclosure Document are audited financial statements for the periods 
from January 1, 2022 through August 15, 2022, the date on which we were acquired by Zerorez, 
Inc.  Audited financial statements of our affiliate and parent, Zerorez, Inc. for the period from 
August 16, 2022 through December 31, 2022 and as of December 31, 2022 and as of and for the 
years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024 are included. Separate stand-alone 
audited financial statements of Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. from August 16, 2022 through 
December 31, 2022 are NOT included in this Disclosure Document.  Should we fail to fulfill our 
obligations to our franchisees, Zerorez, Inc. absolutely and unconditionally guarantees to fulfill 
those obligations.  A copy of the written guarantee is attached as Exhibit E. 
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ITEM 22. CONTRACTS 

Exhibit B of this Disclosure Document is the ZEROREZ Franchise Agreement, including the 
applicable Schedules.  

Schedule A: Operating Territory, Initial Franchise Fee, Minimum Royalty Fee and 
Development Obligations 

Schedule A-1: Operating Territory Map   

Schedule B:  List of Partners, Owners and Shareholders of Franchisee Owning 
more than 20% of Franchisee 

Schedule C:  Authorization Agreement for Prearranged Payments (Direct Debits) 

Schedule D:  Guaranty 

Schedule E:  Confidentiality Agreement 

By signing the Franchise Agreement, you will acknowledge certain facts pertaining to the offer of 
this franchise.  The acknowledgements are listed in Section 16 of the Franchise Agreement. NO 
STATEMENT, QUESTIONNAIRE, OR ACKNOWLEDGMENT SIGNED OR AGREED TO BY A 
FRANCHISEE IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE FRANCHISE 
RELATIONSHIP SHALL HAVE THE EFFECT OF (I) WAIVING ANY CLAIMS UNDER ANY 
APPLICABLE STATE FRANCHISE LAW, INCLUDING FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT, OR (II) 
DISCLAIMING RELIANCE ON ANY STATEMENT MADE BY ANY FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISE 
SELLER, OR OTHER PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE FRANCHISOR. THIS 
PROVISION SUPERSEDES ANY OTHER TERM OF ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE FRANCHISE. 

ITEM 23. RECEIPT 

The two pages of this Disclosure Document (Exhibit H) are a detachable document prepared in 
duplicate, acknowledging receipt of the Disclosure Document by the prospective franchisee.  You 
must sign both copies.  Keep one copy for your records.  Please return the other copy to us by 
mailing it to ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc., at 772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, 
American Fork, Utah 84003, or by emailing a copy of the signed receipt to 
clawrence@zerorez.com.  
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EXHIBIT A 

STATE ADMINISTRATORS/AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

This list includes the names, addresses and telephone numbers of state agencies having 
responsibility for franchising disclosure/registration laws, and serving as our agents for service of 
process (to the extent that we are registered in their states).  

STATE 
STATE 

ADMINISTRATOR/AGENT 
ADDRESS 

California Commissioner of Financial 
Protection and Innovation 

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750 
Los Angeles, CA 90013-2344 
(866) 275-2677 

Hawaii 
(State 

Administrator) 

Commissioner of Securities 
Dept. of Commerce &  
Consumer Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 

335 Merchant Street 
Room 203 
Honolulu, HI 96813 
(808) 586-2744 

Illinois 
(State 

Administrator) 

Illinois Attorney General 
Franchise Bureau 

500 South Second Street 
Springfield, IL 62701 
(217) 782-4465 

Indiana 
(State 

Administrator) 

Indiana Securities Commissioner 
Securities Division 

302 West Washington Street, Room 
E111 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
(317) 232-6681 

Indiana 
(Agent) 

Indiana Secretary of State 302 West Washington Street, Room 
E111 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
(317) 232-6681 

Maryland 
(State 

Administrator) 

Office of the Attorney General 
Securities Division 

200 St. Paul Place  
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6300 

Maryland 
(Agent) 

Maryland Securities 
Commissioner 

200 St. Paul Place 20th Floor 
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6360 

Michigan Michigan Attorney General’s 
Office 
Consumer Protection Division 
Attn:  Franchise Section  

Williams Building, 7th Floor 
525 West Ottawa Street 
Lansing, MI 48909 
(517) 335-7567 

Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce 
Minnesota Department of 
Commerce 

85 7th Place East, Suite 280 
St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 
(651) 539-1500 
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STATE 
STATE 

ADMINISTRATOR/AGENT 
ADDRESS 

New York (State 
Administrator) 

NYS Department of Law  
Investor Protection Bureau 
 

28 Liberty Street 21st floor 
New York, NY 10005 
(212) 416-8222 

 New York 
(Agent) 

Secretary of State  99 Washington Avenue  
Albany, NY 12231 

North Dakota 
(State 

Administrator) 

North Dakota Securities 
Department 

600 East Boulevard Avenue 
State Capitol, 5th Floor, Dept. 414 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510 
(701) 328-4712 

North Dakota 
(Agent) 

Securities Commissioner 600 East Boulevard Avenue,  
State Capitol, 14th Floor 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510 
(701) 328-4712 

Rhode Island Director, Department of Business 
Regulation, Securities Division 

1511 Pontiac Avenue 
Building 69-2 
Cranston, RI 02920 
(401) 462-9500 

South Dakota Division of Insurance  
Securities Regulation  

124 South Euclid, Suite 104 
Pierre, SD 57501 
(605) 773-3563 

Virginia 
(State 

Administrator) 

Virginia State Corporation 
Commission 
Division of Securities and Retail 
Franchising 

1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor 
Richmond, VA  23219-3630 
(804) 371-9051 

Virginia 
(Agent) 

Clerk of the State Corporation 
Commission 

1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor 
Richmond, VA  23219-3630 

Washington 
(State 

Administrator) 

Department of Financial 
Institutions 
Securities Division 

Securities Division 
Department of Financial Institutions 
PO Box 41200 
Olympia, WA 98504-1200 

Washington 
(Agent) 

Department of Financial 
Institutions 
Securities Division 

150 Israel Road SW 
Tumwater, WA 98501 
(877) 746-4334 

Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities Department of Financial Institutions 
Division of Securities 
4822 Madison Yards Way, 4th Floor 
Madison, WI 53705-9100 
(608) 261-9555 
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EXHIBIT B 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
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ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is between ZEROREZ,  Franchising 
Systems, Inc. (hereinafter referred to interchangeably as “Franchisor”, the “Company”, 
“ZEROREZ”, “us” or “we”), a Delaware corporation, with its principal place of business located 
at 772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 84003, and 
___________________ d/b/a Zerorez of ____________ (“Franchisee” or “you”), a (n) 
____________________, whose principal address is ____________________ made and 
entered into effective the ___ day of ____________, of the year 202__ (the “Effective Date”). 

RECITALS 

A. The Company has the right, through an exclusive, perpetual license agreement to utilize 
and license certain trademarks, service marks, logos, commercial symbols and such other 
names and marks as it may designate, or at a later time register, license or designate 
(collectively, the “Marks”) that relate to the operation of a Zerorez branded franchise and 
are used by us in identifying, promoting, advertising, and marketing various floor and fabric 
care services; 

B. The Company has expended considerable time, effort and money in developing a 
distinctive business format and methodology for the operation of a floor and fabric care 
business that uses the Marks, methods of operation and management, brand standards, 
specifications, confidential information, procedures, record keeping techniques, materials 
and Manuals (hereinafter referred to as the “System”); all of which is subject to change, 
improvement, and further development from time to time by the Company.   

C. You are granted a license to operate a Franchised Business (as defined below) and to 
use the System because of your commitment to abide by the procedures, policies, rules 
and regulations associated with a ZEROREZ franchise and to conform your Franchised 
Business to the System. 

D. As a franchisee, you are bound to operate your franchise in accordance with the System 
as it now exists and as it may change from time to time.  

E. The parties intend for this Agreement to be implemented in a fair and reasonable manner 
and that all of its provisions be interpreted accordingly and consistently applied in a 
commercially reasonable manner designed to increase the quality and profitability of the 
products and services offered, and that the recitals set forth herein be mutually binding 
upon the parties. 

1. GRANT AND TERM  

1.1. Grant of License 

Subject to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company hereby grants to 
you an exclusive right to conduct and operate a ZEROREZ business for residential and 
commercial customers using the System, Marks, and the Company’s distinctive methods 
of operation (the “Franchised Business”) within, and only within, the area described in 
Schedule A attached hereto (the “Operating Territory”).  The Operating Territory is 
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described on the map attached to Schedule A and is comprised of approximately 
___________ households. Depending on population densities and other factors, there 
may be more than one Operating Territory within any particular market, geographic region 
or location, each of which may be owned by a different ZEROREZ franchisee.  You have 
exclusive rights to conduct the Franchised Business within the Operating Territory, subject 
to any Company-Acquired Accounts as set forth in Section 5.12. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if you fail to meet the development obligation set forth in Section 1.3 and 
Schedule A, in addition to or in place of, the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to 
Section 13.5, as the Company determines in its sole discretion, the Company may reduce 
the size of the Operating Territory or terminate your exclusive rights in the Operating 
Territory. You may only offer ZEROREZ services to customers outside your Operating 
Territory with the Company’s prior written consent. You acknowledge that the Company 
may, in the future, grant to another franchisee an exclusive license to territory that is 
outside your exclusive Operating Territory but that is within the market area in which your 
exclusive Operating Territory is located, and that in such event you will be required to 
cease doing business in that newly created exclusive Operating Territory belonging to 
another franchisee.   

1.2. Term 

The term of this Agreement will begin on the Effective Date and shall continue for a period 
of ten (10) years (the “Term”).  You may, subject to meeting all of the following conditions 
prior to such renewal, and with payment of a fee equal to $10,000 to renew your franchise, 
by signing our then-current Franchise Agreement, for one additional term of 10 years: 

(a) You must give us written notice of your intent to renew not less than six (6) months 
or more than twelve (12) months prior to the expiration of the then-current Term, 
provided, however, that the Company will not terminate this Agreement at the end of 
the then-current term until it has given you written notice of its intention to terminate 
this Agreement at least fifteen (15) days prior to the end of the Term and you will 
have fifteen (15) days thereafter to renew and comply with the conditions set forth 
herein;  

(b) You must not be in material violation of any provision of this Agreement or any 
amendment or any other agreement between you and the Company or its affiliates; 
and you shall have substantially complied with the terms and conditions of such 
agreements during the current term; 

(c) You will have satisfied all monetary obligations owed by you to the Company and its 
affiliates; 

(d) You will execute our then-current franchise agreement which may contain terms and 
conditions that are materially different from those in your original agreement, and 
which may include an increased royalty payment; and  

(e) You will comply with the Company’s then-current qualifications and training 
requirements. 

1.3. Commitment to Develop Operating Territory 

By granting you exclusive rights to the System and the Marks for the Operating Territory, 
you agree as follows: 
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(a) to use commercially reasonable efforts to develop demand for the services offered 
at your franchised business and to service your customers all in accordance with the 
standards and policies established by the Company, and, in furtherance of these 
efforts, to develop the Operating Territory by meeting the revenue per person ratio 
as set forth in Schedule A (the “Development Obligation”); 

(b) the Operating Territory is reasonable and sufficient in size and scope to support the 
Franchised Business; 

(c) you have no rights to the System or Marks outside the Operating Territory without 
the Company’s express written consent; and 

(d) you agree that the financial requirements for local, regional and national advertising 
as described in this Agreement are reasonable. 

1.4. Reserved Rights 

Notwithstanding the rights granted to you under this Agreement, the license granted under 
this Agreement is non-exclusive, and the Company and any affiliate retain for themselves 
the rights not expressly granted to you, in their sole reasonable discretion, including 
without limitation: 

(a) to establish, and grant other franchisees or licensees the right to establish, 
Franchised Businesses anywhere outside the Operating Territory;  

(b) to market and sell products bearing the Marks which are similar to those offered 
through the Franchised Business through any and all potential distribution channels 
including, without limitation, distributors, dealers, retail outlets, and via e-commerce 
via the Internet or other electronic media, provided that the Company does so in a 
manner that is intended to benefit the Company’s franchisees; 

(c) to sell products bearing the Marks in retail stores such as supermarkets, floor 
covering stores, hardware stores or home centers, or other channels of distribution 
without regard to your exclusive Operating Territory, provided that we do so in a 
manner that is intended to benefit our franchisees;  

(d) to promote and/or sell products and services via e-commerce or other electronic 
media if we determine that such sales will benefit the ZEROREZ System and/or 
Marks;   

(e) to establish or acquire other franchise systems for similar or different products and 
services using different trademarks or service marks in your exclusive Operating 
Territory, or the exclusive Operating Territory belonging to any other ZEROREZ 
franchisee, so long as such other franchise systems are not directly competitive with 
the System;  

(f) to develop, and to market and sell to commercial end users a portable carpet or fabric 
cleaning system;  

(g) to establish Company-Acquired  Accounts (as defined below) in any area, including 
the Operating Territory, and to service such Company-Acquired Accounts, including 
through the use of third parties who may be other franchisees, under the Marks in 
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your exclusive Operating Territory, but only if you refuse to provide the services, are 
unable to provide the services or do not meet the vendor standards or requirements 
for the provisions of such services; and  

(h) to enter into contracts or arrangements to provide products and/or license use of the 
patents and other technology used in operating a Zerorez franchise to governmental 
or quasi-governmental entities specifically for use in government contracts, including 
to government locations in your Operating Territory, for which franchisees would not 
qualify to provide services similar to those offered in this Agreement; provided that 
no services under any such arrangements would be offered using the Zerorez name 
or Marks. 

2. FEES 

2.1. Initial Franchise Fee 

Upon the execution of this Agreement, you will pay to the Company the initial franchise 
fee equal to the sum of (i) $30,000 for an Operating Territory with households up to 60,000, 
as determined by the most recent U.S. Census (the “Census”) and (ii) an additional 
$15,000 for each additional 30,000 households or portion thereof less any applicable 
discounts (together, the “Initial Franchise Fee”). In certain geographical areas, we may, 
in our sole discretion, offer franchises an Operating Territory with 30,000 or less 
households (a “Hometown Market”).  The Initial Franchise Fee for a Hometown Market 
is $15,000 less any applicable discounts. The Company has sole discretion to determine 
each Operating Territory, which will be predetermined based on geography, 
demographics, and other factors that may impact the potential success of each of our 
franchisees.  

The Initial Franchise Fee is non-refundable.  

2.2. Management Training Fee 

You agree to pay the Company our then-current, annual Management Training Fee for 
unlimited access to our management training library with leadership and cultural 
development resources to assist you in the operation of the Franchised Business 
(“Management Training License”). This fee is currently $200 per person per year.  Each 
Franchised Business is required to have at least one Management Training License but 
we encourage you to purchase the Management Training License for each member of 
your Management Team.  The management training fee for the first year will be paid upon 
execution of this Agreement and each year thereafter on the anniversary of this 
Agreement. 

2.3. Royalty 

For the entire Term of this Agreement, you agree to pay the Company a monthly royalty 
fee equal to: 
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(a) for Operating Territories with 30,000 households or more, the greater of six percent 
(6%) of the Franchised Business's Gross Sales (as defined below) or the minimum 
monthly royalty fee as set forth on Schedule A.   

(b) for Operating Territories with less than 30,000 households the minimum royalty fee 
as set forth on Schedule A. If you provide Services outside your Operating territory, 
Gross Sales generated in this territory shall be subject to a royalty of six percent (6%) 
of the Franchised Business's Gross Sales. 

If you received an existing business discount off the Initial Franchise Fee, the minimum 
monthly royalty fee set forth on Schedule A will not apply and you will pay 6% of Gross 
Sales unless you are a Hometown Market franchise, in which case, the monthly royalty 
will be $750 per month for the entire Term of this Agreement If your state, or any 
governmental body in your state, charges the Company a tax or any other financial 
encumbrance on any royalty fees received by the Company from you, you agree to pay 
an additional amount to the Company equal to the amount of such tax.  This additional 
amount does not apply to any federal income tax payable by the Company due to your 
payment of royalty fees.  

Royalty fees are due and payable to the Company on or before the 15th day of each 
calendar month based upon the Gross Sales during the preceding calendar month.   

2.4. Gross Sales 

"Gross Sales" shall mean the aggregate gross amount of all revenues from whatever 
source derived (whether in the form of cash, credit, check, agreements to pay, or other 
consideration including the actual value of any goods or services traded, bartered, or 
otherwise received by you in exchange for any form of non-monetary consideration, and 
whether or not payment is received at the time of service) that arise from or are derived 
by you or by any other person from business conducted or which originated in, on, from, 
or through the Franchised Business, including any and all activities undertaken by you or 
any agent, employee, or representative dealing with the Franchised Business and any 
expansion thereof as designated by Franchisor, whether such business is conducted in 
compliance with or in violation of the terms of the Agreement.  Gross Sales include 
products and services sold to customers within and outside the Operating Territory, 
pursuant to the terms in Section 1.1(a). Gross Sales do not include: 

(a) sales tax or other tax receipts, the collection of which is required by law; 

(b) refunds, allowances, adjustments or credits actually made by the Franchised 
Business; and 

(c)  sales or disposal of used equipment under terms of Section 5.3 of this Agreement.  

2.5. Monthly and Annual Statements 

No later than the 15th day of each month after commencing operation of the Franchised 
Business you agree to deliver to the Company a profit and loss statement for the preceding 
month in the exact format we prescribe, and a monthly financial statement itemizing the 
Gross Sales, number of jobs completed and number of re-cleans during such month, and 
such other sales information as the Company may reasonably require and in a manner as 
may be specified from time to time by the Company, signed by you as certification of the 
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accuracy of the information set forth therein. The Company has the right to require such 
statements to be submitted electronically via email or automatic submittal from the 
operations software.  In the case of electronic submission of statements, a printed 
statement is not required with the timely payment of royalties due and payable. The 
Company and the Board may alter the requirements of this section should these 
requirements prove to be onerous or unreasonable. Within thirty (30) days of your 
calendar year-end, you agree to remit to us an annual financial statement that will include 
a profit and loss statement and balance sheet.  

2.6. Non-Compliance Fee 

You acknowledge the importance of operating in full compliance with this Agreement, the 
System, as may be modified and revised from time to time by the Company in its sole 
discretion, and that your deviation from any contractual requirement, an “Infraction”, 
including any System standard, is a violation of this Agreement and requires the Company 
to incur additional administrative and management costs to address the violation. Upon 
finding an Infraction, Company will provide you written notice of such infraction and grant 
you ten (10) business days to cure such Infraction (“Cure Period”). If you are unable to 
cure the Infraction during the Cure Period, you must submit a Plan to Cure to the Company 
for approval during the Cure Period which includes a new proposed Cure Period (“New 
Cure Period”). Upon written approval from Company, you will be granted the New Cure 
Period. Following the aforementioned Cure Period or New Cure Period, you agree to pay 
the Company a fee of $100 per day for each Infraction, including any System standard, 
plus the Company’s actual, reasonable expenses incurred, if applicable (the “Non-
Compliance Fee”). You acknowledge that the Non-Compliance Fee is a reasonable 
estimate of the Company’s administrative and management costs incurred. Non-
Compliance Fees are due and payable to the Company within five days after you are 
notified that the Company is charging the Non-Compliance Fee due to your violation and 
bills you for such fee. Charging the Non-Compliance Fee does not preclude the Company 
from seeking any other relief available under applicable law, including but not limited to, 
recovering additional damages not related to the Company’s additional administrative 
expenses, defaulting you and terminating this Agreement, or exercising any of its other 
rights under this Agreement. 

2.7. Late Fees and Interest on Overdue Accounts 

You agree that all royalty payments are due and owing by the 15th of each month. If we do 
not receive your royalty payment, by the 20th of each month, we will assess a late penalty 
in the amount of two percent (2%) on the amount of the royalty payment due and payable 
for that billing cycle (the “Late Fee”). If you do remit your royalty payment by the 30th day 
of each monthly billing cycle, in addition to the Late Fee, we will assess interest on the 
entire amount owing for that specific billing cycle at the rate of two percent (2%) per month 
(or twenty-four percent (24%) per annum) or the highest amount allowed under applicable 
law, whichever is less (the “Interest Charge”). The Interest Charge will continue to accrue 
on any portion of a royalty payment that is more than thirty (30) days in arrears, until such 
delinquent royalty payment is paid in full, including payment of the Late Fee. 

2.8. Automatic Transfer 

You are required to pay any and all royalties due under this Agreement by electronic funds 
transfer, and you agree to perform such acts, and sign and deliver such documents as are 
necessary to implement such a payment program, including but not limited to the 
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Authorization Agreement attached hereto as Schedule C. You further agree to make the 
required funds available for withdrawal on or before the designated payment dates. 

3. COMMENCEMENT OF BUSINESS 

You will not commence business, and you will not be considered to be in full compliance 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, until you and your agents, as designated 
in the reasonable discretion of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Designated 
Franchisee Trainees”), successfully complete the Company's initial training program, as 
described in Section 4.  You will establish business premises within the Operating Territory 
for the Franchised Business, which may be in a residence so long as allowed by local 
zoning regulations.  You agree to commence offering services and products for sale to the 
public within the Operating Territory as soon as possible after the Effective Date, but in 
any event not later than seventy-five (75) days after the completion of the Company's initial 
training program, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Company.  This Agreement 
may be terminated for your failure to commence your Franchised Business as required 
herein.  You agree that time is of the essence in the opening of the Franchised Business. 

4. TRAINING AND OPERATING ASSISTANCE 

4.1. Training 

Prior to the commencement of your Franchised Business, we will furnish initial training on 
the operation of a ZEROREZ franchise to you and one or more Designated Franchisee 
Trainees, all of whom must complete the training. Initial training for you and up to one (1) 
Designated Franchisee Trainee is included in the Initial Franchise Fee or up to two (2) 
individuals total.  The Company reserves the right to charge a fee for the training of 
additional individuals.  The training program shall be comprised of both in field training 
and classroom sessions which take place at our headquarters or at a location designated 
by us.  Each Designated Franchisee Trainee is required to complete the entire training 
program to our satisfaction.  If we determine that a Designated Franchisee Trainee is 
unable to satisfactorily complete the initial training program, you will be allowed to 
designate an alternate trainee to successfully complete the initial training program. After 
completing such training, your Designated Franchisee Trainees will be responsible for 
training all non-managerial employees you hire to work in your Franchise Business.  We 
may provide such training, at your expense, if you request such in writing and we are able 
to meet your request.  All new or successor general managers must also complete our 
initial training program. You will be responsible for the expenses your Designated 
Franchisee Trainees incur while attending any initial training program including 
transportation, lodging, meals, and compensation, if any. During the term of this 
Agreement, we may require the Designated Franchisee Trainees and previously trained 
Designated Franchisee Trainees to attend additional training courses at your expense 
either via the Internet or at such locations and times as we may designate.  We reserve 
the right to charge reasonable fees for these new or refresher courses.  

This training program is offered and operated under our direction at our headquarters 
facility, currently in American Fork, Utah, and on-site or at another location designated by 
us.  
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4.2. Employees 

You will hire all employees in connection with your Franchised Business, including but not 
limited to management, clerical, sales, and service personnel, and be exclusively 
responsible for the terms of their employment and compensation.  You will not employ 
anyone who refuses or fails to satisfactorily complete the training program conducted by 
you or us. You will not employ or continue to employ anyone who refuses to grant 
permission for or fails to meet our standards after a criminal background, “failed” being 
defined in this case as any background check which shows a record containing any 
violent, sexual or theft-related crimes in the prior ten (10) years. All of your employees 
charged with day-to-day operational management responsibility for the Franchised 
Business (including, but not limited to, your general managers) must be trained by us 
pursuant to Section 4.1 hereof.  All of your employees must execute a confidentiality 
agreement substantially in the form attached as Schedule E to this Agreement, which 
requires them to maintain the confidential nature of our trade secrets, confidential and 
proprietary information, and System, as defined below, during the term of their 
employment and thereafter. You must inform us in writing promptly upon the termination 
of employment of any management personnel. With respect to your employees, during 
the Term, including any renewals thereof, you will abide by all employment laws, rules and 
regulations required by the federal government and the state government in the Operating 
Territory, and you hereby agree to indemnify and hold us harmless for any breach of these 
obligations. Furthermore, at all times, you will ensure that you and your employees are in 
compliance with the tax laws promulgated by the Internal Revenue Service, the United 
States government and the laws of the State(s) that comprise the Operating Territory. 

4.3. Confidential Brand Standards Manuals 

At an appropriate point in the training program, we will provide you access to our 
confidential brand standards manuals (“Manuals”).  Any portion of the Manuals containing 
information necessary for you to complete portions of training prior to your arrival at our 
headquarters will be provided as needed.  For purposes of this Agreement, the Manuals, 
which may be one or more separate manuals, also includes alternative or supplemental 
means of communicating such information by other media, including bulletins, e-mails, 
and other forms of electronic media. You understand and agree that we may, from time to 
time, change, delete, and/or add to the contents of the Manuals for the purpose of 
maintaining, improving, modifying, supplementing or enforcing the System.  We are 
required to communicate such changes in electronic format only. You will take the 
necessary steps to ensure the security of the Manuals and not disclose its contents. 

You understand that it is necessary for you to comply strictly with the Manuals since it will 
regulate one or more of the following areas pertaining to your Franchised Business: 

(a) required or authorized products and services; 

(b) advertising, marketing, sales and promotional programs, and materials and media 
used in such programs; 

(c) specifications and standards for cleaning supplies, equipment, machinery, chemicals 
and office supplies, including the specifications for location and plumbing 
connections required for the installation of the cleaning solution generator; 

(d) terms and conditions of the sale and delivery of services; 
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(e) service vehicle specifications; 

(f) staffing recommendations; 

(g) hours of operation; 

(h) employee training requirements; 

(i) insurance coverage requirements; 

(j) accounting system requirements, including the format, content and frequency of 
financial and performance reports to us; 

(k) computer software requirements and specifications; 

(l) designated or approved suppliers; and  

(m) inspections to be performed by us. 

The Manuals are the exclusive property of the Company and are not to be reproduced by 
you or your employees or agents.  The Manuals shall not have the effect of changing any 
provisions of this Agreement or any renewal Agreement and shall not directly or indirectly 
require you to pay any greater fees to us greater than are required to be paid under this 
Agreement, and it shall not reduce or impair any of your essential rights hereunder.  In the 
event of any conflict between the Manuals and this Agreement, this Agreement shall 
control. 

4.4. General Guidance 

At no additional cost to you, we will, at our option, furnish you with advice and assistance 
in connection with the operation of your Franchise Business.  The areas in which we may 
provide guidance to you include: 

(a) the operation of vehicles and equipment;  

(b) cleaning methods and procedures;  

(c) advertising and promotional programs;  

(d) conducting an annual conference for all franchisees, for which there will be no charge 
for up to four individuals to attend.  You will, however, be responsible for the travel, 
lodging and food expenses for each individual attending while attending the annual 
conference, except for the meals that Franchisor may provide during the conference;   

(e) purchasing additional vehicles, equipment, supplies and/or materials.   

This discretionary assistance may be furnished through a number of sources including the 
Manuals, electronic communications including e-mail and postings to our private Intranet 
site, written directives and bulletins, telephone support, and personal consultations at our 
headquarters or your business premises. You acknowledge and agree that various means 
of communication (e.g., electronic communication) may require you to incur expenses for 
communication technology, including hardware, software and access fees.  At our 
discretion we may have one or more of our field representatives visit your location within 
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three months of when you begin operation of your ZEROREZ business.  Should you 
specifically request that we provide consultation in addition to the initial visit, we will 
provide such in any manner we feel will best benefit your Franchised Business, which may 
include sending a team of Zerorez professionals to work with your employees for a 
designated period of time.  We reserve the right to charge per diem fees and other 
charges, including but not limited to retention of revenues generated by our personnel in 
your Operating Territory during such additional training periods. We may also require you 
to reimburse us for the travel and living expenses of our personnel. 

4.5. Sale and Approval of Items 

The Company and its affiliates reserve the right to, directly or indirectly, by virtue of our 
own distribution or arrangements with third-party suppliers, sell to you approved floor and 
fabric care equipment, supplies, uniforms, decals, chemicals, materials, forms, 
promotional and advertising materials.  You understand that the Company and/or its 
affiliates may mark up the price for these items, or receive a rebate from items purchased 
from third-party suppliers, so that the Company and its affiliates may receive a reasonable 
profit. 

5. OPERATING STANDARDS AND SERVICES 

5.1. Services  

You will provide to customers exclusively within your Operating Territory carpet, floor, 
fabric care, living surfaces, and restorative cleaning services, including upholstery, fabrics, 
and hard surfaces floors. You may provide other services if authorized by Company, in 
writing, including without limitation air duct cleaning, air filter services, and other services 
as determined by the Company. All services, as authorized by Company, will be performed 
in accordance with all procedures, policies and guidelines specified by the Company.  

5.2. Supplies and Materials  

You will use only equipment, machinery, cleaning supplies, cleaning solutions, materials, 
containers, uniforms, forms, and products approved by the Company as meeting our 
standards and specifications. If you propose to use any item not previously approved by 
us, you shall submit or have the proposed vendor submit to the Company upon our 
request, sufficient specifications, samples, photographs and/or other information we 
request to provide for sufficient examination and testing for us to determine whether the 
item and its proposed supplier meet the Company's specifications, qualifications, and 
standards.  We reserve the right to require you or the proposed vendor to reimburse the 
Company for the reasonable costs of investigating the proposed item and vendor. Our 
determination as to whether the item vendor meets our specifications, qualifications and 
standards is final.  We reserve the right to limit the number of vendors to achieve volume 
pricing for the benefit of the ZEROREZ System.  

5.3. Equipment Systems 

Before you commence your Franchised Business, you will be required to obtain the 
ZEROREZ equipment package for your Franchised Business from sources that are 
acceptable to the Company.  The ZEROREZ equipment package consists of those items 
specified during training which may change from time to time in our sole discretion.  
Regardless of whether you choose an equipment package with an electrolyzed reduced 
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water generator (“ERW Generator”) or the mineralized water concentrate, you must 
purchase these items only from approved third-party vendors. The terms of purchase and 
the warranty attached to your specific ERW Generator will vary depending on the ERW 
Generator you purchase and from which third-party vendor you purchase your ERW 
Generator. We require that you fulfill all obligations required under the purchase of your 
ERW Generator. You must notify us as to the third-party vendor that supplies your ERW 
Generator and the terms and conditions of your purchase. You must use Zr Water in your 
operations that meets our standards as outlined in training. Failure to use such Zr Water 
will constitute a violation of this Agreement. 

5.4. Standards of Service 

You and your employees will give prompt, courteous, and efficient service to all customers.  
In all your dealings with customers, suppliers and the public, you and your employees will 
adhere to the highest standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing, and ethical conduct and 
adhere to all service and advertising guidelines promulgated to all franchisees by us.  All 
advertising and promotion of the Franchised Business, including the products and services 
offered, will be in strict compliance with the standards established by the Company, shall 
be completely factual, and shall conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising.  
You agree to refrain from any business or advertising practice(s) that may damage, injure 
or harm the Company, the goodwill associated with other ZEROREZ franchisees, the 
System, or the Marks.  You agree not to deviate from the Brand Standards set by the 
Company for Franchised Business’ operation. You shall guarantee your and your 
employees’ services and respond promptly to all inquiries and complaints in order to 
achieve customer satisfaction. If in the Company’s opinion it becomes necessary or 
appropriate for us to enter a customer's premises to inspect or correct your work, you shall 
reimburse us for the costs associated with such inspections or corrections within thirty (30) 
days of the issuance of our invoice for such costs.  You acknowledge and agree that you 
are prohibited from subcontracting your responsibilities hereunder or the services you 
provide in connection with your Franchise Business without our written consent. 

5.5. System Standards 

You understand that your operation of the Franchised Business in accordance with the 
System is essential to preserve the unique qualities and aspects of the ZEROREZ 
franchise and the Marks and services to benefit all ZEROREZ franchisees, including you.  
Therefore, during the Term of this Agreement, you agree to operate the Franchise 
Business in accordance with the System and to comply with all of the Company's 
specifications, standards, and operating procedures relating to the operation of the 
Franchised Business including, without limitation to the following, all of which the 
Company reserves the right to enforce and apply specific remedies for the violation thereof  
(including, but not limited to termination of this Agreement) as contained herein:  

(a) methods and procedures for providing cleaning services; 

(b) the safety, maintenance, cleanliness, sanitation, function and appearance of your 
vehicles, equipment, accessories and signs; 

(c) requirements for the uniforms worn by, and the general appearance of, you and your 
employees; 

(d) the use of the Marks; 
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(e) sales, marketing, advertising and promotional programs; 

(f) materials such as signs, posters, displays, brochures, flyers, forms, stationery, and 
other similar items; 

(g) the identification of your business as a franchisee of the Company and a licensed 
user of the Marks; 

(h) designated or approved suppliers, which may include the Company and/or its 
affiliates; 

(i) terms and conditions of the sale and delivery of products and services that you obtain 
from the Company, its affiliates, and/or unaffiliated suppliers; 

(j) bookkeeping, data processing, accounting, and record keeping systems, reports and 
forms, including the format, content and frequency of reports to us; 

(k) complying with applicable laws including, without limitation, obtaining required 
licenses and permits applicable to Franchised Business or any technology used in 
the operation of the Franchised Business, including all data protection, privacy and 
security laws as well as payment card industry (PCI) compliance, as such standards 
and requirements may change from time to time;  

(l) complying, without limitation, with all applicable environmental laws and regulations 
relating to the securing, possession, filing with one or more government agency, 
proper display, and employee notification regarding Material Safety Data Sheets, as 
well as the proper disposal of solutions and waste water related to the operation of 
the Franchised Business;  

(m) verifying that you and any services, service providers or vendors you use in the 
operation of the Franchised Business are in compliance with the Company’s privacy 
policy and terms and conditions set forth on the Company’s website, as may be 
amended at the Company’s sole discretion; and 

(n) offering all products and services that we designate as a part of a ZEROREZ 
franchise. 

5.6. Additional Responsibilities 

You specifically covenant and agree, the violation of which be enforced by the Company 
and may result in termination of this Agreement:  

(a) to operate your Franchised Business using only the trade name approved by the 
Company, and to display prominently such name on all forms, uniforms, stationery, 
and related materials used with the Franchised Business, and to obtain and maintain 
a "Certificate of Fictitious Name" for such trade name as and if required by local law 
in the city, county, or state where your Franchised Business is located; 

(b) to permit our agents, and us at all reasonable times, to inspect your operations as 
provided in Section 10.2 hereof.  You shall cooperate with our representatives and 
render assistance to the Company as may be reasonably requested; 
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(c) to adopt, use, and display for the purposes of this Agreement any changes or 
modifications to the System, that we may implement from time to time and that are 
commercially reasonable, as if they were part of the System as of the Effective Date;  

(d) to post in a conspicuous place at your business premises a notice with the following 
words:  "This ZEROREZ franchise is independently owned and operated under 
license from ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc."  You agree that your invoices, 
purchase orders, marketing materials, and brochures will contain a similar a 
statement notifying the public that your Franchised Business is independently owned 
and operated under a license from the Company; 

(e) to establish and maintain at your own expense a bookkeeping, accounting, record 
keeping, and records retention system covering the Franchised Business, separate 
and distinct from any other business or personal records you may maintain; 

(f) to provide the Company in a manner in which we prescribe, monthly financial 
statements and annual financial statements relating to the Franchised Business 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently 
applied and certified by you to be complete and accurate, including balance sheets, 
income statements, and changes in cash position, all of which will be kept 
confidential by the Company; 

(g) to ensure that your principal owner and your general manager or base manager(s) 
complete the initial training in the operation of the Franchised Business to the 
Company's satisfaction.  Additionally, you agree to ensure that those individuals who 
are trained in accordance with Section 4.1 will be responsible for training your other 
employees.  If the Company offers periodic refresher training courses, you agree to 
have your employees, as designated by the Company, attend at your expense, such 
additional training.  You acknowledge that you shall be responsible for the travel, 
living expenses and per diem charges for your personnel who attend any training 
provided by the Company; 

(h) to be solely responsible for the hiring, firing and promotion of your employees, the 
payment of all payroll taxes and the compliance with all statutes, regulations, and 
ordinances relating to the employment of employees.  The Company shall have no 
control over the terms and conditions of your employees’ employment; 

(i) to fulfill your requirement to fully develop the potential of the Franchised Business in 
the Operating Territory, by having available a sufficient number of vehicles (each a 
“Mobile Unit”) and equipment to service promptly and adequately all customers 
within the Operating Territory; 

(j) to sign, contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement or at such 
subsequent time as requested by us, such release and transfer documents as we 
may require to authorize us to transfer the advertised telephone numbers of your 
Business upon any termination or expiration (without renewal) of this Agreement.  If, 
during the Term, the telephone numbers for your Franchised Business should be 
transferred to someone other than us, you will cooperate with us to ensure they are 
returned to us; 

(k) to answer your telephones (at a minimum) between 8:00 am and 6:00 p.m. Monday 
through Friday, and between 8:00 am and 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays, except during 
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holidays and periods when it is impossible, impracticable or commercially 
unreasonably to do so. As to this Section 5.6(k), the Company reserves the right to 
enforce this provision only if it receives evidence that your customers in the Operating 
Territory are being serviced poorly or if your operating revenues are below the 
minimum gross revenue average of other franchisees similarly situated; and 

(l) to dispose of all the System’s waste water properly and in accordance with local laws 
and regulations.  Under no circumstances can the System’s waste water be disposed 
of in a public place.  

5.7. Prices Determined by You 

The Company may from time to time advise or offer guidance to you concerning suggested 
prices and charges for the products and services.  You are not obligated to accept any 
such advice or guidance, and you have the right to determine the prices you charge 
without interference from us, except with respect to Company-Acquired Accounts as 
provided in Section 5.12. 

5.8. Management, Conflicting and Competing Interests 

The Franchised Business must be under the direct supervision of one or more managers 
fully trained by the Company.  You agree that you will faithfully and diligently perform your 
obligations hereunder, in that a fully trained management employee will continuously exert 
his or her full-time attention, energy, and commercially reasonable efforts to promote and 
enhance the Franchised Business, and that you will not engage in any business or other 
activity that will conflict with your obligations under this Agreement.  You acknowledge that 
the operation of a ZEROREZ franchise is a full-time occupation.  Therefore, you agree 
that neither you nor any principal owner will have any interest as an owner (except as 
publicly traded securities), lender, director, officer, employee, consultant, representative, 
agent, or any other such capacity in any other business that competes with the Franchised 
Business (except another ZEROREZ franchise) during the term of this Agreement without 
the express written consent of the Company. 

5.9. Vehicles 

All vehicles, including the Mobile Units, used with the Franchised Business must meet the 
Company's specifications including, without limitation, make, model, size, color, decals 
and appearance. 

5.10. Computer Systems 

We may require you to purchase, lease or upgrade, at your expense, such computer 
hardware and software, dedicated telephone, Internet Service Provider, modems, printers, 
and other computer-related accessories or peripheral equipment as reasonably required 
from time to time in the Manuals for various required or recommended functions, such as 
including recording and reporting Gross Sales, intranet communications system, online 
and in-business training, product and supply orders via the Internet from us, any of our 
affiliates or vendors, consumer scheduling of inspections or service appointments via the 
Internet, or online or telephone line connections to equipment/machinery.  You must use 
computers, software, Internet connections and printers that meet our specifications and 
that integrate with our corporate server, in order to facilitate companywide customer 
relationship management scheduling and accounting.  
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5.11. Software 

You will obtain a proprietary license from us for a $750 one-time license fee to use the 
latest available version of Zrware (the “Software”) and will pay us a monthly fee, based 
upon the number of Mobile Units used in your franchise. The Software cost varies based 
on the number of Mobile Units you use in your operations, currently $110 per Mobile Unit 
per month for 1-10 Mobile Units; $105 per Mobile Unit per Month for 11-25 Mobile Units; 
$100 per Mobile Unit per month for 26-49 Mobile Units; $95 per Mobile Unit per month for 
50-75 Mobile Units; $70 per Mobile Unit per month for 75+ Mobile Units but will increase 
by $10 per Mobile Unit per month in June 2025. 

5.12. Company-Acquired Accounts 

We may, at our option, enter into agreements to provide or accept services for third-party 
companies on a national or regional basis (“Company-Acquired Accounts”).  Company-
Acquired Accounts may be any non-residential customer.  You should be aware that 
Company-Acquired Accounts may lead to high volume and, in some situations, discount 
pricing.   You are granted the first right of refusal to provide services to Company-Acquired 
Accounts in your Operating Territory at the pricing established by the Company. If you 
refuse to service the Company-Acquired Account or do not meet the standards or 
requirements established by the vendor of such Company-Acquired Account, ZEROREZ 
shall have the right but not the obligation to service the Company-Acquired Account or 
hire a third party to service the Company-Acquired Account on its behalf, which third party 
may be another franchisee. In negotiating pricing schedules on Company-Acquired l 
Accounts, ZEROREZ will negotiate in good faith on behalf of all of the franchisees.   

5.13. Subscription Programs 

You are required to subscribe to the following services in conjunction with your ZEROREZ 
franchise: Listen360 (currently $58.00 per month), a customer service satisfaction 
program; QuickBooks Online (currently $200.00 per month), an accounting software 
program; our designated website management program (currently $250 per month); and 
other technical, financial, management and leadership training as we may reasonably 
require from time to time.  These fees may be changed and increased by the Company in 
its reasonable discretion upon notice to you. 

5.14. Telephone Listings and Online Accounts 

You agree to pay all telephone company charges and fees for telephone numbers, social 
media accounts and any other online accounts created or used in the Franchised Business 
and to receive our prior written approval of all such numbers and accounts. You will 
reimburse us if for any reason we have to pay any such charges. You agree not to 
terminate or transfer to any other party any such telephone numbers or accounts during 
the term of this Agreement or do anything else that may directly or indirectly impede the 
transfer of those numbers or accounts upon any termination or expiration (without 
renewal) of this Agreement. 

In addition, you agree to sign, upon request from the Company, such release and transfer 
documents as we may require at any time, authorizing us to obtain the telephone numbers 
and/or social media or other online accounts of your Franchised Business upon any 
termination or expiration (without renewal) of this Agreement. 
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5.15. Approved Products 

You may only sell specific cleaning and related products that the Company has approved 
in writing. The Company may be the only approved supplier of certain approved products, 
in which case, you must purchase the product from the Company if you offer such product 
to your customers. If at any time the Company begins to offer a product and you are selling 
a comparable third-party product, you must cease selling such third-party product 
immediately and only offer the Company’s comparable product. The Company may make 
a profit off of product sales to its franchisees. You must fully indemnify the Company 
related to any product not purchased from the Company pursuant to Section 11.1, even if 
such product has been approved by the Company. You may not sell any products on the 
internet, including through social media platforms or third-party websites, or through any 
other channel of distribution. 

6. MARKS 

6.1. Ownership 

The Company or its affiliate has filed trademark applications with the United States Patent 
and Trademark Office for the Marks, including the name “ZEROREZ” and for our logo.  
The United States Patent and Trademark Office has issued the Marks. You acknowledge 
that the Company’s affiliate is the owner of the Marks and all associated goodwill and has 
licensed the Company the right to use the Marks and to license others to use the Marks 
for purposes of franchising.  You agree not to contest the validity of the Marks during or 
after the Term of this Agreement or any renewal.  Other than your right to use the Marks 
pursuant to this Agreement, you acquire no right, title, or interest of any kind or nature in 
or to the Marks or the associated goodwill. Unless otherwise permitted in writing by the 
Company, you shall use the Marks only in connection with the System, and you agree that 
your use of the Marks under this Agreement inures to the benefit of the Company.  You 
are required to use the Marks pursuant to and in compliance with this Agreement, the 
System, and other standards we prescribe.  You agree to execute any documents deemed 
necessary by the Company or its counsel to obtain protection for the Marks or to maintain 
their continued validity and enforceability. Your unauthorized use of the Marks will 
constitute a breach of this Agreement and an infringement of the Company's rights in and 
to the Marks. All provisions of this Agreement applicable to the Marks apply to any 
additional trademark, service mark, or commercial symbol we authorize or require you to 
use.   

6.2. Approval 

You will display the Marks only in the form and manner specifically approved by us and, 
upon request by the Company, will affix any legends, markings, and notices of trademark 
registration or any other notice of the Company’s ownership.  The Company shall have 
the right to approve all material prepared by you, included but not limited to stationery, 
advertisements, promotional items, displays, and other printed materials, upon which any 
of the Marks appear. 

6.3. Protection and Defense  

The Company agrees to protect and defend the Marks.  You agree to cooperate fully with 
the Company in the defense and protection of the Marks and shall immediately advise the 
Company in writing of any potentially infringing uses by others and any suits brought or 
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claims made against you involving the Marks.  So long as you have provided the notice 
required herein, the Company agrees to indemnify defend and hold you harmless 
(including reasonable expenses and attorneys’ fees expended in defense of the marks), 
against third-party claims or demands resulting from your use of the Marks unless the 
Company determines that you did not use the Marks in accordance with this Agreement.  
The Company will reimburse you for all out-of-pocket expenses you incur if your use of 
the Marks conforms to this Agreement, including reasonable legal expenses and 
attorneys’ fees.  Decisions regarding the protection and defense of the Marks, and the 
settlement of any litigation involving the Marks, shall be solely in the discretion of the 
Company and you shall take no action related thereto without the express written consent 
of the Company.  Further, without the Company's consent, you shall not initiate any suit 
or proceeding against alleged imitators or infringers or any other suit or proceeding to 
enforce or protect the System. 

In the event the Company fails to protect you from and against any third-party infringement 
or claim with regard to the Marks, you may proceed to protect the Marks against any such 
infringement or unauthorized use and seek reasonable reimbursement from the Company, 
so long as any such enforcement action is prosecuted by competent counsel that 
specializes in the enforcement and/or infringement of patents, trademarks, service marks, 
etc. 

6.4. Further Restrictions on the Marks 

(a) You understand that the license to the Marks is non-exclusive and the Company 
retains the right to grant licenses for the Marks to other companies or individuals; 

(b) Except with the express written consent of the Company, you shall not use any 
trademarks, service marks or other identifying characteristics in connection with the 
Franchised Business other than the Marks; 

(c) You shall not manufacture, market, or sell products nor perform services under the 
Marks unless specifically approved by the Company; 

(d) Except for the fictitious name registration referred to in Section 5.6(a), you shall not 
use or register, in whole or in part, the Marks or the Company's name, or anything 
similar, as part of your corporate name or as the name of any entity directly or 
indirectly associated with your activities; and  

(e) You shall not use any Mark with any prefix, suffix, or other modifying words, designs 
or symbols unless the Company approves in writing. 

6.5. Goodwill 

You acknowledge the substantial goodwill value of the Marks and your significant 
responsibilities to the System’s proper and efficient operation.  You shall not use the Marks 
in any manner to injure or disparage the Company or its reputation and agree not to take 
any action, which would harm or jeopardize the Marks, or the Company's ownership 
thereof, in any way. 

6.6. Changes to Marks 
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The Company has the right at any time, upon notice to you, to make additions to, deletions 
from, and changes in the Marks, and you will adopt and use any and all such additions, 
deletions, and changes pursuant to the Company's instructions.  The Company will not 
reimburse you for any expenses you incur in complying with these instructions including 
any loss of revenue attributable to any modified or discontinued Mark. 

6.7. Inspection 

To ensure that you are properly employing the Marks in connection with the operation of 
the Franchised Business, you agree that the Company or its agents shall have the right to 
inspect your operations and business premises.  To the extent that the Company takes 
advantage of its rights under this Section 6.7, you shall fully cooperate with the Company 
and render such assistance as may reasonably be required. 

7. MARKETING AND ADVERTISING 

7.1. Value 

You recognize the value of advertising and the importance of the standardization of 
advertising and marketing programs to the furtherance of the goodwill and public image 
of the System, branding of ZEROREZ and its products and services and all ZEROREZ 
franchisees. 

7.2. Approval of Advertising 

In order to ensure the necessary quality, uniformity, and continuity of advertising and 
promotional activity for all ZEROREZ franchisees operating under the System, you agree 
not to carry out any advertising or promotional activities, or to publish or distribute any 
advertising and promotional materials that does not comply with the brand guidelines as 
set forth in our brand and style guides (the “Brandworks”) and Manuals. All advertising 
and use of the Marks must comply with the guidelines set out in the Manuals and 
Brandworks.  If the Company determines, in its sole discretion, that any advertising or 
Marks are not in compliance with such guidelines, it may require and you must immediately 
cease use and take all effort necessary effort to take down or remove and such non-
compliant advertising or use of the Marks. You agree that all advertising and promotional 
activities that you undertake will be completely factual and will comply with the Company's 
advertising guidelines.  You will be solely responsible for compliance with all laws 
applicable to advertising in your jurisdiction. 

7.3. National or Regional Brand Fund 

You agree to contribute to the national brand fund up to three percent (3%) of your monthly 
Gross Sales (the “Fund”). The Company will notify you of the current percentage you 
must pay to the Fund and of any changes to such percentage.  Your contribution to the 
Fund will not be increased by more than one percent (1%) per annum.  The fees payable 
to the Fund shall be paid on or before the 15th day of the month immediately following the 
month to which such fees relate.  You further agree that: 

(a) The Fund will be maintained and administered by the Company or its designee and 
the Company will oversee all advertising and promotional programs, marketing, and 
public relations with the sole discretion to approve or disapprove the concepts, 
materials, and media used in such programs and the placement and allocation of 
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these programs.  You acknowledge and agree that the Fund may be used, in the 
Company's reasonable discretion, to pay costs of producing, preparing, distributing, 
and using marketing, advertising, and other materials and programs; administering 
national, regional, and other marketing programs; purchasing media; employing 
advertising, public relations, and other agencies and firms; and supporting market 
research.  In connection therewith, the Fund shall have the right to hire consultants, 
some of whom may be affiliated with the Company, such as an in-house advertising 
agency, in order to assist with production, marketing programs, media buys or 
materials for the System.  The Fund will be used to cover the costs of advertising 
and promotional activities including, without limitation, social media, internet, direct 
mail campaigns advertising via radio, television, magazines, billboards and 
newspapers, marketing surveys and research, public relations, employing 
advertising and/or media buying agencies, production of advertising material, media 
planning and placement, marketing and administrative personnel, and any other 
costs associated with the development, evaluation, testing, distribution or placement 
of advertising time, space, or materials in national, regional, or other advertising 
media;    

(b) In administering the Fund and determining how and where the monies in the Fund 
will be spent, the Company will take into account the relative contributions of each of 
the participating franchisees; however, there can be no assurances that expenditures 
will be made to your direct benefit or within the Operating Territory that are equivalent 
or proportional to your contribution to the Fund.  

(c) The money contributed to the Fund will be maintained in a separate account from 
the Company's other monies and shall not be used to cover any of the Company's 
expenses, except for reasonable administrative costs and overhead associated with 
managing and administering the Fund.   

(d) The Company, in its sole discretion, may spend in any fiscal year an amount greater 
or less than any aggregate contribution to the Fund in that year and the Fund may 
borrow from the Company or its affiliates or other lenders to cover deficits in the Fund 
or cause the Fund to invest any surplus for future use by the Fund.  The balance of 
the Fund, including contributions to and earnings of the Fund in a given year, can be 
carried forward and used for Fund activities the following year; 

(e) The Company will not have any direct or indirect liability or obligation to you, the 
Fund, or otherwise with respect to how it is maintained or managed or its direction or 
administration;   

(f) You acknowledge and agree that your and the Company's rights and obligations with 
respect to the Fund and all related matters are governed solely by this Agreement 
and that this Agreement and the Fund are not in the nature of a "trust," "fiduciary 
relationship," or similar special arrangement, and is only an ordinary commercial 
relationship between independent businesses for their independent economic 
benefit; 

The Fund’s administration will be paid by the Fund. In no event will the Fund’s annual 
administrative expenses exceed twenty percent (20%) of its operating expenses. 
ZEROREZ employees whose role and responsibilities are solely dedicated to marketing 
efforts for the System may be paid from the Fund and shall not be considered 
administrative expenses. The Fund will be audited annually and you may request an 
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accounting of the Fund ninety (90) days after the end of each calendar year in writing for 
the Fund’s use in the previous year.  You are limited to one such request for an audit 
annually.  The Fund will not be used for solicitation of new franchisees.  Although the Fund 
is intended to be of perpetual duration, the Company retains the right to terminate the 
Fund.  The Fund will not be terminated, however, until all monies in the Fund have been 
expended for advertising or promotional purposes or returned to contributors on the basis 
of their respective contributions. 

7.4. Required Local Advertising Expenditures 

While this Agreement is in effect, you agree to make monthly expenditures for local 
advertising and promotional activities of the Franchised Business of not less than five 
percent (5%) of your Gross Sales for the preceding month.  At such time as the Company 
establishes a national or regional brand program, you will be required to contribute up to 
three percent (3%) of your Gross Sales as provided for in Section 7.3. Upon request, you 
will deliver to the Company a report providing proof that you have fulfilled your local 
advertising requirement.  Samples of all advertising, promotional and marketing materials 
that the Company has not prepared or previously approved must be submitted to the 
Company for its approval at least thirty (30) days prior to the closing date for the submittal 
of materials as set by any media company for timely publication, in which case the material 
shall be deemed to have been approved unless the Company notifies you in writing to the 
contrary within fourteen (14) business days following its receipt of the material.  
Advertising and promotion by you in any medium shall be conducted in a dignified manner 
shall conform to the standards and requirements of the Company. 

7.5. Local Advertising/Branding Cooperatives 

In certain cases, your Operating Territory may be located in a market area where other 
franchisees of the Company or Company-owned operations will also be located.  In these 
cases, the Company, may determine that all ZEROREZ franchises sharing the same local 
market area should participate in market-wide cooperative advertising and/or branding 
programs.  If such a determination is made with respect to your market area, your 
participation will be mandatory.  The Company shall have the authority to set the terms of 
any such cooperative programs, and to make changes to those programs from time to 
time as approved by the Company, and you agree to participate in any such cooperative 
programs, although the Company agrees to permit the activities of the cooperative to be 
controlled locally.  We have the right to require you or any local cooperative to employ the 
services of an advertising agency or media buying company that we designate or approve 
for the administration of local expenditures.  Any ZEROREZ businesses owned by us or 
any of our affiliates located in your local marketing area(s) will participate in the 
cooperative(s) with the same rights as other members and will contribute to the 
cooperative(s) on the same basis, as you are required to contribute.  Amounts you pay to 
the local cooperative program shall be credited toward the local advertising expenditures 
required under Section 7.4 herein. 

7.6. Franchisee's Name and Photograph 

You hereby grant to the Company the right, without compensation, to use your name, 
address, photographs of your principal owners, and information concerning you or your 
Franchised Business in any publication, circular, or advertisement related to ZEROREZ 
franchises or the sale of ZEROREZ franchises. 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
Exhibit B: Franchise Agreement B - 21 4927-0094-0829 

7.7. Internet Advertising 

The Company may, in its sole discretion, maintain a website and may list information about 
you and your Franchised Business within any portion of such a website, including a page 
devoted to your Franchised Business based upon a template developed by the Company, 
if applicable. The Company’s website will not contain any financial data applicable to your 
Franchised Business without your prior written consent.  The Company shall have the sole 
discretion to determine the content and format of its web site.  You may not develop an 
independent web site related to your Franchised Business, and, except as set forth below 
with social media, you may not use any of the Marks in any domain name or web site 
without the prior written consent of the Company. You must operate in full compliance with 
the Privacy Policy, contained on the Company’s web site, which may be updated from 
time to time. The Privacy Policy governs the collection, use, storage, and sharing of 
customer, employee, and business data and is incorporated herein by reference. You may 
develop and operate your own social media account, page or site, including, but not limited 
to, Tik Tok, Facebook, Yelp, Twitter, Instagram, Pinterest and YouTube provided that you 
add the Company as an administrator. Further, if the Company, in its sole discretion, 
determines that any post is inappropriate, not consistent with the ZEROREZ brand or 
should otherwise be removed or taken down, you must do so immediately. If required by 
the Company, you agree to grant control and ownership of any such sites used to the 
Company, and you shall cease operating such site, account, handle, app, or otherwise 
and shall establish links to such websites as the Company may prescribe.  All such pages, 
accounts, or sites and all posts or content must conform with the Company’s social media 
policy or other policies as may be set forth in the Brandworks and Manuals. 

7.8. Advertising Agency 

In order to maintain consistency and quality, and in order to keep franchisees focused on 
revenue generation, you agree that you will use such company or companies as may be 
designated by us from time to time, for your franchised business’s local and/or national or 
regional advertising, provided that such company or companies are, in your reasonable 
discretion, adding commercial value. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, all 
rights to local or regional radio or television advertising shall become the property of the 
Company, and you will remain responsible for payment of all fees for such advertising 
through the date of termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

7.9. National Customer Acquisition Programs 

The Company may institute national customer acquisition programs whereby fees are paid 
to third-party advertisers based on any customer you actually service.  If any such program 
is instituted, you must pay the designated fee to the Company for each customer referred 
to you to whom you provide services.  Participation in any such program is mandatory, but 
the Company may discontinue any such program at any time in its sole discretion.  The 
Company will invoice you for such fee monthly with payment to be made monthly with the 
royalty fee as further set forth in Section 2.7. 

8. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; COVENANTS 

8.1. Confidential Information 

You will receive confidential and proprietary information, which the Company has 
developed over time and at great expense.  Any information disclosed by the Company to 
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you that is designated as confidential, or which by its nature might reasonably be 
expected, if disclosed, to provide the Company’s competitors with a competitive 
advantage or injure the Company's business, shall be considered "Confidential 
Information" hereunder, so long as it complies with the specific rules, regulations and 
laws then in effect and valid in the Operating Territory.  Without limiting the foregoing, the 
following shall be presumed to be Confidential Information: all of the contents of the 
Manuals and updates, cleaning products and/or formulas, lists of suppliers, lists of 
franchisees, lists of franchisee prospects, lists of customers, price lists and advertising 
strategies. 

You acknowledge that the Confidential Information is not generally known in the trade and 
is beyond your present skills and experience, and that for you to develop such information 
on your own would be expensive, time consuming and difficult.  You further acknowledge 
that the Confidential Information provides a competitive advantage and will be valuable to 
you in the development of your Franchised Business, and that gaining access to this 
information is a primary reason why you entering into the Agreement.  Accordingly, in 
consideration of the Company’s disclosure of the Confidential Information, you agree as 
follows: 

(a) Except as required by law, neither you or your officers, directors, shareholders, or 
any person or entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with you, will 
at any time appropriate or use the Confidential Information, or any portion thereof, in 
any business other than the Franchised Business; disclose or reveal any portion of 
the Confidential Information to any person, other than to your employees who have 
signed the non-disclosure agreement described in Section 8.1(b) herein; or 
communicate, divulge, or use any Confidential Information for the benefit of any other 
person or entity except as authorized by the Company in connection with the 
franchise granted hereunder. 

(b) You will take all appropriate precautions to prevent unauthorized copying or 
disclosure of any Confidential Information by your employees and agents, which 
precautions shall include, restricting access to Confidential Information to a "need to 
know" basis. You will require each employee or agent with access to Confidential 
Information to execute a non-compete and non-disclosure agreement, in a form 
acceptable to and approved by the Company. 

The Confidential Information will include customer contact information (including name, 
address, phone, and e-mail addresses), sales and payment history, and other information 
about a customer, including any information that could, directly or indirectly, identify a 
specific individual or household (“Customer Information”).You agree to comply with 
applicable law in connection with your collection, storage, disclosures and your use and 
our use of such Customer Information, including, if required under applicable law, 
obtaining consents to our and our affiliates’ use of the Customer Information. You must 
comply with all laws and regulations relating to data protection, privacy and security, 
including data breach response requirements (“Privacy Laws”), as well as data privacy 
and security policies, procedures and other requirements we may periodically establish, 
including our privacy policy. You must notify us immediately of any suspected data breach 
at or in connection with the Business. You are solely responsible for any financial losses 
you incur or remedial actions that you must take as a result of breach of security or 
unauthorized access to Customer Information in your control or possession and will 
indemnify us for any such breach of security or unauthorized access as set forth in Section 
11.1. We may modify these restrictions from time to time upon written notice to you, by 
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issuing updates to our standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws, including by 
adding other similar restrictions that may be required under other state or federal Privacy 
Laws, and you will comply with any such modifications.  

8.2. Covenants 

In consideration of the valuable training that you will receive from the Company, the 
disclosure to you of the Company's trade secrets and Confidential Information, and the 
use and license of the System, you agree that neither you nor any or your owners will 
individually or jointly with others, either directly or indirectly, for itself, himself, or herself, 
or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person, persons, partnership, 
corporation, or other entity will: 

During the term of this Agreement: 

(a) divert or attempt to divert any present or prospective business or customer of any 
Franchised Business to any competitor; 

(b) own, maintain, operate, advise, consult with, engage in, or have any interest in any 
business engaged, wholly or partly, in the sale of products and services associated 
with floor surfaces and fabric care, or which offers products or services competitive 
with those offered under the System, to any customer; 

(c) own, maintain, operate, advise, consult with, engage in, or have any interest in any 
business engaged, wholly or partly, in the wholesale sale of products and services 
associated with floor surfaces and fabric care, or which offers products or services 
at wholesale otherwise competitive to those offered under the System, to any 
customer or potential customer regardless of location. 

Subsequent to the expiration or termination of this Agreement, a Transfer permitted 
hereunder (as hereinafter defined), or a final decision of an arbitrator or a court of 
competent jurisdiction, and continuing for eighteen (18) months thereafter: 

(d) own, maintain, operate, advise, consult with, engage in, or have any interest in any 
business engaged, wholly or partly, in the sale of products and services associated 
with floor and fabric care, or which offers products or services otherwise similar to 
those offered under the System, to any customer within the same state as, or a state 
that borders, the state in which your exclusive Operating Territory is located; 

(e) provide products or services which are the same as or similar to the products and 
services offered under the System to any customer to whom you provided such 
products or services at any time during the one year period prior to the termination, 
expiration, or permitted Transfer (as hereinafter defined) of this Agreement. 

These restrictions will not apply to your ownership of less than a five percent (5%) 
beneficial interest in the outstanding equity securities of any publicly held corporation, and 
you agree that the Company shall have the right to reduce the scope of any covenant 
contained in this Section 8.2, simply by providing written notice to you.  Upon your receipt 
of such written notice, you agree to comply with such modified covenants.  The existence 
of any claims you may have against the Company, whether arising under this Agreement 
or otherwise, will not constitute a defense to enforcement by the Company of the 
covenants contained in this Section 8.2. 
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In the event that any provision of this covenant not to compete shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction by reason of the duration or scope 
thereof; such invalidity or unenforceability shall attach only to the specific provision 
determined to be unenforceable and the covenant shall remain in full force and effect for 
the greatest time period and for the broadest scope permitted by applicable law. 
Franchisee and the Company intend that this covenant not to compete shall be deemed 
to be a series of separate covenants, one for each and every county of each and every 
state of the United States of America and one for each and every political subdivision of 
each and every other country where the covenant not to compete is effective. 

8.3. Customer Lists 

All customers within the Operating Territory, and all lists of such customers, shall be your 
responsibility; however, ownership of the customers within your exclusive Operating 
Territory and all customer lists containing information regarding such customers is the sole 
property of the Company.  You covenant not to use the customer lists for any purpose 
other than in connection with the Franchised Business.  You will, on demand, promptly 
deliver to the Company a complete list of your customers including all information 
concerning such customers as requested by the Company.  You will not, for a period of at 
least eighteen (18) months from the termination or expiration of this Agreement, contact 
any customer for whom you have provided services as a franchisee of the Company or 
any individual or entity within your Operating Territory’s market area, for the purpose of 
offering such customer services that are similar to or competitive with the services you 
provided as a franchisee of the Company. 

9. TAXES AND INDEBTEDNESS 

9.1. Payment  

You will promptly pay when due any and all federal, state, and local taxes including, 
without limitation, employment and sales taxes, levied or assessed with respect to any 
services or products furnished, used, or licensed pursuant to the Agreement, and all 
accounts or other indebtedness of every kind incurred by you in the operation of the 
Franchised Business.  This does not preclude you from undertaking bona fide disputes 
regarding your liability for taxes assessed or other indebtedness, provided you contest the 
liabilities through the proper procedures of the taxing authority or applicable law.  

9.2. Responsibility for Debts 

You expressly covenant and agree to accept full and sole responsibility for all debts and 
obligations incurred in the operation of the Franchised Business. 

9.3. Notification of Suits 

You agree to notify us immediately in writing of any suit, proceeding, or action and of the 
issuance of any writ, award, decree, injunction, or order of any court, agency, or other 
government instrumentality, that may adversely affect the operation of the Franchised 
Business. 

9.4. Reimbursement of Taxes and Costs 
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Should any franchise or other tax based upon the gross sales, gross revenues, business 
activities, or operation of the Franchised Business that should properly be imposed upon, 
or paid by, the Franchised Business, be imposed on the Company by any taxing authority, 
you will reimburse the Company or gross up the amount paid to the company in an amount 
sufficient to cover such taxes and related costs and expenses imposed upon or paid by 
the Company and ensure that the Company receives the payment it otherwise would have 
received if such taxes or fees had not been applicable.  You will make such reimbursement 
within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice from the Company that the Company is 
entitled to reimbursement for payment of such taxes and other amounts as set forth herein. 

10. RIGHT TO ACCESS, INSPECTION AND AUDIT 

10.1. Access 

The Company and its authorized representatives shall have the right at any time during 
normal business hours, with reasonable notice, to enter your business premises or the 
premises where you or your employees are providing customer services in order to inspect 
records, monitor procedures, and evaluate performance to determine if you and your 
employees are in compliance with this Agreement.  This review may include, in the sole 
discretion of the Company, an annual business review of your entire Franchised Business 
in order to ensure continued compliance with this Agreement and the Franchise Disclosure 
Document. You agree to cooperate fully with the Company in any review under this 
Section. 

10.2. Inspection and Audit 

You will retain at your business premises, for a period of at least three (3) years, all of the 
records pertaining to the Franchised Business and your Gross Sales.  All such records 
shall be available for inspection and copying at all reasonable times by the Company.  The 
Company's right to inspect, audit, and copy your records shall survive for a period of three 
(3) years following any expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

10.3. Deficiencies 

In the event, any inspection or audit discloses a deficiency in the payment of any royalty, 
or any other amount required to be paid under this Agreement, you shall immediately pay 
the deficiency to the Company. In addition, if the deficiency is equal to or exceeds two 
percent (2%) of the correct amount required to be paid under this Agreement during any 
twelve (12) month period, you will immediately pay the Company the entire cost of such 
inspection and audit, including but not limited to, travel, lodging, meals, salaries, and other 
expenses of the inspecting or auditing personnel. 

11. INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE 

11.1. Indemnity 

The Company shall not be liable (vicariously or otherwise) for any of your actions, nor shall 
the Company be liable (vicariously or otherwise) by reason of any act or omission on your 
part in the operation of the Franchised Business or for any claim or judgment against you.  
You agree to indemnify and hold the Company and its officers, directors, and employees 
harmless from and against any expense, liability, or damage (including attorneys’ fees) 
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the Company or such individuals may incur as a result of claims, demands, costs or 
judgments, of any kind or nature, by anyone, arising out of, or otherwise connected with, 
the ownership, maintenance or operation of the Franchised Business by you.  The 
Company shall have the right, within reason, to approve the counsel used in defending 
any action subject to indemnification hereunder. The Franchisee shall not be liable 
(vicariously or otherwise) for any of Company’s actions, nor shall the Franchisee be liable 
(vicariously or otherwise) by reason of any act or omission on the Company’s part in the 
operation of the franchise system or for any claim or judgment against the Company.  
Company agrees to indemnify and hold the Franchisees and their respective officers, 
directors, and employees harmless from and against any expense, liability, or damage 
(including attorney's fees) the Franchisees or such individuals may incur as a result of 
claims, demands, costs or judgments, of any kind or nature, by anyone, arising out of, or 
otherwise connected with, the ownership, maintenance or operation of the Company. 

11.2. Insurance 

During the term of this Agreement, you agree to maintain, at your expense, insurance as 
outlined in the Manuals.  The current insurance requirements are as follows: 

(a) insurance of the generally accepted "all risk" form on all personal property and assets 
of every description and kind used in the Franchised Business in an amount of the 
full insurable value thereof; 

(b) commercial general liability insurance coverage for the operation of the Franchised 
Business, including but not limited to, coverage against all types of public liability, 
including products liability, premises liability, completed operations liability, against 
claims for personal injury, bodily injury, death, or property damage suffered by others 
including the Company, its agents, or its employees, or as a result of the use of 
products sold by, or services rendered by, you, with a minimum coverage of 
$1,000,000 per accident or occurrence affecting one or more persons or property 
damage and $1,000,000 aggregate, or as it may reasonably be adjusted from time 
to time; 

(c) motor vehicle liability insurance for any claims arising out of the Franchised Business, 
or occurring as a result of the maintenance or operation by you, your employees, or 
persons doing business on your behalf, of any automobiles, Mobile Units, or other 
vehicles or other facilities with a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 for each accident 
or occurrence affecting one or more persons, or property, or as it may reasonably be 
adjusted from time to time; 

(d) workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, social security, and other 
mandatory insurance coverage shall be maintained in such amounts as may now or 
later be required by any applicable law. 

All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance carrier rated "A" or better by Alfred 
M. Best and Company, Inc.  All policies described in Sections 11.2(a)-(d) above shall 
insure you and name the Company as an additional insured, and shall stipulate that the 
Company shall receive at least thirty (30) days' written notice of cancellations or 
modification.  Your obligation to obtain and maintain the insurance policies described 
herein shall not be limited in any way by reason of any insurance that may be obtained by 
the Company, nor shall your performance of this obligation relieve you of liability under 
the indemnity provision set forth in Section 11.1.  You shall deliver to the Company 
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certificates of insurance or copies of insurance policies evidencing compliance with the 
requirements of this Section 11.2, together with proof of payment for such policies, prior 
to commencing operation of the Franchised Business, and thereafter prior to the expiration 
date of any such insurance coverage. 

The Company may, from time to time upon at least sixty (60) days prior written notice to 
you, increase or modify mandatory insurance coverage for the Franchised Business as 
the Company may deem necessary for the protection of the Company, the System, and 
you.  You agree to comply with such increased or modified coverage requirements at your 
sole cost and expense, provided that such increased or modified coverage is reasonable; 

You acknowledge and agree that should you fail to procure and maintain the insurance 
required by this Section 11, the Company has the right, but not the obligation, to procure 
the insurance and to require you to reimburse us for the cost of such insurance and for 
any expenses incurred in procuring the insurance.   

11.3. Third Parties 

You are responsible for all losses or damages and contractual liabilities to third persons 
arising out of or in connection with the possession, ownership, or operation of the 
Franchised Business, and for all claims or demands for damages to property or injury, 
illness, or death of persons directly or indirectly resulting therefrom. 

12. TRANSFER OF FRANCHISE 

12.1. Transfer of Franchise 

This Agreement is specific to you and you agree neither to sell, assign, transfer, nor to 
encumber your rights under this Agreement or to sell or transfer any of the assets of the 
Franchised Business (“Transfer”) without the prior written consent of the Company, which 
consent will not be unreasonably withheld. If you are a corporation, limited liability 
company, or similar entity, the terms of this Section 12.1 shall be deemed violated upon 
any sale, resale, pledge, assignment, transfer, or encumbrance of an interest in the entity, 
including a minority interest. If you are a partnership, then the terms of this Section 12.1 
shall be deemed violated upon any removal or addition of any general partner. You shall 
disclose to the Company on Schedule B of this Agreement the names of all your partners, 
owners, and shareholders, and shall give the Company prompt notice of any changes or 
additions to the same and all new owners that meet the threshold to sign a guaranty as 
set forth in Section 15.13 must do so.  Any assignment or transfer in violation of this 
Section 12 shall be null and void and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, 
which will provide the Company with the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance 
with Section 13. If you Transfer an interest in your franchise but continue to hold an interest 
in such franchise or transfer your entire franchise to a current ZEROREZ franchisee, the 
Transfer fee is $7,500. If you sell, assign, or transfer your Franchise to a new franchisee 
that is not a current ZEROREZ franchisee, the Transfer fee is $30,000. The transfer fee 
payable to the Company depends on the transferee  

12.2. The Company’s Right of First Refusal 

If any person holding an interest in this Agreement, in you, or in  any of the assets of the 
Franchised Business, desires to accept any bona fide offer from a third party to Transfer 
such interest, you will notify the Company at least thirty (30) days before the Transfer is 
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proposed to take place and provide any information or documentation relating to the offer 
that the Company requires.  The Company will have the right and option, exercisable 
within thirty (30) days after receipt of such written notification, to send written notice to the 
seller that the Company intends to purchase the seller's interest on the same terms and 
conditions offered by the third party.  If the Company elects not to purchase the seller's 
interest, such third party will have thirty (30) days from the earlier date of receipt of a notice 
from the Company declining to exercise its right of first refusal; or thirty (30) days after the 
Company's receipt of the transferor's written notification of the proposed transfer, to close 
on the transfer of the interest. Failure to effect a transfer with the third party within the 
ninety (90) day period, or any material change of the terms of the offer prior to closing, will 
constitute a new offer subject to the same rights of first refusal by the Company as in the 
case of the third-party's initial offer.  The Company's failure to exercise the option provided 
by this Section 12.2 does not constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement.  
If the consideration, terms, or conditions offered by a third party are such that the Company 
cannot furnish the same consideration, terms, or conditions, then the Company may 
purchase the interest proposed for the reasonable equivalent in cash.  If the parties cannot 
agree within a reasonable time on the reasonable equivalent in cash, an independent 
appraiser will be designated by the Company, at the Company's expense, and the 
appraiser's determination will be final and binding.  

12.3. Conditions for Transfer 

You acknowledge and agree that the restrictions on Transfer contained in this Agreement 
are reasonable and are necessary to protect the Franchised Business, the System, and 
the Marks, as well as the Company’s reputation and image, and are essential for the 
protection of the Company and other ZEROREZ franchisees.  The Company agrees not 
to unreasonably withhold its consent to Transfer of the Franchised Business by you, 
provided however, that consent to such Transfer otherwise permitted or permissible may 
be refused in any case unless: 

(a) all of your obligations under this Agreement and any other agreement affecting the 
Franchised Business are assumed by the transferee.  You will remain liable for all 
obligations to us in connection with the Franchised Business which arose prior to the 
effective date of the transfer. 

(b) all your known or liquidated debts to the Company or any affiliates of the Company 
are paid or assumed by the transferee with our consent; 

(c) you are not in default in any material respect under this Agreement or any other 
agreement with the Company or any affiliates of the Company; 

(d) the transferee and its partners, officers, and shareholders, if applicable, satisfactorily 
complete prior to the date of transfer the training required of new franchisees on the 
Company's then-current terms; 

(e) you, if requested by the Company, satisfy the Company that the transferee, and it 
partners, officers, and shareholders if applicable, meet all of the requirements of the 
Company for new franchisees, including but not limited to, good reputation and 
character, business acumen, operational ability, management skills, credit rating, 
financial strength, and other business considerations; 
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(f) you, all of your individual owners, and those of the transferee, if required by the 
Company, execute a general release under seal of any and all claims against the 
Company, in which event the Company will execute a similar release in your favor; 

(g) you or your transferee pays to the Company the then-current transfer fee; 

(h) for effecting the Transfer and in providing training and other initial assistance to the 
transferee;   

(i) the Company receives a fully executed copy of all Transfer documents;  

(j) the Company deems that the transferee is credit worthy and has the financial 
wherewithal to continue to operate the Franchised Business; and 

(k) the transferee must execute the then-current form of franchise agreement which may 
be materially different from the franchise agreement you signed, including but not 
limited to higher royalty fees and higher Fund contributions. 

12.4. Transfer to a Corporation 

Notwithstanding Sections 12.1-12.3 above, on thirty (30) days' prior notice to us, you (if 
you are an individual or partnership) may transfer this Agreement, in conjunction with a 
transfer of all of the assets of your Business, by an agreement in form and substance 
satisfactory to us, to a corporation, trust, or limited liability company or other estate 
planning vehicle, of which you own and control all of the equity and voting power of all 
issued and outstanding capital stock. No such assignment will relieve you or your owners 
of your obligations hereunder, and you and your owners will remain jointly and severally 
liable for all obligations hereunder. 

12.5. Special Transfers 

Sections 12.1-12.3 shall not apply to any Transfer of the Franchise among any of your 
then-current owners disclosed in Schedule B of this Agreement.  Section 12.3(g) shall not 
apply to a transfer of the Franchised Business to a spouse or adult child of the franchisee 
(if an individual) or to a spouse or adult child of a then-current owner listed in Schedule B 
(if a corporation, limited liability company or partnership). 

12.6. Death or Disability of Franchisee 

Upon your death or permanent disability, or the death or permanent disability of your 
principal owner, the executor, administrator or other personal representative of such 
person must transfer his interest in this Agreement or his interest in the Franchised 
Business to a third party approved by us in accordance with all of the applicable provisions 
of Section 12 herein within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed one (1) year from 
the date of death or permanent disability, unless agreed to in writing by Company. 

12.7. Assignment by the Company 

All of the Company's rights and obligations under this Agreement are freely assignable by 
the Company with or without your consent. 

12.8. Non-waiver 
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The consent by the Company to a Transfer covered by this Section shall not constitute a 
waiver of any claims the Company may have against the transferring party, nor will it be 
deemed a waiver of the Company's right to demand exact compliance with any of the 
terms of this Agreement by transferor and transferee. 

13. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

13.1. Expiration of Term 

This Agreement shall expire without notice ten (10) years from the Effective Date, subject 
to earlier termination as described in this Section 13.  The Franchise Business may be 
extended by entering into a new franchise agreement as set forth in Section 1.2. 

13.2. By You 

If you are in compliance with the Agreement and the Company materially fails to comply 
with this Agreement and does not correct such failure within thirty (30) days after written 
notice is received by the Company or, if such failure cannot be cured within the thirty (30) 
day period, or the Company does not undertake diligently to attempt to cure the failure 
within the cure period and continue to do so thereafter until the failure is cured, then you 
may terminate this Agreement effective ten (10) days after delivery to the Company of a 
written notice of termination. 

13.3. By the Company 

In the event that you fail to commence the operation of the Franchised Business as 
required herein including but not limited to your Development Obligations as set forth in 
Exhibit A of this Agreement, or the Company reasonably determines that you are unable 
to complete satisfactorily the initial training program as required in Section 4 above, then 
the Company shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, effective immediately upon 
delivery to you of written notice of termination. 

13.4. By the Company; Automatic Termination 

If any of the following events occur, you will be deemed in default under this Agreement, 
and the rights granted to you hereunder will automatically terminate without notice: 

(a) if you file a petition in bankruptcy, or if a petition is filed against you and not contested 
by you within three (3) days, or if you are a corporation, partnership, or limited liability 
company, you are dissolved; 

(b) if you make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or become insolvent; 

(c) if you fail to contest, satisfy, lift, or vacate within ten (10) days any execution, seizure, 
foreclosure, levy, or distress against the assets of the Franchised Business; 

(d) if you fail to contest or have removed, within ten (10) days, the appointment of a 
receiver or other custodian (either temporary or permanent) of the Franchised 
Business or any part of its assets; 

(e) if a final judgment in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) remains 
unsatisfied or of record for thirty (30) days or longer; 
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(f) if you make a transfer (as defined in Section 12) of the Franchised Business or of the 
rights granted under this Agreement without first complying with the relevant 
provisions of this Agreement; 

(g) if you misuse or make an unauthorized use of the System or Marks or any other 
name, mark, system, insignia, symbol, or right provided by the Company to you, after 
being notified in writing by the Company to cease and desist from such unauthorized 
use, or if you make an unauthorized copy or disclosure of the Confidential Information 
or make an unauthorized disclosure of the Manuals, after being notified in writing by 
the Company to cease and desist from such unauthorized copy or disclosure;  

(h) if you repeatedly, and after written notice to cease, perform services hereunder in 
the Operating Territory of another ZEROREZ franchisee; or 

(i) if you, after receiving notice from the Company of a violation of Section 15.15, again 
violate Section 15.15. 

13.5. By the Company; Notice and Opportunity to Cure  

If any of the following events occur, the Company may, at its option and upon the period 
of time outlined below, or if no period of time is specified, upon thirty (30) days, or such 
other time specified below, written notice to you and you fail to cure the event that gives 
rise to a default hereunder, terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon your 
receipt of a written notice of termination at the end of any cure period: 

(a) if you abandon or surrender or transfer control of the operation of the Franchised 
Business or fail to conduct actively the Franchised Business as required herein and 
such condition continues for ten (10) business days after notice of such default is 
given (with the exception of fire, flood, other Acts of God, or other extraordinary 
circumstances which prevent you from actively conducting the Franchised Business); 

(b) if you operate the Franchised Business in a manner that presents a health or safety 
hazard to your clients, customers, employees, or the public and such manner of 
operation continues uncorrected for two (2) days or longer if it cannot be cured in two 
(2) days and cure is commenced and diligently pursed to completion after notice to 
correct same; 

(c) if you sell or offer for sale any unauthorized product or service for more than three 
(3) days after notice to cease; or longer if it cannot be cured in three (3) days and 
cure is commenced and diligently pursed to completion; 

(d) if you or any principal owner or executive officer is convicted of a felony, a crime 
involving fraud or moral turpitude, or any other crime or offense that the Company 
believes is reasonably likely to have an adverse effect on the System, the Marks, or 
the Company's interests; 

(e) if you refuse to submit any required report, financial statement, schedule, or other 
information or supporting records reasonably required herein more than thirty (30) 
days after the Company makes written demand for such report, financial statement, 
schedule, or other information or supporting records; 
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(f) if you fail to meet the Development Obligation set forth on Schedule A in any year 
during the Term, or fail to comply with the covenants set forth in Section 8.2, if such 
failure continues more than sixty (60) days after written notice to cure from the 
Company; 

(g) if you knowingly submit a report, financial statement, tax return, schedule, or other 
information or supporting record that understates your Gross Sales for any period 
unless you demonstrate that such understatement resulted from an inadvertent error; 

(h) if you fail or refuse to pay any amount owed to the Company or any affiliate for any 
royalty or other financial obligation or if you fail or refuse to pay any amount due to 
any lender or any payment owed under any agreement executed in connection with 
your purchase of an ZEROREZ franchise (including, but not limited to, any Mobile 
Unit and equipment lease, ERW Generator, or mineralized water concentrate), within 
ten (10) days after a demand for payment, or fail to honor on two (2) or more 
occasions in any twelve (12) month period throughout the term of this Agreement, 
checks presented to the Company or any affiliated entity for payment, or repeatedly 
and consistently pay any amount due hereunder after its due date; 

(i) if you violate any law, ordinance, rule or regulation of any governmental agency in 
connection with the operation of the Franchised Business and do not correct such 
violation promptly after notification thereof, unless there is a bona fide dispute as to 
the violation or status of such law, rule or regulation, and you promptly resort to a 
court of competent jurisdiction or other appropriate forum to contest such violation or 
status; 

(j) if you intentionally use equipment or supplies that are not in compliance with the 
Company's standards and specifications after being notified by the Company not to 
use such equipment or supplies; 

(k) if you refuse to permit the Company to inspect the Franchised Business, its premises, 
or your books and records upon demand; 

(l) if you made any material misrepresentations to the Company upon which the 
Company relied in evaluating your application for an ZEROREZ franchise; 

(m) if you have been provided a notice of default, whether or not cured, three (3) or more 
times during any twelve (12) consecutive month period;  

(n) if you fail to promptly respond to and reasonably satisfy customer complaints.  
Specifically, failure to reasonably satisfy the complaints of seven (7) or more clients 
or customers for any single Mobile Unit operated by you within any twelve (12) 
consecutive month period constitutes failure to properly respond to and reasonably 
satisfy customer complaints;  

(o) if you fail to maintain the quality of the System or violate any program, initiative or 
directive from us relative to the Company or the Franchised Business; or 

(p) if you fail to comply with any other provision of this Agreement or any other 
specification, standard, or operating procedure prescribed by the Company.  The 
Company agrees that any written notice of default shall describe the default with 
specificity. 
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14. YOUR RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION 

14.1. General Obligations  

Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, all rights granted to you under this 
Agreement will terminate and you will undertake the following: 

(a) to pay immediately any monies owed to the Company and its affiliates.   

(b) to immediately cease to operate the Franchised Business and to immediately cease 
to represent to the public or hold yourself out as a present or former franchisee of 
the Company; 

(c) to immediately cease using the Marks and any confusingly similar names, marks, 
systems, and insignia, and cancel all assumed name or equivalent registrations 
relating to your use of any of the Marks.  You will notify any telephone company and 
all listing agencies of the termination or expiration of your right to use any telephone 
number or directory listing associated with the Marks, and you hereby acknowledge 
that these items (and trunk lines and any other services provided by telephone 
companies and used by you in the Franchised Business) revert automatically to the 
Company for its (or its new franchisee's) use within the Operating Territory; 

(d) to immediately cease to use the System or any of its methods, procedures, or 
techniques; 

(e) to immediately make changes in signs, decals, and colors as the Company shall 
reasonably request so as to distinguish your vehicles from those of any other 
ZEROREZ franchisee; 

(f) within five (5) days of the effective date of termination or expiration, to return to the 
Company all copies of all material previously received from the Company including, 
without limitation, the Company's Confidential Information, the Manuals, and a 
complete list of your present customers and clients, including their addresses and 
telephone numbers.  You will keep all Franchised Business records for at least three 
(3) years after the effective date of termination or expiration and keep the Company 
advised of the location of such records; 

(g) comply with the restrictive covenant obligations set forth in Section 8.2; and  

(h) unless otherwise restricted by the Company, within five (5) days of the effective date 
of termination or expiration, return to the Company any data generated by using the 
Software; and 

(i) ensure that the Marks and all equipment related to the operation of the System are 
removed from the Mobile Unit(s) and from any other equipment used in the 
Franchised Business. 

14.2. Right to Purchase 

In the event that this Agreement is terminated for any reason or is not renewed, the 
Company shall have the right, but not the obligation, exercisable within thirty (30) days of 
the effective date of the termination or expiration of this Agreement, to repurchase at the 
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then fair market value of any Mobile Unit(s) and equipment, including accessories, and 
the ERW Generator.  The Company shall also have the right, but not the obligation, 
exercisable by written notice delivered to you at any time after delivery of a notice of 
default hereunder or within thirty (30) days after the effective date of termination or 
expiration, to purchase for fair market value all or part of the other physical assets used in 
the Franchised Business, except for your real property or personal assets, which may or 
may not include compensation for goodwill, and the purchase price shall be equal to the 
fair market value. If we cannot agree with you upon a fair market value within a reasonable 
time, each party shall designate an appraiser and both appraisers will agree on and 
designate a third independent appraiser to make the determination of fair market value, 
whose determination shall be binding.  The parties shall share the cost of the appraisal 
equally.  The closing of the purchase shall take place at a location, and on a date, chosen 
by the Company, acting reasonably, and shall be completed in accordance with all 
applicable bulk sales legislation.  At closing, you shall deliver to the Company a bill of sale 
for the assets, in a form acceptable to the Company.  The Company shall be entitled to 
set off against the purchase price any amounts then owed by you, and to pay out of the 
purchase price any of your unpaid creditors. 

14.3. Continuing Obligations 

All obligations of the parties hereto which expressly or by their nature survive the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such 
expiration or termination.  In particular, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
the provisions in Sections 6, 8, 10, 11, 14, and 16 hereof shall survive termination or 
expiration of this Agreement. 

14.4. Domain Names and Web Sites 

Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, you agree to transfer to the Company 
all social media and online accounts and passwords within three (3) days after a written 
request by us that you do so.  You acknowledge and agree that the Company has the 
absolute right to, and interest in, all social media accounts, domain names, web sites, and 
any other Internet related presence associated with the franchise granted hereunder and 
the Company has the full right and authority to direct any registration agency or company 
to transfer domain names, social media accounts, web sites or any other online presence 
arranged or contracted by you to the Company or its designee.  You further acknowledge 
that this Agreement will constitute a release by you of all registration agencies or 
companies and all other search engines from any and all claims, liabilities, actions and 
damages that you may, at any time, have the right to allege against them in connection 
with this Section 14.4. 

15. MISCELLANEOUS 

15.1. Relationship of Parties  

You are an independent contractor.  Neither party is the legal representative or agent of, 
or has the power to obligate, or to direct or supervise the daily affairs of, the other for any 
purpose whatsoever, and no partnership, joint venture, agency, or fiduciary or employment 
relationship is intended or created by reason of this Agreement.  You shall take all 
reasonable steps necessary to clearly identify to the public that the Company is not the 
owner or operator of the Franchised Business and is not responsible for the acts or 
omissions of you and your employees, representatives, and agents.  If requested by the 
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Company, all of your invoices, work orders, contracts, etc. will identify your business as 
“an independently owned and operated franchise of Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc.”   

15.2. Notices 

All communications required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be delivered by any means which shall provide evidence of the date 
received, to the respective parties at the following addresses or at such different 
addresses as may be designated at any time by written notice to the other party:   

Company: ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. 
772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120 
American Fork, Utah 84003 
Attention:  Shawn Moon, CEO 

Franchisee:      
 dba Zerorez of     

Attention:     
     
     

15.3. Withholding of Payments 

Should you have any claims against the Company for alleged non-performance by the 
Company of any of its obligations hereunder, those claims shall be submitted to arbitration 
as provided in Section 15.11.  Should a dispute arise regarding payment due to the 
Company by your hereunder, you agree to deposit such disputed funds into an escrow 
held by an unaffiliated third party, acceptable to you and the Company, pending the 
outcome of such dispute.   

15.4. Cross Default 

Any default by you under any other agreement between the Company and you or any of 
your affiliates that permits the Company to terminate such other agreement shall be 
deemed to be a default of this Agreement, and the Company shall have the right, at its 
option, to terminate this Agreement. 

15.5. Entire Agreement 

This Agreement, including schedules, attachments, addenda, and any other documents 
expressly referred to herein, sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, fully 
superseding any and all prior negotiations, agreements, representations, or 
understandings between them, whether oral or written, pertaining to the subject matter 
hereof.  The parties hereby expressly confirm that there are no oral or written agreements, 
arrangements, or understandings between them except as expressly reflected herein.  
Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement may be amended only by 
a written document signed by both parties hereto.  However, nothing in this Agreement or 
in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations that the Company 
made in its Franchise Disclosure Document. 
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15.6. Waiver and Delay 

Any party who becomes aware of any claim or demand against the other shall have one 
year from the date such party became aware of, or with reasonable diligence should have 
become aware of, the facts giving rise to such claim in which to settle such claim or 
demand or to file a lawsuit with respect to it, or the claim or demand shall be deemed to 
have been waived and abandoned by such party.  No waiver or delay by either party in 
requiring strict compliance with respect to any obligation of this Agreement or any 
agreement with other franchisees of the Company (or in the exercise of any right or 
remedy provided herein) and no custom or practice at variance with the requirements 
hereof shall constitute a waiver or modification of any such obligation, requirement, right 
or remedy, or preclude the exercise of any such right or remedy or the right to require strict 
compliance with any obligation set forth herein, or shall preclude, affect, or impair 
enforcement of any right or remedy provided herein with respect to any subsequent 
default.  All remedies, either under this Agreement, at law, in equity, or otherwise afforded 
to either party hereunder, shall be cumulative and not alternative and may be exercised 
simultaneously or sequentially in any order. 

15.7. Partial Invalidity 

In the event any term or provision of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, the provision shall be modified to the extent necessary to 
make it enforceable, or if it cannot be so modified, then severed, and the remaining terms 
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and it is hereby declared the 
intention of the parties that they would have executed the Agreement as so modified. 

15.8. Interpretation 

The captions used in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect 
the meaning or construction of this Agreement.  The language of this Agreement shall be 
construed simply according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either party. 

15.9. Successors 

Subject to the restrictions on transfer in Section 12, this Agreement shall be binding upon 
and inure to the benefit of the permitted successors, assigns, heirs, and personal 
representatives of the parties. 

15.10. Applicable Law 

The Federal Arbitration Act shall govern all matters relating to arbitration.  Except to the 
extent governed by the Federal Arbitration Act as required herein, the United States 
Trademark Act of 1946 or other federal law, this Agreement and the relationship between 
the parties hereto shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Utah, which shall prevail in the event of any conflict of laws.  This Agreement shall 
become valid when executed and accepted by the Company at American Fork, Utah.  It 
shall be deemed made and entered into in the State of Utah. In entering into this 
Agreement, you acknowledge that you have sought, voluntarily accepted, and become 
associated with the Company, which is headquartered in American Fork, Utah, and that 
this Agreement contemplates and shall result in business relationships with the 
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Company's headquarters personnel. The choice of law designation permits, but does not 
require, that all suits concerning this Agreement be filed in the State of Utah. 

15.11. Arbitration of Certain Disputes 

(a) Except as provided in Section 15.11(b) below, any and all disputes or controversies 
between or among the parties hereto, and their respective shareholders, owners, 
corporate affiliates, officers, directors, employees, agents, or guarantors, including 
without limitation, any disputes or controversies based upon, arising out of, or in any 
way connected to this Agreement, any agreements ancillary to this Agreement, the 
relationship created hereunder, the offer or sale thereof, or operation, or 
management of any franchise or Franchised Business, shall be resolved in 
accordance with the Federal Arbitration Act through binding arbitration under the 
Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”), as 
modified or supplemented as herein provided.  An arbitration proceeding may be 
commenced by written notice from either party to the other requesting arbitration. 

(b) The following types of disputes and controversies shall not be resolved through 
arbitration as provided in Section 15.11(a) above:  disputes and controversies based 
upon or arising out of the Lanham Act, as now or hereafter amended, or otherwise 
relating to the ownership or validity of any of the Marks; disputes and controversies 
involving enforcement of the Company's rights under Sections 6, 8, and 13 of this 
Agreement; and disputes and controversies related to or based upon your failure to 
pay royalties or advertising fund contributions when due. 

(c) Three arbitrators who shall be selected by the AAA office in which the arbitration 
petition has been filed shall conduct any arbitration under Section 15.11(a) above.  
The parties desire that at least one arbitrator be an attorney familiar with franchising 
matters.  The arbitrators shall have the power to order discovery on the basis of what 
is likely to produce material and relevant information in the proceeding, and to assess 
costs and expenses of the arbitration according to the relative merits of the parties' 
positions in the case.  The arbitrators shall enter judgment by default in the event 
either party shall fail or refuse to appear or participate in any properly noticed 
arbitration proceeding.  Damages recoverable in any action shall be limited to actual 
damages proved and neither party shall be entitled to recover special, consequential, 
punitive, or multiplied damages.  The parties agree to be bound by the provisions of 
any limitation on the period of time within which claims may be brought under 
applicable law or this Agreement, whichever expires earlier.  In connection with any 
arbitration proceeding, each party must submit or file any claim that would constitute 
a compulsory counterclaim (under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure) within the 
same proceeding as the claim to which it relates.  Any claim that is not submitted or 
filed will be forever barred.  

(d) The forum for any arbitration required hereunder shall be in the county in which the 
Company's principal headquarters are located. 

(e) In the event a dispute or claim arises hereunder involving both matters subject to 
arbitration under this Section 15.11 as well as matters not subject to arbitration under 
Section 15.11(b), all portions of such claim which are subject to arbitration shall be 
severed from the claims not subject to arbitration and shall be subject to arbitration 
hereunder, unless both parties agree to consolidation in a single action. 
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(f) The provisions of this Section 15.11 are intended to benefit and bind certain third-
party non-signatories and will continue in full force and effect subsequent to 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

15.12. Attorneys' Fees 

Should either party be required to enforce its rights hereunder, the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to recover its reasonable costs and expenses, including without limitation, 
attorneys' fees, costs, and such expenses on appeal, to be determined by the court or 
arbitrator, as the case may be and not a jury. 

15.13. Personal Guarantees 

If you are a corporation, limited partnership, or limited liability company, you agree that in 
order to induce the Company to enter into this Agreement, you will cause each principal 
who owns ten percent (10%) or more of the corporation, limited partnership or limited 
liability company to guaranty to the Company the full payment and performance of all your 
obligations under this Agreement, unless agreed otherwise by the parties. The form of 
such guaranty shall be as attached to this Agreement as Schedule D. 

15.14. Operation of the Franchised Business 

You acknowledge and agree that you shall be responsible for operating the Franchised 
Business and that you shall not enter into any management agreement or other similar 
arrangement for the operation of the Franchised Business with any independent entity 
without the prior consent of the Company. 

15.15. Non-Disparagement 

You agree that you will not (and will use your best efforts to cause its current and former 
shareholders, members, officers, directors, principals, agents, partners, employees, 
representatives, attorneys, spouses, affiliates, successors and assigns not to) (a) make 
any untrue or derogatory statements concerning the Company and its affiliates, as well as 
their present and former officers, employees, shareholders, directors, agents, attorneys, 
servants, representatives, successors and assigns; or (b) undertake any act which would 
(i) subject the Marks to ridicule, scandal, reproach, scorn, or indignity, (ii) which would 
negatively impact the goodwill of the Company or its affiliates, the Marks, the System, or 
any other brands owned or controlled by the Company or its affiliates, or (iii) constitute an 
act of moral turpitude. 

15.16. Your Organization and Authority 

If you are a legal entity, you are duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under 
the laws of the state in which you are organized. You have full power and authority to enter 
into this Agreement and to carry out your obligations hereunder. Your execution and 
delivery of this Agreement and your performance of your obligations hereunder has been 
duly authorized by all requisite action on your part. This Agreement has been duly 
executed and delivered this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation, 
enforceable against you in accordance with its terms. 

16. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
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NO STATEMENT, QUESTIONNAIRE, OR ACKNOWLEDGMENT SIGNED OR AGREED TO BY 
YOU IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 
SHALL HAVE THE EFFECT OF (I) WAIVING ANY CLAIMS UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATE 
FRANCHISE LAW, INCLUDING FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT, OR (II) DISCLAIMING 
RELIANCE ON ANY STATEMENT MADE BY ANY FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISE SELLER, OR 
OTHER PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY. THIS PROVISION 
SUPERSEDES ANY OTHER TERM OF ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE FRANCHISE. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed and delivered by the 
undersigned effective as of the Effective Date. 

FRANCHISEE:            

       d/b/a Zerorez of      

 

       By:       

       Name:        

       Title:        
 

       By:       

       Name:        

       Title:        

       By:       

       Name:        

       Title:        

COMPANY:      ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. 

       By:       

       Name:        

       Title:        
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SCHEDULE A 

OPERATING TERRITORY, INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE, MINIMUM ROYALTY FEE AND 
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 

The Operating Territory shall be as described on Schedule A-1. 

Political and geographic boundaries described above or delineated in Schedule A shall be 
considered fixed as of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement and shall not change for 
the purpose hereof notwithstanding a political reorganization or change to such boundaries or 
regions, provided that the Company may reduce the Operating Territory or any exclusive rights in 
the Operating Territory if you fail to meet the Development Obligation set forth in this Schedule.   

 Lump Sum  

Franchise Fee: $__________ 

  

Minimum Royalty Payment 

Households  in 
Territory 

Year 1 (4-15 
months after 
Operations 

Commencement) 

Year 2 (16-27 
months after 
Operations 

Commencement) 

Year 3 (28-39 
months after 
Operations 

Commencement) 

Year 4 and later 
(40 months or 

more after 
Operations 

Commencement 

Less than 30,000 
(Hometown 

Market) 
$250 $500 $750 $750 

30,000 to 120,000 $250 $500 $1,000 $1,500 

120,001 to 
400,000 

$375 $750 $1,500 $2,250 

greater than 
400,000 

$500 $1,500 $2,500 $3,750 

The current minimum Royalty Fee (the “Minimum Royalty Payment”) is required to be paid 
beginning three (3) months from the commencement of your franchise operations (“Operations 
Commencement") and depends on the size of your territory.  

Operations Commencement shall be the first day you start generating revenue. You agree to 
commence operations no later than_________[insert date]. 

You agree to develop the Operating Territory and to meet the Development Obligation set forth 
below. You agree that you have ________ households in your Operating Territory. You must meet 
or exceed the Gross Sales set forth below during the Term. Hometown markets are excluded 
from Development Obligations.  
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Households 
in Territory 

Year 1 (4-15 
months after 
Operations 

Commencement) 

Year 2 (16-27 
months after 
Operations 

Commencement) 

Year 3 (28-39 
months after 
Operations 

Commencement) 

Year 4 and later (40 
months or more 
after Operations 
Commencement 

less than 
120,000 

$50,000 $100,000 $200,000 $300,000 

120,000 to 
400,000 

$75,000 $150,000 $300,000 $450,000 

greater 
than 

400,000 
$100,000 $300,000 $500,000 $750,000 
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SCHEDULE A-1 

OPERATING TERRITORY 
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SCHEDULE B 

LIST OF PARTNERS, OWNERS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF FRANCHISEE 
 MUST EQUAL 100% OF ENTITY OWNERSHIP 

Name:   

Title:   

Ownership Percentage:    

Name:   

Title:   

Ownership Percentage:    

Name:   

Title:   

Ownership Percentage:    

Name:   

Title:   

Ownership Percentage:    

Name:   

Title:   

Ownership Percentage:    

Name:   

Title:   

Ownership Percentage:    
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SCHEDULE C 

AUTHORIZATION AGREEMENT FOR PREARRANGED PAYMENTS 
(DIRECT DEBITS)  

[Important Instructions for Completing this Form:  Before we can process your Franchise 
Agreement, you must sign and return this authorization.  If, at the time you sign your Franchise 
Agreement, you do not have your account set up, or if you do not yet know your account 
information, please show that you agree to the terms of this authorization by signing this form, 
leaving the account information blank, and returning the signed form with your Franchise 
Agreement.  You can give us your account information when you receive it, but we must have the 
information before you open your store.  If you have any questions about what this form means, 
you should get advice from your lawyer, your accountant or your bank.]  

Your Name (or name of legal entity on Franchise Agreement):   

Your Social Security Number (or legal entity Federal Tax ID Number):   

Name on Bank Account (if different than above):   

The undersigned (“ACCOUNT HOLDER”) hereby authorizes Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. 
(“COMPANY”) to initiate debit entries and/or credit correction entries to ACCOUNT HOLDER’s checking 
and/or savings account(s) listed below at the bank, credit union or other depository listed below (“BANK”) 
and to debit such account per COMPANY’s instructions for any and all amounts due to COMPANY.  The 
ACCOUNT HOLDER understands that all amounts debited from the account below will be credited to 
COMPANY’s account.  INSTEAD OF COMPLETING THE INFORMATION REQUIRED ON THE 
FOLLOWING FOUR LINES, YOU MAY ATTACH A CANCELLED OR VOIDED CHECK TO THIS 
AUTHORIZATION, BECAUSE A VOIDED CHECK INCLUDES ALL OF THIS INFORMATION.   

NAME OF BANK Branch 

City State Zip Code 

Telephone Number of Bank Contact Person at Bank 

Bank Transit/ABA Number Account Number 

This authority is to remain in effect until BANK has received joint written notice from COMPANY and 
ACCOUNT HOLDER of the ACCOUNT HOLDER’s termination.  Any termination notice must be given in a 
way as to give BANK a reasonable opportunity to act on it.  If a debit entry is initiated to ACCOUNT 
HOLDER’s account in error, ACCOUNT HOLDER shall have the right to have the amount of the error 
credited to the account by BANK, if (a) within fifteen (15) calendar days following the date on which BANK 
sent to ACCOUNT HOLDER a statement of account or a written notice regarding such entry or (b) forty-
five (45) days after posting, whichever occurs first, ACCOUNT HOLDER shall have sent to BANK a written 
notice identifying such entry, stating that such entry was in error and requesting BANK to credit the amount 
thereof to such account.  These rights are in addition to any rights ACCOUNT HOLDER may have under 
federal and state banking laws. 

  
ACCOUNT HOLDER 

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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SCHEDULE D 

GUARANTY  

 

The persons who sign this Guaranty jointly and severally promise and guarantee to 
ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. that Franchisee will comply with and faithfully perform all of 
the Franchisee’s obligations under the Franchise Agreement to which this Schedule D is attached, 
and under existing and future amendments and supplements to that Franchise Agreement, and 
all other obligations (now existing or hereafter created) to ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc.  
This Guaranty is given to induce ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. to enter into the Franchise 
Agreement and is adequately supported by that consideration. 

Any person who signs this Guaranty will have no obligation under this Guaranty under any 
amendments, supplements and other obligations created after the person has permanently 
terminated all direct and indirect interests in Franchisee and has delivered to ZEROREZ 
Franchising Systems, Inc., written notice of that termination.  The written notice will be effective:  
(i) on the date that it is actually received by ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc., at its then-
current principal place of business, and (ii) only if it expressly states that the person disclaims any 
responsibility under this Guaranty for amendments supplements and other obligations created 
after the effective date of the notice.  The persons who sign this Guaranty will by this Guaranty 
remain obligated under the Franchise Agreement and all amendments, supplements and other 
obligations created before the effective date of the notice. 

The persons who sign this Guaranty understand that their execution of this document is 
required for ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc., to enter into the Franchise Agreement, to 
which this Guaranty is attached as an exhibit, with the Franchisee thereof. 

Signature:    Signature:   
       

Name (print):    Name (print):   
       
Address:    Address:   
       
Date:    Date:   
       

       

Signature:    Signature:   
       
Name (print):    Name (print):   
       
Address:    Address:   
       
Date:    Date:   
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SCHEDULE E 

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT  

This Confidentiality Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by ____________   (collectively 
referred to herein as “Employee”), an employee of ______________ (“Employer”), a franchisee 
of ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation whose address is 772 East Utah 
Valley Drive, Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 84003,  (“Franchisor”), effective as of 
_____________, 20__. 

WHEREAS, in the normal course of his employment, the Employee has access to certain 
information that is confidential to either the Employer or the Franchisor, which information consists 
of items such as the identity of customers, pricing and business strategies, techniques, 
procedures, financial information, and business systems and plans (the “Confidential 
Information”); 

 WHEREAS, the Employer is bound by certain confidentiality requirements in its Franchise 
Agreement with the Franchisor, including the obligation to have its employees sign a 
Confidentiality Agreement in the form of this Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Employee agrees that his continued employment is adequate and 
sufficient consideration for this agreement. 

In consideration of the foregoing covenants, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
Employee hereby agrees as follows: 

1. Restrictions.  Except as strictly necessary in the performance of Employee’s work, 
duties and responsibilities for and to Employer, or as specifically authorized in writing by Employer 
and Franchisor, Employee covenants and agrees not to directly or indirectly: (a) disclose or 
transfer any Confidential Information to any other person, business or entity; or (b) use, sell or 
exploit any Confidential Information or aid, encourage or allow any other person, business or 
entity to disclose, transfer, use, sell or exploit any Confidential Information. 

2. Documents.  Any and all documents, operating manuals, notebooks, drawings, 
papers, plans, designs, computer programs, and computer storage media used, purchased, 
developed, or modified by Employer or Franchisor are the sole and exclusive property of 
Employer and/or Franchisor, and Employee shall deliver any and all of the foregoing in the 
possession or control of Employee to Employer upon Employer’s request or upon termination of 
Employee’s employment. 

3. Survival.  Employee acknowledges and agrees that this agreement relating to the 
disclosure of Confidential Information shall survive after the termination of Employee’s 
employment with Employer and Employee shall comply with all covenants and agreements at all 
times after the termination of Employee’s employment with Employer. 

4. Injunctive Relief.  Employee agrees that Employer shall be entitled to preliminary 
and other injunctive relief that may include, but shall not be limited to, restraining Employee from 
rendering any services or performing any activity that would breach this Agreement, an order for 
specific relief, and other equitable relief. 

5. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement cannot be modified or altered nor can any 
provision hereof be waived except in writing signed by Employer, Employee and Franchisor.  In 
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case any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall, for any reason, be held to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, any invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision(s) 
shall be curtailed, limited, construed or eliminated to the extent necessary to remove the invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability with respect to the applicable law as it shall then be applied and the 
other provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby.  This Agreement shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Utah.  In the event of an 
action relating to the performance, breach or interpretation of this Agreement, the prevailing party 
in the action shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party all reasonable costs and 
expenses of the action, including attorneys’ fees, court costs, and costs of investigation. 

Employee Address: 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

 

___________________________________ 

Employee’s Signature 
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EXHIBIT C 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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AUDITOR’S CONSENT  
  

IBDO 

Zerorez, Inc. d Subsidiaries 
American Fork, Utah 

l0l- an.1120 
f • )0). 0) 11)0 

www.bdo.oom 

)0) [Ml 11111 , S..f 
COIG20J 

BOO USA, P.C. consents to the use in the F chi Disclosure Documen issued by Zerorez 
Franchising Systems, Inc . (Predecessor d Franchisor) on March 31 , 2025, as i may be amended, 
of our repo dated March 31 , 2025, Apnl 18, 2024 and October' 11, 2023, relating to our audi 
of the conso(ida ed financial sta emen of Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiari (Parent) of 
December 31 , 2024, 2023 and 2022 and for he fiscal years ended December 31, 202 and 2023 , 
and for the period from August 16, 2022 (ac ·sition da e) through December 31 , 2022 and for 

e period from Janu 1, 2022 hrou August 15, 2022 (Predec sor). 

April 2, 2025 

zerorez. 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
Exhibit C: Financial Statements C - 2 4927-0094-0829 

 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
  

Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
As of and for the Years Ended December 31 , 2024 
and December 31 , 2023 

zerorez. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Contents 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Consolida ed Balance Shee 

Consolida ed Sta emen of ~ations d Comprehensive Loss 

Consolida ed Sta ements of Ch es in Stockholder's Equity 

Consolida ed Sta emen of Cash A 

Ho es to Consolidated Financial Statemen 

3 

5 

6 

7 

9 

zerorez. 
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IBDO 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Directors 
Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
American Fork, Utah 

Opinion 

Te(: 303-830-1120 
~ 303-830-8130 
www.bdo.com 

303 E. 17th A\oet'IR, Suite 600 
Denver, co 80203 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the 
Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 , 2024 and 2023, and 
the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in stockholder 's 
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated f inancial 
statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31 , 2024 and 2023, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audi ts in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uni ted 
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibili ties under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the retevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audi t opinion. 

Responsibilities of J.1anagement for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated f inancial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated f inancial statements, management is required to evaluate whether 
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
Company's abilit y to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the 
consolidated financial statements are issued or available to be issued. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated f inancial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS wi ll always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
lOOUS..P.C.a U.S. of lCO 1100 -

zerorez. 
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IBDO 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material i f there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, they would influence the j udgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance wi th GAAS, we: 

• Exercise professional j udgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit . 
• Identi fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence 
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressi ng 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as wet! as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's abili t y to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of t ime. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audi t findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

March 31 , 2025 

zerorez. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31 2024 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents s 3, 202,871 
Restricted cash 78,889 
Accounts receivable, net 1,1 21,223 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1, 512,211 
tlotes receivable, current portion 128,268 

Total current assets 6,043,462 

Property and equipment, net 8,740, 570 
Operating lease right·of·use-assets, net 8,864,877 
Finance lease right·of·use·assets, net 4,821,222 
Goodwill net 21 ,955,790 
Intangible assets, net 20,038,537 
Investments 100,000 
llotes receivable, net of current portion 470,187 
Deeosits and other 3531336 

Total assets s 71 ,387,981 

3 

2023 

s 3,091 ,834 
n ,467 

1,416,209 
1,243,Sn 

523,508 

6,352,590 

13,024,028 
6,944,344 

22,421 ,m 
22,671 ,017 

100,000 
665,447 

2231095 

s n ,402,298 
Continued. 

zerorez. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiari es 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31 2024 

Liabilities and Stockholder's equity 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable s 1,113,081 
Accrued expenses and other liabilit ies 4,972,054 
Contract liabilities, current portion 744,962 
Current maturities of notes payable 5,387,500 
Operating lease liabilities, current port ion 1,749,549 
Finance lease liabilit ies, current port ion 820,287 
Income taxes payable 67,229 

Total current liabilit ies 14,854,662 

Contract liabilit ies , net of current port ion 4,203,179 
tlotes payable, net of current portion and debt issuance costs 13,850,724 
Operating lease liabilit ies, net of current portion 7,681,571 
Finance lease liabilities, net of current portion 2,922,017 
other long-term liabilities 6,158,350 

Total liabilities 49,670,503 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12) 

Stockholder"s equity: 
Common stock, S1 par value, 100 shares authorized, 

issued and outstanding 100 
Additional paid-in capital 48,934,550 
Accumulated deficit 12113541s1 n 

Stockholder's equity attributable to Zerorez, Inc. 21,579,833 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 137,645 
llon-controllini: interest 

Total stockholder's equity 21,717,478 

Total liabilities and stockholder's equity s 71,387,981 

2023 

s 1,451 ,142 
3,528,235 

n9,351 
4,400,000 
1,856,936 

11 ,965,664 

5,475,235 
18,597,760 
5,232,536 

8,615,867 

49,887,062 

100 
40,939,653 
ps14211386l 

22,512,367 

2:869 

22,515,236 

s n ,402,298 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

4 

zerorez. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss 

Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 
Revenues 

Company-owned outlet income s 68,148,688 s 64,531 ,466 
Royalty fees 2,365,584 2,397,783 
Brand fund contributions 1, 1TT,511 918,355 
Franchise fees 1,214,513 635,879 
Technology, service fees and other 489,619 455,459 

Total revenues 73,395,915 68,938,942 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of company-owned outlet income 28,338,365 26,943,650 
General and administrat ive expenses 27,057,621 26,095,242 
Advertising and mar1<eting 12,897,702 12,441 ,417 
Depreciation and amortization expense 12,424,453 11 ,940,183 

Total operating expenses 80,718,141 n ,420,492 

Loss from operations (7,322,226) (8,481 ,550) 

Other (expense) income 
Interest expense (2,503,244) (2,808,452) 
other income1 net 9651268 419911002 

Total other (expense) income, net (1,537,976) 2,182,550 

Loss before income taxes (8,860,202) (6,299,000) 

Income tax expense 67,229 

Net loss (8,927,431) (6,299,000) 

Less: loss allocable to non-controlling interest 95,145 

Net loss attributable to Zerorez, Inc. (8,927,431) (6,203,855) 

Other comprehensive income 

Foreign cu rrency translation adjustment 137,645 

Total comprehensive loss attributable to Zerorez, Inc. s (8,789,786) s (6,203,855) 

See accompanyin!J notes to consolidated financial statements. 

zerorez. 
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6olenoe, Jonusy 1, 2023 

Equity·b.=-d OOffl)Cfl:ation 

Netb:;;: 

- · -,. 31 , 2023 

U>ntri>ution: 
Equity•b.=-d OOffl)CflOation 

Repurchze of non-oontn>t!:n3 in tere:t 
fore cun-ency tr.an:btion adju::unent 
Netb:::: 

- · -,. 31 , 2024 

Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder 's Equity 

eon-...-, Stodt Aclcfldonel P•cf- --..iced Stockho~·: Hon-Coruollin!I -- Amount lnCepftol De&tt Equity lnte.-e:t 

100 5 100 5 4>.853.5"1 5 (l l.223,531 ) 5 28,630.160 5 '8,014 

86.062 &6.062 
j6,203.S55! (6,203.855) ~.1 ◄52 

100 100 4>.'>3'.653 !18,427.3861 22.512.367 2.86'> 

8,00:,,00) 8, 00). 00) 
242.028 242.028 

(247.131 ) (247.131) (2.S6'J) 

!8,m .-011 (8.'27.431! 
100 s 100 s 48.9!1-4.550 s !27,354.81!'} S 21 .579.03 s 

Accunul«edOther 

~ Ive Tot.ol Stockho-: 

Income Eq.,lty 
5 5 28.728,174 

86,062 
!6.:m.oo:>1 
22.515.236 

8.000,00) 
2-42.028 

(250,00:,) 
137,645 137,645 

~ .'m.431! 
s 137.645 s 21.717.478 

See CIIX'Ompc:inyinJ note:: to con~idct..ed finonacl ::totenxnt:. 

6 

zerorez. 
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Zerorez, Inc . and Subsidiarie s 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December Jt 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
tlet loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by 

operating activit ies : 
Depreciation and amortization 

Amortization of debt-issuance costs 
Credit loss expense 
Equity-based compensation expense 

Loss on remeasurement of contract settlement tiabitity 
l~et loss on divestiture of investments 

Loss on property and equipment disposal 
Non-cash interest on contract settlement liability 
Non-cash lease expense 

Change i n fair value of contingent considera ion 

s 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of business acquisition : 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Deposits and other long-term assets 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 

Income tax payable 
Contract liabilities 

Operating lease liabi lities 

tlet cash provided by operating activi t ies 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Acquisition of a business, net 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Finance ase downpayments and initial upfront costs 
Capi talized soft are development cost s 

Proceeds from s of property and equipment 
Collection on notes receivable 

tlet cash used in investing activit ies 

7 

202◄ 

(8,927,431) $ 

12,424,453 
58, 226 

668,997 
242,028 

65,714 

187,679 
336,769 

2,094,005 
(1,121 ,721) 

(100, 137) 
(268,639) 
(135 ,503) 
(505 , 108) 

(1 ,099,660) 
67, 229 

(1, tn,67◄) 

(1,694,521) 

11 I 14,706 

(1,250,000) 
(1 ,413,543) 
(1,262, 223) 

(467,808) 
99,933 

237,855 

(4,055 ,786) 

2023 

(6,299,000) 

11 ,940,1 83 
69,556 

641,707 
86,062 

131,588 
8,375 

336,714 
1,869,276 

(4,670,000) 

(552,799) 
176,433 
(39, 397) 
136,663 
362,691 

(604,852) 
(1 ,751,754) 

1.841.446 

(1,983,255) 
(3, 187,555) 

(521,1 16) 

553,700 

(5, 138,226) 
Continued. 

zerorez. 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
Exhibit C: Financial Statements C - 11 4927-0094-0829 

  

Zerorez, Inc . and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from tine of credit 
Repayments of line of credit 
Repayment s of notes payab 
Repayment of contract settlement liability 
Payment of debt issuance cost s 
Payment of contingent consideration 
Contributions 
Payments on finance lease liabilities 

tlet cash provided by (used in) financing activities 
Effect of exchange rate on cash , cash equiva nts , 

and restricted cash 
tlet change in cash , cash equiv nts and rest ricted cash 
Cash , cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 

Cash, cash equivalents and res tricted cash at end of year 

Supplemental cash flow information: 

Cash paid fo r interest 
Cash paid fo r taxes 

Supplemental non-cash flow information: 
lfate payable issued fo r purchase of non-controlling interest 
Se r holdbac liability for acqu isition of busines.s 
Divestiture of investment in exchange for note receivable 
Write-off of note receivable against contract tiabitities 
llote receivable issuance reflected in contract tiabitit ies 
Increase in accounts payable fo r purchases of 

property and equipment 
Operating lease liabilities obtained in exchange 

fo r right-of-use assets 
Finance lease liabi lities obtained in exchange 

fo r right -of-use assets 

2024 

1,000,000 
(1 ,000,000) 
(4,062,500) 

(350,000) 

(490,000) 
8,000,000 

(215.757) 

2,881.743 

171 ,796 
112,459 

3, 169,301 

s 3,281,760 

s 2,108,249 
s 

s 250,000 
s 1,500,000 
s 
s 78,TT1 

s 

s 167,047 

s 4,049, 578 

s 3,958 ,061 

s 

s 
s 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

s 

s 

s 

2023 

(79,299) 
(6,812,453) 

(350,000) 
(50,000) 

(7,291,752) 

(10,588, 532) 
13,757,833 
3, 169,301 

2,402,1 82 

75,000 
1-«l,298 

295,035 

1,231,466 

See accompanying notes to consolidated finandal statements. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Organization and Description of Business 

Zerorez, Inc. ("Zerorez") a Delaware corporation, was formed on June 10, 2022, to acquire the 
entire stock of Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and i ts subsidiaries ("ZFS") and to acquire the 
assets of certain franchisees' of ZFS, pursuant to a plan and merger agreement and an asset 
purchase agreement dated August 15, 2022. ZFS was re- incorporated in the State of Delaware on 
August 15, 2022. Zerorez is wholly owned by Zerorez Holdings, LLC (the " Parent") . The Parent has 
no signi ficant operations, and its assets principally are comprised of its investment in Zerorez. 

Zerorez is a residential and commercial services cleaning franch isor with franchisees and operations 
throughout llorth America. Zerorez cleans carpet, tile, fabric, upholstery, hard surfaces, and air 
ducts, and does not use detergents or harsh chemicals, but instead uses patented technology that 
cleans using electrolyzed water. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation, Consolidation and Non·Controlling Interest 

The accompanying consolidated f inancial statements have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") as codi fied 
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") in its Accounting Standards Codification 
("ASC") and Accounting Standards Updates ("ASU "). 

As of December 31 , 2024, the accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
and operating results of Zerorez and its subsidiaries, which consisted of the following: 

ZFS 
Zerorez Charlotte LLC ("Zerorez Charlotte") 
Zerorez Richmond LLC ("Zerorez Richmond") 
Profectus International, LLC ("Profectus") 
Zerorez UK LLC ltd ("Zerorez UK") 
Z Intellectual Property Holdings Company, LLC ("ZIP") 

These entit ies are collectively referred to as the "Company". lntercompany balances and 
transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation. 

As of December 31 , 2024 and 2023, the Company's ownership interest in Zerorez Richmond was 
100'6 and 50%, respectively. During the year ended December 31 , 2024, the Company acquired 50% 
ownership interest in Zerorez Richmond from a non-controlling interest holder for S250,000. In 
accordance with ASC 810, Consolidation ("ASC 810") the difference between the consideration paid 
and ownership interest obtained was recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in capital. The 
remaining enti ties are wholly owned. 

In accordance with ASC 810, the Company evaluates its interests in variable interest entities on an 
ongoing basis. If the Company, together with its related parties and de facto agents, is determined 
to have the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the variable interest entity 's 
economic performance and has the obligation to absorb losses of the entity or the right to receive 
benefits from the entity that could potentially be signi ficant, the Company is deemed the primary 
beneficiary and consolidates that entity into its financial results. Factors that are considered when 
making the primary beneficiary assessment include whether the Company or its related parties 
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Zerorez, Inc . and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

participated in the design of the entit y, whether the entity's activities either involve or are 
conducted on behalf of the Company or its related parties, whether the Company or its related 
parties have provided more than half of the total equity or subordinated debt, and whether the 
Company or i ts related parties have rights, through voting, board representation, or other 
agreements, to direct the activit ies that most significantly impact the variable interest entity 's 
economic performance. The Company concluded that it was the primary beneficiary of Zerorez 
Richmond, prior to the acquisition of the non-controlling interests, and accordingly, consolidated 
this entity into i ts f inancial results. 

Foreign Currency 

The accompanying consolidated f inancial statements are presented in United States dollars (USO) 
as the reporting currency. For the UK subsidiary where the Company has determined that the 
functional currency is the entity's local currency, the assets and liabilities of such subsidiaries are 
translated into USO using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. The revenue and 
expenses of such subsidiaries are translated into USO using average exchange rates in effect during 
the reporting period. Any translation adjustments are presented as accumulated other 
comprehensive income, within stockholder 's equity in the accompanying consolidated statements 
of changes in stockholder 's equity. Foreign currency t ransaction gains and losses are included in 
other income, net within the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
comprehensive loss and were immaterial for all periods presented. 

Use of Est imates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements, in accordance with U.S. GAAP, requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated f inancial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 

The most significant accounting estimates relate to the allowance for credit losses, the estimated 
useful lives and values of depreciable and amortizable assets, the calculation of and allowance for 
deferred taxes, estimates to derive the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in 
connection with business combinations, fair value of contingent consideration from business 
combinations, and assumptions used in determining the fair value of equity-based compensation. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates and such differences could be material. 

Cash and Cash Equivalent s 

The Company considers all highly liquid f inancial instruments \vith a maturity of three months or 
less at the time of purchase and deposits in transit from debit and credit card processors to be cash 
equivalents. Debit and credit card transactions are short-term and highly liquid in nature. Interest 
income is recorded for interest-bearing cash accounts and is included within other income, net in 
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Restricted Cash Held for Brand Fund 

Restricted cash is related to cash that franchisees contribute to the Company's Brand fund. Cash 
contributed by franchisees to the Brand fund is to be used in accordance with the franchise 
agreement for national, regional, and local marketing and advertising of services to increase Brand 
awareness. As such, the restricted cash is requi red to be set aside and is not available for the 
Company's general business use. 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash from 
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 , 2024 and 2023 to the statements of cash flows 
for years then ended, respectively: 

December 31, 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash , as shown 

s 

on the consolidated statements of cash flows S 

Concentrations of Credit Risk 

2024 
3,202,871 S 

78,889 

3,281,760 S 

2023 
3,091 ,834 

n ,467 

3,169,301 

The Company maintains bank accounts with a banking institution in which the deposits are 
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). Such deposits may, at times, 
exceed the FDIC insured limit of S250,000 for each account. The Company is subject to credit risk 
to the extent any f inancial institution with which it conducts business is unable to fulfill contractual 
obligations on i tsj behalf . Management monitors the financial condition of such financial institutions 
and does not anticipate any losses from these counterparties. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
there were no losses incurred with respect to excess amounts over the FDIC insured limits. 

Accounts Receivable, Notes Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses 

Accounts receivable represent receivables due from the sale of services to commercial customers 
provided by company-owned outlets and royal ties and other fees due from the Company's 
f ranchisees. The Company records receivables from services provided by company-owned outlets at 
the time a transaction is completed, which is recorded at net realizable value. Royalty receivables 
are based on a percentage of the franchisee ' s net sales, as defined in the f ranchise agreement, 
payable monthly and include invoiced amounts and unbilled amounts to be invoiced in the month 
subsequent to year-end. 

llotes receivable comprise of certain initial franchise fees, which are payable under the terms of a 
note receivable agreement that specifies the repayment period and interest charged, and/ or cash 
advances to franchisees. 

The Company maintains an allowance for expected credit losses to reserve for potential 
uncollectible receivables. The allowance is recognized in an amount equal to anticipated future 
write-offs over the expected life of the receivables. The Company estimates the allowance for 
credi t losses based on historical experience, customer payment practices, credit quality of the 
f ranchisee and current economic t rends. Actual credit losses could differ from those estimates. 
Account balances are charged off against the allowance when management believes it is probable 
the receivable will not be recovered. The allowance for credit losses at December 31 , 2024, 
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December 31 , 2023, and January 1, 2023 was approximately $433,000, $246,000, and $26,000, 
respectively. Direct charge-offs, net of recoveries, totaled $482,000 and $432,000 for the years 
ended December 31 , 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost, or fair value when acquired in a business combination, 
less accumulated depreciation. The cost of improvements that enhance the estimated useful life of 
property and equipment are capitalized. Upon retirement , sale, or other disposition of property and 
equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts. The cost of 
maintenance and repairs, which are not significant improvements, are expensed when incurred. 

Depreciation and amortization are provided utilizing the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Vehicles 

Leasehold improvements 

Furni ture and fixtures 

Equipment and other 

2-5 years 

Shorter of lease term or 15 years 

5-7 years 

3-7 years 

Property and equipment acquired in a business combination are depreciated over the remaining 
useful li fe of the asset. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangibles Resulting from Business Combinations 

The Company's intangible assets from a prior business combination are amortized over their period 
of expected benefit, and the useful lives and amortization methods are as follows: 

Trade name Straight-line method 
Developed technology and 

capitatized software development costs Straight-line method 

Capitalized Software Development Costs 

11 years 

5 years 

The Company capitalizes the costs associated with software development when the preliminary 
project stage is completed, and the software will be used to perform the function intended. These 
capitalized costs include external direct costs of services consumed in developing or obtaining 
internal-use software. Capitalization of these costs ceases once the project is substantially 
complete and the software is ready for its intended purpose. Costs incurred for upgrades and 
enhancements to the products are also capitalized. Costs incurred related to less significant 
modifications and enhancements, as well as maintenance, are expensed as incurred. Post­
configuration training and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Software development and 
implementation is associated with the Company's proprietary customer relationship management 
software, which is used by the Company and its franchisees and the Company does not transfer 
ownership to i ts franchisees. Capitalized software development costs are included within intangible 
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Notes to Consolidated financial Statements 

a on he accomp ying consolida ed balance sheet. Capitalized cos • re approxima ely 
$468,000 and S521,000 f0< the years ended Decembef- 31 , 2024 and 2023, r pectively. 

Impairmen t of Lons-Uved Asset s 

The Company reviews i long-lived assets, such property and equipment, ri t-of-use ("ROU,.) 
asse and intangibles subject o amortization, f0< impairmen er en °' cha in 
circumstanc indicate e carrying amount of an may not be recoverable. Reco rability 
of the t is measured by comparison of i carrying amoun to undiscoun ed fut\Jre ne cash flo 
the asse is expected o generate. If such ts are considered o be impaired, the impairment 
recognized is measured as he amount by ich e carrying amount of the exceeds its fair 

lue . Estimates of expected fu ure cash flows represent management's best estima e based on 
currently available ·nf0<mation and reasonable and supponable assumptions. Any impairment 
recognized is permanen and may not be rest0<ed. As of December 31 , 2024 and 2023, the Company 
determined hat an impairment did not occur. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess of he purchase price over the value as:s • ned o a acquired and 
liab ilities med ·n coMection ·th a business comb·nation. The Company elected to adop e 
pri te company alternati • h respect to goodwill, under wn·ch goodwill is amO<tized on a 
straight-line basis over a period not to exceed ten years. The Company amortizes goodwill over ten 
ye . The Comp y also has elected the accounti temative o perform goodwill impairment 
triggering event e lua ion as of the end of e reporti period and a he entity I el. 

Circumstances a could require an impairment assessmen include, but are not limi ed to, (i) a 
significant adverse change in legal factors °' busin climate, (ii) the emet"gence of increased 
competition (iii) an a rse action or assessment by a emmen al agency or regulator, or (iv) 
o rail financial performance such nega • or declini ca.sh flO' . If that qualita • e assessment 
indica es that it is more likely an not that the goodwill is impaired, the entity rn.ist perf0<m the 
qu ita ive to compare he entity's fair lue with its carrying amount, ·nctuding goodwill . If 
the qualita • assessmen indicates that i is not more h ly than no hat goodwill is impaired, 
further esti is not required. 

The fair value of the entity is tima ed us·ng various valuation techniques, including e discounted 
value o estima ed future cash flo (an income approach). Assumptions regardi future cash flows 
and g rates are based on the annual opera ·ng budget and long- enn plans and discount ra e 
assumptions are based on an assessment of the ri • ren in the entity. If e carrying amount 
exceeds its fair value, n the amount of the impairment loss m be m red. The impairment 
loss represen the excess of the carrying amoun of entity over its fair value and canno exceed 
the entity's carrying amount of goodwill. As of December 31 , 2024, and 2023, the Company 
determined that an impairment did no occur. 
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Notes to Consolidated financial Statements 

Accounting for Business Combinations 

The Company accounts for acquisitions under ASC 805, &Jsiness Combina ions ("ASC 805"). Under 
ASC 805, an acquiring entity is required o recognize the ts acqu"red, the liabilities assumed, 
and any non-controll"ng interest in the acquiree at fair v: ue as of the acquisition da e. 

The determination of fair value involv the use of imat and assumptions, along with the 
application of various luation techniques. These ti mat may include projections of future cash 
flows related o specific assets and the assessment of futu re lives based on the expected future 
period of benefit of the asset . The va ue a • ned to goodwill is he r "dual of the purchase price 
of the fair ue of all identifiable assets acquired, excluding assembled workforce (which caNlOt 
be accounted for separately from goodlwill), less all liabilities assumed d any non<on rolling 
interest. Related acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. 

U.S. GAAP allO' an alternative for an en ·ty that does not meet the definition of a public busi ess 
en ·t:-f to no recognize separately from goodwill customer related intangible asse unless they are 
capable of being lie ed independently from the other assets of the business and noncompe ition 

eement. The Company has e lected to adop this accounting t.erati and has included the fair 
lue, if any, of customer relationships and noncompe "tion agreements as a component of goodlwill, 

which is amortized. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Company fol lows the accoun ing guid ce prescnbed in ASC 820, Fair Value Aleasurements and 
l)isclosures ("ASC 820") . Among other requirements, ASC 820 defines fa ir lue, establishes a 
fram for measuri fair lue and expands disclosure about the use of fair lue to measure 
asse and liabilities. Fa·r lue is a -based measure based on the perspective of a market 
participant that holds the as or he r bilicy, ra her han an en icy-specific measure. 
Therefore , en market assumptions are no readily a ii e, the Company's O'.,, assumptions are 
set o reflect ose that marke pa icipants IIIOUld use ·n pricing the asset or liab"li't>f on a 
measurement da e. ASC 820 establishes a hierarchy fo r inputs used in measuring fair lue that 
maximizes use of observable inputs and minimizes he use of unobsetvable inputs by requiring 
tha the obsef'Vable inputs be used en available. Observable inputs are inpu that marke 
partKlpan ld use in pricing or liabilicy based on marke data obtained from sources 
independent o the Company. Unobservable inpu are inpu that reflect the Company's 
assumptions about hat marke partidpan ld use in pricing the asset or liabilicy based on the 
best informa ·on available in circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three I e(s 

based on the reliability of inputs as foll 

el 1: Obsef'Vable inputs, such as quoted prices in acti markets for identical assets or r bili ·es 
to which the Company has access a a measurement da e. 

2: Obsef'Vable inputs o her than level I quo ed pric a are observable for the t or 
liability, either directly or indirec ly; these include quoted prices for similar asse or liabilities in 

act· market, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in marke hat are not active , or 
o er ·nputs hat are observable or can be corrobora ed by observable maritet data for substantially 
the full erm of the asse or liabili • . 
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L el 3: Unobsetva_ble inputs for which little or no ma t data exi 
mus develop its o-..i,n sump ions r~arding he assumptions m 
prici the asset or liability, including a=mptions r~ardi risk. 

, and for hich 
et participan 

eCompany 
ould use in 

The fair value of the Company's short-term financial ins ruments , including rece· bl , prepaid 
do er C\Jrren ts , accou ts pa ble and accrued expenses and o er liabili ·es, arising in the 

ordinary course of bus· , approxima ed their individual carryi amounts due to re tively 
short period of time be n eir origination and expected re iz.ation. The fair value o e 
Company's line of credit, no es payable and no receivable approxima es its carryi value as 
interest rates are reflective o ma et rates. !Ion-recurring fair lue measurements r ate o 
unobservable inpu used in derivi the fair va ue of equity-based compensation, certain asse 
acquired and liabili • assumed and con ·ngen consideration in connection • h busi ess 
combinations, ich are classified wi ·n Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Recurring fair value 
measurements rela e to subsequen measuremen of contingent consideration liabili • . See llo e 
3 llote 11 , and Uote 13 for further information . 

lnvestmMts 

Equity J. ethod Investments 

In tee companies hat are no conso(idated, but over hich Company exercises significant 
influence, are accounted for u der the equity me hod of accoun ·ng. Whe er or not the Company 
exerc· significant influence ·th " pect o an in tee depends on an evaluation of eral 
fac ors including, among others, investee dependence on the investor, and ownership lev , which 
is gene tty a 2 • o 5~ interest ·n the voting securiti of he investee company. Under the equity 
me hod of accounti , an ·nv ee company's accounts are not reflected within the Comp y's 
balance shee and tement of operations and comprehensive loss; hol er, the Company's share 
of he eami or losses of investee company is reflected in e ings • hin other income 
(expense). 

When the Company's carrying lue ·n an equity method investee comp y is reduced to zero, no 
further losses are recorded in the Company' s consolidated financial statements unless the Company 
has an eed obliga ·ons of the ·nv tee company or has committed additional fu di . When the 
in ee company subsequently reports income, the Company ·n not recoro i share of such 
income until it equals the amount of its share of losses not previously recognized . 

As of January 1, 2023, the Company held a 3 o-.wnership in Riv ,a Holdin , L.L.C. ("Zerorez 
San Antonio"). As e Comp y exercised si nificant influence over Zerorez San Antonio the 
Company' s in tmen as recorded using the ·ty method . The equity method investment 
l'ecorded at acquisition cost plus the Company's equity in the undistributed eami or losses of the 
en ·ty. As of January 1, 2023, he carrying value of the equity me hod ·nvestment approxima y 
522 000. In February 2023, the Company divested its 3 . ownership in Zerorez San Antonio in 
excha for a S75 ,000 note receivable, payable to the Company under the terms of a promissory 
no e over 10 years. The Company recognized a gain of approxima ely S53,000 on he tr saction, 
which is included in other income, net on the consolidated statemen of operations and 
comprehensive loss for e year ended December 31 , 2023. The Comp y' s proportionate share of 
activi ies from January 1, 2023 throu divestiture da e ere de minimis. 
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Cost Alethod Investments 

Inv ee comp ies not accoun ed for under the consolidation or equity method of accoun -~ are 
accounted for under the cost method of accoun -~ - Under e cos thod, Company's re 
of e earnings or losses of he investee company are not recorded, and income is only recognized 
o the extent dividends are rece· ed from e in stee. lmpairmen c , if any, are recognized 
·hen cirrumstances suggest that he cost of e investmen is no recoverable. 

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and for the years then ended, r pecti ly, the Company held 
a 1 interest in Zerorez Central Oregon, LLC ("Zerorez Oregon") and a 15 interes in Letesoft, 
LLC. As o January 1, 2023, the Company also held a 15 in erest in Zerorez of Puget Sound, U.C, 

hich s divested in April 2023 for no considera ion. The Company incurred a loss of appc-oxima y 
S185,000 on the d - • ure wh"ch is included in other income, ne on the consolidated statement 
of opera ·ons and comprehensive loss for he year ended December 31 2023. As of December 31 , 
2024 d 2023, he carryi~ lue of cost method in n totaled S 100,000. 

Debt Issuance Costs 

Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with obtaining or modifyi debt have beEn capitalized 
in e accompanyi consolidated bat ce shee and are being amortized us·~ the effective 
interest method over he term of the ·ng repayment period, u less e deb obliga ion is 
erminated earlier, in which case the re ini~ costs are expensed in the period of ennina ·on. 

Debt issuance cos: relating to line of credi arra emen are presen ed as other long- enn asse 
and financing cos relating to term lo arrangemen are presen ed as a reduction of long-term 
debt. 

Contract Liabilities 

received prior to the re nue recognition criteria are recorded con ct 
in he accompanyi consolida ed bat ce shee . Amoun no expec ed to be recognized 

• ·n the nex Ive months e cl Ted as con ract liabilities, net of current portion. Oun~ 
the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recognized approximately S1 ,221 000 of r, enue 
which as ·nctuded in the contract liability balance as of December 31, 2023. During the year ended 
December 31 , 2023, the Company recognized approximately S478,000 of revenue ich s 
included in the con act liability b ance of January 1, 2023. 

Revenue RecognitiM 

The Company accoun for re nue in accordance with ASC 606, R enue from CMtracts with 
Customers ("ASC 606"). Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised pc-oducts and 

rvic to customers in an amount tha reflects he consideration the Company expects to rece · e 
in excha~e for those products or rvic . e Company determines the arnoun of re nue to be 
r,ecognized through application of the follOIWing eps: 

• Iden ·fication of econ rac , or contracts 'th a customer. 
• Iden ·fication of e performance obligation in e con rac • 
• De ermination of the ction price; 
• Allocation of the transaction price o the perform ce obligations in the con ract· and 
• Recognition of enue when or a.s the Company sa isfi the performance obr a ions. 
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Company-Owned Outlet Income 

Company• provide deaning services o residential and commerci customers, and 
r enue is recognized the performance obligation is sa "sfied, which occurs upon deli ry of 
the service to the rustomer. Revenue recognized excludes sales axes collected from cus omers. 

Franchise Revenues 

The Company's franchise agreement outlines e righ and responsibili ies of e Company and i 
franch • and requires the Comp y to perlorm rious act1V1t1 to support the Brand that do not 
directly transfer goods and services to the f chisee. The in etlectual property subject to e 
franch · license is symbolic intellectual property as i does no ha si ific standalone 
functionality and substan ·ally all of e utility is derived from its sociation with e Company's 
past or ongoi activi ti . 

The nat\lre of the Company's promi in granti the franchi lie is to pro • e the franchi 
with ace to e Brand's symbolic intellectual property c,ver the term of the license. The ·ces 
pro • ed by the Company are highly interr ated • h the franchise license and such, are 
considered to represen a single performance obligation. llonpublic company franchisors may apply 
a practical expedient permits pre-opening activi • provided to a franchisee to be accounted 
for as distinct from the franchise license, if the pre-opening activities are consistent with those 
activi ies included in a predefined list within the guidance. For the Company, hose activi ies 
priman y relate to traini services. The Company h made an accounti policy election o 
account for the pre-opening services a sin le bundled performance obligation, as allowed under 
A5C 606. Therefore, the Company has -o performance obligations: a franchise license and pre­
opening services. 

The transaction price in a standard franch • arrangement priman1y consists of (a) initial franchise 
fees· (b) royalty fees· (c) Brand f\Jnd fees · and (d) technology fees. Since the Company considers 
the lie ing of e franchising right to be a single performance obligation, no allocation of e 
ra ction price is required . 

The Company recognizes the primary componen of e transac ion price as follows: 

Royalty Fees and Brand Fund Fees 

Royalties d franchisee con nbutions to he Brand f\Jnd are calculated as a percen of 
franchisee sales, per p«cen ages as defined in the franchise agreement (currently 6 for royal • 
and 1 up to , for Brand fund contributions), over he enn of the franchise agreemen and 
recorded mon hly. Roy ties and Brand fund contributions represent !es-based fees that are 
rela ed entirely to the Company's perform ce obi" a ion under the franch· agreement and are 
recognized as franchisee-le I sales occur. Royal ies are collected monthly and are reflected in 
royalty fee r enue in the accompanying consolida ed sta emen of operations d 
comprehensive loss. Brand fees are reflected in Brand fund contributions ·n the accompanying 
consolidat.ed statemen of ap«ations and comprehensive loss. 

Franchise Fees 

Upon exeru ion of an ·ni ial franchise a eement, the Company requi a non -re undab e upfront 
franchisee fee ("initi fee"). The franchise agreemen de ines a specific geographic territory, 
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a.nd if population in the defined territory is in exc of a specific population the franchisee 
ill pa.y additional non-refundable considera ion ("additional territory fee") . The population 

specific to he territory is based on e most recen ly avaitab e U.S. Census. The initial fee and 
additional territory fee all<Y.11 the franchisee e exclusive ri o conduct business within its 
defined territory. Terms of the franchise reement allO'.w he franchi non-exclusive rights o 
offer products and services outside of their defined em ory, de i ed. Additionally, e 
Company mayseU e • ·og franchisees additional exdu • territories when the franch · e desires 
to expand their presence and/or open addi ·ona1 loca ·ons. The Compan s services u der e 
franchise ;,o,--,,.,...nt include training of franch • and staff and ing operations support. 

The transaction price the Company is entitled to recei is alloca ed be een the performance 
obligations (i.e., the pre-openi services and the franchise license) in proportion o its 
standalone se(li price. enue is recognized for pre-opening services n e bundle of 
services has been comple ed and tisfied. R enue alloca ed to the franchi lie e is 
recognized ratably on a straight-line basis o r he enn of the franchise a- r ich is 
generally 10 years. 

Initial fees e due upon execution of the franchi a eement a.nd the Company may provide 
financing for addi ional territori purchased, o r terms of 24 or 36 months, which a.re no 
interest bearing unless in defaul of the terms of e promissory note . The Comp y de enni es 
imputed interest at incep ·on of the promissory note, and recognition of interest income rNer the 
repayment term, n applicable. 

The Company recognized approxima ety S109,000 of pre-open·ng servic at a. point in ime while 
approximately SI , 106,000 of franchise lie re nue recognized over time for the ye 
ended December 31 , 2024. The Company recognized approxima ely S149,000 of pre-opening 
services at a poin in ·me ile approximately S-487,000 of franchise license r nue 
recognized over time for the year ended December 31, 2023 . 

Technology. Service Fees and Other 

Technology fees for use of the Company's propriety sof are a.nd information technology support, 
defined in the franchi agreement, are charged on a monthly b is to the franchisee. 

Service fees for various traini and o er rvices provided by e Compa.ny o the franchisee, 
defined in the franchise agreement, are charged a.s incurred. 

Other r en e comprised primarily of agreemen with suppli tha enti le he Company 
to recei rebates for required use of certain products by the Compan s franchi a.s defined 
in the franchise agreemen . Rebates are recognized a.s r enue earned. 

F described above e reflect.ed in technology, service fee a.nd o r in he accompanying 
consolidated statemen of operations and comprehensive loss. For ye ended December 31 , 
2024, Company recognized approximately $381,000 related o techno(ogy fees , and 
approximately SI09 000 related to rebates. llo service fee r enue a.s earned. For the ye 
ended December 31 , 2023 the Company recognized approximately $382 ,000 related o 
technology fees, a.nd approximately Sn,000 rela ed o rebat . Ho service fee r enue 
earned. 
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The Company accounts for teases ·n accordance with ASC 842 leases: Topic 842 ("ASC 842"). The 
Company de enn·nes if an arrangement is a lease a inception of a contrac . At tease 
commencement, teases are ct "fied as ei~ finance teases or operating teases. A tease is 
classified as a finance tease if any one of the following cri ena are me : (1 ) e tease transfers 
o ip of the undertyi asset by the end of the tease enn; (2) he tease con ains an option o 
purch the underlying asse that is reasonably certain to be exe<ci d; (3) the tease tenn is for a 
major part of the remaining economic life of the underlying • (4) presen value of the sum 
of le paymen d y aranteed residu value that is not already included in the tease 
payments equals or exceeds substantially alt of the fair value of the und ying asset; or (S) e 
underlying asse is of such a specialized nature that is expected o ha e no alte<nati use to the 
lessor at the end of lease tenn. A tease is classified as an ope<ating tease if it does not mee 
any one of these criteria. 

For le ·th an ini ·at term grea E!f' th 12 rnon , a rela ed tease liability is recorded on the 
balance sheet at the presen tue of future tease paymen <YVer he tease enn. As he rate implicit 
in the Company's teases is no readily determinable, the Company uses an incremental ·ng 
rate that is estima ed o approximate e in e<est ra e the Comp y d ha to pay o bo!'ro 
on a coUateralized basis • h similar terms and paymen in an economic environment simit o 
whe<e the leased asset is toca ed. The lease liability is de ennined the presen tue of future 
le paymen over the lease tenn. The ROU a t is recorded at he initi arnoun of the tease 
liability, plus any tease payments made to the l sor before or a the lease commencement da e 
and y initial direct cos: incurred, less any tenant ·mpro ment a towance ·ncen ives 
received. Lease enns may include op ions to extend or tenninate the lease. These options are 
included in the le term when i is reasonably certain that option ·u be exercised. 

The Company elected the practical expedient r ated o trea ing lease and non-tease componen 
as a sin le lease component for alt leases l as ecting a policy exclusion penni ·ng le es 
with an o • inal tease tenn of I th one ear to be excluded from the ROU asse and tease 
liabilities. 

Opera ·ng lease expense is recognized on a strai -tine basis ove< the tease enn. Tenant incentive 
allowances received from the lessor are amortized thr the ROU asse a reduct.on o rent 
expense over the tease tenn. For finance teases, the ROU asse are amortized on a stra· ht-tine 
basis <¥Ver he shorte< of the lease tenn or the estimated useful life unless the E!f'mS of he tease 
include a bargain purchase option or ransfer 0',1,nership at e end of the le tenn in ich the 
ROU asset is amortized over the es ·mated useftJl life. In er t for finance leases is nized using 
he effective inte<est method ove< the lease term. Variable lease payments are no based on 

an index or that result from c ng to an ·ndex subsequen to the initi 
corresponding tea.se liability are not included in the measurement of ROU a or tease liabili ·es 
and ·n ead are recognized in e ings in the period in which the obtiga ·on for those payments is 
incurred. Leases • h an ini ·at term of 12 rnon or I (short- enn teases) are not recorded on 
he consotida ed balance shee . Short-te<m tease expense is recognized on a stra· ht-line basis 

o r the tease tenn. 
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Equity-Based Compensation 

Equity-based compensa ion is accounted for as an expen in accordance with ASC 
718, Compensation - Stoclc Compensation ("ASC 718"), hich requires compensation cost for the 
grant-date fair value of equity-based a ards o be recognized over the requisite service period. For 
awards subject to service conditions, compensation expense is recognized over the ves ·ng period 
on a straight-line basis. The fair value is based on the Blac Scholes Option Pricing Mod . The 
Company accoun for forfeitures when they occur, and any compensation expense previously 
recognized on unvested equity-based a ards will be r rsed when forfeited . See Ho e 13 for 
further information. 

Income Taxes 

The Company is taxed as a corporation under the provisions of the Uni eel Sta Internal Revenue 
Code. Under those provisions, the Company pays federal , state and fore ·gn income taxes on i 
taxable income. The Company is subject o income ax in e U.S., he U.K., and certain sta e 
jurisdictions. The provision for income taxes represen ac ual or esti eel amoun payable or 
refundable on tax return filin each year. Deferred ax asse and liabili ies are recorded for the 
estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis of sets and liabili ·es 

d amounts reported ·n the accompanyi consolidated balance shee and for opera i~ loss and 
tax credit carry fonwards and carry.backs. The ch ge in deferred tax asse and liabilities for the 
period me ur the deferred tax provision or benefit for the period. Effects of cha in enacted 
tax la on deferred tax asse and liabiliti are reflected as adjustments o the ax provision or 
be fit for e period of enactmen . Valuation allowances e provided against deferred tax asse 

n i is determined that i is morel y than no that such asse will not be recovered . 

In accordance • FASS ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, managemen has aluated the Company's 
tax positions and concluded that he Company has ta en no material uncertain tax positions that 
require adjusunent o the consolidated financi statemen to comply "th the provisions of is 
guidance. The Company is subject to routine audi by taxing jurisdictions; howe r, there are 
currently no audits for y tax periods in progress. Penalties d interes , if any, would be reflected 
in general and administra • e expenses in e accompanyi consolidated statements of operations 

d comprehensi e loss. 

Advertising Costs 

The Company expenses the cost of advertising as incurred . Advertising and marketing expenses in 
he accompanying consolidated sta emen of opera ions and comprehensi loss includes 

approximately S11 ,242,000 and SI0, 106,000, for he yea.rs ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - Current Adoption 

In March 2024, the FASS issued ASU 2024-01 , Compensation· Stoclc Compensation (Topic 718) ("ASU 
2024-01 "), ich provides illustrati guidance to clarify e scope applica ion of ASC 718 to profit 
interests and similar a ards. The Company elected to early adopt he ·dance contained within 
ASU 2024-01 as of January 1, 2024, on a prospecti basis. This adoption method is considered a 
cha~e in accounting principle requiring addi ional disclosure of the nature and reason for the 
cha~e. Only after considera ·on of the ddition illustra • guid ce regarding he applic le 
scope of ASC 718 as it appli to profi interests provided by ASU 2024-01 , as it de erminable that 
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certain profit inter ranted to employees of the Company (see Type 8 Profit Uni described in 
Ho e 13) re more cc tely d "fied as a substantive class of equity rsus treatment undE!f' 
ASC 710, Compensation. Therefore, is change in accounting principle as made solely due to the 
adoption of ASU 2024-01. As a result of e adoption of ASU 2024-01 , approxima y $156,000 of 
additional equity•based compensation expense recognized during the year ended December 31 , 
2024. See Note 13. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pr011ouncements - Future AdoptiOII 

In December 2023 the FA.SB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 7-tO) : Improvements to Income 
Tax Disclosures. The men in this update are intended to enhance the transparency d 
decis"on usefulness of income tax disclosures primarily through chang to the ra e reconcilia ion 

d income taxes paid informa ·on. This update is effective for annual periods begiMing af er 
DecembE!f' 15, 2025, with early adoption permitted. The Company is C\Jrren ly evaluating the ASU to 
determine i impact on the consolidated financi statements and rela ed disclosur . 

3. Business Combinations 

2024 AcquisitiOII - Southern California franc.hise 

Effective June 25, 2024, Zerorez entered ·nto an asset purchase a reement to ac re he assets of 
ZSC , LLC. The con • eration paid or pa le consis ed of approximately S0.5 million of cash paid o 
the t , approxima y S0.7 million to repay ou nding se<ter deb , and $1 .5 million as a 
holdbac hich is payable to tiers. See Note 6 for information on e se(ler holdbac liability. 

The fair value of the purchase price, asse acquired, sumed are based on hird• 
party vatua ion s udies and manag!!f'nent estimates in accordance • h ASC 805. Fair value estima es 

e based on complex seri of judgemen about future e n and uncE!f'tainties and r y heaVlly 
on estimates and assunptions. The judgements used to determine the estimated fai r tue assigned 
to each ct of ts acquired and liab"lities sumed, ell a lives, can impact the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. 

The fair lue of asse acquired and liabiti • assumed as fol l01,1,-s: 

Prope and equipment 
Operating lease right-of-use-assets 
Operating ase liabiti ·es 
Total fairv 
Goodwill 
otal purchase price 

S 517 2 
248 871 

(248,871) 
517 2 

2 232 800 
S 2,750, 

Goodwill reflects the expected synergi and other benefi a e Company ber ·u result 
from the combination of Southern California Franchise and expanded martte opportunities along 
with the value of the assembled workforce. 
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The fa ·r tue of the purchase price as as follows: 

Cash paid upon acquisit ion 
Seller holdback liability 
Total purchase price 

S 1,250 000 
1.500, 

S 2,750, 

The cash paid upon acquisi ·on as funded by the Company ·th cash on h d. Costs incurred by 
the Company re ted o the acquisi ·on were $165,000 ich are included in general and 
administra • e expenses on the consolidated statemen of operations and comprehensi toss for 
the year ended December 31 , 2024. The o amount of ·u recognized in the transaction 
expected to be deductible for tax is approximately $2,233,000. 

2023 Acquisit ion - Jacksonville franchise 

Effective April 13, 2023 Zerore:z: entered ·nto an a t purchase a reement to acquire the assets of 
First Coas Zerore:z:, LLC. The considera ion paid consis ed of approxima y $1.6 million of cash 
paid to setters, approxima ely SO. million o repay outstanding selll!f" deb , and contingent 
consideration with a fair tue of S0.8 million. The purchase a eement contains contingent 
consideration provisions based on fiscal year 2023 d 202 adjusted earni befot"e ·nterest, axes, 
depreda ·on and iza ·on ("EBITDA") , as defined, for up o S1. million for each 2023 

d 2024. 

The fair value of the purchase price, as acquired, assumed are based on third­
party luation studies and management estimates in accordance • h ASC 805. Fair value estima es 

e based on complex series of judgemen about fu ure n and uncl!f"tain ies and r y heaV1ly 
on es ·mates and assumptions. The judgements used to determine the estimated fair tue assigned 
to each ct o sets acquired and tiabiliti assumed, ti lives and the expected 
future cash fto and related discoun ra es, can impact the Company's consolida ed financi 
statements. Fair va ue of contingent consideration as based on unobse ble inputs using a Blac 
Scholes-Option Pricing Model, • inputs that included est·mated amoun and ·ming of EBITDA, 
discoun rate of 20.0; , discount factor of approximately 0.80 -0. 9 ; , expected term of 0.36-1.22 
ye , vota ility of 37.5 , and risk-free rate of approximately .46. - _97; . Re er o Hote 11 for 
information on bsequen measuremen of he contingen consideration . 

The fa ·r tue of asse acquired and liabiti ies assumed as as follows: 

Property and equipment 
Operating tease right-of-use-assets 
Operating tease liabilit ies 
Tota fair va e of net assets acquired 
Goodwill 
ota purchase price 

S 1, 152,<XX) 
458,275 

(458,275) 
1,152, 
1,621 255 

s 2,m,255 

Goodwill reflects the expected synergi and other benefits tha e Company beli es ·u result 
from the comb·nation of e Jacksonville Franchise and expanded marke opportuni • along • h 
the value of he assembled ot"ce. 

22 

zerorez. 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
Exhibit C: Financial Statements C - 26 4927-0094-0829 

  

Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

The fa ·r lue of the purchase price as follows: 

Cash paid upon acquisit ·on 
Con ·ngent consideration 

Tota purchas.e price 

S 1,983 255 
790, 

S 2,773,255 

The acquisition as funded by cash and r ated cos incurred by e Company e approxima y 
S 151 ,000 ich are ·nctuded in general and actninistra • e expenses on the consolidated tement 
of opera ions and comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31 , 2023. The total a.moun of 

ill recognized in he c ·on expected to be deductible for tax is approxima y 
S 1,622,000. 

4. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the followi 

December 3 t, 
Vehic 
E • and t· ures, and other 
Le nts 
P nt 
Less: epreciation 
Prope 

202◄ 2023 
$ 18,038,259 S 19,615,271 

1,◄29,◄31 

1,602,379 
21,070,069 

(12,329,499) 
S 8,740,570 

1,on,s11 
840,958 

21,528,740 
(8,504,712) 

S 13,024,028 

Depreciation expense for the ears ended December 31 , 2024 and 2023 as approximately 
$6,257,000 a.nd $6,398,000, respectively. 

5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill consis ed of the follO'.ving: 

A 

31, 2023 

A ization 
Balance, December 31, 202◄ 

Gross Carrying 
Amot.nt 

S 24 249,734 
1,621 ,255 

s 25,870,989 
2,232, 

s 28,103,789 

AccUTlulated 
Amortization Net Book Value 

S 365) S 23,3-IO 369 

(2,539,847) 

s (3, 212) S 

(2,698,787) 
s (6,147,999) s 

1,621,255 
(2,539,847) 
22,421,m 
2,232, 

(2,698,787) 
21,955,790 

Goodwill amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 
$2,699,000 a.nd $2,540,000, respectively. 

approxima y 
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Intangible asse consi ed of e foll ·og: 

Gross CarryillQ Accumulated 
Amount Amortization Net Book Value 

S 21,103, S (2,637,874) S 18,465,126 

lopment costs 5,666,616 (1.460,725) ,205,891 
S 26,769,616 S ( ,098,599) S 22,671,017 

Gross Carrying Accumulated 
Amotrit Amortization Net Book Value 

Trade n S 21,103,000 S (4,556,329) S 16,546,671 
0 e4oped techno~ and 
capi • ed so d lopmeot costs 6,134,424 (2,642,558) 3,491,866 

Balance, Oecell'ber 31, 2024 S 27,237,424 S {7, 198,88n S 20,038,537 

Amortization expense re(a ed to developed echnology, capitalized sof are d efopment costs and 
rade na~ s approxima y S3, 100 000 and $3,002 ,000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 

and 2023 , respec • y. 

The ·ght.ed a rage rema·ning useful li fe of in ·ble asse as of December 31 , 2024 and 2023 
ere approximately 7 .6 years and 8.5 ye , respecti ly. 

Based on the canying lue of inta "ble at December 31 , 2024, and assuming no subsequent 
impairmen cha , he approximate future aMual • tion expense is expected to be as 
follows: 

YearEndedOKember 31, 
2025 s 3, 1 5,340 
2026 3,1 5,340 
2027 2,766,769 
2028 2,061,457 
2029 1,965,236 
Thereafter 6,954,395 
Total s 20,038,537 
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6. Accrued Expenses and Other liabilities 

Accrued ex.pen and o er liabiliti consisted of e foll ·ng: 

December 31, 
Contingent considera ion, current portion 
Seller holdbac liability 
Accrued ag and payro liabilit • 
Contract termination liabiti y airren portion 
Sa s taxes 
Other accrued expenses 
Total accrued expenses 

Seller HoldbacJc Liability 

2024 

s 1,388,279 
1,421 ,501 
1,209,819 

350,000 
78,409 

524,046 
s 4,972,054 

2023 
s 1,310,000 

1,231,797 
350,000 
166,402 
470.036 

s 3,528,235 

Effective June 25, 202 , in connection the 2024 Acquisition descnoed in Hote 3, the Company 
held bac S1 ,500,000 of the purchase price. Under the enns of the agre,emen , the holdbac 
liab i is non-interes bearing and is due o the sellers, l s indemnities, as clefi ed, on Decemb« 
25, 2025. As of December 31 , 2024, approximately S1 , 2 000 as outstanding and is included in 
accrued expenses and other liabilities in consolidated bat ce shee • . 

7. Line of Credit 

Line of Credit 

Effective Aug 15, 2022 , the Company entered in o a credit a ent, which provides a r olving 
commitmen up o S2 500 000 thr h maturity on August 15, 2025. The revolvi commitmen 
be interes at a rate per annum equal to the adjusted daily s·mple secured overni h financing 
rate ("SOFR ) in effect, defined, plus an pplicable ma in between 2. 75 , - 3. 75 dependi 
the Company's le erage ratio, as defined. The applicable margin as o December 31 2024 3. 
(to al in terest rate of 7.91 at December 31 , 2024). The r olvi commitment is secured by 
substan • tty all the asse o the Company. As of December 31 , 2024 and 2023, the ou tanding 
balance under the revolvin commitment as SO. 

8. Notes Payable and Other Long-Term Debt 

A summ of no pa b e is as folio : 

December 31, 
Uo e payable - term loan 
Other notes payable 

deb issuance costs 
bt issuance costs 

current portion and debt iSS\.lance 
costs 

25 

s 

s 

2024 2023 
19,187, 547 s 2.3,187,547 

187, 500 
(136,823) (189,787) 

19,238, 224 22,997,760 
(5,387,500) (4,400.000) 

13,850,724 s 18,597,760 
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Note Payable - Term Loan 

Effective August 15 2022, he Compan en er-ed ·nto a credi agreem t that pro ·ded S32,000,000 
under a no e payable . The note ma ur Au 15, 2027, d principal is payable in q\Jarterty 
installm be een S1,000,000 and S1 ,200,000, commencing Sep ember 2022 ·th a balloon 
paymen of S9 ,600,000 pa le a mawrity. The note bears interest at a ra e per annum equal to 
he SOFR in effect, as de ined plus an applicable margin be -een 2. 75. to 3. 75 depending on the 

Company's l age ratio, as de ined. The applicable margin of December 31 , 202 s 3. 
(to l int.eres ra e of 7 .91 ' at December 31, 2024). The no e payab(e is sec\Jred by su stantially a ll 
he a of he Company. 

On September 22, 2023, the Company entered into a first amendment to e credit agreemen ich 
aived certa·n noncompli ce ·th financial covenan for periods in 2023. he amendment 

additionally r • certain financial covenan req,frements from September 202 3 ough June 30, 
2024 and amended e repayment enns to require an i ·onal one•time payment of 
approximately S2,800,000. In connection ·th he firs amendmen , the Company inC\Jrred an 
amend nt fee of S50,000. 

As of December 31 , 2024 and 2023 he Company as in compliance with he amended financi 
covenants. 

Note Payable - Other 

Effective October 1, 2024, in co ection ·th the acquisi ·on of rship interest in 
Zerorez Richmond described ·n llote 2, the Company recognized the ftJll purch price of S250,000 

a no e pa le. The no e is payab e in ve equal monthly installmen s art·ng October- 2024 
thro September 2025. The note bears interest at an annual ra e of 6 •. As of December 31 , 202 , 

proximat y S188,000 nding and is included in notes payab(e in the accompanying 
consolida ed balance sheets. 

Scheduled future principal mawriti of the no es payable, excluding un 
costs, e as foll 

Year Ended December 31, 

2025 
2026 
2027 
To al 

Other Long-Term Debt 

On A 15, 2022, ZFS en ered in o an a eement with a related party 

rtized deb issu ce 

s 5,387,500 
4,800 
9. 187 547 

S 19,375,047 

party he ri t o receive 5 of addition erritory fees associated rap ic 
location shoutd ZFS sell to loca ·on in a f\Jture franchi a ent. In 
excha for this • the Company recei St 035,000 in er-est-free. As of December 31 2024 

d 2023, the Company has not entered into a franchise agreement for he defined raphic 
location nor collected ckfi • n l territory f . Accordi ly, no repa h been made. 
The proceeds from the agreem t are recorded as a liab ility related to the 
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As o December 31, 2024 and 2023, the liability of approx:imatety S983,000 is included in o er t 
erm liabili • on he consolidated balance shee . 

9. Leases 

The Company le faal i • and certain vehicles under various non-cancetlable lease agreemen . 
Lease terms o he faciliti primanl y ran from approximately 5-10 years (subject to elec ·ve 
extension) and gener Uy provide for escata ·on in base rents. The majority o the facility leases 
con ain one or more options or ew e tease at the Compan s discretion . Facili tease maturity 
da es ran from 2025 to 2034. Vehide lea provide for terms o 5 years ·th maturity in 2029, 
wi the op ion hereaf er to continue month-to-month. Generally, the Company does no consider 
the exercising o additional renewal periods or future continua ·on of le on a month• o-mon h 
basis obere onablycerta·n. 

The Comp 's tease costs are as fol 

In erest of finance le e liabili ies 
Total Finance Lease Expense 
Operat ·ng ase expense 

Variable ase expense 
Short term lease expense 
Total lease expense 

se s 

Classifica ·on o the Company's tease costs are folio 

Year Ended December 3 t, 
ase cost • gene I and administrati 
ase cost - rtization expense 
ase cost - interest expen 

Total lease Expense 

27 

s 

s 

s 

s 

2024 

544,262 S 
164,287 
708,549 

2,721 ,233 

674,062 
19,575 

4,123,419 S 

2024 
3,414,870 S 

544,262 
164,287 

4,123,419 $ 

2023 

2, 13,821 

655,148 

3,068,969 

2023 
3,068,969 

3,068,969 
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The maturity an ysis of the operating and t~n ce tease liab"lities as of December 31 2024, is 
folio 

Year Ended December Jt, ases Tota 
202.5 s 2, 43'2,7'6 s 1, 125,02.8 s 3,557,824 

026 1,876,235 '65, 378 2,841,613 

027 1,6'H,O'i8 ,65,378 2,658,476 
028 1,s11,n 1 ,65, 378 2,4n,H, 

202, 1,2.85 23, 476,901 1,762,1 

3 ,460,83◄ 3 460 8}4 

12,2s,,,n ◄ , 4, ,06) 16,758,036 

teres {2.82.8,853) (755,75') (3 . 58◄ .61 2) 

,,◄)1 ,120 3,742, 304 13, 173,42◄ 

(1 ,74,, 54,) (820,287) (2,56,,836) 

s 7,681 , 571 s 2,,22,017 S 10,603,588 

Fu ure mini m tea paym exclude approximat y S690,000 of future payments required under 
facility tease extensions that e no yet si ed as of December 31 2024. Th operating le 
extensions increase their respective facility terms by 3.0 ears. 

The fotlO'Ning summarizes e ighted -a rage remaining tease term and eigtlted-a rage 
discoun ra eon tong-term teases: 

As of December 31 , 2024 2023 

Weighted averase remain'ng lease term ('n years) 
Operating le 
Fm ce leases 

Weighted averase discount rate 
Operating le 
Fin ce leases 

6.9 
4.5 

8.14 
8.6 

4.7 

7.29' 

The fol lowing provides supplemental information related to the Company's consotida ed statemen 
of cash flows: 

Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 

Cash paid for amoun ·nctuded in the urement 
of lease liabilities : 

Operatingc h flo s from opera ·ng leases s 2,321,749 s 2,296,299 
Financing cash flo from finance leases s 380,044 
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The Company's subleasing activities e as fo( lows: 

Year Ended December 31, 202◄ 

Suble income s 17, 502 S 
2023 

The Company recognizes income from i subleasing arrangemen on as raight-rne basis o <YVer e 
term of the le i come is included ·thin general and administrati expen on e 
conso(ida ed statemen of operations and comp ive loss to off sociated lease costs 
incurred . Sublea income o be rece • ·11 be approxima y S1 , 100,000 rou h 2030, ranging 

nually from approximately $150,000 to $230,000. 

10. Income Taxes 

Components of the provision for income tax expense consisted of the folio ·ng: 

Years Ended December 3 f, 

Curren expense 
Deferred expense 
Income tax expense 

s 

s 

202◄ 

67,229 S 

67,229 S 

2023 

The Company's effective tax ra e duri the years ended Decembef" 31, 2024 and 2023 differs from 
he federal t\Jtory ra e of 21 . primarily d e o the e feet of chang in luation lowance, non-

deduc ·bte acquisition-r ated costs, and non -deduc ible portion of ·11. of December 31, 
2024, the carrying value of the non-<leductib e portion of goodwill approximately $3,265,000. 

The deferred tax assets (liabilities), ne consisted of he following: 

December 31, 202◄ 2023 

Uet ope d other carryforwards s 5 869,0◄3 s 3,765 996 
Contract do he r ·ab1 • • 2,834,518 3,176 554 
Opera in ility 2,334,031 1,778,464 
Othe r 22,597 31,m 

Total deferred tax asse 11060189 8,752,043 
Deferred ax liabi lities: 

Opera ing le • ht-of-u ets (2,193,896) (1,742 068) 
Property and equipment (535,346) (207,435) 
Intangible as ts (207,530) (748 217) 
Othe r (57,686) 

i2 19361n2~ !2,755,406! 
ance 8,123,417 5,996,637 

!811231◄ •!2 !5,996,63:!} 
s . s 
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The Company recognizes deferred ax asse to the extent it beti es, based on ailable e • ence, 
hat i is more Ii ely than not that hey will be realized. In ma ·ng such determination, the Company 

considers all available positive and nega • e • ence, includi future r Is of exis ·ng axable 
emporary differences, projected future taxable ·ncome, tax planning stra egies, and recen resut 

of opera ions. As o December 31, 2024, the Company had gross federal d sta e opera ing losses 
("IIOls") of approximate y $16,314,000 and S7, 85 000 respect· ly, and approximately S3,9 ,000 
of forei n tlOLs. Federal IIOLs arisi in tax years prior o 2018 will expire commencing in 2025 
through 2034 and Federal tlOLs arising in tax ye in 2018 f d do not expire but may only be 
used ainst taxab e income up to so; per year. Certa·n state tlOls ·u expire commencin in 2025 
thr 20-14 and certain Sta e tlOLs do no expire. The foreign 1-IOls do not expire . 

Utilization of he 1mLs may be subject to an annual limitation due to dle o ership percentage 
c nge rmita ions provided under Sec ·on 382 of the In emal R enue Code ("IRC") of 1986 

nded, and he percentage of le income limitations provided under Section 172 of e IRC. 
Similar state provisions may apply. 

Increases in the valuation allo-iliance at December 31, 2024 and 2023 ere approximately S2, 127 000 
d S1 33,000, respecti ly. 

The Comp 
during e 

y did not recognize any si ific ·n eres or penalties resulting from income taxes 
ars ended December 31, 202 and 2023. 

11. Contingent Consideration 

In connection with business combination tra ctions which oo place in 2023 and 2022, the 
Company h recorded contingen consideration liab"lities r ated to the achievement of certain 
performance targets. The Company me res he contingent consideration liabiliti at fair lue 
at each reporting date. Fa·r ues as of December 31, 2024 re based on those amoun ich 
were determined with certainty to be payable in 2025. Fair values of December 31 , 2023 , were 
based on a Black Schol -Option Pricing Mod , using s • nificant unobservable i puts classified 

m el 3 of e fai r value hierarchy. lnpu included es imated amount and timing of EBITDA, 
discoun ra e of 21.0;, discount factor of approximately 0.91 . expected term of 0.50 ears, 
volatility of 29. , and ri -free rate of pro ·ma ely 5.46 . . 

The foll01 ·ng table presen a roll f ard of the conti nt consideration liab'lities, measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis: 

Balance, J ary 1, 2023 

f ·, e o cont· e t considera ion 
• i ·ty • Ja.dlsonville Franch· 

Change in a·rva included in eam·ng:s 
Balance, December 31, 2023 

Payment of contingen cons"dera io 
Change in ta·rva included in eam·ngs 

8alance, oecember31,202◄ 

2022 Acquisition 

s 7,700,000 

(5,600,000) 
2,100,000 

(2,100,000) 
s . 

2023 Acquisition 

s 

770,000 
'Jl0,000 

1,no,000 
(1,310,000) 

'J78,V'J 

s 1, 388,279 

s 

s 

Total 
7,700,000 

m ,ooo 
(4,670,000) 
3,8 0,000 

(1,310,000) 
(1,121,n 1) 
1, 388,279 

The ne gain from chan in fair value is included in other income on the consolidated 
statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The current portion of dle contingent 
consideration liabilities approxima y S1 ,388,000 and Sl ,3 10,000 as of December 31 , 2024 d 
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2023, respectively, and is included wi hin accrued expen and othef- tiabili ·es on the consolidated 
balance shee . The nOOC\lrren portion of he contingen considera ion tiabili • s SO d 
S2,510,000 of December 31 , 2024 and 2023, respect· ely, dis included within other tong-term 
liabiliti on the consolidated balance sheets. 

Payments of contingen consideration 6.Jring e year ended December 31 , 2024 •ere approxima ety 
S1 , 310,000. In accOf"dance with ASC 230, Statement of Cash Flows, on e consolidated temen 
of cash flo f<>f" the ar ended December 31 , 202 , he sociated ra·r value a the date of e 
2023 Acquisition of $490,000 is induded as a cash outflow from investing a.ctivi ies, while the portion 
in exc s of the acquisi ·on da e fai r value, sa20,000, is included wi ·n operating activi ies under 
chang ·n accrued expenses and other liabilities. 

12. Commitments and Contingencies 

Royalty Reallocation Termination and Settlement Agreement 

Prior to Aug 16, 2022, ZFS entered into a series of agreemen in ich recurri royalti d 
Brand fund contribu ·on fees payab e by four franchisees to ZFS e reallocated to an affiliated 
en ·ty ("Royalty Realloca ion Agreement"). In August 2022, Zerorez d the parties to the Royalty 
Realloca ·on Agreement execu ed a Termination and Se emen eemeot providing for the 
ennination of alt ri and obi" a ·ons under the Royalty Reallocation Agreement. As consideration 

fOf" the Termina ion d Se lement Agreemen , ZFS a reed to pay an annual amoun of S350,000 
payable in twelve mon ly paymen commenci August 31, 2022 until the e ier of July 31, 2030 
or he ctosi of a future alified sate of ZFS . Upon closing of a future qualified le of ZFS, ZFS 

do amount equal to S6, 500,000 minus the aggrega ed amount of i llmen paymen 
made to da e, provided in no en that the amoun ·11 be less han S5,500,000 ("Buyout 
Paymen "). In the e nt gross re nue of the four franchisees declin by more n 2 . on a 

ar aver ar basis to the priOf" fiscal year, the annual installment payments shall be reduced by 
the same percentage. Further, in he ent that e ·ther a future sale of ZFS has no occurred prior 
to July 31, 2030, or the proceeds from a f\Jt e le of ZFS are not sufficient to make the Buyout 
Paymen , then commencing on August 1, 2030 and continuing \Jntil the earlier of (a) f\JII payment 
of the Buyout Amount or (b) December 12, 2054, ZFS ·u pay monthly payments based on a 
percen age of ross r enue of the four franchisees, as defi ed. 

The Comp y luated the requirements of ASC 805 and de enn·ned e Termination d 
Se tlemen Agreemen as executed to primarily benefi ZerOf"ez, ra er n ZFS or • former 
owners, and is a separa e transaction that should be accounted fOf" separately from the business 
combination in the period as a errnination cost under the require n of ASC 420, Exit or Disposal 
Cost Obligations ("ASC 420"). ASC 20 requires recognition of a liability fOf" costs to terminate a 
contrac , using an expected present value technique when uncertainti exist in the ·ming °' 
amoun . Under ASC 420, e Company subsequently remeasur the contract settlement liability 
ba.sed on timated changes in timing or amount of future cash fl . Remeasurements of the 
contrac settlemen tiab ity result.ed in additional loss of approximately $66,000 d SO fOf" the 
y ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respecti ly, hich re recorded as an 
ex:pense "thin general and administra • e expenses. 

For each of he years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 , e Company paid S350,000 of installment 
payments and ·ncurred in erest expense of approxima y S337,000. At December 31 , 2024, the 
contact ttlement liability approxima y S5,525,000, of k h S350,000 is presen ed as 
current in accrued expenses and other liab.lities and the non-curren portion of S5, 175,000 is 
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presen ed in othef' lo •term liabilities. A December) I, 2023, the contract lement liability s 
approximately $5,473,000, o wtiich $350,000 is presen ed as C\Jrrent in accrued expen and othef' 
liabiliti and the non<l.lrren portion of S5, 123,000 is presented in o her long-term liabili ies. 

Transition Services Asrttmmt 

In connection • h he 2024 Acquisition described in l~te 3, the Comp ny entered into sition 
service agreemen ("TSA") the sellers' party to the asset pure se ag nt. The TSA 
primanly lowed Zerorez to lease the existi emplo at the acquired outfe to perform their 
regular du ·es. Zerorez reimbursed he seU all r ated e expenses inC\Jrred a cost. On 
January I, 2025, all leased employees ere convert.ed to employees of Zerorez. 

In connection • h the 2023 Acquisition described in l~te 3, the Company entered into sition 
service agreemen ("TSA") the sellef" 's party to the asset pure se ag nt. The TSA 
primanly ed Zerorez to lease the existi emplo at the acquired ou e to perform their 
regular du ·es. Zerorez reimbursed the seU all r ated e expenses inC\Jrred a cost. On 
January I, 202 , all leased employees ere converted to employees of Zerorez. 

Litigation 

From time to time, the Company is involved in rious la • , claims and ·nquiries hat arise in 
the ordinary course of business. The Company accrues for loss conti i wtien los become 
probable and are reasonably estimable. If the reasonable estimate of the loss is a range d no 
amoun 'thin the ge is a be E!f" estimate, the m"nimum amount of e range is recorded a 
liability. In the opinion of managemen , any r bility that may r utt of any adverse outcomes of 
these actions is not expected to be material. 

In arch 2024, the Company received a demand le ter from a party alleging the Company of viola ing 
terms of a certain a, reement o ich bo parties en ered 'nto in May 2020. The Company believes 
the claims are "thou merit . With r pect to this matter, the Company believes a loss contingency 
is no curren ly probable and estimate of possible loss, if any, is no curren ly estimab e, 
accordingly no loss has been accrued of December 3 I, 2024. 

Put Right 

In connection ·th e 2023 Acquisition described in llo e 3, the seller as provided a ri t o 
obligate the Comp y o purchase an addi ·ona1 franchise location owned by the seller at a se 
purch price, i the even the Company und oes a future alified le. The purcha p ·ce 
shall be equal to a fixed multiple, as defined, over the franchise location's 'lin l -mon h 
EBITDA ·mmediately prior to the date of a f\Jture qualified le of the Company. 

40 f (1c) Retirement Plan 

Effective January 1, 2023, the Company adopted a 401 ( ) profi sharing plan for eligi le employees. 
Under e terms of he plan, e Company can m e employer matching or profi -sharin 
con nbutions on a discretionary basis. The Company did not make any ma chi or profi -shmng 
con n utions to the 401 (k) profi sharing plan for the yea,rs ended Decembef" 31 , 2024 and 2023. 
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Articles of Incorporation 

The total number of shar 
a par lue of St per sh 

a Zerorez is authorized to issue is 100 shares of convnon oc havi~ 
. All issued and outst.and"ng shares in Zerorez are he(d by e Paren . 

Contributions 

In February 202 the Paren entered into a Subsaip ·on A r 
Class A units in excha for $8,000,000. e SS,000, 
an issuance of e Company's common sh to he Parent. 

Equity•Based Compensation 

t under ich it issued 1, 1S1 .S2 
contributed to the Company "thout 

In accordance • h e limited liab"lity company agreem t of the Parent, e board may grant up 
to 870 Cl s P Profi Uni ("Profi Uni ") ·n e Parent to k employees of the Company under 
he Profi Interests Plan dated Sep ember 23 2022 (the "Pl "). The Plan was amended ·n August 

2024 to increa e number of authorized units available o grant o 910.3. The purpose of the Plan 
is o promote the profitab "lity and success of the Company by providi ey persoMel of e 
Company "th inc ti to contnbute to the g and financial success o e Company. The 
board establishes a participation hreshold and vesting condi ·ons for each unit . 

The follo-.wing able summ ·zes e activi ·es rela ed o the Parent's Profit Units: 

January 1, 202J 

Balance as o December 31 , 20l3 
Or.In ed 
Ve ed 
Fo eited 

Balance as o December 31 , 2.02◄ 

768 
'1'1 

(26) 
8◄ 1 

60 

(1 2) 
88'1 

unvested 
218 

'1'1 

(186) 

131 
60 

(1H) 

n 

In October 2022, 217.S units ("Type A Pro it Uni ") ere ranted to one employee and ves as 
follows: . in July 2023, 2S in July 2024, 1S ·n ly 202S, and 10i6 in each July 2026 and July 
2027. Upon a cha of control en defined, all unvested Profits Uni shall immedia y 
become vested. Upon termination o service, v ed Type A Profits Units can be retained by the 
employee or repurchased a fair value by the Company, a the Company's elec ·on. At rant date, 
the Company determined the Type A Prof· Uni granted represented a substantive cl s of equity 

d are accounted for under he provis·ons of ASC 718, Compensation - Stoc Compensation. e 
Type A Profi Uni were fair valued based on the Blac Schol Option Prici Model, which va ues 

l classes of ecpJity as a call option on the en erp • lue of the Company and is recorded as 
compensation expense on a strai -line basis aver the requisite service period. I-lo Type A Profit 
Uni re gra ted in 202 or 2023. Expense of approxi tety S86,000 recognized "thin 
general d adminis ti e expenses on e consolidated statements o operations d 
comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31 , 2024 and 2023. At December 31, 2024, there 
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approximatety $237,000 of unrecognized equity-based compe tion expense, hich is 
expected to be recogniud over a period of appro ·mately 2.8 years. 

During the ars ended December 31 , 2024 and 2023, 60 uni and 99. 3 units, respecti y, re 
granted ich ere fully vested upon grant date and are forfeited and c celed upon termination 
of sefVice ("Type B Profit Uni "). Type 8 Profit Uni which ere granted on or a ter January I, 
2024, the adop ·on date o ASU 2024-01 as described in tlo e 2, re de enni ed to represent a 
substan ive cl of equity and are accounted for under the provisions of ASC 718, Compensation -
Stoc Compensation. The Type 8 Profi Uni granted on or after January 1, 202 e fair valued 
based on the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model, hich values all cl ses of equity as a call option 
on the enterprise lue of the Company and compensation expense as recorded on e da e of 
grant as the units re fully v ed. Refer to tlo e 2 for information on the Company's adoption of 
ASU 2024-01 and the associated c nge ·n accounting principle. 

Type B Profi Uni granted prior o January I, 202 , are accounted for under the provisions of ASC 
710, Compensation, ereas they are recognized as a liability n payment is both probable d 
reaso bly timable. Currently any po ential payment o be m de to holders of the Type B Profi 
Units is not ye probable nor reasonably estimable, therefore, no r bility or expense has been 
recogniz.ed r ated to these Type B Profit Units ranted prior o January 1, 2024 in these 
consolida ed financi I emen . 

Significant inputs in the Bfac Scholes Option Pricing Mod for Type 8 Profits U i granted in 2024 
e surnmariud below: 

Stn e price (hurdle amount per unit) 
Expected vo t iti y 
Expected term in years 
Ris -free ra e 

Expected Volatility 

s 13,192.93 
70. , 

5.0 

The Company uses e vola i'lity o peer roup public companies to timate the vola i'lity 
assumptions used. 

Expected Term 

The Company u ·1izes an expected holding period to estimate he expected term. 

Rislc-Frtt Rate 

The Company bases e risk-free in eres rate on the U.S. Treasury yi d curve in effect at he time 
of , based on the expected term. 

The da e fair value of the Type 8 Profi Uni ted d\Jring the year ended December 31, 
2024 as de ermi ed by e Company to be approximately $2,600 per unit . Approximately S 156,000 
of equity-based compensation expense as recognized • in genera.I and administra • e expenses 
on the consolida ed s atemen of operations and comprehen$ive loss for the year ended ~ember 
31 , 2024. 

zerorez. 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
Exhibit C: Financial Statements C - 38 4927-0094-0829 

Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

14. Related-Party Transactions 

Management Agreement 

Pursuant to a management services a eemen be een the Company and an affiliate, the Company 
shall pay a quarterly ma gement fee equal to he eater of S62,500 or 5 of consolida ed adjusted 
EBITDA, as de 1ned, ·th a c.ap of S750,000 each calendar year. Upon the consumma ·on of a future 
acquisi ·on resulting in a material incre to consolidated adj ed EBITDA, the cap ·u increase, 
as defi ed. Fu er, the Company re·mbursed the affiliate for certain expenses as invoiced by e 
affiliate related o shared expenses. The term of management services a_greement shall expire 
upon no ·ce to the Company by the affir te, upon an initial public offering, or upon the 
consummation of a sate of e Company, defined. Total costs inrorred by Zerorez under e 
managemen services agreement totaled approximately S501 ,000 and S463,000 for the years ended 
December 31 , 2024 and 2023, r pecti ly. Approxima y S139,000 of managemen fees were 
prepaid by the Company as of December 31 , 2024, and are included in prepaid expenses and other 
current a on the consolida ed balance sheet. Managemen fees of approxima ely S98,000 were 
accrued of December 31, 2023, and are included in accrued expenses d other ti itities on the 
consolida ed balance shee . 

Franchisees Operated by Related Parties 

For the years ended December 31 2024 and 2023, he Comp y recorded revenue associated • h 
royalty fees, Brand fund contributions, franchisee fees and technology, ·ce and other fees 
related to franchise outle operated by affiliates exero • and/or stoc ders of the Company 
of appro ·mately S129,000 and S216,000, respectively. 

A Dec ber 31 , 2024 and 2023, rela ed p no recei le 0\ ed from fr chise outlets 
operated by affil iates were approximately S179,000 and $401,000 respec • ely. 

Other 

An affi ia ed entity provid sof are d elopmeot and ma·ntenance services to the Company. 
During the ear ended December 31, 2024, he Company incurred costs of approximately S900,000 
of ich S468,000 capitalized to so red elopmen costs and approximat y $432,000 as 
expensed and is reflected ·n general d administra • e expenses. During the year ended December 
31 , 2023, e Company incurred costs of pproximatety S999,000 of which S521 ,000 capitalized 
to so red elopment costs and appro ·mately $478,000 expensed and is reflected in general 

d administra • e expenses. 

Certain affiliated enti • provide certain ma e ·ng s c to the Company's franchi d 
company-o outle . Duri the years ended December 31 , 2024 and 2023 the Company 
inrorred approximately S735,000 d S3 , 171,000 of costs r pectively, ich is reflected in 
advertising and marke ·ng expenses. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 approxima y S102,000 d 
$433,000 is i eluded ·n accounts pa le, respectively. 

During the ended December 31 , 2024 d 2023, the Company incurred board of director fees 
of S56,000 and S61 ,000, r pecti y. 

The Company tea certa ·n faolities from entiti controlled by certain stoc ders and during 
the years ended December 31, 2024 d 2023 the Company inrorred related party lease cos o 
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approximately S1 571,000 and S1 ,196,000, respecti ly. As of December 31 , 2024 and 2023, e 
related p operati le ri -o -use re approxi y S5, 128,000 and S-4,235 ,000, 
respectively, and related party operating lease liab"lities •ere S5,503,000 and S-4, 311 000, 
respectively. 

See lfote 6 for informa ion on e rela ed party sellers holdbac liability. 

15. Summary of Franchised and Company-Owned Outlets 

The following is a S\Jmmary of changes in the number of franchised and cornpany-cr-.vned outlets 
during calendar ar 2024 and 2023: 

Tota~ January 1, 2023 
Opened 
Terminations/ceased opera ions 
Reacquired by franchisor 

Tota~ Dec r 31, 2023 
Opened 
Terminations/ce ed opera ions 
Reacquired by chisor 

16. Subsequent Events 

Franchisees 
53 
7 

(4) 

(1) 
55 
6 

(3) 

(1) 
57 

Company-Owned 
Outlets 

21 

(2) 

1 
20 

1 

22 

Total 
74 
7 

(6) 

75 
7 

(3) 

79 

The Comp has aluated subsequent ents thr h rch 31 , 2025 which is the date hese 
consolida ed financial s atemen were ava ble o be issued. There re no materi I su sequent 

en a required recogni ·on or additional disclosure . 
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Independent Auditor-'s Report 

Board of Director.. 
Zerore.z, Inc. and SU:>sidiaries 
American Fork, utah 

Opinion 

Td: ,OO.-l»-1120 
faic: ,00.-330-&130 
-.bdo.-

JCS E. 17th"--· Suit<e 600 
O--. C08COll 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zerorez, Inc. and Smsidiaries (the 
Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of 0ecerrt,et 31, 2023 and 2022, and 
the related consolidated statements of operations1 manges in stockholder's equity, and cash flows 
for the year ended Dece,,,ibe, 31, 2023 and for the period from Ausust 16, 2022 (acquisition date) 
through December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the consolidated fWlancial statements. 

tn our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairty, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the CofT1)all)' as of Deceimer 31, 2023 and 2022, and the res~ts 
of its operations and its cash flows fo, the year ended Decembe< 31, 2023 and for the period from 
August 16, 2022 (aCQJisitioo date) through December 31, 2022, in aocordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United Slates of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We cordJcted CU' audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted i n the United 
Slates of America (GAAS). Our re,pomibilities unde< those standards are further desaibed in the 
Auditor"s Responsibflities for the Audit of the financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the retevant ethical requirements retating t o our audits. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for CllX audit opilion. 

ResponsibWt jes of Management for the Finandal Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the oonsolidated financial 
statements in acx:ordlnce with aCXOUlting principles generalfy accepted in the United States of 
America_, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparatioo and fair presentatioo of consolidated finax:ial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether OJe to fraud or error. 

tn preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether 
there are conditicns or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise smstantial doubt about the 
Company's ability to cootinue as a going ooncern within coe year aft er the date that the 
consolidated financial statements are issued or available to be issued. 

Auditor~s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about YAlether the consolidat ed financial 
statements as a Yfhole are free from material misstatement, whether cile to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levet of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit concbcted in acx:ordlnce 
IIOOUS4. •.C.•--u.s.. ...... aeeo-l~•Ult---bof.-, .......... ,,, .. __ IIICIO-..t,.d ........ --IIOOlo ....... _,.. .. J0')..._._ ..... _.,,, .. 11)0_,._ ...._ 
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with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The nsk of not detecting a 
material mis.statement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
in\lOtve ooUusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovenide of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individ.lally 
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reascnable user based on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism througnout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the oonso!idated financial 

statements, whet her dJe to fraud or error, and design and periorm audit procedures 
responsive to those risks. SUch procecbses Wld.ude examining, on a test basis, evidence 
regardilljl the amooots and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
proceoses that are appropriate in the cira.rnstances, but not for the ptrpOSe of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the ""'-1y's internal oontrol. Acoordingly, no sud1 
opinioo is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant acoounting estimates made by management , as well as evaluate the overall 
presentatioo of the oonsolida.ted financial statements. 

• Condude whether, in ocx judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise Slbstantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to oommunicate with those charged with governanre regarding, amoog other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audt findings, and certain internal 
control·related matters that we identified di.ling the audit . 

April 18, 2024 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

December 31 2023 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents s 3,091,834 
Restricted cash 77,467 
Accounts receivable, net 1,416,209 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,243,572 
Notes receivable, c1Srent portion 523 508 

Total current assets 6,352,590 

Property and equipment, net 13,024,028 
Operating lease right-of-use-assets, net 6,944,344 
Goodwill, net 22,421 ,?TT 
lntangibte assets, net 22,671 ,01 7 
Investments 100,000 
Notes receivable, net of current portion 665,447 
Deposits and other 223 095 

Total assets s 72,402,298 

3 

2022 

s 13,467,167 
290,666 

1,323,000 
1,420,005 

509 503 

17,010,341 

15,090,847 
7,123,879 

23,340,369 
25,152,238 

306,588 
1,185,532 

188 960 

s 89,398,754 
Continued, 
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Zerorez, lne. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

liabilities and Stod<hokle<"s equity 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Ccn:ract liabilities, current portion 
CUrrent maturities of note payable 
Operating lease liabilities, current portion 

Total anent liabilities 

Contract liabilities, net of a.irrent portion 
Line of credit 
Note payable, net of current portion and debt issuance oost 
Operating lease liabilities, net of C1..1Tent portioo 
Other klnj?-term tiabilities 

Total liabilities 

Commitments and conti,gencies (Note 12) 

Stockholder"s equity: 
Con..-non stod<, S 1 par value, 100 shares authorized, 

is.sued and outstanding 
Additional paid-in capital 
Aoo..l'nlAated deficit 

Stockholder's equity attributable to Zerorez, Inc. 
Non-controlling interest 
Total stockholders equity 

2023 

s 1,451,142 

3,528,235 
729,351 

4,400,0CN) 
1,856,936 

11 965 664 

5,475,235 

18,597,760 
5,232, 536 
8,615,867 

49,887,062 

100 
40,939,653 

(1 8,427,336) 

22,512,367 
2,869 

22,515,236 

2022 

s 1,314,479 
1,855,544 

660,709 
4 ,0CN),OX) 

1,574,714 

9 405,446 

5,993,992 
79;199 

25,795,919 
s,s16,n1 

13,819,153 

60,670,580 

1()() 

40,853,591 
(12,223,531) 

28,630,1 60 
98,014 

28,nS,1 74 

Total liabilities and stockholde(s equity S 72,402,298 S 89,398,754 
Stt occOOlp(l'l)'ing ootes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 

Revenues 
Company-owned outlet inoome 
Royalty fees 
Brand fund contributions 
Frandlise fees 
Technology, service fees and other-

Total revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of company-owned outlet income 
General and acininistrative expenses 
Adllertising and marketing 
Depreciation and amortization expense 

Total operating expenses 

lOSS TTOlll operaooos 

Other ilcome (expense) 
Interest expense 
Equity method mestment loss 
Other inoome, net 

Totalothefincome(expense), net 

Loss before income taxes 
lnoome tax benefit 

i.et Loss 

Less: loss allocable to non-controlling interest 

Year Ended 
Decembet" 31, 2023 

s 64, 531,466 
2, 397,783 

918,355 
635,879 
455,459 

68,938,942 

26,943,650 
26,095,242 
12,-441,417 
11,940,183 

n ,.420,492 

(8,-481,:>)0) 

(2,808,452) 

4,991,002 

2, 182,550 

(6, 299,000) 

(6, 299,000) 

95,145 

August 16, 2022 
(acquisition date) 

througll 
December 31, 2022 

s 24,543,181 
998,404 
381,957 
253,051 
260,175 

26,436,768 

10,979,502 
18,446,637 

4,180,861 
4,130,765 

37,737,765 

{11,JOO,W/} 

(989,700) 
(15,750) 
44,148 

(961,302) 

(12,262,299) 

(12,262,299) 

38,768 

i.et loss attributable to Zerorez, Inc. S (6, 203,855) S (12,Z23,531 ) 
See a<companyinj' notes to consolidated finando.l statements. 
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Balance, AUgez:t 16, 2022 
(acquisition date) 

Contributions 
Fair value of non-controlling 

interest acquired 
Equity-based c0fl1)l!f1:Satio 
~ of non-controlling interest 
Net loss 

Balance, oeceni>er 31 , 2022 

Equity-based ccmpensation 
Net loss 

sa.lanc.e, becen&r 31 , 2MJ 

Zerorez, Inc. and Subs;diaries 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 

Conman Stodt Additional Paid- Accunulated Stockholder's 

Shares Amot61t In capital Deficit Equity 

s s s s 
100 100 -41,083,264 -41,083,36-4 

21,S16 21 ,516 
(251,18") (251 ,1 8") 

j12,22.31S31) <12~.S31l 

100 100 -40,853,5'1 (12,22.3,531) 2.8,630, 160 

86,062 86,062 

Hoo<ontrollWlg 
Interest 

s 

385,s,3 

(2-48,81 1) 

j33,768l 

,a,OH 

i6 203,assi 'rl6~3,86-S! 1,s11..s) 
100 $ 100 $ 40,939,653 $ (t,427,) tur $ - ,--~.Jl,7 S 2,869 

Total Stodcholdef''s 
Equity 

s 
-41 ,033, 364 

33S,5'3 
21 ,516 

{S00,000) 
(12 ,262..2"! 

2.8,728, 17-4 

86,062 

$ 
J6,2"1oool 
- .!:1!», ,J6 

see occonJ)Q'IYlng no(es co consoli&iied j1naid@ statements. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2023 

August 16, 2022 
(acquisition date) 

through 
December 31 2022 

Het loss s (6,299,000) S {12,262,299) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by 

(used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and am:wti:zation 
Amortization of debt-issuance costs 
Bad debt expense 
Loss on equity method investments 
Equity-based compensation e)(pense 
Contract termination expense 
Het loss on divestiture of investments 
Loss on property and equipment disposal 
Hon-cash interest on contract termination liability 
Hon-cash lease expense 
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of business acquisition: 
Accounts receivable 
~epaid expenses and other current assets 
Deposits and other long-term assets 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Contract liabilities 
Operating le-ase liabilities 

Het cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

r Mh f lnw"<;. frnm i,rw.....ting Nt-ivit~· 
Acq..risition of a business, net of cash acquired and other 
Purchases of property and eq..ripment 
Capitalized software development costs 
CoUection on notes receivable 

Het cash used i n investing activities 

7 

11,940,183 
69,556 

641, 707 

86,062 

131,588 
8,375 

336, 714 
1,869, 276 

{4,670,000) 

(552,799) 
176,433 
{39,397) 
136,663 
362,691 

(604,852) 
(1,751.754) 

1,841,446 

(1,983,255) 
(3,187,555) 

(521,116) 
553 700 

(5,138,226) 

4,130,765 
36,326 
59,262 
15,750 
21,516 

5,490,345 

141,391 
580,033 

(494,704) 
(833,265) 

45,606 
233,433 

1,505,544 
(267,510) 
'552,42V 

(2, 150,234) 

(47,8S0,675) 
(785,000) 
(207,500) 
170563 

(48,702,612) 
Continued. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from Lines of credit 
Repayments of lines of credit 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Repayments of long-teem debt 
Repayment of contract settlement liability 
Payment of debt issuance costs 
Contributions 
Repurchase of non-controUing interests 

Het cash (used in) provided by financing activities 
Het. change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 
Cash cash uivalents and restricted cash at ·nni of 

Sufflemenlal ca.sh flow information: 
Cash paid for interest 
Cash paid for taxes 

Supplemental non<ash flow information: 
Oi\testiwre of investment in exchange for note receivable 
Write--off of note receivable against contract liabilities 
I-kite receivable issuance reflected in contract liabilities 
Lease liabilities obtained in exch t•of-use assets 

accompanying 

8 

s 
s 

Year Ended 
Oec:eni>er 31, 

2023 

(79,299) 

(6,812, 453) 
(350,000) 

(50,000) 

(7,291,752) 
(10,588,532) 
13 757 8-33 
3. 169,301 

August 16, 2022 
(acquisition date) 

th,ougl, 
December 31, 2022 

79,299 

32,000,000 
(2,000,000) 

(145,833) 
(254,000) 

35,431,213 
(500,000) 

64,610,679 
13,757,833 

13,757,833 

2,402, 182 $ 
s 

811,983 

75,000 
140,298 
295,035 

1,231 ,466 

zerorez. 
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Zerorez, lne. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Organization and Description of Business 

Zerorez, lnc. (-Zerorezj a Delaware corporation, was formed on June 10, 2022, to acQllre the 
entire stock of Zerorez Franchising Systems, lnc. and its subsidiaries (-ZFS") and to ac:Qllre the 
assets of certain franchisees' of ZFS, pursuant to a plan and merger- agreement and an asset 
purchase agreement dated August 15, 2022 (collectively referred to as the "2022 Acquisition"). ZFS 
was re-incorporated in the State of Delaware on August 15, 2022. Zet"orez is wholly owned by Zerorez 
Holdings, LLC (the "Parent"). The Parent has no significant operations, and its assets principally are 
comprised of its investment in Zerorez. 

Zerorez is a residential and commercial services cleaning franchisor with franchisees and operations 
throughout North America. Zerorez cleans carpet, ble, fabric, upholstery, hard surfaces, and air 
due~ and does oot use detereents or harsh dlemicals. but instead uses oatented technoloeY that 
cleans using electrotyied water. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation, ConsolKfation and Hon-Controlling Interest 

The aa:ompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in coofom,ity with 
accoooting principles generally accepted in the United States or America ("U.S. GAAP") as CX>dified 
by the Financial Accoooting Standards Board ( .. FASS") in in Accounting Standards COdification 
("ASC"). 

The accompanying consoodated financial statements are corrc,rised or the year ended December 
31 , 2023, and for the period from August 16, 2022 ("""1isition date) througl1 December 31, 2022 
("period ended Decent>er 31, 2022"). 

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the accompanying coosolidated financial statements include the 
acCOlllts and operating results of Zerorez and its subsidiaries, which consisted of the following: 

ZFS 
Bay />rea Zenirez, lnc. (-Zerorez Bay />rea") 
Trip(e M Dusiness De •clop.11-ent Gof'poratiioo ( "Zerorez swrL. j 
Zerorez Charlotte LLC (-Zerorez Charlotte") 
Zerorez Indy, U C ("Zerorez Indy") 
Zerorez Ridllnond UC (-Zerorez Richmond") 
Zerorez Tulsa, Inc. ("Zerorez Twa") 
Zerorez Virginia Beadl UC ("Zerorez vs; 
Profectus International, UC ("Profectus; 
Zerorez UK UC Ltd ("Zerorez UK"} 
Z Intellectual Property Holdings Company, UC ("ZIP") 

These entities are collectively referred to as the "Qxnpany". lntercompany balances and 
transactions have been etirrrinated ~ oonsolidatioo~ 

9 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

As of Oeoember 31, 2023 and 20221 the Colll)any's ownership interest in Zerorez Richmond was 50%, 
DI.ling the period ended December 31 1 2022, the Company acquired SOX ownership interest in 
Zerorez VB f rom a non-oontrolling interest ho(def for S5001000. In accordance with ASC 810) 
ConsoUdation ("'ASC 810"} the difference between the consideration paid and ownership interest 
obtained was recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in capital. The remaining entities are wholly 
owned, 

In accordance with ASC 810, the Company evaluates its interests in variable interest entities on an 
ongoing basis. If the Company1 together with its retated parties and de facto agents, is detennined 
to have the power to direct the activities that most significantly illl)act the variable interest entity's 
economic performance and l\as the obligation to absorb losses of the entity or the right to receive 
benefits from the entity that ooutd potentially be significant1 the Company is deemed the primary 
beneficiary and consolidates that entity into its financial results. factors that are considered when 
making the primary beneficiary assessment include whether the Company or its retated parties 
participated in the design of the entity, whether the entity' s activities either involve or are 
conducted on behalf of the Colll)any or its related parties1 whether the Company or its retated 
parties have provided more than half of the total equity or subordinated debt, and whether the 
Company or its related parties have rights1 through voting1 board representation, or other 
agreements, to direct the activities that most significantly impact the variable interest entity's 
economic performance. The Colll)any concluded that it is the primary beneficiary of Zerorez 
Rictvnond ancl1 aooordingly, has oonsoUdated this entity into its financial results. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements, in accordance with U.S. GAAP, requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported am01..11ts of assets and 
liabilities1 the disctosure of oontingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements, and the reported amol.llts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 

The most significant accounting estimates relate to the allowance for credit tosses, the estimated 
useful lives ancl values of depreciabte and amortizable assets, the calclAation of deferred taxes1 

estimates to derive the fair value of assets aoquired and liabilities assumed in connection with 
business combinations1 fai r value of contingent consideration from business combinations, ancl 
assumptions used in determining the fair value of equity-based compensation. kcordingty, actual 
results could differ from those estimates and such differences could be material. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments with a maturity of three months or 
less at the time of purchase and deposits in transit from debit and credit card processors to be cash 
equivalents. Debit and credit card transactions are short-term and highly liquid in nature . Interest 
income is reoorded for interest·bearing cash acoounts and is included within other inoome, net in 
the consolidated statements of operations. 

Restricted Cash Held for Brand Fund 

Restricted cash is retated to cash that franchisees contribute to the Company's Brand fund, cash 
contributed by franchisees to the Brand fl.lld is to be used in accordance with the franchise 
agreement for national, regional, and local marketing and advertising of services to increase Brand 
awareness. As such, the restricted cash is required to be set aside ancl is not available for the 
Company's general business use. 

10 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

The following table provides a reoonciliation of cash and cash equivalents1 and restricted cash from 
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 to the statements of cash flows 
for year and period then ended, respectively: 

December 11, 2023 20U 
cash and cash eqUivatents s 3,091,834 s 13,467,167 
Restricted cash 77,467 290,666 
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, as 
shown on the statements of cash flO\vs s 3,169,301 s 13,757,833 

Concentrations of Credit R;sk 

The Company maintains baM accounts with a banking institution in which the deposits are 
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). Such deposits may, at times, 
exceed the FDIC insured limit of S250,000 for each account. The Company is subject to credit risk 
to the extent any financial institution with which it conducts business is l.llable to fulfill oontractual 
obligations on its behalf. MaMgement monitors the financial oondition of such financial institutions 
and does not anticipate any losses from these ool.l'lterparties. As of 0eceni)ef 31 , 2023 and 2022, 
there were no losses incurred with respect to excess amounts over the FDIC insured limits. 

Accounts Receivable, Notes Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses 

A.ccOll'lts receivable represent receivabtes due from the sale of services to commercial customers 
provided by company-owned outlets and royalties and other fees due from the Colll)any's 
franchisees. The Company reoords receivables from services provided by oolll)arry~owned outlets at 
the time a transaction is completed, which is recorded at net realizable value. Royalty receivables 
are based on a percentage of the franchisee's net sales, as defined in the franchise agreement, 
payabte monthly and inctude invoiced amounts and unbilled amounts to be invoiced in the month 
subsequent to year-end. 

~t>tes reoeivabte oo~se of certain initial franchise fees, which are payabte under the tenns of a 
note receivabte agreement that specifies the repayment period and interest charged, and/or cash 
advances to franchisees. 

The Colll)any maintains an allowance for expected credit losses to reserve for potential 
uncollectibte receivables. The aUO\vance is recognized in an amount equal to anticipated future 
write-offs over the expected life of the receivables. The Company estimates the allowance for 
credit losses based on historical experience, customer payment practices, credit quality of the 
franchisee and current eoonomic trends. Actual credit losses could differ from those estimates. 
A.ccOll'lt balances are charged off against the allowance when management believes it is probable 
the receivabte will not be recovered. The allowance for credit losses at December 31 , 2023, 2022, 
and August 16, 2022 was approximately $246,000, $26,000, and SO respectively, Direct charge-offs 
totaled $432,000 and $370,000 for the year ended December 31 , 2023 and period ended December 
31 , 2022. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost1 or fair value when aoquired in a business combination1 

less accumulated depreciation. The oost of improvements that ertiance the estimated useful life of 
property and equipment are capitalized. Upon retirement1 sale, or other disposition of property and 
equipment, the cost and accumutated depreciation are etiminated from the accounts. The cost of 
maintenance and repairs, which are not significant improvements, are expensed when incurred. 

Depreciation and amortization are provided utilizing the straight-line method <Ner the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Vehicles 
Leasehold improvements 
furniture and fixtures 
Equipment and other 

2·5 years 
Shorter of lease term or 15 years 

5·7 years 

3·7 years 

Property and equipment aoquired in a business oombination are depreciated over the remaining 
useful life of the asset. 

Intangible Assets 

mtang1t>les Resulting from BUstness comotnanons 

The Company's intangibte assets aoquired i n the 2022 Acquisition are amortized over their period 
of expected benefit, and the useful lives and amortization methods are as foUows: 

Trade name Straight-line method 11 yea.rs 
Deve loped technology and 

capitalized software develop ment cost!Straiqht-line method syears 

CapitaUzed Software Development Costs 

The Company capitalizes the oosts associated with software devetopment when the pretiminary 
project stage is oompteted and the software will be used to perlorm the function intended. These 
capitalized costs include external direct costs of services consumed in developing or obtaining 
internal-use software. Capitalization of these oosts ceases once the project is substantially 
complete and the software is ready for its intended purpose. Costs inc1Sred for upgrades and 
enMncements to the products are also capitalized. Costs incurred related to less significant 
modifications and enl'lancements, as well as maintenance, are expensed as incurred. Post· 
configuration training and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Software devetopment and 
implementation is associated with the Company's proprietary customer retationship management 
software, which is used by the Company and its franchisees and the Company does not transfer 
ovmership to its franchisees. capitalized software devetopment oosts are ind uded within intangibte 
assets on the acoompanying oonsoUdated balance sheet. Capitalized costs were approximately 
$521 ,000 and $208,000 for the year ended December 31 , 2023 and for the period ended December 
31 , 2022, respectively. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
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Impairment of Lons•lived Assets 

The Company reviavs its long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, right-of-use ("ROU") 
assets and intangibles subject to amortization, for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate tt~t the carrying amol.llt of an asset may not be recoverable. Reooverabitity 
of the asset is measured by comparison of its canying amount to Llldisool.llted future net cash flows 
the asset is expected to generate. If soch assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment 
recognized is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair 
value. Estimates of expected future cash flows represent maMgement's best estimate based on 
currently available information and reasonable and supportabte assulll)tions. Any impairment 
recognized is permanent and may not be restored. As of Oeoember 31 , 2023 and 2022, the Colll)any 
detennined that an impairment did not occur. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the value assigned to assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed in oonnection with a business oombination. The Company elected to adopt the 
private oompany alternative with respect to goodw'ill, ll'lder which goodwill is amortized on a 
straight-line basis over a period not to exceed ten years. The Company amortizes goodwill over ten 
years. The Company also has elected the acoounting alternative to perfonn the goodwill impairment 
triggering event evaluation as of the end of the reporting period and at the entity tevet. 

Circumstances that could require an impairment assessment include, but are not limited to, (i} a 
significant adverse change in legal factors or business climate, (ii} the emergence of increased 
competition, (iii} an adverse action or assessment by a governmental agency or reglAator, or (iv} 
overall financial perfonnance such as negative or dedining cash flows. If that qualitative assessment 
indicates that it is more likely than not that the goodwill is impaired, the entity must pertorm the 
quantitative test to oompare the entity's fair value with its carrying amount, ind uding goodwill. If 
the qualitative assessment indicates that it is not more likely than not that goodwill is impaired, 
further testing is not required. 

The fair value of the entity is estimated using various valuation techniques, including the disoounted 
value of estimated future cash flows (an income approach). Assl.l"llptions regarding future cash flows 
and growth rates are based on the annual operating budget and long-tenn ptans and discount rate 
assumptions are based on an assessment of the risk inherent in the entity, If the carrying amount 
exceeds its fair value, then the amount of the impairment loss must be measured. The impairment 
loss represents the excess of the carrying amount of the entity over its fair value and cannot exceed 
the entity's canying amount of good\vill, Af of December 31 , 2023, and 2022, the Company 
detennined that an impairment did not occur. 
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Accounting for Business Combinations 

The Company accounts for acquisitions l.llder ASC 8051 &lsiness Combinations ("'ASC 805"), Under 
ASC 805, an acquiring entity is required to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, 
and any non·controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value as of the acquisition date. 

The determination of fai r value involves the use of estimates and assumptions, along with the 
application of various valuation techniques. These estimates may include projections of future cash 
flows retated to specific assets and the assessment of future lives based on the expected future 
period of benefit of the asset. The value assigned to goodwill is the residual of the purchase prioe 
of the fair value of all identifiable assets aoquired, excluding assembled workforce (which cannot 
be accOl.llted for separately from goodwill}, less all liabilities assumed and any non·controlling 
interest. Related aoquisition costs are expensed as incurred. 

U.S. GA/JJ> allows an alternative fo r an entity that does not meet the definition of a public business 
entity to not recognize separately from goodwill rustomer related intangible assets unless they are 
capabte of being licensed independently from the other assets of the business and nonoompetition 
agreement. The Company has elected to adopt this acoounting atterative and has included the fair 
value, if any, of customer relationships and noncompetition agreements as a oomponent of goodw'ill, 
which is amortized. 

Fair Value of Fina.ndal Instruments 

The Company foUow·s the accOl.l'lting guidance prescribed in A.SC 820, Fair Value J.leasurements and 
o;S<tosures ("'A.SC 820"). Among other requirements, ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a 
frame\vork for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about the use of fai r value to measure 
assets and liabilities, Fair value is a market·based measure based on the perspective of a market 
participant that hotds the asset or owes the liability, rather than an entity•specific measure , 
Therefore, when market assumptions are not readily available, the Colll)any's own assumptions are 
set to reflect those that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability on a 
meas1Sement date. ASC 820 estabtishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that 
maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring 
that the observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on mar1<et data obtained from sources 
independent of the Company, Unobservabte inputs are inputs that reflect the Colll)any's 
assumptions about what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the 
best information available in the circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels 
based on the reliability of inputs as follows: 

Levet 1: Observabte inputs, such as quoted prices in active mar1<ets for identical assets or liabilities 
to which the Colll)arry has access at a measurement date. 

Levet 2: Observable inputs other than Levet 1 quoted prices that are observabte for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; these include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 
an active market, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or 
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially 
the full tenn of the assets or liabilities. 
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Levet 3: Unobservabte inputs for which little or no mar1<et data exists) and for which the Company 
must devetop its own assumptions regarding the assumptions tt~t market participants would use in 
pricing the asset or liability, induding assumptions regarding risk. 

The fair value of the Colll)any's short-term financial instn.1nents1 including receivabtes, prepaid 
and other current assets, acoounts payable and accrued expenses and oth-er liabilities, arising in the 
ordinary course of bl.6iness, approximated their individual carrying amounts due to the relatively 
short period of time between their origination and expected realization, The fair value of the 
Company's line of credit, note payable and notes receivable approximates its carrying value as 
interest rates are reflective of market rates. Non-recurring fair value measurements retlte to 
unobservabte inputs used in deriving the fai r value of equity-based compensation, certain assets 
acquired and liabilities assll'Tled and contingent consideration i n connection with business 
cornbinatioos, wllich are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Recurring fair value 
meas1Sements relate to subsequent measurement of oontingent oonsideration liabilities. See Note 
3, tlote 11 and tlote 13 for further infonnation, 

Investments 

Equity 1,tethod Investments 

Investee oompanies that are not oonsotidated, but over which the Colll)any exercises significant 
influence, are accounted for under the equity method of acoounting. Whether or not the Company 
exercises significant influence with respect to an investee depends on an evaluation of several 
factors including, among others, investee dependence on the investor, and ownership level, which 
is generally a 20% to 50% interest in the voting securities of the investee oompany. Under the equity 
method of acoounting, an investee company's acool.llts are not reflected within the Company's 
balance sheet and statement of operations; however, the Company's share of the earni ngs or tosses 
of the investee oompany is reflected i n earnings within other income (expense), 

When the Company's carrying value in an equity method investee company is reduced to zero, no 
further losses are recorded in the Colll)any's oonsotidated financial statements l.llless the Company 
has guaranteed obligations of the investee oompany or l\as oommitted additional funding, When the 
investee oompany subsequently reports income, the Company will not record its sl\are of such 
income until it eq.ials the amount of its share of losses not previously recognized. 

For the period ended December 31 , 2022, the Company hetd a 30% ownership in Riverwalk Holdings, 
L.LC. ("Zerorez San Antonio"}, As the Company exercised significant influence over Zerorez San 
Antonio the Company's investment is recorded using the equity method. Accordingly, the equity 
method investment is reoorded at acquisition cost ptus the Company's equity in the undistributed 
earnings or losses of the entity. The Company's proportionate sl\are of losses reported for the period 
ended December 31, 2022, was approximately $16,000. As of December 31 , 2022, the carrying value 
of the equity method investment was approximately $22,000. In February 2023, the Company 
divested its 30X ownership in Zerorez San Antonio in exchange for a $75,00) note receivabte payabte 
to the Company under the terms of a promissory note <:Ner 10 years. The Company recognized a gain 
of approximately $53,000 on the transaction, which is included in other income, net on the 
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2023, The Company's 
proportionate share of activities f rom January 1, 2023 through divestiture date were de minimis and 
not recorded. 
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The following is a summary of the financial position and results of operations for the investment 
accounted for under the equity method as of and for the period ended December 31 ) 2022: 

December 31 
Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Total equity (deficit) 
Net loss 

Cost Method Investments 

s 
s 
s 
s 

2022 
283,409 
257,538 

25,871 
(176,028) 

Investee companies not accounted for under the consolidation or equity method of accounting are 
accounted for l.llder the cost method of acoounting, Under the oost method, the Company's stwe 
of the earnings or losses of the investee OOITl)arry are not recorded, and income is only reoognized 
to the extent dividends are received from the investee. Impairment cMrges, if any, are recognized 
when circumstances suggest tt~t the cost of the investment is not recoverabte, 

As of December 31 , 2023 and 2022, and for the year and period then ended, respectively, the 
Company h-eld a 10% in Zerorez Central Oregon, UC ("Zerorez Oregon") and a 15% interest in 
Letesoft, UC. As of December 31, 2022, the Colll)any also held a 15% interest in Zerorez of Puget 
Sound, UC, which was divested in April 2023 for no consideration, The Company incurred a loss of 
approximatety S185,000 on the divestitise which is included in other income, net on the 
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended 0eceni)ef 31 , 2023. As of 0eceni)ef 31 , 
2023 and 2022, the carrying value of cost method investments totaled approximately S100,000 and 
$285,000, respectively. 

Debt lssua.nce Costs 

Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with obtaining or modifying debt have been capitalized 
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and are being amortized using the effective 
interest method <:Ner the term of the borrowing repayment period, unless the debt obligation is 
terminated eartier, in which case the remaining oosts are expensed in the period of termination, 
Debt issuance costs relating to line of credit arrangements are presented as other long 4 term assets 
and financing costs relating to term loan arrangements are presented as a reduction of long4 tenn 
debt. 

Contract liabilities 

A.mounts received prior to satisfying the revenue recognition criteria are recorded as contract 
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. A.mounts not expected to be recognized 
within the next twelve months are classified as contract liabilities, net of current portion. During 
the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recognized approximately $478,000 of revenue 
which was included in the oontract liability balance as of January 1, 2023. During the period ended 
December 31, 2022, the Company reoognized approximatety $163,000 of revenue which was 
included in the oontract liability balance as of August 16, 2022. 
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The Company aoool.llts for revenue in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers ("ASC 606"). Revenue is reoognized upon transfer of oontrot of promised products and 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive 
in exchange for those products or services. The Colll)any determines the amol.l'lt of revenue to be 
recognized through application of the following steps: 

• Identification of the oontract, or contracts with a customer; 
• Identification of the pertormance obUgation in the contract; 
• Determination of the transaction price; 
• Allocation of the transaction price to the perlormance obligations in the contract; and 
• Re<:<ignition of revenue ""'en or as the Coll'4)any satisfies the l)elformance obligations. 

Company-Owned OUt.let Income 

Company-owned outlets provide deaning services to residential and oommercial customers, and 
revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied, which occurs upon deUvery of 
the service to the customer. Revenue recognized excludes sales taxes collected from customers. 

Franchise Revenues 

The Company's f ranchise agreement outlines the rights and responsibilities of the Company and its 
franchisees and requires the Company to pertorm various activities to support the Brand tt~t do not 
directly transfer goods and services to the franchisee, The intellectual property subject to the 
franchise license is symboUc intellectual property as it does not l\ave significant standalone 
functionality and substantially all of the utility is derived from its association with the Company's 
past or ongoing activities. 

The nature of the Company's promise in granting the franchise license is to provide the f ranchisee 
with access to the Brand's symbolic inteUectual property over the term of the license. The services 
provided by the Company are highly interrelated with the f ranchise license and as such, are 
considered to represent a single perlonnance obligation. ~blpublic company f ranchisors may apply 
a practical expedient that permits pre-opening activities provided to a franchisee to be accOl.l'lted 
for as distinct from the franchise license, if the pre-opening activities are consistent with those 
activities included in a predefined list within the guidance. For the Company, those activities 
primarily relate to training services. The Company l\as made an aooounting policy election to 
account for the pre-opening services as a single bundled pertormanoe obUgation, as allowed under 
ASC 606. Therefore, the Company has two performance obUgations: a franchise license and pre­
opening services. 

The transaction price in a standard f ranchise arrangement primarily consists of (a) initial f ranchise 
fees; (b) royalty fees; (c) Brand fund fees; and (d) technology fees. Since the Company considers 
the licensing of the franchising right to be a single performance obtigation, no allocation of the 
transaction price is required. 
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The Company recognizes the primary components of the transaction price as foUO\vs: 

Rwathl Fm and Bcand Fund Fm 

Royalties and franchisee contributions to the Brand fund are calculated as a percentage of 
franchisee sales1 per percentages as defined in the franchise agreement (currently 6% for royalties 
and 1% up to 3% for Brand fund contributions), over the term of the franchise agreement and 
recorded monthly, Royalties and Brand fund contributions represent sales-based fees that are 
related entirely to the Company's performance obligation under the franchise agreement and are 
recognized as franchisee-level sales occur, Royalties are ooUected monthly and are reflected in 
royalty fee revenue in the acoolll)anying consolidated statements of operations. Brand fees are 
reflected in Brand fund oontributions in the accompanying oonsoUdated statement of operations. 

Franchise Fees 

Upon execution of an initial franchise agreement, the Company requires a non·refl.lldable upfront 
franchisee fee ("'initial fee"}, The franchise agreement defines a specific geographic territory, 
and if the population in the defined tenitory is in excess of a specific population1 the franchisee 
will pay additional non-refundable consideration ("additional t erritory fee"}. The population 
specific to the territory is based on the most recently available U.S. Census. The initial fee and 
additional territory fee allow the franchisee the exdusive right to conduct business within its 
defined territory. Terms of the franchise agreement allow the franchisee non-exdusive rights to 
offer products and services outside of their defined territory1 as defined. Additionally, the 
Company may sell existing franchisees additional exctusive t erritories when the franchisee desires 
to expand their presence and/or open additional locations. The Company's services under the 
franchise agreement include training of franchisees and staff and ongoing operations support, 

The transaction price the Company is entitled to receive is allocated between the performance 
obligations (i.e, 1 the pre-opening services and the franchise license) in proportion to its 
standalone selling price. Revenue is reoognized for pre-opening services when the bundle of 
services has been oompleted and satisfied. Revenue allocated to the franchise license is 
recognized ratably on a straight -line basis <Ner the tern, of the franchise agreement1 which is 
generally 10 years. 

Initial fees are due upon execution of the franchise agreement and the Colll)arry may provide 
financing for additional territories purcMsed, aver terms of 24 or 36 months, which are not 
interest bearing unless in default of the terms of the promissory note. The Company determines 
imputed interest at inception of the promissory note, and recognition of interest income <Ner the 
repayment tenn, when appticabte, 

The Company reoognized approximately $1491000 of pre-opening services at a point in time white 
approximately $487,000 of franchise license revenue was recognized over time for the year ended 
December 311 2023. The Company reoognized approximately $0 of pre-opening services at a point 
in time while approximatety $2531000 of franchise license revenue was reoognized <Ner time for 
the period ended December 31, 2022. 
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Technology, Service Fees and Other 

Technology fees fo r use of the Company's propriety software and information technology SL«>Orti 
as defined in the franchise agreement, are charged on a monthly basis to the franchisee, 

Service fees for various traini ng and other services provided by the Company to the franchisee, 
as defined in the franchise agreement, are charged as incurred. 

Other revenues are oomprised primarily of agreements with suppliers that entitle the Company 
to receive rebates for required use of certain products by the Company's franchisees as defined 
in the franchise agreement. Rebates are recognized as revenue when earned, 

Fees described above are reflected in teclvlology, service fee and other in the aooomparrying 
consolidated statements of operations. For the year ended December 31 , 2023, the Company 
recognized approximately SJ.82,000 related to teclvlology fees, and approximately S73,000 
related to rebates. No service fee revenue was earned. for the period ended December 31, 20221 

the Company recognized approximately $220,000 related to technotogy fees1 and approximately 
$40,000 related to rebates. ~b service fee revenue was earned. 

leases • ASC 842 

The Company accounts for leases in acoordance with ASC 842 Leases: Topi< 842 ("ASC 842"). The 
Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception of a contract. At lease 
commencemeot1 leases are classified as either finance leases or operating leases. A lease is 
ctassified as a finance lease if any one of the following criteria are met: (1) the lease transfers 
ownership of the underlying asset by the encl of the lease termj (2) the lease oontains an option to 
purchase the underlying asset that is reasonably certain to be exercised; (3) the lease term is for a 
major part of the remaining economic life of the undertying asset; (4) the present value of the sum 
of lease payments and any guaranteed residual va lue that is not already included in the lease 
payments equals or exceeds substantially all of the fai r value of the ll'ldertying asset; or (5) the 
underlying asset is of such a specialized nature that is expected to have no alternative use to the 
lessor at the encl of the lease term. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not meet 
any one of these criteria. 

For leases with an initial tern, greater than 12 months, a related lease liability is reoorded on the 
balance sheet at the present value of future lease payments <:Ner the lease term. As the rate i~icit 
in the Company's leases is not readily determinable, the Company uses an incremental borrowing 
rate tt~t is estimated to approximate the interest rate the Company would have to pay to borrow 
on a ooUateralized basis with similar terms and payments in an eoonomic environment similar to 
where the leased asset is located, The tease liability is determined as the present value of future 
lease payments over the lease term. The ROU asset is recorded at the initial amount of the lease 
liability, p(us any lease payments made to the lessor before or at the tease commencement date 
ancl any initial direct costs incurred1 less any tenant improvement allowance incentives 
received. Lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease. These options are 
induded in the lease term when it is reasonabty certain that the option will be exercised. 

The Company elected the practical expedient related to treating lease ancl non-tease con-.,onents 
as a single lease component for all leases as weU as electing a policy exclusion permitting leases 
with an original tease term of less than one year to be excluded from the ROU assets and tease 
liabilities, 
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Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight ·line basis over the lease term. Tenant incentive 
allowances received from the lessor are amortized through the ROU asset as a reduction of rent 
expense over the lease tenn. for finance leases, the ROU assets are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of the lease tern, or the estimated useful life, unless the tenns of the lease 
indude a bargain pischase option or transfer ownership at the end of the lease term in which the 
ROU asset is amortized over the estimated useful life. Interest for finance leases is recognized using 
the effective interest method over the tease term. Variable tease payments that are not based on 
an index or tt~t result from changes to an index subsequent to the initial measurement of the 
corresponding lease liability are not included in the measurement of ROU assets or lease liabilities 
and instead are recognized in earnings in the period in which the obUgation for those payments is 
incurred. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less (short·term leases) are not recorded on 
the consolidated balance sheet. Short·term lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. 

Dlling the year ended December 31 , 2023 and period ended December 31 , 2022, the Company did 
not have any finance leases. See Note 9 for further information. 

Equity-Based Compensation 

Equity·based compensation is acoounted for as an expense in accordance with ASC 
718, Compensation - Stock Compensation ("ASC 718"), which requires compensation cost for the 
grant·date fair value of equity-based awards to be recognized <YI/er the requisite service period. For 
awards sl.Oject to service oonditions, compensation expense is recognized <YI/er the vesting period 
on a straight·tine basis. The fair value is based on the stack Schotes Option Pricing Model. The 
Company accounts for forfeitures when they occur, and any OOIT'J)eflSation expense previously 
recognized on unvested equity-based awards will be reversed when forleited. See Note 13 for 
further infonnation. 

Income Taxes 

The Colll)arry is taxed as a corporation under the provisions of the United States Internal Revenue 
Code. Under those provisions, the Company pays federal, state and foreign income taxes on its 
taxable inoome. The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S., the U.K., and certain state 
jurisdictions. The provision for income taxes represents actual or estimated amounts payable or 
refundable on tax return filings each year. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reoorded for the 
estimated future tax effects of te!TlXlrary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities 
and amounts reported in the acoompanying oonsoUdated balance sheet, and for operating loss and 
tax credit carry forwards and canybacks. The change in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the 
period measures the deferred tax provision or benefit for the period. Effects of cl\anges in enacted 
tax laws on deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected as adj ustments to the tax provision of 
benefit for the period of enactment. Valuation aUO\vances are provided against deferred tax assets 
when it is detennined that it is more likely than not tl\at such assets will not be reoovered. 

In acoordance with FASBASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, management has evaluated the Colll)any's 
tax positions and concluded that the Company has taken no material uncertain tax positions that 
require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements to oompty with the provisions of this 
guidance. The Company is subject to routine audits by taxing j urisdictions; hO\vever, there are 
currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. Penalties and interest, if any, would be reflected 
in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 
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The Company expenses the cost of advertising as incurred. Advertising and marketing expenses in 
the accompanying oonsolidated statements of operations indudes approximatety StOJ 1061000 and 
$31480,000, for the year ended December 31, 2023 and period ended 0eceni)ef 31 , 2022, 
respectively. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - Current Adoption 

In June 2016, the FASS issued ASU 2016·13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses: Ateasurement of 
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (Topi< J26), which provides ~ated guidance on how an 
entity should measure credit losses on financial instruments. Since J une 2016, the FASB has issued 
several amendments to this original standard. Previous guidance required the reoognition of credit 
losses based on an incurred loss impairment methodology that reflects tosses once the losses are 
probabte, Under the ne\v standard, the Company is r~i red to use a current expected credit loss 
modet ("CECL") that immediately recognizes an estimate of credit losses that are expected to occur 
over the life of the financial instruments that are in the scope of this update, i nctuding trade 
receivables, The CECL model uses a broader range of reasonable and s~rtable information in the 
development of credit loss estimates. The Company adopted the standard as of January 1, 2023. 
The adoption of the standard did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated 
financial statements and related di.sctos1Ses. 

Reclassifications 

Certain amounts in the 2022 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified for 
comparative purposes to oonform to 2023 consolidated financial statement presentation. These 
rectassifications had no effect on the previously reported stockholders' equity or net toss. 

3. Business Combinations 

2023 Acquisition - JacksonvUle franc.hise 

Effective April 13, 2023, Zerorez entered into an asset purcl\ase agreement to acquire the assets of 
First Coast Zerorez, UC ("Jacksonville Franchise•), The consideration paid consisted of 
approximatety $1,6 million of cash paid to the sellers, approximately $0.4 million to repay 
outstanding seller debt, and contingent consideration with a fair value of $0,8 million. The asset 
purchase agreement contains contingent consideration provisions based on fiscal year 2023 and 2024 
adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") targets, as 
defined, for"-" to $1.4 million for eacl\ 2023 and 2024, 

The fair value of the purchase price, assets aoquired, and liabilities assumed are based on third· 
party valuation studies and management estimates in accordance with ASC 805. Fair value estimates 
are based on oomptex series of judgements about future events and uncertainties and rety heavily 
on estimates and assumptions. The judgements used to determine the estimated fai r value assigned 
to each ctass of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as assets lives and the expected 
future cash flows and related discOl..llt rates, can impact the Company's consolidated financial 
statements. Fair value of contingent consideration was based on ll'lObservable inputs using a Black 
Scholes4 0ption Pricing .vodel, with inputs that i nctuded estimated arnoll'lt and timing of EBITDA, 
disoount rate of 20.0%, disooll'lt factor of approximatety 0.80%4 0, 94%, expected term of 0.364 1.22 
years, votatility of 37.5%, and risk4ree rate of approximately 4.46%4 4,97%. Refer to tlote 11 for 
information on subsequent measurement of the contingent consideration. 
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The fair value of assets aoquired and liabilities assumed was as follows: 

Property and equipment 
Operating lease right·of·use-assets 
Operating lease liabilities 
Total fai r value of net assets acquired 
Goodwill 
Total pischase price 

The fair value of the purchase price was as foUO\vs: 

cash paid ~n acquisition 
Contingent consideration 
Total pischase price 

S 1,152,000 
458,275 

(458,275) 
1,152,000 
1,621 ,255 

S 2,TTJ,255 

S 1,983,255 
790,000 

S 2,TTJ,255 

The acquisition was funded by cash and retated oosts inrurred by the Company were approximately 
$151 ,000 which are included in general and administrative expenses on the oonsolidated statement 
of operations for the year ended December 31, 2023, The total amount of goodwill reoognized in 
the transaction expected to be deductible for tax is approximately $1 ,622,000. 

2022 Acquisition - ZFS and select franchisees 

Effective August 15, 2022, Zerorez acquired 100% of the shares of ZFS and also acquired the assets 
of certain franchisees' of ZFS. The consideration paid consisted of approximately $34.3 million of 
cash paid to the sellers, approximately $15.1 million to repay outstanding setter debt1 rollover 
equity in the Parent with a fair val ue of approximately S5.6 million and oontingent consideration 
with a fair value of $7,7 million, The asset purcMse agreement contains contingent oonsideration 
provisions based on fiscal year 2023 and 2024 adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation 
and amortization ("EBITOA") targets, as defined, for up to $20 million for 2023 and for up to S30 
million for 2024. The acquisition of the sMres of ZFS was oomp(eted through a merger by a wholly 
owned entity of Zerorez whereas ZFS continued as the surviving entity, 

The pischase price has been allocated to the assets aoquired and liabilities assumed based on third· 
party valuation studies and management estimates of their fair value in acoordance with ASC 805, 
Fair value estimates are based on co!TJ)(ex series of judgements about future events and 
uncertainties and rely heavily on estimates and assumptions. The judgements used to determine 
the estimated fair val ue assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed1 as well as 
assets lives and the expected futise cash flows and related discount rates1 can impact the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. Significant inputs used for the model included the 
amount of cash ftO\vs, the expected period of the cash flows, and the discount rates. 

The fair value of the intangible assets was determined using the following methods: 

Trade name 
Developed technology 
Franchising contracts 

Rellef f rom royalty method 
Cost to recreate 
Multi -period excess earnings method i MPEEM") 

22 

zerorez. 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
Exhibit C: Financial Statements C - 64 4927-0094-0829 

 

   

Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Additional assl.l"llptions in the valuation of i ntangibtes inctuded an internal rate of return of 19.6%, 
weighted average cost of capital of 19.7%, discount rates of 19.8%·24.1% and i noome tax rate of 
25.5% of pre-tax income. for the contingent consideration, fair value was based on unobservabte 
inputs using a Black Scholes Option-Pricing Model, with inputs that included estimated am01..11t and 
timi ng of EBITDA, discount rate of 19.6%, disoount factor of approximatety 0.71%·0.85%, expected 
term of 0.88-1.88 years, votatitity of 40¼, and risk-free rate of approximately 3.20X. Refer to ttote 
11 for i nformation on subsequent measurement of the oonti ngent consideration, 

Results of the third~party valuation studies conctuded the value associated with the franchising 
contracts were de minimis, and therefore, no value was allocated at acquisition, 

The fair value of assets aoquired and liabilities assumed was as follows: 

cash, cash eqUivalents and restricted cash 
Accounts and notes receivabte 
Prepaid expenses and other c1Srent assets 
Property and equipment 
Operating lease right 4 of·use·assets 
Developed technology 
Trade name 
Other assets 
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Operating lease liabilities 
Contract liabilities 
Non4 controlling interests 
Total fai r value of net assets acquired 
Goodwill 
Total PISChase price 

The fair value of the purchase price was as fo(lows: 

cash paid '-"°" acquisition 
Holdings shares issued to sellers 
Contingent consideration 
Total PISChase price 

s 1,4n,s11 
2,753,156 

586,740 
16,430,985 
7,703,912 
4,938,0CIO 

21,103,000 
543,311 

(1,081 ,046) 
(7,703,912) 
(7,905,461 ) 

(385,593) 
38,460,663 

s 
24,249,734 
62,710,397 

5 49,358,246 
5,652,151 
7,700,0CIO 

S 62,710,397 

The 2022 Acquisition was funded through a oombination of equity oontributed by Parent, issuance 
of equity to certain sellers in Parent and borrowings by the Company. 

A.oQuisition4 related oosts incurred by Zerorez totaled approximately $2.8 million which are included 
in general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statement of operations for the period 
ended December 31, 2022. The total amount of goodwill recognized in the 2022 A.ocJJisition expected 
to be deductibte for tax is approximately S 17, 157,000. 
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4. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the fo llowing: 

December 3ft 
Vehlcles 
Equipment, fll"niture and fixtures, and other 
Leasehold improvements 
Property and equipment 
Less: accl.fflulated depreciation 
Property and eguipment. net 

2023 
s 19,615,271 

1,on,511 
840,958 

21 ,528,740 

s 
(8,504,712) 
13,024,028 

2022 
$ 15,545,530 

829,497 
840,958 

17,215,985 

$ 
(2,125,138) 
15,090,847 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2023 and period ended December 31, 2022 
were approximat ely $6,398,000 and S2, 125,000, respectively, 

5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill oonsisted of the following: 

Gross carrying Acctanulated 
Amount Amortization Net Sook Value 

Balance, August 16, 2022 
(aC4,lisition date) $ s s 
Goodwill 24,249,734 24,249,734 
Amortization (909,365) (909,365) 

Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 24,249,734 s (909,365) s 23,340,369 
Goodwill 1,621 ,255 1,621 ,255 
Amortization (2,539,847! (2,539 ,847! 

Balance, December 31, 2023 s 25,870,989 s (3,449,212) s 22,421 ,7TT 

Goodwill amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2023, and period ended December 
31, 2022, were approximately S2,540,000 and $909,000, respectively. 
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Intangible assets consisted of the foUowing: 

Gross carrying Acctanulated 
Amount Amortization 

Trade name $ 21 ,103,000 s (719,420) 
ee,.,toped teclvlology and 
capitalized software development costs 5,145,500 (376,842) 

Balance, December 31 , 2022 $ 26,248,500 s (1,096,262) 

Gross carrying Acctanulated 
Amount Amortization 

Trade name s 21,103,000 s (2,637,874) 
ee,.,toped teclvlology and 
capitalized software development costs 5,666,616 (1,460,725) 

Balance, December 31 , 2023 s 26,769,616 s (4,098,599) 

Net Book Value 

s 20,383,580 

s 
4,768,658 

25,152,238 

Net Book Value 

s 18,465,126 

s 
4,205,891 

22,671,017 

Amortization expense related to devetoped technotogy, capitalized software development oosts and 
trade names was approximately S3,002,000 and S1 ,096,000 for the year ended December 31 , 2023 
and for the period ended December 31, 2022, respectivety. 

The weighted average remaining useful life of intangibte assets as of December 31 , 2023 and 2022 
were approximately 8. 5 years and 9. 5 years, respectively, 

Based on the carrying value of intangible assets at December 31, 2023, and assuming no subsequent 
impairment charges, the approximate future annual amortization expense is expected to be as 
follows: 

Year Ended December 3ft 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
Thereafter 
Total 
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2,673,207 
1,%9,625 
s,sn,ss1 

S 22,671,017 
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6. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisted of the fo llowing: 

December 31, 
Contingent consideration, current portlon 
Accrued wages and payroll liabilities 
Contract termi nation liability, c1Srent portion 
Sales taxes 
Other accrued expenses 

Total accrued expenses and other liabilities 

7. Line of Credit 

Line of Credit 

2023 s 1,310,000 
1,231,797 

350,000 
166,402 

s 
470,036 

3,528,235 

2022 
$ 

1,051 ,318 
350,000 
386,888 

$ 
67,338 

1,855,544 

Effective August 15, 2022, in oonnection with the 2022 A.oQuisition described in ttote 3, the Company 
entered into a credit agreement, which provides a revolving oommitment up to $2,500,000 through 
maturity on August 15, 2025. The revolving commitment bears interest at a rate per anmrn equal 
to the adjusted daily simple secured overnight financing rate ("SOFR"} in effect, as defined, plus 
an applicable margin between 2. 75% + 3, 75% depending on the Company's leverage ratio, as defined, 
The applicable margin as of December 31 , 2023 was 3. 50% (total interest rate of 8.98% at December 
31 , 2023) . The revolving oorrmitment is secured by substantially all the assets of the Company, As 
of December 31 1 2023 and 2022, the outstanding balance under the revolving commitment was SO 
and S7912991 respectively, 

8. Long· Term Debt 

Long· Term Debt • Note Payable 

A summary of long-term debt is as follows: 

December 31
1 

Note payable 
l ess: unamortized debt issuance oosts 
Note payable, net of debt issuance oosts 
l ess: current matllit ies 
Notes payable; net of current maturities 

s 

s 

2023 2022 
23,187,547 s 30,000)000 

(189,787) (204,081) 
22, 997,760 29,795,919 
(4,400,000) (4,000,000) 
18,597,760 s 25,795,919 

Effective August 15, 20221 in oonnection with the 2022 A.oQuisition described in ttote 3, the Company 
entered into a credit agreement that provides $32,0001000 under a note payable. The note matures 
August 15, 202.7, and principal is payable in quarterly installments of S1 ,000,000, commencing 
September 2022 and increasing to $1,200,000 in September 202.4 with a balloon payment of 
$91600,000 payabte at maturity, The note bears interest at a rate per anm..111 equal to the SOFR in 
effect, as defined, plus an applicable margin between 2, 75% to 3. 75% depending on the Company' s 
leverage ratio, as defined. The applicable margin as of December 31, 202.3 was 3, 50% (total interest 
rate of 8.98% at December 31 , 2023). The note payable is secl.l'ed by slbstantially all the assets of 
the Company. 
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On Septeni)ef 22, 2023, the Company entered into a first amendment to the credit agreement which 
waived certain nonoompliance with financial covenants for periods in 2023, The amendment 
additionally revised certain financial oovenant requirements from September 2023 through June 30, 
2024 and amended the repayment tenns to require an additional one-time payment of 
approximatety $2,8 million, In connection with the first amendment, the Company incurred an 
amendment fee of $50,000. As of December 31 , 2023, the Company was in compliance with the 
amended financial covenants. 

Scheduled future principal maturities of the note payabte, exduding unamortized debt issuance 
costs, are as follows: 

Year Ended December 3 f, 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
Total 

Long-Term Debt - Other 

s 

s 

4,400,000 
4,800,000 
4,800,000 
9,187,547 

23,187,547 

On August 15, 2022, ZFS entered into an agreement with a related party which granted the retated 
party the right to receive 50% of additional territory fees associated with a defined geographic 
location should ZFS seU the franchise rights to that location in a future franchise agreement. In 
exchange for this right, the Colll)any received S1,035,00) interest-free, As of December 31 , 2023 
and 2022, the Company has not entered into a franchise agreement for the defined geographic 
location nor collected the additional territory fees. Accordingly, no repayments have been made, 
The proceeds from the agreement are recorded as a liability rNted to the sale of fut1Se reveooes. 
At December 31 , 2023 and 2022, the liability of approximately S983,000 is included in other long­
term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. 

9. Leases 

The Company leases facilities for its operating activities l.llder various non-cancellabte operating 
lease agreements. Lease tenns of the facilities primarily range from approximately 5·10 years 
(subject to elective extension} and generally provide for escalation in base rents. The majority of 
the faci lity leases contain one or more options to renew the lease at the Colll)any's discretion, 
Generally, the Company does not consider any additional renewal periods to be reasonably certain 
of being exercised. Lease maturity dates range from 2024 to 2032. 
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The Company's lease oosts are as follows: 

Operaimg lease expense 
Variable lease expense 
Short tenn lease expense 

Year Ended 
December 31, 2023 
S 2,413,821 

655,148 

August 16, 2022 
(acquisition date) 

through 
December 31, 2022 
S 736,314 

237,865 

Total lease expense s 3,068,969 S 
54,886 

1,029,065 

Lease expense is ctassified within general and administrate expenses. 

The maturity analysis of the operating lease liabilities as of Oeoember 31 , 2023, is as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 

2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
Thereafter 
Total minimum tease payments 
Less lease payments representing interest 
Net present value of operating lease liabilities 
Less current portion 
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 

S 2,297,500 
1,905,846 
1,339,939 
1,133,419 

688,899 
1,014 068 
8,379,671 
(1,290,199) 
1,os9,4n 
(1,856,936) 

S 5,232,536 

Futise minimum lease payments exclude S2.28 million of future payments required under signed 
lease agreements that l\ave not yet convnenced as of December 31 , 2023. These operating leases 
will oonvnence during fiscal year 2024 and Mve a weighted average lease term of 7.2 years. 

The following summarizes the weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average 
disoount rate on long~term leases: 

As of December 3 t, 

Weighted average remaining lease term (in years) 
Operating leases 

Weighted average discount rate 
Operating leases 

28 

2023 

4.7 

7.29% 

20U 

5.2 

6.90% 
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The fotlowing provides supptemental infonnation related to the Company's oonsotidated statements 
of cash flows: 

Gash pa.1d for amounts included in the measurement 
of lease liabilities: 

Operati ng cash flows 

Right 4 of·use assets obtained in exchange for 
new lease liabilities: 

Operating leases 

10. Income Taxes 

August 16, 2022 
(acquisition date) 

Year Ended through 
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 

s 2,296,299 S 708,708 

s 1,231,466 S 

Components of the provision for i noome tax expense consisted of the foUowing: 

Current expense 
Deferred expense 
lnoome tax expense 

Year Ended 
December 31, 2023 
s 
s 

August 16, 2022 
(acquisition date) 

through 
December 31 , 2022 

s 
The Company's effective tax rate during the year ended December 31, 2023 and period ended 
December 31, 2022 differs from the federal statutory rate of 21% primarily due to the effect of 
changes in valuation allowance, non-deductible acquisition-related costs, and non·deductibte 
portion of goodwill. As of December 31, 2023, the carrying value of the non-deductible portion of 
goodwill was approximately $3,693,000. 
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The deferred tax assets (liabilities}, net consisted of the fotlowing: 

December 31 2023 
Deferred tax assets: 

tlet operating losses and other carryforwards s 3,765,996 
Contract liabilities and other liabilities 3,176,554 
Operating lease liability 1,778,464 
Other 31,029 

Total deferred tax assets 8,752,043 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Operating tease right~of·use·assets (1,742,068) 
Property and equipment (207,435) 
Intangible assets (748,217) 
Other (57,686) 

Total deferred tax liabilities (2,755,406) 
Deferred taxes, net before valuation allowance 5,996,637 

wance 5 996 637 

2022 

s 2,599,029 
3,206,332 
1,750,489 

6,323 
7,564,173 

(1,743,749) 
(643,912) 
(500,071) 
(112,410) 

(3,000,142) 
4,564,031 

(4 564 031 

The Company reoognizes deferred tax assets to the extent it believes, based on available evidence, 
that it is more likety than not that they will be realized. In making such determination, the Company 
considers all available positive and negative evidence, inctuding futise reversals of existing taxable 
temporary differences, projected future taxabte income, tax ptanning strategies, and recent results 
of operations. As of December 31 , 2023, the Company had gross federal and state operating losses 
("tlOL.s") of approximately $101809,000 and $41453,000, respectively1 and approximately S2,789,0C)() 
of foreign NOls, Federal NOLs arising in tax years prior to 2018 will expire oommencing in 2025 
through 2034 and Federal NOls arising in tax years in 2018 forward do not expire but may only be 
used against taxable inoome up to 80% per year, Certain state ~K>Ls will expire commencing in 2024 
through 2043 and certain State ~K>Ls do not expire. The foreign NOl.s do not expire. 

Utilization of the NOl.s may be sl.Oject to an annual limitation due to the ownership percentage 
change limitations provided under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") of 1986, as 
amended, and the percentage of taxabte inoome limitations provided under Section 1 n of the IRC. 
Si milar state provisions may apply, 

Increases in the valuation aUO\vance at December 31 1 2023 and 2022 were approximately S 1,433,0C)() 
and S1,064,000, respectivety. 

The Company did not reoognize any significant interest or penalties resulting from income taxes 
during the year ended December 31, 2023 and period ended December 31 , 2022. 

11. Conti ngent Consideration 

In connection with the 2022 and 2023 business combination transactions described in Note 3, the 
Company has recorded oontingent consideration liabilities related to the achievement of certain 
performance targets. The Company measures the oontingent consideration liabilities at fair value 
at each reporting date U>ing significant l.l'lobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the fair 
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value hierarchy. fair values as of December 31, 2023 were based a Btlck Scholes-Option Pricing 
Model1 with inputs that included estimated amount and timing of EBITOA, discount rate of 21.0%, 
disoount factor of approximately 0, 91%, expected term of 0, 50 years, volatility of 29.0%, and risk· 
free rate of approximatety 5.46%, Fair value inputs for those determined as of December 31 , 2022 
for the 2022 business oolroination are included within Note 3. 

The following tabte presents a roU forward of the oontingent consideration liabilities, measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis (level 3): 

2022 Acquisition 

Balance, August 16, 2022 
(acq.risition date) s 
Fait value of contingent considerat ion 

liability• ZFS and franchisees 7,700,000 
Balance, December 31 , 2022 7,700,000 

Fait value of contingent considerat ion 
liability • Jacksonville franchise 

Chanqe in fair value included in ea.ming$ (S,600,000) 
Ba.lance. December 31, 20"23 s 2,100.000 

2023 Acquisition 

s 

7'0,000 
"J30,000 

s 1,110.000 

s 

s 

Total 

7,700,000 
7 ,700,000 

7'0,000 
(◄,670,000) 
3,820,000 

The net gain from change in fair value is included within other income on the oonsoUdated 
statements of operations. The current portion of the contingent consideration liabilities was 
$1 ,310,000 and SO as of December 31 , 2023 and 2022, respectively, and is included within accrued 
expenses and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The noncurrent portion of the 
contingent oonsideration liabilities was $2,510,000 and $7,700,000 as of Oeoember 31 , 2023 and 
2022, respectively, and is included within other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance 
sheets. 

12. Commitments and Contingencies 

Royalty Reallocat;on Termination and Settlement Agreement 

Prior to August 16, 2022, ZFS entered into a series of agreements in which recurring royalties and 
Brand fund contribution fees payable by four franchisees to ZFS were reallocated to an affiliated 
entity ("Royalty Reallocation Agreement"), At the time of the 2022 AoQuisition, Zerorez and the 
parties to the Royalty Reallocation Agreement executed a Tennination and Settlement Agreement 
providing for the termination of all rights and obUgations under the Royalty Reallocation Agreement, 
As consideration for the Termination and Settlement Agreement, ZFS agreed to pay an annual 
amount of $350,000 payabte in twelve monthly payments commencing August 31, 2022 until the 
earlier of July 31 , 2030 or the closing of a fut1Se qualified sale of ZFS. Upon closing of a fut1Se 
qualified sale of ZFS, ZFS 1M>L(d owe an amount equal to $6,500,000 minus the aggregated amount 
of installment payments made to date, provided in no event that the amount will be less than 
$5,500,000 ("Buyout Payment"). In the event that gross revenue of the fOIS franchisees declines by 
more than 20% on a year <YI/er year basis to the prior fiscal year, the annual installment payments 
shall be reduced by the same percentage. Further, in the event that either a future sale of ZFS has 
not ocC1Sred prior to July 31, 2030, or the proceeds from a future sale of ZFS are not sufficient to 
make the Buyout Payment, then oommencing on August 1, 2030 and continuing until the earlier of 
(a) full payment of the Buyout Amount or (b) December 12, 2054, ZfS will pay monthly payments 
based on a percentage of gross revenue of the four franchisees, as defined. 
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The Colll)arry evaluated the requirements of ASC 805 and detennined the Tennination and 
Settlement Agreement was executed to primarily benefit Zerorez1 rather than ZFS or its fonner 
owners, and is a separate transaction that shcdd be accounted for separatety from the business 
combination in the period as a termination cost under the req.iirements of ASC 420, Exit or Disposal 
Cost ObUgatfons ("ASC 420''}. ASC 420 requires recognition of a liability for costs to terminate a 
contract when the entity terminates, using an expected present value technique when uncertainties 
exist in the timing or amount. The Company estimated the present value of the liability at time of 
termination to be approximately SS,490,000, which was recorded as an expense within general and 
administrative expenses in the period ended December 31 , 2022. 

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Corrpany paid approximately S350,000 of installment 
payments and inc...-red interest expense of approximatety $337,000, At December 31, 2023, the 
liability \Ya.S approximately $5,473,000, of which S350,000 is presented as current in accrued 
expenses and other liabilities and the non·c1Srent portion of SS, 123,0CIO is presented in other long· 
term liabilities. for the period ended December 31 , 2022, the Company paid approximately $146,000 
of installment payments and incurred interest expense of approximately $141 ,000. At December 31 , 
2022, the liability was approximately $5,486,000, of which $350,000 is presented as current in 
accrued expenses and other liabilities and the non-current portion of S5, 136,000 is presented in 
other long-term liabilities. 

Transition Services Agreement 

In comection with the 2023 Acquisition described in Note 3, the Company entered into transition 
service agreements ("TSA") with the seller's party to the asset purchase agreement. The TSA 
primarily allowed Zerorez to lease the existing employees at the acquired outlet to perfonn their 
regutar d.lties. Zerorez reimbursed the sellers all retated wage expenses incurred at oost. On 
January 1, 2024, all leased employees were converted to ell"J)toyees of Zerorez. 

In comection with the 2022 Acquisition described in Note 3, the Company entered into transition 
service agreements ("TSA") with the seller's party to the asset purchase agreement. The TSA 
primarily allowed Zerorez to lease the existing employees at the aoquired outlets to pertorm their 
regutar d.lties. Zerorez reimbursed the sellers all retated wage expenses incurred at oost. On 
January 1, 2023, all leased employees were converted to ell"J)toyees of Zerorez. 

Litigation 

From time to time, the Company is involved in various lawsuits, claims and inquiries that arise in 
the ordinary ooll"Se of business. The Company accrues for loss oontingencies when losses become 
probabte and are reasonably estimable. If the reasonable estimate of the loss is a range and no 
amount within the range is a better estimate, the minimum amount of the range is recorded as a 
liability, In the opinion of management, any liability that may result of any adverse outoomes of 
these actions is not expected to be material. 

In March 2024, the Colll)any received a demand letter from a party alleging the Company of violating 
terms of a certain agreement to which both parties entered into in May 2020. The Company believes 
the ctaims are without merit. With respect to this matter, the Company believes a loss contingency 
is not currently probable and an estimate of possible loss, if any, is not c1Srently estimabte, 
accordingly, no loss has been accrued as of December 31, 2023. 
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In oomection with the 2023 Acquisition described in Note 3, the seller was provided a right to 
obligate the Company to p1Schase an additional franchise location owned by the seller at a set 
purchase price, in the event the Company undergoes a future qualified sale. The purchase price 
shall be equal to a fixed multiple, as defined, over the franchise location's trailing twelve-month 
EBITOA immediately prior to the date of a future qualified sale of the Company. 

4-0t(k) Retirement Plan 

Effective Ja1>Jary 1, 2023, the Coolpany adopted a 401 (k) profit sharing plan for eligible employees. 
Under the tenns of the ptan, the Colll)arry can make employer matching or profit-sharing 
contributions on a discretionary basis, The Company did not make any matching or profit-sharing 
contributions to the 401 (k) profit sharing plan for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

13. Equity 

Articles of Incorporation 

The total m.l'Tlber of shares that Zerorez is authorized to issue is 100 strares of common stock having 
a par value of S1 per share. All issued and outstanding shares in Zerorez are hetd by the Parent. 

Equity-Based Compensation 

In accordance with the limited liability company agreement of the Parent, the board may grant up 
to 870 Class P Profits Units ("Profits Units") in the Parent to key employees of the Company under 
the Profit Interests Plan dated September 23, 2022 (the "Plan"), The Plan was amended tlovember 
6, 2023 to increase the m..111ber of authorized units availabte to grant to 895.3, The purpose of the 
Plan is to promote the profitability and success of the Colll)arry by providing key persomel of the 
Company with incentives to contribute to the growth and financial success of the Company, The 
board establishes a participation threshold and vesting conditions for each unit , 

The following table s1..111marizes the activity related to the Parent's Profit Units: 

Balance as of August 16, 2022 (acqUisition date), unvested 
Granted 
Vested 
Forfeited 

Balance as of December 31, 2022, unvested 
Granted 
Vested 
Forfeited 

Balance as of December 31, 2023, unvesfed 

706 
(4U) 

218 
99 

(186) 

131 

DI.ling the year ended 0eceni)ef 31, 2023 and period ended December 31 , 2022, 99.3 units and 
487.5 units, respectivety, granted which were fully vested upon grant and are forfeited and canceted 
upon tennination of service ("Compensation Profit Units") . The Company detennined these 
Compensation Profits Units granted do not represent a substantive class of eqUity and are aooounted 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

for under the provisions of ASC 710, Compensation, whereas they are recognized as a liability when 
payment is both probabte and reasonably estimabte, Currently, any potential payment to be made 
to holders of the Compensation Profits Units is not yet probable nor reasonably estimabte, therefore, 
no liability or expense has been recognized in these oonsotidated financial statements. 

In October 2022, 217.5 units ("Equity Profit Units") were granted to one employee and vest as 
follows: 40% in July 2023, 20% in July 2024, 15% in July 2025, and 10% in each July 2026 and July 
2027, Upon a change of oontrot event, as defined, all unvested Profits Units shall immediately 
become vested, Upon termination of service, vested Equity Profits Units can be retained by the 
employee or repurchased at fair value by the Company, at the Company's etection, The Company 
determined the Equity Profits Units granted do represent a substantive ctass of equity and are 
accounted for under the provisions of ASC 718, Compensatfon - Stock Compensation. The Equity 
Profits Units were fair valued based on the Btlck Scholes Option Pricing Model, which values all 
ctasses of equity as a call option on the enterprise value of the Company and is recorded as 
compensation expense on a straighHine basis <:Ner the requisite service period. No Equity Profit 
Units were granted in 2023. 

Significant inputs in the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model for Equity Profits Units granted in 2022 
is summarized betow: 

Sfnke pnce {hurdle amount per umb 
Expected volatility 
Expected term in years 
Risk-free rate 

s 6,947.30 
63.2% 

5.0 
3.84% 

In the future, the Company may elect to use different assumptions under the Black Scholes Option· 
Pricing Modet or a different valuation model, which ooutd result in a significantly different impact 
on earnings. 

Expected Volatility 

The Company uses the votatility of peer group pl.Etic OOITl)anies to estimate the volatility 
assumptions used. 

Expected Tenn 

The Company utilizes an expected hotding period to estimate the expected term. 

Risk-Free Rate 

The Company bases the risk-free interest rate on the U.S. Treasury yield cl.lVe in effect at the time 
of grant, based on the expected term. 

The grant date fair value of the Equity Profits Units granted during the period ended December 31 , 
2022 was determined by the Company to be approximately S1.98 per unit. Approximately $86,000 
and $22,000 has been recognized as equity-based compensation expense di.ling the year ended 
December 31 , 2023 and period ended 0eceni)er 31 , 2022, respectively, which is reflected in general 
and administrative expenses. At Oecelroef 31 , 2023, there was approximately $323,000 of 
unrecognized equity-based colTJ)eflSation expense, which is expected to be recognized over a period 
of approximatety 3.8 years. 
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14. Related-Party Transactions 

Mano9ement A9reement 

Pursuant to a management services agreement between the Company and an affiliate, the Colll)any 
shall pay a quarterly management fee equal to the greater of S62,500 or 5% of oonsotidated adjusted 
EBITOA, as defined, with a cap of $750,00) each calendar year, Upon the consummation of a future 
acquisition resulting in a material increase to consolidated adjusted EBITDA, the cap will increase, 
as defined. further, the Company reimbursed the affiliate fo r certain expenses as invoiced by the 
affiliate related to sMred expenses or transaction related costs incurred in connection with the 
2022 Acquisition, The term of the management services agreement shall expire upon notice to the 
Company by the affiliate, upon an initial public offering, or upon the oonsummation of a sale of the 
Company, as defined, 

Total costs inrurred by Zerorez under the management services agreement totaled approximately 
$463,000 for the year ended December 31, 2023. The Q4 2023 management fee of approximately 
$98,000 was accrued as of December 31, 2023 and is included in accrued expenses and other 
liabilities on the oonsolidated balance sheet. for the period ended December 31, 2022, total oosts 
incurred under the management agreement totaled approximately $1 ,221 ,000 relating to the 
following: (1 ) approximately $224,000 for the management fee, and (2) approximately $997,000 
relating to transaction-retated oosts incurred in connection wft:h the 2022 Acquisition. 

Franchisees Operated by Related Parties 

For the year ended Decelrbef 31, 2023 and period ended December 31, 2022, the Company reoorded 
revenue associated with royalty fees, Brand fll'ld contributions, franchisee fees and technology, 
service and other fees related to franchise outlets operated by affiliates, executives and/or 
stockholders of the Coolpany of approximately 5216,000 and $128,000, respectively. 

At December 31 , 2023 and 2022, related party notes receivable O\ved from franchise outlets 
operated by affiliates were approximatety $401 ,000 and $145,000, respectively, 

Other 

An affiliated entity provides software devetopment and maintenance services to the Company, 
DI.ling the year ended December 31 , 2023, the Company incurred oosts of approximatety $999,000 
of which $521 ,000 was capitalized to software development costs and approximatety $478,000 was 
expensed and is reflected in general and administrative expenses. During the period ended 
December 31, 2022, the Company incurred costs of approximately $398,000 of which $208,000 was 
capitalized to soft\vare development costs and approximately $190,000 was expensed and is 
reflected in general and administrative expenses. 

Certain affiliated entities provide certain marketing services to the Company's franchisees and 
company-0\-med outlets. !Airing the year ended December 31, 2023 and period ended December 31 , 
2022, the Company inc1Sredapproximately $3,170,931 and S1,878,000of costs, respectively, which 
is reflected in advertising and marketing expenses. At December 31 , 2023 and 2022, approximatety 
$433,000 and $409,000 is included in accounts payable, respectively, 

Dl.ling the year ended December 31 , 2023 and period ended December 31, 2022, the Co~ny 
incurred board of director fees of $61 ,000 and $12,000, respectively. 
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The Company leases certain facilities from entities controlled by certain stodcho(ders and during 
the year ended December 31, 2023 and period ended December 31, 2022, the Company incurred 
lease costs of approximately $1 ,196,000 and $455,000, respectively. 

15. Summary of Franc.hised and Company•Owned Outlets 

The following is a sunvnary of changes in the nuiroer of franchised and company•owned outlets 
during calendar year 2023 and 2022: 

Company-Owned 
Franchisees OUtlets Total 

Total, January 1, 2022 64 6 70 
Opened 7 7 
Terminations/ ceased operations (4) (4) 
Reaoguired by f ranchisor (14) 14 

Total, December 31 , 2022 53 20 73 
Opened 7 7 
Terminations/ ceased operations (4) (2) (6) 
Re!29uired !?£ f ranchisor (1! 1 

Total, December 31 , 2023 55 19 74 

16. Subsequent Events 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 18, 2024, which is the date these 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, There were no material s!J)sequent 
events that required recognition or additional disclosure1 other tt~n the matters disctosed betow, 

In February 2024, the Parent entered into a Subscription Agreement under which it issued 1,151.52 
a ass A units in exchange for ss,ocx,,ooo, The $8,000,000 was contributed to the Company without 
an issuance of the Company's common shares to the Parent. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Directors 
Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Pleasant Grove, Utah 

Tet: 303·830·1120 
Fax: 303·830·8130 
www.bdo.com 

303 E. 17th A\WM.Je, SUite 600 
Denver, co 802.03 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the 
Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2022 (Successor), 
and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in equity, and cash flows for the 
period from August 16, 2022 through December 31, 2022 (Successor) and for the period from January 
1, 2022 through August 15, 2022 (Predecessor), and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Company as of Decembe< 31, 2022 (Successor), and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the period from August 16, 2022 through December 31, 2022 
(Successor) and for the period from January 1, 2022 through August 15, 2022 (Predecessor) in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. Vie are 
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Emphasis of Matters 

As discussed in Hote 2 to these consolidated financial statements, in 2022, the Company adopted 
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases (Topic 842). Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

As discussed in Note 3 to these oonsolklated financial statements, during the preparation of the 
2022 consolidated financial statements, errors were identified in the Company's previously issued 
financial statements. The Company has restated the consolidated statement of changes in equity as 
of January 1, 2022 to correct the errors. Our opinion on the 2022 consolidated financial statements 
is not modified with respect to this matter. 

As discussed in Hote 4 to these consolidated financial statements, the Company had a change in 
control that transpired on August 15, 2022. As outlined in A5C 805, Business Combinations, the 
Company adjusted the assets acquired and liabilities assumed to fair value. Accordingly, the 
financial statements of the Successor are presented on a new basis of accounting from the financial 
statements of the Predecessor, and therefore, are not comparable. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

co~:-..eootl!,\,.1>.L,•"""•pt-..i--.--.-"-,...__"""" .. ,,....,....,..~---•~,.,,.u.. 
COI.I.A. • .C. - NU.\.-cte00--~•Ult-u.w..d.., _ _ _ po..-.ot ... -llOO_,.Ol~--

C0flh°"""".....,.1<i.,_l00 _ _ _ ,__ct.,_e00_......_ 
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Other Matters 

The consolidated financial statements of Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries for the 
year ended December 31, 2021 (not presented herein), before restatement for the matte< described 
in the Emphasis of Matters paragraph, were audited by other auditors, whose report dated March 
30, 2022 (not presented herein) on those statements was unmodified. 

As part of our audit of the 2022 consolidated financial statements, we also audited the adjustments 
described in Uote 3 that were applied to restate the 2021 oonsolklated financial statements. In our 
opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged 
to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2021 consolidated financial statements of Zerorez 
Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries other than with respect to the adjustments and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2021 consolidated 
financial statements as a whole. 

Respons;bitit;es of Management for the flnand al Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether 
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the 
consolidated financial statements are issued or available to be issued. 

Aud;tor's Respons;b;t;t;es for the Aud;t of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement result ing from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

In performing an audit in aooordance with GAAS, we: 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence 
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of t ime. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

October 11, 2023 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

December 31, 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Accounts receivable, net 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Motes receivable- current 

Total current assets 

Property and equipment, net 
Operating lease right-of•use-assets, net 
Goodvlill, net 
Intangible assets, net 
Investments 
tfotes receivable- noncurrent 
Deposits and other 

Total assets 

4 

s 

s 

2022 
(Successor) 

13,439,069 
290,666 

1,351,098 
1,420,005 

509,503 

17,010,341 

15,090,847 
7,123,879 

23,340,369 
25,152,238 

306,588 
1,185,532 

188 960 

89,398,754 
Continued. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

December 31, 

Liabilities and Stockholder's equity 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Contract liabilities, current portion 
Current maturities of note payable 
Operating lease liabilities1 current portion 

Total current liabilities 

Contract liabilities, net of current portion 
Line of credit 
tfote payable, net of current portion and debt issuance costs 
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 
Other long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies (Note ·12) 

Stockholder's equity: 
Common stock, $1 par value, 100 shares authorized, 

issued and outstanding 
Additional paid•in capital 
Accumulated deficit 

Equity attributable to Zerorez, Inc. 
Uon-oontrolling interest 

Total stockholder's equity 

Total liabilities and stockholder's equity 

s 

s 

2022 
(Successor) 

1,314,479 
1,855,544 

660,709 
4,000,000 
1,574.714 

9,405,446 

6,977,242 
79,299 

25,795,919 
5,576,771 

12 835 903 

60,670,580 

100 
40,853,591 

(12,223,531) 

28,630,160 
98 014 

28,n8,174 

89,398,754 
See independent auditor's report and 

accompanying notes to consol;dated fk,ancial statements. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 

August 16, 2022 January ·1, 2022 
through through 

December 31, 2022 August 15, 2022 
(Successor) (Predecessor) 

Revenues 
Company-owned outlet income s 24,543,181 s 3,667,578 
Royalty fees 998,404 2,181 ,375 
Brand fund contributions 381,957 874,264 
Technology, sentice fees and other 260,175 423,450 
Franchise fees 253,051 326,147 

Total revenues 26,436,768 7,472,814 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of oorrpany-owned outlet income 10,979,502 1,591,576 
General and administrative expenses 18,446,637 9,579,959 
Advertising and marketing 4,180,861 1,766,411 
Depreciation and amortization expense 4,130,765 388,m 

Total operating expenses 37,737,765 13,326,723 

Loss from operations (11,300,997) (5,853,909) 

Other income (expense) 
Interest expense (989,700) (576,046) 
Equity method investment loss (1 5,750) (38,250) 
Other income, net 44,148 38,292 

Total other expense, net (961,302) (576,004) 

Loss before income taxes (12,262,299) (6,429,913) 

Income tax benefit (loss) - -
Net loss (12,262,299) (6,429,913) 

Less: loss allocable to non-controlline interest 38 768 289 841 

Net loss attributable to Zerorez, Inc. (Successor) / 

Zerorez Franchising System, Inc. (Predecessor) s (12,223, 531) s (6,140,072) 
See independent auditor's report and 

accompanying notes to consol;dated financial statements. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

Treasury Stock Common Stock Additional Paid- Accumulated Total Stockholder's Non·ControUing Total 

Shares Amount Shares Amount 
Balance previously repoHed, January 1, 

In capital Deficit Equity Interest Equity 

2022 (Predecessor) 925,000 (268,575) 17,588,179 s 1,92() s 7,870,110 s (6,924,422) 679,033 s 679,033 
Adjustment for errors 

Balance, January I, 2022, as resiaFed 
58,239,513 5,663 (110,033) (3,501,704) (3,606,074) 993,534 (2,612,540) 

(Predecessor) 925,000 (268,575) 75,827,692 7,583 7,760,on (10,426,126) (2,927,041) 993,534 (1,933,507) 
Equity-based oompensatioo 29,175 29,175 29,175 
Stock issued for services 2,800,000 280 97,032 97,312 97,312 
Contributions 200,000 2() 99,980 100,000 437,853 537,853 
Repurchase of non-controlling interest (935,065) (935,065) (633,730) (1,568,815) 

Met loss (6,140,on) (6,140,072) (289,841) (6,429,913) 
Balance, August 15, 2022 (Predecessor) 925,000 (268,575) 78,827,692 7,883 7,051,179 (16,566,198) (9,775,711) 507,816 (9,267,895) 

Effect of purchase accOll'lting (925,000) 268,575 (78,827,692) (7,883) (7,051,179) 16,566,198 9 ,775,711 (122,223) 9,653,488 
Contributions 100 100 41 ,083,264 41 ,083,364 41,083,364 
Equit.y·based oompensatioo 21,516 21,516 21,516 
Repurchase of non-controlling interest (251,189) (251,189) (248,81 1) (500,000) 
Net loss (12,223,531) (12,223,531) (38,768) (12,262,299) 

Balance, December 31, 2022 (Successor) 100 s 100 s 40,853,591 s (12,223,531) 28,630,160 s 98,014 S 28,728,174 
See Independent audlto?s report and 

accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Cash flows from oper ating activities: 

August 16, 2022 
througl, 

December 31, 2022 
(Successor) 

January 1, 2022 
through 

August 15, 2022 
(Predecessor) 

Het loss s (1 2, 262, 299) $ (6, 429,913) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash (used in) 

provided by operating act ivities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Amortizat ion of debt-issuance costs 
Bad debt expense 
Loss on eq,.1ity method inves.tments 
Equity-based compensation expense 
Stock issued for services 
Contract termination expense 
Hon-cash interest on contract tennination liability 
l'lon-cash lease expense 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of business acquisition: 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Deposits and other long-term assets 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Contract liabilities 
Other long-term liabilit ies 
0 Deratino lease Liabili ties 

Het cash (used in) provided by operating act ivities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Acquisi tion of a business, net of cash acquired and other 
Purchases of property a.nd equipment 
Capitalized software development costs 
Issuance of not.es receivable 
CoUection on notes receivable 
Advances to cost method investments 

Het cash (used in) orovided bv investint:1 activities 

8 

4,130,765 
36,326 
59,262 
15,750 
21 ,516 

5, 490,34 5 
141 ,391 
580,033 

(522,802) 
(833,265) 

45,606 
233,433 

1,505,544 
(267,510) 

/552 427 

(2, 178,332) 

(47,880,675) 
(785,000) 
(207,500) 

170,563 

(48 702 6 12 

38&,m 

43,143 
38,250 
29,175 
97, 312 

521 , 333 

241 ,739 
(218,TI7) 

815,027 
4, 448, 536 

ns,sss 
(1 3,998) 

{441 376\ 

295,133 

(2, 414,754) 
(447,732) 
(227, 520) 
(175,000) 

3, 607,874 
(3,684) 

339 184 
Conti nued. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from lines of credit 
Repayments of lines of c redit 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Repayments of long-term debt 
Proceeds from related party debt 
Repayments of related party debt 
Advances from seller debt 
Repayments of seller debt 
Repayment of contract settlement liability 
Payment of debt issuance costs 
Contributions 
Repurchase of non-controlling interests 

Het cash nrnvided mt financinsi activi ties 
Het change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cas.h at beginning of period 
Cash, cash equjvalents and restricted cas.h at end of period 

Supplemental cash flow lnform.ation: 
Cash paid for interest 
Cash paid for taxes 

Supplemental non<ash flow information: 
Common stock issuance prepaid in prior period 
Hote receivable issuance reflected in contTact liabilities 
Lease liabilities obtained in exchange for right-of.use assets 

August 16, 2022 
througl, 

December 31, 2022 
(Successor) 

s 

s 
s 

s 
s 
s 

79,299 

32,000,000 
(2,000,000) 

(145,833) 
(254,000) 

35,431,213 
(500,000) 

64 61 0 679 
13,729,735 

13,729,735 

811 ,983 

January 1, 2022 
through 

August 15, 2022 
(Predecessor) 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

7,009,996 
(6, 301 ,832) 

(45,662) 
3, 640, 314 
(209,277) 
208,284 

(249,145) 

437,853 
'1 568 815\ 

2 921 716 
3, 556,033 

436,460 
3,992,493 

200,860 

100,00) 
204,500 

1, 656,816 
See mdependent auditor's report and 

accompanying notes to consolidated ffoanc;ot statements. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes t o Consolidat ed Financial Statements 

1. Organization and Description of Business 

Zerorez, Inc. ("Zerorez•1
) a Delaware corporation, was formed on June 10, 2022, to acquire the 

entire stock of Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries {"ZFS") and to acquire the 
assets of certain franchisees' of ZFS, pursuant to a plan and merger agreement and an asset 
purchase agreement dated August 15, 2022 (collectivety referred to as the "Acquisiti on"), ZFS was 
organized and incorporated in Nevada in February 2001, and on August 15, 2022 ZFS in connection 
with the Acquisition was re-incorporated in the State of Delaware. Zerorez is wholly owned by 
Zerorez Holdings, L.LC (the "Parent"). The Parent has no significant operations, and its assets 
principally are comprised of its investment in Zerorez. 

Zerorez is a residential and commercial services d eaning franchisor with franchisees and operations 
throughout tforth America. Zerorez cleans carpet, tile, fabric, upholstery, hard surfaces, and air 
ducts, and does not use detergents or harsh chemicals, but instead uses patented technology that 
cleans using electrolyzed water. 

As a result of a change of control resulting from the Acquisition described in Hote 4, Zerorez became 
the Successor financial reporting entity. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Bas is of Presentation, ConsoUdation and Non-Controlling Interest 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") as codified 
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASS") in its Accounting Standards Codification 
{"ASC"). 

The consolidated financial statements for the period from August 16, 2022 through December 31, 
2022 are referred to as the "Successor period" and the consolidated financial statements for the 
period from January 1, 2022 through August 15, 2022, are referred to as the "Predecessor period". 
For the Successor period, the accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
and operating results of Zerorez and its subsidiaries, which consisted of the following a t December 
31, 2022: 

ZFS 
Bay Area Zerorez, Inc. ("Zerorez Bay Area") 
Triple M Business Development Corporation ("Zerorez SWFL") 
Zerorez Charlotte U.C ("Zerorez Charlotte") 
Zerorez Indy, U.C ("Zerorez Indy") 
Zerorez Richmond UC ("Zerorez Richmond") 
Zerorez Tulsa, Inc. {'~Zerorez Tulsa") 
Zerorez Virginia Beach UC ("Zerorez VB") 
Profectus International, U.C (uProfectus") 
Zerorez UK U.C Ltd ("Ze.-orez UK") 
Z Intellectual Property Holdings Company, U.C ("ZIP") 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes t o Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Predecessor period, the accompanying consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts and operating results of ZFS and its subsidiaries, which consisted of the following: 

Zerorez Bay Area 
Zerorez SWFL 
Zerorez Charlotte 
Zerorez Indy 
Zerorez Richmond 
Zerorez Tulsa 
Zerorez VB 
Profectus 
Zerorez UK 

The entities included in the Successor period and Predecessor period are collectively referred to as 
the "Company". lntercompany balances and transactions have been etiminated upon consolidation. 

As of Oeceni>er 31, 2022, the Company's ownership interest in Zerorez Richmond was 50% and the 
remaining entities were wholly owned. During the Successor period, the Company acquired 50% 
ownership interest in Zerorez VB from a non 4 controlling interest holder for $500,CXX>. In accordance 
with ASC 810, Consolidation ("ASC 81()'') the difference between the consideration paid and 
ownership interest obtained was recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in capital. 

During the beginning of the Predecessor period, the Company1s ownership interest was as follows: 
(1) 58% in Zerorez Bay Area; (2) 58% in Zerorez SWFL; (3) 50% in Ze<orez Richmood; (4) 50% in 
Zerorez VB; (5) 50% in Ze<orez UK through the Company's direct investment in Profectus; and (6) 
the remaining entities were wholly owned. During the Predecessor period, the Company acquired 
50% ownership interest in Zerorez UK from a non-controlling interest holder for approximately 
51,569,000. In accordance with />SC 810, the diffe<ence between the consideration paid and 
ownership interest obtained was recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in capital. As a result 
of the Acquisition, the Company acquired 42% ownership interests in both Zerorez Bay Area and 
Zerorez S\VFL from the non-controlling interest holders. 

In accordance with A5/:., 810, the Company evaluates its interests in variable interest entities on an 
ongoing basis. ff the Company, together with its rela ted parties and de facto agents, is determined 
to have the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the variable interest entity's 
economic performance and has the obligation to absorb losses of the entity or the right to receive 
benefits from the entity that could potentially be significant, the Company is deemed the primary 
beneficiary and consolidates that entity into its financial results. Factors that are considered when 
making the primary beneficiary assessment include whether the Company or its related parties 
participated in the design of the entity, whether the entity's activities either involve or are 
conducted on behalf of the Company or its related parties, whether the Company or its related 
parties have provided more than half of the total equity or subordinated debt, and whethe< the 
Company or its related parties have rights, through voting, board representation, or other 
agreements, to direct the activities that most significantly impact the variable interest entity's 
economic periormance. The Company concluded that it is the primary beneficiary of Zerorez 
Richmond, Zerorez VB and Zerorez UK and accordingly, has consolidated those entities into its 
financial results. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements, in accordance with U.S. GAAP, requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 

The most significant accounting estimates relate to the allowance for doubtful accounts, the 
estimated useful lives and values of depreciable and amortizable assets, the calculation of deferred 
tax.es, estimates to derive the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection 
with business combinations, fair value of contingent consideration from business combinations, and 
assumptions used in determining the fair value of equity-based compensation. Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates and such differences could be material. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments with a maturity of three months or 
less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash Held for Brand Fw,d 

Restricted cash is related to cash that franchisees contribute to the Company's Brand fund. Cash 
contributed by franchisees to the Brand fund is to be used in accordance with the franchise 
agreement for national, regional, and local marketing and advertising of services to increase Brand 
awareness. /Js. such, the restricted cash is required to be set aside and is not available for the 
Company's general business use. 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash from 
the consolidated balance sheet to the statements of cash flows for the Successor period ended 
December 31, 2022: 

December 31 , 

Cash and cash equivalents S 
Restricted cash 
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, as shawn on the 
statements of cash flows S 

Concentrations of Credit Risk 

2022 
(Successor) 

13,439,069 
290,666 

13,729,735 

The Company maintains bank accounts with a banking institution in which the deposits are 
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {"FDIC''). Such deposits may, at times, 
exceed the FDIC insured limit of $250,000 for each account. The Company is subject to credit risk 
to the extent any financial institution with which it conducts business is unable to fulfill contractual 
obligations on its behalf. Management monitors the financial condition of such financial institutions 
and does not anticipate any losses from these counterparties. As of December 31, 2022, there were 
no losses incurred with respect to excess amounts over the FDIC insured limits. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes to Consolidated f inancial Statements 

Acc«mts Receivable 

Accounts receivable represent receivables due from the sale of services to commercial customers 
provided by oompany•owned outlets, deposits in transit from debit and credit card processors, and 
royalties and other fees due from the Company's franchisees. The Company records receivables 
from services provided by company-owned outlets at the time a transaction is completed, which is 
reoorded at net realizable value. Royalty receivables are based on a percentage of the franchisee's 
net sales, as defined in the franchise agreement, payable monthly and include invoiced amounts 
and unbilled amounts to be invoiced in the month subsequent to year-end. 

The Company maintains an allawance for doubtful accounts to reserve for potential uncollectible 
receivables. The balance in the allowance for doubtful accounts was approximately $26,CXX> as of 
December 31, 2022. Accounts receivables are determined to be past due afte< 90days regardless of 
whether partial payments have been received. The Company's policy for charging off receivables 
against the allowance after significant collection efforts have been made or when the financial 
condition of debtors warrants charge-off. 

Notes Rece;vable 

Motes receivable comprise certain initial franchise fees, which are payable under the terms of a 
note receivable agreement that specifies the repayment period and interest charged, and/ or cash 
advances to franchisees or related parties to fund operations or other short·term cash needs. When 
considered necessary, the Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reserve for 
potential uncollectible notes receivable. At December 31 , 2022, the Company determined that a 
reserve against notes receivable was not necessary. 

Property and Equ;pment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost, or fair value when acquired in a business combination, 
less accumulated depreciation. The cost of improvements that enhance the estimated useful life of 
property and equipment are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale, or other disposition of property and 
equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eUminated from the accounts, The cost of 
maintenance and repairs, which are not significant improvements, are expensed when incurred. 

Depreciation and amortization are provided utilizing the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Vehicles 
Leasehold improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Equipment and other 

5 years 
Shorter of lease tenn or 15 years 

5.7 years 
3.7 years 

Property and equipment acquired in a business combination are depreciated over the remaining 
useful life of the asset. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes to Consolidated f inancial Statements 

lntang;ble Assets 

lntang;btes Resulting from Business Combinations 

The Company's intangible assets acquired in the Acquisition are amortized over their period of 
expected benefit, and the useful lives and amortization methods are as follaws: 

Trade name Straight -l ine method 11 years 
Developed technology and 

capitalized software development costs Straight-line method 5 years 

Capitalized Software Development Costs 

The Company capitalizes the costs associated with software development when the preliminary 
project stage is oorrpleted and the software will be used to perform the function intended. lhese 
capitalized costs include external direct costs of services consumed in developing or obtaining 
internal-use software. Capitalization of these costs ceases once the project is substantially 
complete and the software is ready for its intended purpose. Costs incurred for upgrades and 
enhancements to the products are also capitalized. Costs incurred related to less significant 
modifications and enhancements, as well as maintenance, are expensed as incurred. Post­
configuration training and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred . Software development and 
implementation is associated with the Company1s proprietary customer relationship management 
software, which is used by the Company and its franchisees and the Company does not transfer 
ownership to its franchisees. Capitalized software development costs are included within intangible 
assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. 

Capitalized costs during the Successor period and Predecessor period were approximately $208,000 
and $228,000, respectively. Amortization expense related to developed technology, capitalized 
software development costs and trade names was approximately S1,096,000 in the Successor period. 
Amortization expense related to capitalized software development costs was approximately 
$109,000 in the Predecessor period. 

Impairment of Lons•Lived Assets 

The Company reviews its long•lived assets, such as property and equipment, right-of·use ("ROU") 
assets and intangibles subject to amortization, for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability 
of the asset is measured by comparison of its carrying amount to undiscounted future net cash ftO'IN'S 
the asset is expected to generate. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment 
recognized is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair 
value. Estimates of expected future cash flows represent managemenfs best estimate based on 
currently available information and reasonable and supportable assumptions. Any impairment 
recognized is permanent and may not be restored. As of December 31, 2022, the Company 
determined that an impairment did not occur. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the value assigned to assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed in connection with a business combination. 1he Company elected to adopt the 
private company alternative with respect to goodwill, under which goodwill is amortized on a 
straight-line basis over a period not to exceed ten years. The Company also has elected the 
accounting alternative to perform the goodwill impairment triggering event evaluation as of the end 
of the reporting period. 

The Company's policy is to test goodwill for impairment at the entity level whenever one or more 
events oocur, or circumstances indicate a potential impairment exists. Circumstances that could 
require an impairment assessment include, but are not limited to, (i) a significant adverse change 
in legal factors or business climate, (ii) the emergence of increased competition, (iii) an adverse 
action or assessment by a governmental agency or regulator, or (iv) overall financial perlormance 
such as negative or declining cash flows. If that qualitative assessment indicates that it is more 
likely than not that the goodwill is impaired, the entity must perlorm the quantitative test to 
compare the entitfs fair value with its carrying amount, including goodvlill. ff the qualitative 
assessment indicates that it is not more likely than not that goodvlill is impaired, further testing is 
not required. 

The fair value of the entity is estimated using various valuation techniques, including the discounted 
value of estimated future cash flows {an income approach). Assumptions regarding future cash flows 
and growth rates are based on the annual operating budget and long-term plans and discount rate 
assumptions are based on an assessment of the risk inherent in the entity. If the carrying amount 
exceeds its fair value, then the amount of the impairment loss m.tSt be measured. The impairment 
loss represents the excess of the carrying amount of the entity over its fair value and cannot exceed 
the entity's carrying amount of goodwill. As of December 31 , 2022, the Company determined that 
an impairment did not oocur. 

Acc.ounting for Business Combinations 

The Company accounts for acquisitions under ASC 805, Business Combjnatfons ("ASC 805"). Under 
ASC 805, an acquiring entity is required to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, 
and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value as of the acquisition date. 

The determination of fair value involves the use of estimates and assumptions, a long with the 
application of various valuation techniques. lhese estimates may include projections of future cash 
flows related to specific assets and the assessment of future lives based on the expected future 
period of benefit of the asset. The value assigned to goodwill is the residual of the purchase price 
of the fair value of all identifiable assets acquired, excluding assembled workforce {which cannot 
be accounted for separately from goodvlill), less all liabilities assumed and any non-controlling 
interest. Retated acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. 

U.S. GAM> allows an alternative for an entity that does not meet the definition of a public business 
entity to not recognize separately from goodwill customer related intangible assets unless they are 
capable of being licensed independently from the other assets of the business and noncompetition 
agreement. 1he Company has elected to adopt this accounting alterative and has included the fair 
value, if any, of customer relationships and noncompetition agreements as a component of goodwill, 
which is amortized. 

15 

zerorez. 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
Exhibit C: Financial Statements C - 95 4927-0094-0829 

 
  

Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes to Consolidated f inancial Statements 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Corrpany follows the accounting guidance prescribed in A5C 820, Fa;r Value Measurements and 
[)jsclosures ("ASC 820"). Among other requirements, ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a 
framevvork for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about the use of fair value to measure 
assets and liabilities. Fair value is a market-based measure based on the perspective of a market 
participant that holds the asset or owes the liability, rather than an entity-specific measure. 
Therefore, when market assumptions are not readily available, the Company's own assumptions are 
set to reflect those that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability on a 
measurement date. ASC 820 establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that 
maximizes the use of obsetVable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring 
that the observable ill)uts be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources 
independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are ill)uts that reflect the Company's 
assumptions about what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the 
best information available in the circumstances. 1he hierarchy is broken down into three levels 
based on the reliability of inputs as follows: 

Level 1: Observable inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
to which the Company has access at a measurement date. 

Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; these include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 
an active market, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or 
othe< inputs that are obse.-vable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially 
the full term of the assets or liabilities. 

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which little or no market data exists, and for which the Company 
must develop its own assumptions regarding the assumptions that market participants would use in 
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions regarding risk. 

The fair value of the Company's short-term financial instruments, including receivables, prepaid 
and other current assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities, arising in the 
ordinary course of business, approximated their individual carrying amounts due to the relatively 
short period of time between their origination and expected realization. The fair value of the 
Company's line of credit , note payable and notes receivable approximates its canying value as 
interest rates are reflective of market rates. Hon-recurring fair value measurements relate to 
unobservable inputs used in deriving the fair value of certain assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
in connection with business combinations and are classified within Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy. See Hote 4 for further information. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

lnvestmetlts 

Equity 1,\ethod Investments 

Investee companies that are not consolidated, but over which the Company exercises significant 
influence, are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. \Vhether or not the Company 
exercises significant influence with respect to an investee depends on an evaluation of several 
factors including, among others, investee dependence on the investor, and ownership levet, which 
is generally a 20% to 50% interest in the voting securities of the investee company. Under the equity 
method of accounting, an investee oorrpany1s aocounts are not reflected within the Company's 
balance sheet and statement of operations; hawever, the Company1s share of the earnings or losses 
of the investee company is reflected in earnings within other income (expense). 

When the Company's carrying value in an equity method investee company is reduced to zero, no 
further losses are reoorded in the Company's consolidated financial statements unless the Company 
has guaranteed obligations of the investee company or has committed additional funding. \Vhen the 
investee company subsequently reports income, the Company will not reoord its share of such 
income until it equals the amount of its share of losses not previously recognized. 

During the Successor period and Predecessor period, the Company held a 30% ownership in Riverwalk 
Holdings, LL.C. ("Zerorez San Antonio"). As the Company exercises significant influence over 
Zerorez San Antonio the Companfs investment is recorded using the equity method. Accordingly, 
equity method investments are recorded at acquisition cost plus the Company's equity in the 
undistributed earnings or losses of the entity, The Company's proportionate share of losses reported 
for the Successor period and Predecessor period was approximately $16,000 and $38,000, 
respectively. At December 31, 2022, the canying value of equity method investments totaled 
approximately $22,000. 

The following is a summary of the financial position and results of operations for the investment 
accounted for under the equity method as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022: 

Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Total equity (deficit) 
tlet loss 

Cost Method Investments 

s 
s 
s 
s 

283,469 
257,538 
25,871 

(176,028) 

Investee companies not accounted for under the consolidation or equity method of accounting are 
accounted for under the cost method of accounting. Under the cost method, the Company's share 
of the earnings or losses of the investee company are not recorded, and income is only recognized 
to the extent dividends are received from the investee. Impairment charges, if any, are recognized 
when circumstances suggest that the cost of the investment is not recoverable, 

During the Successor period and Predecessor period, the Company held a 15% ownership interest in 
each of Zerorez of Puget Sound, LLC, Zerorez Central Oregon, llC ("Zerorez Oregon") and Letesoft, 
LLC. At December 31, 2022, the carrying value of cost method investments totaled approximately 
$285,000. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes to Consolidated f inancial Statements 

Debt Issuance Costs 

Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with obtaining or modifying debt have been capitalized 
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and are being amortized using the effective 
interest method over the term of the borrowing repayment period, unless the debt obligation is 
terminated earlier, in which case the remaining costs are expensed in the period of termination. 
Debt issuance costs relating to line of credit arrangements are presented as other long-term assets 
and financing costs relating to term loan arrangements are presented as a reduction of long·term 
debt. 

Contract LiabUities 

Amounts received prior to satisfying the revenue recognition criteria are recorded as contract 
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Amounts not expected to be recognized 
within the next twelve months are classified as contract liabilities, net of current portion. During 
the Successor period and the Predecessor period, in total, the Company reoognized approximately 
S357,000 of revenue that was included in the contract liability balance as of January 1, 2022. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company accounts for revenue in accordance with A5C 606, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers ("ASC 606"). Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products and 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive 
in exchange for those products or services. 1he Co"l)any determines the amount of revenue to be 
recognized through application of the following steps: 

Identification of the contract, or contracts with a customer; 
Identification of the perlormance obligation in the contract; 
Determination of the transaction price; 
Allocation of the transaction price to the perlormance obligations in the contract; and 
Recognition of revenue when or as the Company satisfies the performance obligations. 

Company-Owned Outlet Income 

Company-owned outlets provide cleaning services to residential and commercial customers, and 
revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied, which oocurs upon delivery of 
the service to the customer. Revenue recognized excludes sales tax.es collected from customers. 

Franchise Revenues 

The Company's franchise agreement outlines the rights and responsibilities of the Company and its 
franchisees and requires the Company to petform various activities to support the Brand that do not 
directly transfer goods and services to the franchisee. The inteUectual property subject to the 
franchise license is symbolic intellectual property as it does not have significant standalone 
functionality and substantially all of the utility is derived from its association with the Company's 
past or ongoing activities. 
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Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

The nature of the Company's promise in granting the franchise license is to provide the franchisee 
with access to the Brand's symbolic inteUectual property over the term of the license. The services 
provided by the Company are highly interretated with the franchise license and as such, are 
considered to represent a single perlormance obligation. Uonpublic company franchisors may apply 
a practical expedient that permits pre-opening activities provided to a franchisee to be accounted 
for as distinct from the franchise license, if the pre-opening activities are consistent with those 
activities included in a predefined list within the guidance. For the Company, those activities 
primarily relate to training services. The Company has made an accounting policy election to 
account for the pre-opening services as a single bundled performance obligation, as allowed under 
AS( 606. Therefore, the Company has two performance obligations: a franchise license and pre­
opening services. 

The transaction price in a standard franchise arrangement primarily consists of (a) initial franchise 
fees; (b) royalty fees; (c) Brand fund fees; and (d) technology fees. Since the Company considers 
the licensing of the franchising right to be a single petformance obligation, no allocation of the 
transaction price is required. 

The Company recognizes the primary components of the transaction price as follows: 

Royalty Fees and Brand Fund Fees 

Royalties and franchisee contributions to the Brand fund are calculated as a percentage of 
franchisee sales, per percentages as defined in the franchise agreement (currently 6% for royalties 
and 1% up to 3% for Brand fund contributions), over the term of the franchise agreement and 
recorded monthly. Royalties and Brand fund contributions represent sales·based fees that are 
related entirely to the Company's perlormance obligation under the franchise agreement and are 
recognized as franchisee-level sales occur. Royalties are collected monthly and are reflected in 
royalty fee revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Brand fees are 
reflected in Brand fund contributions in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. 

Franchise Fees 

Upon execution of an initial franchise agreement, the Company requires a non-refundable upfront 
franchisee fee ("initial fee"). The franchise agreement defines a specific geographic territory, 
and if the population in the defined territory is in excess of a specific population, the franchisee 
will pay additional non•refundable consideration ("additional territory fee"). The population 
specific to the territory is based on the most recently available U.S. Census. The initial fee and 
additional territory fee allow the franchisee the exclusive right to conduct business within its 
defined tenitory, Terms of the franchise agreement allow the franchisee non-exclusive rights to 
offer products and services outside of their defined territory, as defined. Additionally, the 
Company may seU existing franchisees additional exclusive territories when the franchisee desires 
to expand their presence and/or open additional locations. 1he Company's services under the 
franchise agreement include training of franchisees and staff and ongoing operations support. 

The transaction price the Company is entitled to receive is allocated between the petformance 
obligations (i.e., the pre·opening services and the franchise license) in proportion to its 
standalone selling price. Revenue is recognized for pre-opening services when the bundle of 
services has been completed and satisfied. Revenue allocated to the franchise license is 
recognized ratably on a straight-line basis over the term of the franchise agreement, which is 
generally 10 years. 
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Initial fees are due upon execution of the franchise agreement and the Company may provide 
financing for additional territories purchased, over terms of 24 or 36 months, which are not 
interest bearing unless in default of the terms of the promissory note. The Company determines 
imputed interest at inception of the promissory note, and reoognition of interest income over the 
repayment term, when applicable. 

During the Successor period, the Company recognized approximately SO of pre-opening services 
at a point in time while approximately S253,(XX) of franchise license revenue was recognized over 
t ime. During the Predecessor period, the Company recognized approximately $55,000 of pre­
opening services at a point in time while approximately S271,000 of franchise license revenue 
was recognized over time. 

Techno/0<!\(. Service Fees and Other 

Technology fees for use of the Company1s propriety software and information technology support, 
as defined in the franchise agreement, are charged on a monthly basis to the franchisee. 

Service fees for various training and other services provided by the Company to the franchisee, 
as defined in the franchise agreement, are charged as incurred. 

Other revenues are comprised primarily of agreements with suppliers that entitle the Company 
to receive rebates for required use of certain products by the Company's franchisees as defined 
in the franchise agreement. Rebates are recognized as revenue when earned. 

Fees described above are reflected in technology, service fee and other in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations. During the Successor period, the Company recognized 
approximately $220,00 related to technology fees, and approximately $40,000 related to rebates. 
No service fee revenue was earned. During the Predecessor period, the Corrpany recognized 
approximately $365,000 related to technology fees, approximately $47,000 related to rebates 
and approximately $11 ,000 related to service fees. 

Leases - ASC 842 

On January 1, 2022, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") tlo. 2016·02, 
Leases: Topic 842 ("ASC 842"), and all related amendments using the modified retrospective 
approach. See Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - Current Adoptfon below, which 
discusses the initial adoption of this new standard. 

The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception of a contract . At lease 
commencement, leases are classified as either finance leases or operating leases. A lease is 
classified as a finance lease if any one of the following criteria are met: {1) the lease transfers 
ownership of the undertying asset by the end of the lease term; (2) the lease contains an option to 
purchase the underlying asset that is reasonably certain to be exercised; (3) the lease term is for a 
major part of the remaining economic life of the underlying asset; (4) the present value of the sum 
of lease payments and any guaranteed residual value that is not already included in the lease 
payments equals or exceeds substantially all of the fair value of the unde<lying asset; or (5) the 
underlying asset is of such a specialized nature that is expected to have no alternative use to the 
lessor at the end of the lease term. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not meet 
any one of these aiteria. 
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For leases with an initial term greater than 12 months, a related lease liability is recorded on the 
balance sheet at the present value of future lease payments over the lease term. As the rate implicit 
in the Company's leases is not readily determinable, the Company uses an incremental borrowing 
rate that is estimated to approximate the interest rate the Company would have to pay to borrow 
on a collateralized basis with similar terms and payments in an economic enviro001ent similar to 
where the leased asset is located. The lease liability is determined as the present value of future 
lease payments over the lease term. The ROU asset is reoorded at the initial amount of the lease 
liability, plus any lease payments made to the lessor before or at the lease commencement date 
and any initial direct costs incurred, less any tenant improvement allowance incentives 
received . Lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease. These options are 
included in the lease term when it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. 

The Company elected the practical expedient related to treating lease and non-lease components 
as a single lease component for all leases as well as electing a policy exclusion permitting leases 
with an original lease term of less than one year to be excluded from the ROU assets and lease 
liabilities. 

Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight -line basis over the lease term. Tenant incentive 
allowances received from the lessor are amortized through the ROU asset as a reduction of rent 
expense over the lease term. For finance leases, the ROU assets are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life, unless the terms of the lease 
include a bargain purchase option or transfer ownership at the end of the lease term in which the 
ROU asset is amortized over the estimated useful life. Interest for finance leases is recognized using 
the effective interest method over the lease term. Variable lease payments that are not based on 
an index or that result from changes to an index Slt>sequent to the initial measurement of the 
corresponding lease liability are not included in the measurement of ROU assets or lease liabilities 
and instead are recognized in earnings in the period in which the obligation for those payments is 
incurred. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less {short-term leases) are not recorded on 
the consolidated balance sheet. Short-term lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. 

During the Successor period and Predecessor period, the Company did not have any finance leases. 
See Mote 10 for further informatioo. 

Equity·Based Compensatioo 

Equity-based compensation is accounted for as an expense in accordance with A':£ 
718, Compensation • Stock Compensation ("ASC 718"), which requires compensation cost for the 
grant-date fair value of equity-based awards to be recognized over the requisite service period. For 
awards subject to service conditions, compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period 
on a straight•line basis. The fair value is based on the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model. The 
Company accounts for forfeitures when they oocur, and any compensation expense previously 
recognized on unvested equity•based awards will be reve<sed when foneited. See Mote 13 for 
further information. 
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Income Taxes 

The Company is taxed as a corporation under the provisions of the United States Internal Revenue 
Code. Under those provisions, the Company pays federal, state and foreign income taxes on its 
taxable income. The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S., the U.K., and certain state 
jurisdictions. 1he provision for income taxes represents actual or estimated amounts payable or 
refundable on tax return filings each year. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reoorded for the 
estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities 
and amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, and for opera ting loss and 
tax credit carry forwards and canybacks. The change in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the 
period measures the deferred tax provision or benefit for the period. Effects of changes in enacted 
taw laws on deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected as adjustments to the tax provision of 
benefit for the period of enactment. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets 
when it is determined that it is more likely than not that such assets will not be recovered. 

In accordance with FASS ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, management has evaluated the Company1s 
tax positions and concluded that the Company has taken no material uncertain tax positions that 
require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements to comply with the provisions of this 
guidance. 1he Company is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are 
currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. Penalties and interest, if any, would be reflected 
in general and administra tive expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of opera tions. 

Advertising Costs 

The Company expenses the cost of advertising as incurred. Advertising and marketing expenses in 
the accorrpanying consolidated statements of operations includes approximately S3,480,000 and 
S915,(XX) of advertising costs incurred in the Successor period and Predecessor period, respectively. 

Recendy Issued Acrount;ng Pronouncements - Current Adoption 

On January 1, 2022, the Company adopted ASU Ho. 2016-02, Leases: Topic 842 and all related 
amendments, using the modified retrospective transition method applying the guidance to leases 
existing as of the effective date. The Company elected the package of practical expedients upon 
adoption, which permitted the Company to not reassess the Company's prior conclusions about lease 
identifications, lease classification and initial direct costs. 1he adoption of ASC 842 resulted in the 
reoognition of operating lease ROU assets and operating lease liabilities of approximately $1 ,425,(XX) 
in the Company's consolidated balance sheet. Pre-existing liabilities for deferred rent was de 
minimis and not previously recognized on the consolidated balance sheet. 1he adoption of ASC 842 
did not have a material impact on the Company's results of operations and had no impact on 
accumulated deficit. 

In December 2019, the FASB released ASU 2019·12, Income Tox (Topic 740): Simplifyin~ the 
Account;ng for Income Taxes, which affects general principles within Topic 740, Income Taxes. 1he 
amendments of ASU 2019 4 12 are meant to simplify and reduce the cost of accounting for income 
tax.es. The FASS has stated that the ASU is being issued as part of its Simplification Initiative, which 
is meant to reduce complexity in accounting standards by improving certain areas of U.S. GA/JP 
without compromising information provided to users of financial statements. The standard is 
effective for annual periods beginning afte< December 15, 2021. The Company adopted this 
guidance effective J anuary 1, 2022 on a prospective basis. This adoption did not have a material 
impact on the consolidated financial statements. 
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In October 2021 , the FASS issued ASU 2021 ·08, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for 
Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers. The new guidance requires 
contract assets and contract liabilities acquired in a business combination to be recognized and 
measured by the acquirer on the acquisition date in accordance with A':/:, 606 as if it had originated 
the contracts. Under the current business combinations guidance, such assets and liabilities are 
recognized by the acquirer at fair value on the acquisition date. The new standard is effective for 
the Company in 2023, however, earty adoption is permitted. The Colll)any has elected to earty 
adopt in 2022 and applied the standard to acquired contract assets and liabilities from business 
combinations oocurring after the effective date of adoption. The Company applied the new standard 
to the Acquisition and as such recorded contract liabilities at book value. See Mote 4 for further 
details. The impact in future periods will depend on the contract assets and contract liabilities 
acquired in future business combinations. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Future Adoption 

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016·13, Financial Instruments· Credit Losses: Measurement of 
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (Topic J26), with additional amendments issued 
subsequently. Topic 326 changes the impairment model for most financial assets. The new mode( 
uses a forward-looking expected loss method, which will generally result in earlier recognition of 
allowances for losses. Topic 326 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, 
including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is 
evaluating the impact of adopting this new accounting standard on its consolidated financial 
statements. 

3. Restatement 

The Company's accumulated deficit balance as of January 1, 2022 has been restated to correct 
e<rors in the following accounts as of December 31, 2021: 

1) To increase accounts receivable, net by $482,605 to recognize revenue earned not yet billed; 
2) To increase deferred revenue by $2,566,318 due to errors in revenue recognition associated 

with franchise fees; 
3) To increase notes receivable by $3,232,500 and increase deferred revenue by $3,232,500 to 

recognize franchise fees the Company is entitled to, which was financed under a note 
agreement; 

4) To decrease additional paid-in-capital by $104,370 and increase non-controlling interest by 
$993, 534 to properly recognize non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiaries; 

5) To decrease fixed assets, net by S37'l,851 due to errors in the useful life assigned to 
capitalized internally developed software; 

6) To increase accounts payable and accrued expenses by $148,976 to recognize payroll costs 
incurred but not yet paid. 

The correction of these errors resulted in an increase of $3,501,704 to the accumulated deficit 
balance as of January 1, 2022. The effect of the errors on the 2021 consolidated statement of 
operations would have decreased net income previously of $762,470 by $1,282,908 to a net loss of 
$520,438. 

The Company further identified the previously reported issued and outstanding common shares were 
not complete and accurate and have been restated. 
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4. Business Combinations 

Successor Acquis;tion 

Effective August 15, 2022, Ze<orez acquired 100% of the shares of ZFS and also acquired the assets 
of certain franchisees' of ZFS. The consideration paid consisted of approximately S34.3 million of 
cash paid to the sellers, approximately S15.1 million to repay outstanding selle< debt, rollove< 
equity in the Parent with a fair value of approximately $5 .6 million and contingent consideration 
with a fair value of $7. 7 million. The asset purchase agreement contains contingent consideration 
provisions based on fiscal year 2023 and 2024 adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation 
and amortization ("EBITDA") targets, as defined, for up to S20 million for 2023 and for up to S30 
million for 2024. At the acquisition date and as of Decembe< 31, 2022, the fair value of the 
contingent consideration was $7.7 million, which is reflected in other long·term liabilities. The 
acquisition of the shares of ZFS was completed through a merger by a wholly owned entity of Zerorez 
whereas ZFS continued as the surviving entity. 

The purchase price has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on third· 
party valuation studies and management estimates of their fair value in accordance with A5C 805. 
Fair value estimates are based on complex series of judgements about future events and 
uncertainties and rely heavily on estimates and assumptions. The judgements used to determine 
the estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as 
assets lives and the expected future cash flows and related discount rates, can impact the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. Significant inputs used for the model included the 
amount of cash flows, the expected period of the cash ftO'IN'S, and the discount rates. 

The fair value of the intangible assets was determined using the following methods: 

Trade name 
Developed technology 
Franchising contracts 

Relief from royalty method 
Cost to recreate 
Multi•penod excess earnings method ('"MPEEM") 

Additional assumptions in the valuation of intangibles included an internal rate of return of 19.6%, 
weighted average cost of capital of 19.7%, discount rates of 19 .8%-24.1% and income tax rate of 
25.5% of pre-tax income. For the contingent consideration, fair value was based on unobservable 
inputs using a Black Scholes Option-Pricing Model, with inputs that included estimated amount and 
timing of EBffDA, discount rate of 19.6%, discount factor of approximately 0.71%·0.85%, expected 
term of 0.88·1.88 years, volatility of 40%, and risk•free rate of approximately 3.20%. 

Results of the third-party valuation studies concluded the value associated with the franchising 
contracts were de minimis, and therefore, no value was allocated at Acquisition. 
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The purchase price was allocated as follows: 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 
Accounts and notes receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Property and equipment 
Operating lease right-of-use-assets 
Goodwill 
Developed technology 
Trade name 
Other assets 
AccOll"lts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Ope<ating lease liabilities 
Contract liabilities 
Non-controlling interests 
Total purchase price 

The purchase price was paid as follows: 

Cash paid upon acquisition 
Holdings shares issued to sellers 
Contingent consideration 
Total purchase price 

S 1,477, 571 
2,753,156 

586,740 
16,430,985 
7,703,912 

24,249, 734 
4,938,000 

21,103,000 
543, 311 

(1,081,046) 
(7,703,912) 
(7,905,461 ) 

(385, 593) 
S 62,710, 397 

S 49,358,246 
5,652,151 
7,700,000 

S 62,710, 397 

The Acquisition was funded through a combination of equity contributed by Parent, issuance of 
equity to certain sellers in Parent and borrowings by the Company. 

Acquisition-related costs incurred by Zerorez totaled approximately S2.8 million for the Successor 
period, and acquisition-related costs incurred by ZFS total approximately $4.4 million {which 
includes the change of control bonuses described in Note 12) for the Predecessor period, which is 
reflected in general and administrative expenses. The total amount of goodwill reoognized in the 
Acquisition expected to be deductible for tax is approximately $17,157,000. 

Predecessor Acquisition 

Effective February 23, 2022, ZFS acquired the membership inte<est of Ze<orez Indy for total 
purchase price of approximately S2.4 million, The transaction was funded through a ooni>ination of 
cash and borrowings by ZFS. 

The purchase price has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on 
management estimates of their fair value in aooordance with ASC 805. However, the Company 
determined that the fair value of assets and liabilities were not material and not recognized. 
Therefore, the entire purchase price was allocated to goodwill. The total amOll"lt of goodwill 
recognized of approximately $2.4 million is deductible for tax. 

Acquisition-related costs incurred by ZFS related to the acquisition of Zerorez Indy were de minimis. 
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5. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 

December 31, 

Vehicles 
Leasehold improvements 
Eguipment1 furniture and fixtures, and other 
Property and equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 
Property and equipment, net 

2022 
(Suocessor) 

S 15,545, 530 
840,958 
829,497 

17,215,985 
(2,125,138) 

S 15,090,847 

Depreciation and amortization expense for the Successor period and Predecessor period was 
approximately $2,125,000 and $92,000, respectively. 

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill consisted of the following: 

December 31, 2022 (Succ-essor) 
& oss ( arryi ng Accumulated 

Amount Amortization Net Book Value 

Balance, August 16, 2622 g g g 
Goodwill 24,249, 734 24,249, 734 
Amortization (909, 365) (909, 365) 

Balance, December 31 , 2022 s 24,249,734 s (909, 365) S 23,340, 369 

Goodwill amortization expense for the Successor period and Predecessor period was approximately 
$909,000 and $187,000, respectively. See Mote 4 for goodwill rela ted to an acquisition in the 
Predecessor period, which was approximately $2.4 million. 
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Intangible assets consisted of the following: 

December 31, 2022 (Succ,essor) 

Gross Carrying 
Amount 

Accumulated 
Amortization Net Book Value 

Trade name S 21 ,103,000 S 
Developed technology and 

capitalized software development costs 
Balance, December 31, 2022 S 

5,145, 500 
26,248, 500 S 

(719,420) S 20,383, 580 

(376,842) 
(1,096,262) S 

4,768,658 
25,152,238 

The v.ieighted average remaining useful life of intangible assets as of December 31, 2022 was 
approximately 9.5 years. Based on the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets at December 
31, 2022, and assuming no subsequent impairment charges, the approximate future annual 
amortization expense is expected to be as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
Thereafter 
Total 

7, Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilit ies 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisted of the following: 

December 31, 

Accrued wages and payroll liabilities 
Contract termination liability· current portion 

Sales taxes 
Other accrued expenses 
Total accrued expenses and other liabilities 

8. lines of Credit 

Line of Credit (Successor) 

s,3n , 52s 
5,3n , 52s 
s,3n , 52s 
4,995,686 

22,006,809 
S 48,492,607 

2022 
(Successor) 

S 1,051,318 
350,000 
386,BU 
67, 338 

S 1,855, 544 

Effective August 15, 2022, in coonection with the Acquisition described in Hote 4, the Company 
entered into a credit agreement, which provides a revolving commitment up to $2,500,CXX> through 
maturity on August 15, 2025. The revolving commitment bears interest at a rate per annum equal 
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to the adjusted daily simple secured overnight financing rate ("SOFR") in e ffect, as defined, plus 
an applicable margin between 2. 75% • 3. 75% depending on the Company's leverage ratio, as defined. 
The applicable margin as of December 31, 2022 was 3.50% (total interest rate of 7. 98% at December 
31, 2022). The revolving commitment is secured by substantially all the assets of the Company. At 
December 31, 2022, the outstanding balance under the revolving commitment was S79,299 and 
approximately S2,421,000 was available to be advanced. 

Lines of Credit (Predecessor) 

The Company had a line of credit with availability up to $1 ,000,(XX), interest rate of prime rate plus 
1.25% per annum, and original maturity of June 2022. The revolving commitment was secured by 
substantially all assets of ZFS. The Company had another line of credit with another bank with 
availability up to $1 ,(XX),000, interest rate of prime rate plus 2.0% per annum, and original maturity 
of March 2022. The revolving commitment was secured by sd,stantially all assets of ZFS. 

In connection with the Acquisition described in Note 4, the lines of credit balances outstanding were 
paid in full and not renewed. 

9. Long• Tenn Debt 

Long-Tenn Debt (Successor) 

A summary of long·term debt is as follows: 

December 31, 

Mote payable 
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs 
Uote payable, net of debt issuance costs 
Less: current maturities 
tfotes payable, net of current maturities 

2022 
(Successor) 

S 30,000,000 
(204,081) 

29,795,919 
(4,000,000) 

S 25,795,919 

Effective August 15, 2022, in coonection with the Acquisition described in l'lote 4, the Company 
entered into a credit agreement that provides $32,000,CXX> under a note payable. The note matures 
August 15, 2027, and principal is payable in quarterly installments of S1,000,000, commencing 
September 2022 and increasing to $1 ,200,000 in September 2024 with a balloon payment of 
$9,600,000 payable at maturity. The note bears interest at a rate per annum equal to the SOFR in 
effect, as defined, plus an applicable margin between 2. 75% to 3. 75% depending on the Company's 
leverage ratio, as defined, The applicable margin as of December 31, 2022 was 3.50% (total interest 
rate of 7. 98% at December 31, 2022), The note payable is secured by substantially all the assets of 
theColll)any. 

The credit agreement contains certain financial covenants. As of December 31, 2022, the Company 
was in compliance with these covenants. See tfote 16 for subsequent violations and waivers obtained 
from the lender, including an amendment to the credit agreement. 
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Scheduled future principal maturities of the note payable, excluding unamortized debt issuance 
costs, are as follO'W"S: 

Year Ended December 31, 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
Total 

Long-Term Debt (Predecessor) 

s 

s 

4,000,000 
4,400,000 
4,800,000 
4,800,000 

12,000,000 
30,000,000 

ZFS entered into three six-year financing notes payable for the acquisition of vehicles for its Tulsa 
operations during 2018. Interest rates on these notes payable range from 6.5% to 6.8% with interest 
payable monthly. Fixed monthly principal payments are through maturity and the notes were 
oollateralized by the respective vehicles. 

During 2020, ZFS entered into the Economic Injury Disaster Loan {"EIDL") program and received 
$149,900. The EIDL loan bore interest at 3. 75% per annum and matured in 30 years of receipt. The 
Mote may be prepaid by ZFS at any time prior to maturity with no prepayment penalties. 

In connection with the Acquisition described in Hote 4, all long-term debt outstanding was paid in 
full. 

Related·Party Debt (Predecessor) 

During 2020, ZFS acquired a controlling interest in Zerorez Bay Area and Zerorez Charlotte of which 
$440,000 and $6()(),000, respectively, was financed through a note payable to the sellers. The note 
payable to the Zerorez Bay Area sellers bore interest at 5.25% per annum with principal payments 
over six years and was unsecured . The note payable to the Zerorez Charlotte sellers bore interest 
at 5.0% per annum with principal payment over three years and was unsecured. During 2021 , ZFS 
acquired a controlling interest in Zerorez SWFL of which $57,(XX) was financed through a note 
payable to the sellers. The note payable to the Zerorez SWFL sellers bore interest at 5.0% per 
annum, with principal payments over three years and was unsecured . 

During 2021, as a result of a minority investment into Zerorez Oregon and Zerorez San Antonio, a 
portion of ZFS's purchase price was funded by note payable agreements in the amount of S200,(XX) 
and S50,CXX>, respectively. 1he note payable agreements were interest free and payable at maturity 
two years from initial investment and unsecured. 

During 2022, ZFS acquired the membership interest in Zerorez Indy of which $2,200,000 was 
financed through an unsecured note payable from a shareholder of ZFS. The note payable bore 
interest at a rate of 6.25% per anm.1n and was due upon demand. 
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During 2022, Zerorez Indy entered into two unsecured note payable agreements with the seller of 
Zerorez Indy of approximately $158,000 and $50,000, respectively, The note payables bore interest 
at 8% and 6%, respectively, and required monthly payments of principal and interest of 
approximately S5,000 and approximately $1,500, respectively, which commenced in March 2022. 
Maturity is February 2025. 

During 2022, ZFS was advanced a total of $870,000 of short·temi funding from 
executives/shareholders of ZFS for working capital needs. The advances were unsecured and 
contained no stated interest. However, upon extinguishment of the principal amounts in connection 
with the Acquisition, ZFS incurred $352,000 which is reflected as interest expense in the Predecessor 
period. 

In connection with the Acquisition described in Hote 4, a ll rela ted party debt outstanding was paid 
in full. 

10. l eases 

The Company leases facilities for its operating activities and vehicles under various non-cancellable 
operating lease agreements. lease terms of the facilities primarily range from approximately 5-10 
years {subject to elective extension) and generally provide for escalation in base rents. The majority 
of the facility leases contain one or more options to renew the lease at the Company's discretion. 
Generally, the Company does not consider any additional renewal periods to be reasonably certain 
of being exercised. l ease maturity dates range from 2023 to 2032. 

The Companfs lease costs are as follows: 

eratmg ease expense 
Variable lease expense 
Short term lease expense 
Total lease expense 

August 16, 2022 
through 

December 31, 2022 
(Successor) 

l ease expense is classified within general and administrate expenses. 
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J anuary 1, 2022 
through 

August 15, 2022 
(Predecessor) 

27,424 
16,466 

620,867 

zerorez. 



2025 Franchise Disclosure Document   
Exhibit C: Financial Statements C - 110 4927-0094-0829 

  

Zerorez, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Successor) and 
Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Predecessor) 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

The maturity analysis of the operating lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022, is as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
Thereafter 
Total minimum lease payments 
Less lease payments representing interest 
Uet present value of operating lease liabilities 
Less current portion 
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 

S 2,005,750 
1,893,626 
1,379,692 
1,079,360 

884,819 
1,293,473 
8,536, n O 
(1,385,235) 
7,151,485 
(1,574, 714) 

S 5,576,771 

The following summarizes the weighted•average remaining lease term and weighted-average 
discount rate on long-term leases: 

As of December 31, 

Weighted average remaining lease term (in years) 
Operating leases 

Weighted average discount rate 
Operating leases 

2022 
( ·uccessor) 

5.2 

6.9% 

The following provides supplemental information retated to the Company's consolidated statements 
of cash flows: 

August ·16, 2022 
through 

December 3·1, 2022 
(Successor) 

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement 
of lease liabilities: 

()pe<ating cash flows S 708,708 S 

Right·of·use assets obtained in exchange for 
new lease liabilities: 

()pe<ating leases s 
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January 1, 2022 

through 
August 15, 2022 

(Predecessor) 

497,020 

1,656,816 
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11. Income Taxes 

Components of the provision for income tax expense consisted of the following: 

urrent expense 

Deferred (benefit) expense 
Income tax benefit (expense) s 

August 16, 2022 
through 

December 3·1, 2022 
(Successor) 

s 

January 1, 2022 
through 

August 15, 2022 
(Predecessor) 

The Company's effective tax rate during the Successor period and Predecessor period differs from 
the federal statutory rate of 21% primarily due to the effect of changes in valuation allowance, non­
deductible acquisition-related costs, and non-deductible portion of goodwill. /Js of December 31, 
2022, the carrying value of the non·deductible portion of goodwill was approximately $4, 121 ,000. 

The deferred tax assets (liabilities), net consisted of the following: 

December 31 2022 
Deferred tax assets: (Successor) 

Met ope.-ating losses s 2,S'l'l,029 
Contract liabilities and other liabilities 3,208,332 
Operating lease liability 1,750,489 
Other 6,323 

Total defe<red tax assets 7, 564,173 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Operating lease right-of-use-assets (1,743,749) 
Property and equipment (643,912) 
Intangible assets (500,071 ) 
Other (112,41 0) 

Total defe.-red tax liabilities (3,000,142) 
Deferred taxes, net before valuation allowance 4,564,031 
Less: valuation allowance (4,564,031) 
Deferred taxes, net s 

The Company reoognizes deferred tax assets to the extent it believes, based on available evidence, 
that it is more likely than not that they will be realized. In making such determination, the Company 
considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable 
terrporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies, and recent results 
of ope<ations. As of Dece.-nbe< 31, 2022, the Corrpany had gross fede<al and state operating losses 
("l'IOL.s") of approximately $10,068,000 and $2,101,000, respectively, and approximately $1,649,000 
of foreign tlOL.s. Federal l'IOL.s arising in tax years prior to 2018 will expire commencing in 2024 
through 2033 and Federal NOLs arising in tax years in 2018 forward do not expire but may only be 
used against taxable income up to 80% per year. Certain state NOLs will expire commencing in 2022 
through 2037 and certain State tlOL.s do not expire. The foreign NOLs do not expire. 
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Utilization of the NOL.s may be subject to an anooal limitation due to the awnership percentage 
change limitations provided under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC') of 1986, as 
amended, and the percentage of taxable income limitations provided under Section 1n of the IRC. 
Similar state provisions may apply. 

Increases in the valuation allawance during the Successor period and Predecessor period were 
approximately S1,064,000 and S2,068,000, respectively. 

For the Successor period and Predecessor period, the Company did not recognize any significant 
interest or penalties resulting from income taxes. 

12. Commitments and Conti ngencies 

Royalty Rea/location Termination and Settlement Asreement (Successor) 

In periods prior to 2022, ZFS entered into a series of agreements in which recurring royalties and 
Brand fund cont ribution fees payable by four franchisees to ZFS were reallocated to an affiliated 
entity ("Royalty Reallocation Agreement"). At the time of the Acquisition, Zerorez and the parties 
to the Royalty Reallocation Agreement executed a Termination and Settlement Agreement providing 
for the tennination of all rights and obligations under the Royalty Reallocation Agreement. As 
consideration for the Termination and Settlement Agreement, ZFS agreed to pay an annual amount 
of S350,000 payable in twelve monthly payments corr.nencing August 31, 2022 until the earlier of 
July 31, 2030 or the closing of a future qualified sale of ZFS. Upon closing of a future qualified sale 
of ZFS, ZFS would owe an amount equal to $6,500,(XX) minus the aggregated amount of installment 
payments made to date, provided in no event that the amount will be less than S5, 500,000 ("Buyout 
Payment"). In the event that gross revenue of the four franchisees declines by more than 20% on a 
year over year basis to the prior fiscal year, the annual installment payments shall be reduced by 
the same percentage. Further, in the event that either a future sale of ZFS has not occurred prior 
to July 31, 2030, or the proceeds from a future sale of ZFS are not sufficient to make the Buyout 
Payment, then commencing oo August 1, 2030 and continuing until the earlier of (a) full payment 
of the Buyout Amount or (b) December 12, 2054, ZFS will pay monthly payments based on a 
percentage of gross revenue of the four franchisees, as defined. 

The Company evaluated the requirements of A5C 805 and determined the Termination and 
Settlement Agreement was executed to primarily benefit Zerorez, rather than ZFS or its former 
owners, and is a separate transaction that should be accounted for separately from the business 
combination in the Successor period as a termination cost under the requirements of ASC 420, Ex;t 
or Disposal Cost Obli!lations (" ASC 420"). />SC 420 requires recognition of a liability for costs to 
terminate a contract when the entity terminates, using an expected present value technique when 
uncertainties exist in the timing or amount. The Company estimated the present value of the 
liability a t time of termination to be approximately S5,490,(XX), which was recorded as an expense 
within general and administrative expenses. During the Successor period, the Company paid 
approximately S146,(XX) of installment payments and incurred interest expense of approximately 
S141,000. At December 31, 2022, the liability was approximately $5,486,000, of which $350,000 is 
presented as current in accrued expenses and other liabilities and S5, 136,000 presented as long­
term in other long-term liabilities. 
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Transition Services Agreement (Successor) 

In connection with the Acquisition described in Hote 4, Zerorez entered into transition service 
agreements (''TSA") with the seller's party to the asset purchase agreement. The TSA primarily 
allowed Zerorez to lease the existing employees at the acquired outlets to perform their regular 
duties. Zerorez reimbursed the sellers all related wage expenses incurred at cost. On January 1, 
2023, all leased employees were converted to employees of Zerorez. 

Litigation 

From time to time, the Company is involved in various lawsuits, claims and inquiries that arise in 
the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, any liability that may result of any 
adverse outcomes of these actions is not expected to be material. 

Change of Control Booos (Predecessor) 

In connection with the Acquisition described in Note 4, ZFS incurred change of control bonuses to 
key employees of approximately SJ, 987,000, which is recorded in general and administrative 
expenses in the Predecessor period. Change of control bonuses were either required by existing 
employment agreements or incurred at the discretion of ZFS. 

13. Equity 

Articles of Incorporation (Successor) 

The total number of shares that Zerorez is authorized to issue is 100 shares of common stock having 
a par value of $1 per share. All issued and outstanding shares in Zerorez are held by the Parent. 

Articles of Incorporation (Predecessor) 

Based on the most recent amended and restated articles of incorporation, the total number of 
shares that ZFS was authorized to issue was 90,000,(XX) shares of common stock having a par value 
of S0.0001 per share and authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock having a par value 
of S0.001. llo shares of preferred stock had been issued from inception to date. All previously issued 
and outstanding common stock in ZFS were exchanged for cash and Slt>sequently canceled in 
connection with the Acquisition. 

Equity·Based Compensation (Successor) 

In accordance with the limited liability company agreement of the Parent, the board may grant up 
to 870 Oass P Profits Units ("Profits Units") in the Parent to key employees of the Company under 
the Profit Interests Plan dated September 23, 2022 (the "Plan"). The purpose of the Plan is to 
promote the profitability and success of the Company by providing key personnel of the Company 
with incentives to contribute to the growth and financial success of the Company, The board 
establishes a participation threshold and vesting conditions for each unit. 

During the Successor period, the Parent granted a total of 705 Profits Units to four key employees 
as outlined herein. In September 2022, 487.50 Profits Units granted to three employees, we<e fully 
vested upon grant and are forleited and canceled upon termination of service. The Company 
determined the September 2022 Profits Units granted do not represent a substantive class of equity 
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and are accounted for under the provisions of ASC 710, Compensation, whereas they are recognized 
as a liability when payment is both probable and reasonably estimable. Currently, any potential 
payment to be made to holders of the September 2022 Profits Units is not yet probable nor 
reasonably estimable, therefore, no liability or expense has been recognized in these consolidated 
financial statements. At December 31, 2022, 487.50 of the September 2022 Profits Units are 
outstanding. 

In October 2022, 217.50 Profi ts Units were granted to one employee and vest as follows: 40% in J uly 
2023, 20% in J uly 2024, 15% in July 2025, and 10% in each July 2026 and July 2027. Upon a change 
of control event, as defined, all unvested Profits Units shall imnediately beoome vested. Upon 
termination of service, vested Profits Units can be retained by the employee or repurchased at fair 
value by the Company, at the Company's election. The Col1l)any determined the October 2022 
Profits Units granted do represent a substantive class of equity and are accounted for under the 
provisions of ASC 718, Compensation • Stock Compensation. The Octobe< 2022 Profits Units were 
fair valued based on the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model, which values all classes of equity as a 
call option on the enterprise value of the Company and is recorded as compensation expense on a 
straight-line basis over the requisite service period. 

Significant inputs in the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model for Profits Units granted in 2022 is 
summarized below: 

Strike price (hurdle amount per unit) 
Expected volatility 
Expected term in years 
Risk-free rate 

s 6,947.30 
63.2% 

5.0 
3.84% 

In the future, the Company may elect to use different assumptions under the Black Scholes Option· 
Pricing h\odel or a different valuation model, which could result in a significantly different impac t 
on earnings. 

Expected Volatility 

The Company uses the volatility of peer group public companies to estimate the volatility 
assumptions used. 

Expected Term 

The Company utilizes an expected holding period to estimate the expected term. 

Risk·Free Rate 

The Company bases the risk-free interest rate on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time 
of grant, based on the expected te<m. 
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The grant date fair value of the October 2022 Profits Units granted was determined by the Company 
to be approximately $1 ,98 per unit . Approximately $22,00'.> has been recognized as equity•based 
compensation expense during the Successor period, which is reflected in general and administrative 
expenses. At December 31, 2022, there was approximately $409,000 of unrecognized equity•based 
compensation expense, which is expected to be recognized over a period of approximately 4.8 
years. At December 31, 2022, 217.50 of the October 2022 Profits Units are outstanding and unvested. 

Equity·Based Compensation (Predecessor) 

In January 2022, the Company granted key employees 9n,500 of stock options to purchase shares 
of common stock for an exercise price of S0.01 per share and vested based on the terms of the 
individual option agreements, 

Significant inputs in the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model for options granted in January 2022 is 
summarized below: 

Expected volatility 
Expected term in years 
Risk•free rate 

63.2% 
5.0 

1.26% 

The grant date fair value of the January 2022 options was determined by the Company to be 
approximately S0.03 per share. Prior to the Acquisition, all of the options were canceled, and 
compensation expense related to the unvested options was expensed. Total compensation expense 
related to the January 2022 options was approximately $29,CXX>, which is reflected in general and 
administrative expenses. 

Stock Issued (Predecessor) 

During 2022, ZFS granted certain members of the board 1,200,00'.) shares of common stock for 
advisory services provided in lieu of cash. Compensation cost was recorded based on the estimated 
fair value of the stock received in exchange for services, which was approximately $42,000. During 
2022, ZF5 granted certain members of the board 1,600,00'.) shares of common stock for personal 
guarantees provided on a loan that originated and was extinguished in 2022 with a bank. The value 
of the shares was determined to be approximately S56,CXX> and was recognized as debt issuance 
costs and expensed to interest upon extinguishment of the loan in 2022. 

14. Related•Party Transactions 

Management Agreement (Successor) 

Pursuant to a management services agreement between the Company and an affiliate, the Company 
shall pay a quarterly management fee equal to the greater of $62,500 or 5% of consolidated adjusted 
EBITDA, as defined, with a cap of S750,CXX> each calendar year. Upon the consummation of a future 
acquisition resulting in a material increase to consolidated adjusted EBITDA, the cap will increase, 
as defined. Further, the Company reimbursed the affiliate for certain expenses as invoiced by the 
affiliate related to shared expenses or transaction related costs incurred in connection with the 
Acquisition. The term of the management sentices agreement shall expire upon notice to the 
Company by the affiliate, upon an initial public offering, or upon the consummation of a sale of the 
Company, as defined. 
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Total costs incurred by Zerorez under the management services agreement totaled approximately 
S1,221,000 relating to the following: (1) approximately S224,000 for the management fee, and (2) 
approximately $997,000 related to transaction-related costs incurred connection with the 
Acquisition. 

Franchisees Operated by Related Parties 

During the Successor period and Predecessor period, the Company reoorded revenue associated with 
royalty fees, Brand fund contributions, franchisee fees and technology, service and other fees 
related to franchise outlets operated by affiliates, executives and/or stockholders of the Company 
of approximately S128,000 and S1, 164,000, respectively. 

At December 31, 2022, related party notes receivable owed from franchise outlets operated by 
affiliates was approximately $145,000. 

Intellectual Property ("IP") License Agreement /Predecessor) 

In January 2017, ZFS assigned the trademarks, patents, system, manuals and other intellectual 
property necessary to operate the franchise business to ZIP, which was owned by certain 
stockholders of ZFS. ZIP licenses the franchise IP to ZFS pursuant to an exclusive license agreement 
dated January 1, 2017, at S5,000 per month. During the Predecessor period, the Company incurred 
S35,000 under this license agreement. In connection with the Acquisition, ZIP became a wholly 
owned entity of Zerorez, and the fee incurred has been eUminated in consolidation. 

Other 

Certain note payable balances outstanding in the Predecessor period were with related parties 
(primarily executives and stockholders). See Mote 9 for furthe< information. 

An affiliated entity provides software development and maintenance services to the Company. 
During the Successor period, the Company incurred costs of approximately $397,500 of which 
S207,500 was capitalized to software development costs and approximately S190,000 was expensed 
and is reflected in general and administrative expenses. During the Predecessor period, the 
Company incurred costs of approximately $429,000 of which approximately S228,000was capitalized 
to software development costs and approximately S201,(XX) was expensed and is reflected in general 
and administrative expenses. 

Certain affiliated entities provide certain marketing services to the Company's franchisees and 
company-owned outlets. During the Successor period and Predecessor period, the Company incurred 
approximately S1,878,(XX) and $119,(XX) of costs, respectively, which is reflected in advertising and 
marketing expenses. At December 31, 2022, approximately $409,000 is included in accounts 
payable. 

During the Successor period and Predecessor period, the Company incurred board of director fees 
of S12,000 and Sn,000, respectively. 

The Company leases certain facilities from entities controlled by certain stockholders and during 
the Successor period and Predecessor period, the Company incurred lease costs of approximately 
$455,000 and $63,000, respectively. 
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15. Summary of Franchised and Company.Owned Outlet s 

The following is a summary of changes in the number of franchised and company-owned outlets 
during calendar year 2022: 

I otal, January 1, 2621 
Opened 
Terminations/ ceased operations 
Reaquired by franchisor 

Total, December 31 , 2022 

16. Subsequent Events 

Franchisees 
64 

7 
(4) 

(14) 
53 

Company-Owned 
Outlets 

6 

14 
20 

Total 
)6 
7 

(4) 

73 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through October 11 , 2023, which is the date these 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. There were no material subsequent 
events that required reoognition or additional disclosure, other than the matters disclosed below. 

Effective January 1, 2023, the Company adopted a 401 (k) profit sharing plan for eligible employees 
that provides for employer matching contributions. 

In February 2023, ZFS divested its 30% ownership in Zerorez San Antonio and consideration to be 
received is at an amount of ZFS's original investment, which is payable under a promissory note 
over a period of approximately 10 years and bears interest at 4% per annum. 

In April 2023, ZFS relinquished its 15% ownership in Ze<orez Puget Sound, LLC and at the same time 
amended the existing franchise agreement with Zerorez Puget Sound, LLC to increase the royalty 
rate by 1%, effective January 1, 2024, over the remaining term of the franchise agreement. 

In April 2023, ZFS acquired the assets of the Jacksonville franchise ope<ations for approximately 
S1. 9 million and includes contingent consideration provisions based on the achievement of specified 
EBITDA targets for 2023 and 2024, as defined. The transaction was funded by cash. 

In Septembe< 2023, the Corrpany entered into a first amendment to the credit agreement to: (i) 
waive nonoorrpliance with financial covenants for certain periods in 2023; {ii) amend certain 
definitions; (iii) amend certain financial covenant requirements on a foiward basis; and (iv) require 
an additional payment of approximately $2.8 million on the note payable. In connection with the 
first amendment, the Company incurred an amendment fee of S50,(XX). 

In September 2023, the Company entered into a new lease agreement for corporate office space in 
American Fork, Utah. The future minimum lease payments required under the signed lease 
agreement are approximately S2.0 million. The lease is expected to commence in January 2024 with 
a lease term of approximately 7.5 years. 
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ZEROREZ FRANCHISEE LOCATIONS 

NAME ADDRESS STATE 
TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 

Zerorez of Huntsville 
ZeroHolding, LLC 

2511 Hall Ave. 
Huntsville, AL 35805 

Alabama 256-430-4040 

Zerorez of Northern 
Arizona 

Oak Creek Ranch 
Cleaning LLC 

1450 N. Page Springs Rd. 

Cornville, AZ 86325 

Arizona 928-432-6999 

Zerorez of Tucson 
Zerorez of Tucson, LLC 

1870 W Prince Road,  
Bldg. E, #60 
Tucson, AZ 85705 

Arizona 520-441-2441 

Zerorez San Diego 
Aqua Care of San Diego, 
Inc. 

14055 Kirkham Way #103 
Poway, CA 92064 

California 858-486-4100 

Zerorez of Greater 
Sacramento 
Easy Street Sacramento, 
LLC 

8173 Belvedere Ave, Ste. B 
Sacramento, CA 95826 

California 916-454-2103 

Zerorez Sonoma 
Zerorez of the North Bay, 
Inc. 

1851 Piner Road, Ste. B 
Santa Rosa, CA 94503 

California 707-585-2677 

Zerorez Northern 
Colorado 
Zerorez Northern 
Colorado, LLC 

255 42 Street SW.  
Loveland, CO 80537 

Colorado 970-613-9376 

Zerorez Orlando 
First Coast Zerorez, LLC 

602 S. Lake Pleasant Rd. 
Apopka, FL 32703 

Florida 407-232-9188 

Zerorez Volusia County 
Daytona 

512 Fentress Blvd., Ste. J 

Daytona, FL 32114 

Florida 386-222-0260 

Zerorez of Northwest 
Florida 

110 Bailey Dr. 

Niceville, FL 32578 

Florida 850-853-9376 

Zerorez of Tampa 
Zerorez of Tampa, Inc. 

5817 N. 56th Street North 
Tampa, FL 33610 

Florida 813-345-4178 

Zerorez Treasure Coast 8314 Madison Ave, Kansas 
City, MO 64114 

Florida 913-633-9409 
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NAME ADDRESS STATE 
TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 

Zerorez Atlanta 
Zerorez of Atlanta One, 
Inc.  

6145 Northbelt Pkwy. NW, 
Ste. A 
Norcross, GA 30071 

Georgia 770-242-1313 

Zerorez Augusta 6145 Northbelt Parkway NW, 
Ste A 
Norcross, GA 30071 

Georgia 770-242-1313 

Zerorez of Savannah  3 Wolf Creek Cove 

Bluffton, SC 29910 

Georgia 843-226-0637 

Zerorez Boise 
Zerorez Boise, LLC 
 

272 N. Maple Grove Rd. 
Boise, ID 83704 

Idaho 208-383-1000 

Zerorez Idaho Falls 1626 Hollipark Dr. 

Idaho Falls, ID 83401 

Idaho 208-383-1000 

Zerorez Twin Falls 2263 E 4195 North 

Filer, ID 83328 

Idaho 208-420-9382 

Zerorez Des Moines 
Zerorez Iowa, LLC 

1975 NW 92nd Court, Ste. 1 
Clive, IA 50325 

Iowa 515-327-9000 

Zerorez Wichita 3601 West Harry Street #5 

Wichita, KS 67213 

Kansas 515-327-9000 

Zerorez Louisville 
 

2028 Kentucky 53, Ste. 3327 
La Grange, KY 40031 

Kentucky 502-909-3990 

Zerorez Lexington 6145 Northbelt Parkway NW, 
Ste A 

Norcross, GA 

Kentucky 770-242-1313 

Zerorez Grand Rapids 

C&C Green Clean 
Company, LLC 

6696 Edgefield 

Portage, MI 49024 

Michigan 616-288-4644 -  

Zerorez of Kansas City 
Zerorez Kansas City, 
LLC 

1221 W. 103rd St., Ste. 198 
Kansas City, MO 64114 

Missouri 816-425-3655 

Zerorez of Omaha 
OM Group, LLC 

10533 Chandler Rd., Ste. 105 
La Vista, NE 68128 

Nebraska 402-933-1988 

Zerorez Las Vegas 
Zerorez Las Vegas, LLC 

7540 Dean Martin Dr., Ste. 
503 
Las Vegas, NV 89139 

Nevada 702-567-0016 

Zerorez Long Island 
Steam Away, LLC 

8 Jeffery Road 
Oakdale, NY 11769 

New York 631-682-1251 
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ZEROREZ FRANCHISEE LOCATIONS 

NAME ADDRESS STATE 
TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 

Zerorez Asheville 1514 Asheville Springs Cir. 
Asheville, NC 28806 

North Carolina 826-209-7000 

Zerorez Fargo 
Zerorez Fargo ND, LLC 

47421 Delight Drive 
Frazee, MN 56544 

North Dakota 701-566-8827 

Zerorez Cincinnati 
Zerorez of Cincinnati, 
Inc. 

11711 Princeton Pike, Ste. 
341-140 
Cincinnati, OH 45246 

Ohio 513-845-0151 

Zerorez Oklahoma City 
ZeroHolding, LLC 

14320 N. Lincoln Blvd., Ste. 
418 
Edmund, OK 73013 

Oklahoma 405-606-7030 

Zerorez of Portland 
 

2168 SE Steele St. 
Portland, OR 97202 

Oregon 503-946-6955 

Zerorez Central Oregon 
 

156 S. 20th St., Unit F 
Springfield, OR 97478 

Oregon 541-988-9376 

Zerorez Pottstown 75 C Industrial Parkway 

Pottstown, PA 19464 

Pennsylvania 610-496-7779 

Zerorez Charleston 
ZR Charleston, LLC 

5513 Rivers Ave.  
Charleston, SC 29406 

South Carolina 843-352-7545 

Zerorez Greenville 
Zerorez of Greenville, 
LLC 

2001 Perimeter Rd., Ste. A 
Greenville, SC 29650 

South Carolina 864-558-7300 

Zerorez of Columbia 
Zerorez of Columbia, 
LLC 

100 Old Cherokee Rd., Ste. 
336 
Lexington, SC 29072 

South Carolina 803-262-4020 

Zerorez Myrtle Beach 4983 Socastee Blvd. 

Myrtle Beach, SC 29588 

South Carolina 910-946-5006 

Zerorez Hilton Head 3 Wolf Creek Cove 

Blufftown, SC 29910 

South Carolina 843-371-1472 

Zerorez Chattanooga 

Zerorez of Chattanooga, 
Inc. 

50 Frazier Ac, Suite 300-A 

Chattanooga, TN 37405 

 

Tennessee 770-242-1313 

Zerorez Knoxville 5923 Kingston Pike, Ste. 201 

Knoxville, TN 37919 

Tennessee 865-816-5250 

Zerorez Nashville 
ZeroHolding, LLC 
 

604 Airpark Center Dr. 
Nashville, TN 37217 

Tennessee 615-535-9376 
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ZEROREZ FRANCHISEE LOCATIONS 

NAME ADDRESS STATE 
TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 

Zerorez Johnson City 6145 Northbelt Parkway NW, 
Ste A 

Norcross, GA 

Tennessee 770-242-1313 

Zerorez Houston 
Zerorez – Houston, LLC 

6529 Cunningham Rd., Ste. 
2205 
Houston, TX 77041 

Texas 281-305-4804 

Zerorez of Austin 
OWO, LLC  

1011 S. Heatherwilde Blvd., 
Ste. 230 
Pflugerville, TX 78660 

Texas 512-290-9990 

Zerorez San Antonio 

Riverwalk Holdings, LLC 

10415 Perrin Beitel Rd., Ste. 
103 
San Antonio, TX 78217 

Texas 726-666-0440 

Zerorez Lubbock 8212 Ithica Ave Suite 11 

Lubbock, TX 79423 

Texas 806-828-8644 

Zerorez Corpus Christi 410 Broadmoor Ln 

Ovilla, TX 75154 

Texas 909-300-3769 

Zerorez Davis Weber 
Zerorez of Davis Weber, 
LLC 

803 N. 1250 W., Ste. 5 
Centerville, UT 84014 

Utah 801-295-7400 

Zerorez Cache Valley 
Cache Valley, LLC 

5355 W. 16800 N. 
Garland, UT 84312 

Utah 435-554-1050 

Zerorez of St. George 
Ventures in Partnership, 
LLC 

1411 E. Ridge St., Unit 1 
St. George, UT 84780 

Utah 435-215-1175 

Zerorez Wasatch Back 570 East 2950 North, Provo, 
UT 84604 

Utah 385-224-5599 

Zerorez of DC Metro 
Ashburn Service 
Associates, LLC 

23590 Overland Dr., Ste. 140 
Sterling, VA 20166 

Virginia 703-382-1221 

Zerorez Tri-Cities 
T450N, LLC 

1355 Dakota Ave. 
Richland, WA 99352 

Washington 509-582-9000 

Zerorez Puget Sound 
Puget Sound Investment 
Capital Inc. 

708 Industry Dr.  
Tukwila, WA 98188 

Washington 425-453-9376 

Zerorez of Moses Lake 909 5th Ave NE 

Ephrata, WA 98823 

Washington 509-888-5885 
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ZEROREZ FRANCHISEE LOCATIONS 

NAME ADDRESS STATE 
TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 

Zerorez Madison 

Zerorez Madison, LLC 

1155 Clarity St., #205 
Verona, WI 53593 

Wisconsin 608-848-9000 

The following franchisees signed a franchise agreement in 2024 or earlier but were not open for business 
as of December 31, 2024: 

ZEROREZ UNOPENED FRANCHISEE LOCATIONS 

NAME ADDRESS STATE 
TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 

Zerorez Missoula 2813 Sinks Canyon, Rd., 
Lander, WY 82520 

Montanna 801-644-2887 

Zerorez Medford 1320 Butte St., Corning, CA, 
96021 

Oregon 541-988-9376 

Zerorez Waukesha 8173 Belvedere Ave, Ste. B 
Sacramento, CA 95826 

Wisconsin 916-454-2103 

Zerorez Palm Beach 3214 Tuscany Way 

Boynton Beach, FL 33435 

Florida 954-551-4546 

Zerorez Cape Cod 212 Lothrop Ave 
Harwich, MA 02645 

Massachusetts 774-209-1371 

Zerorez Naperville 3735 Nicanoa Lane 
Naperville, IL 60564 

Illinois 630-839-9339 

Zerorez Coos Bay 63731 Foghorn Dr  

Coos Bay OR 97420 

Oregon 541-982-4599 

The following franchisee transferred ownership of its franchise in 2024 to us but continues to 
operate as Executive Managers, employees of ZEROREZ: 

NAME CITY, STATE TELEPHONE NUMBER 

Zerorez of SoCal Irvine, California 714-272-6512 

 

The following franchisees were terminated or ceased operations during 2024: 
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NAME CITY, STATE 
TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 

Garrett Davis1 Columbus, Ohio 714-292-8498 

John Falls Miami Florida 801-644-2887 

John Falls Kaneohe, Hawaii 808-636-1205 

Jeffrey Bone Memphis, Tennessee 901-673-7789 

 
Note 1 – This franchisee signed an agreement but never opened for business and was not listed in Item 20. 
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EXHIBIT E 

GUARANTEE OF PERFORMANCE 

  

zerorez. 
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EXHIBIT F  

STATE-SPECIFIC ADDENDA 
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

NOTE:  THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF 
ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE 
DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. 

As a supplement to the information disclosed in this Disclosure Document, the following 
additional paragraphs are added: 

1. The Department of Financial Protection and Innovation requires that the franchisor defer 
the collection of all initial fees from California franchisees until the franchisor has 
completed all its preopening obligations and the franchisee is open for business. 

2. No person identified in Item 2 of the Disclosure Document is subject to any currently 
effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as 
defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A 78a et seq., suspending or 
expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange. 

3. California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights 
to you concerning termination, transfer, or nonrenewal of a franchise.  If the Franchise 
Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control. 

4. The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy.  This provision may 
not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.). 

5. The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the 
termination of the franchise.  This provision may not be enforceable under California Law. 

6. The Franchise Agreement requires dispute resolution by arbitration in Salt Lake County, 
Utah, with the costs being borne by the non-prevailing party.  You are encouraged to 
consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability of California and federal laws 
to any provisions of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State 
of California. 

7. The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of the State of Utah.  This 
provision may not be enforceable under California law. 

8. You must sign a general release if you transfer your franchise.  California Corporations 
Code 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California 
Corporations Code 31000 through 31516).  Business and Professions Code 20010 voids 
a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code 
20000 through 20043). 

9. The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause.  Under California Civil 
Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable. 

10. The California Franchise Investment Law requires that a copy of all proposed agreements 
relating to the sale of the franchise be delivered together with the franchise Disclosure 
Document.  Section 31125 of the Franchise Investment Law requires us to give to you a 
Disclosure Document approved by the Commission of the Department of Financial 
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Protection and Innovation before we ask you to consider a material modification of your 
franchise agreement. 

11. California’s Franchise Investment Law (Corporations Code Sections 31512 and 31512.1) 
states that any provision of a franchise agreement or related document requiring the 
franchisee to waive specific provisions of the law is contrary to public policy and is void 
and unenforceable. The law also prohibits a franchisor from disclaiming or denying (i) 
representations it, its employees, or its agents make to you, (ii) your ability to rely on any 
representations it makes to you, or (iii) any violations of the law. 

12. OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION.  ANY COMPLAINTS 
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT 
www.dfpi.ca.gov. 

13. Each owner of the franchise is required to execute a personal guaranty. Doing so could 
jeopardize the marital assets of non-owner spouses domiciled in community property 
states such as California. 

14. Registration of this franchise does not constitute approval, recommendation, or 
endorsement by the Commissioner. 

15. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of 
(i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the 
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, 
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 
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HAWAII ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

As a supplement to the information disclosed in this Disclosure Document, the following 
additional paragraphs are added: 

1. THIS FRANCHISE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW OF 
THE STATE OF HAWAII. FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, 
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND 
CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND 
CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, 
COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. 

2. THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL 
ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE 
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION 
BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER 
AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY 
CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF 
THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED 
AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE. 

3. THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN 
MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR 
AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS, 
CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR 
AND THE FRANCHISEE. 

4. PAYMENT OF THE FRANCHISE FEE AND TERRITORY FEE IDENTIFIED IN ITEM 5 OF 

THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ARE DEFERRED UNTIL WE HAVE MET OUR PRE-
OPENING OBLIGATIONS AND UNTIL YOU ARE OPEN FOR BUSINESS. 
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HAWAII ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

This Addendum (“Addendum”) is effective as of ______________, 20___ to that certain 
Franchise Agreement dated _____________, 20___ (“Agreement”) by and between Zerorez 
Franchising Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Zerorez”), and 
_________________________________ (“Franchisee”).   Notwithstanding any provisions in the 
Agreement, Zerorez and Franchisee hereby agree to the following: 

1. The following is added to Section 2.1 of the Agreement: 

Payment of the Initial Franchise Fee is deferred until we have met our pre-opening 
obligations and until you are open for business. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Addendum to be effective as of the date 
set forth below: 

Date: ___________________________ 

 

ZEROREZ: FRANCHISEE: 

Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. 

By:        

Print Name:       

Title:        

Name of Franchisee:      

By:        

Print Name:       

Title:        
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

Illinois law governs the agreements between the parties to this franchise. 

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition, stipulation or 
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the 
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act is void. 

The following is added to Item 5: 

“Due to our financial condition, the Illinois Attorney General’s Office has required, and we 
have agreed, to defer collection of all the initial fees and payments as described in Item 5 
of the Disclosure Document until we have completed all of our pre-opening obligations to 
you and you are open for business.” 

The following paragraphs are inserted at the end of Item 17: 

“The conditions under which your franchise can be terminated and your rights upon non-
renewal may be affected by Illinois law, 815 ILCS 705/19 and 705/20.” 

“Provisions regarding jurisdiction and venue and choice of law are affected by Illinois law, 
815 ILCS §§ 705/4 and 705/41, respectively.” 
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT  
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

This Addendum (“Addendum”) is effective as of ______________, 20___ to that certain 
Franchise Agreement dated _____________, 20___ (“Agreement”) by and between Zerorez 
Franchising Systems, Inc. a Delaware corporation (“Zerorez”), and 
_________________________________ (“Franchisee”).  Notwithstanding any provisions in the 
Agreement, Zerorez and Franchisee hereby agree to the following: 

1. Due Date for Franchise Fee.  Due to Franchisor’s financial condition, the Illinois Attorney 
General’s Office has required and Franchisor has agreed, to defer collection of all initial 
fees and payments as described in Section 2.1 of the Agreement until Zerorez has 
completed all of its pre-opening obligations to Franchisee and Franchisee is open for 
business. 

1. Illinois law governs the agreements between the parties to this franchise. 

2. Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in a franchise 
agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinois is void.  
However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration outside Illinois. 

3. Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition, stipulation 
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance 
with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void. 

4. Franchisee’s rights upon termination and non-renewal of the Agreement are set forth in 
Section 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Addendum to be effective as of the date 
set forth below: 

Date: ____________________________ 

 

ZEROREZ: FRANCHISEE: 

Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. 

By:         

Print Name:       

Title:        

Name of Franchisee:      

By:       

Print Name:       

Title:        
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

As a supplement to the information disclosed in this Disclosure Document, the following 
additional paragraphs are added:  

Item 5: 

Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has 
required a financial assurance.  Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall 
be deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise 
agreement and the outlet is opened. 

Item 7:  

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy.  These provisions may not 
be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Sec. 101 et seq.).   

The general release required as a condition of renewal, relocation, sale and/or 
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and 
Disclosure Law. 

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be 
brought within 3 years after the grant of your franchise. 

Item 17 (u), (v): 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the franchise agreement, you may bring a lawsuit in 
Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

This Addendum (“Addendum”) is effective as of ______________, 20___ to that certain 
Franchise Agreement dated _____________, 20___ (“Agreement”) by and between Zerorez 
Franchising Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Zerorez”), and 
_________________________________ (“Franchisee”).   Notwithstanding any provisions in the 
Agreement, Zerorez and Franchisee hereby agree to the following: 

1. The following is added to Section 2.1 of the Agreement: 

Based upon Zerorez’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has 
required a financial assurance.  Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by 
Franchisee shall be deferred until Zerorez completes its pre-opening obligations under the 
Agreement and the outlet is opened. 

2. Section 12.3 of the Agreement is amended to add the following: 

Any release required as a condition of renewal, relocation, transfer, assignment or sale 
will not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure 
Law. 

3. Section 15.10 of the Agreement is amended to add the following: 

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must 
be brought within 3 years after the grant of your franchise business. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, you may bring a lawsuit in 
Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure 
Law. 

4. Section 15.11 of the Agreement is amended to add the following: 

This Agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration.  A Maryland 
franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee 
to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise 
Law.  In light of the Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum 
selection requirement is legally enforceable. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Addendum to be effective as of the date 
set forth below: 

Date: ___________________________ 

 

ZEROREZ: FRANCHISEE: 

Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. Name of Franchisee:      
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By:        

Print Name:       

Title:        

By:        

Print Name:       

Title:        
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MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

As a supplement to the information disclosed in this Disclosure Document, the following 
additional paragraphs are added: 

1. Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the 
franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of 
a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination 
penalties or judgment notes.  In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document 
or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights as provided for 
in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or 
remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction. 

2. With respect to the franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with 
Minnesota Statute Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified 
cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) 
and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and (2) that consent to 
the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld. 

3. The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks, 
trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any 
loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the 
name.  Minnesota considers it unfair not to protect the franchisee’s right to use the 
trademarks.  Refer to Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g). 

4. You must sign a general release if you transfer your franchise.  Minnesota Rules 
2860.4400(D) voids this general release. 

5. With respect to the franchises governed by Minnesota law, any limitations of claims must 
comply with Minnesota Statutes Section 80C.17, Subd. 5. 

6. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of 
(i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including, fraud in the 
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, 
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed with the franchise. 
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NEW YORK ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

 As a supplement to the information disclosed in this Disclosure Document, the following 
additional paragraphs are added: 

1. The franchisor has represented the following: 

(i) that no portion of the initial franchise fee has been allocated to the trademark or 
intellectual property; 

(ii) that the initial franchise fee consists only of payments of initial training and opening 
services, which are distinct from and not brand or trademark related to the 
franchisor; and  

(iii) that only the royalty fee is related to the trademark and intellectual property. 

2. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure 
Document:  

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE 
STATE ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY 
FOR RESOURCES OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE 
BY NEW YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE 
RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN ANYTHING IN THIS 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND THE APPROPRIATE STATE OR 
PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY. THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, 
NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE 
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE 
THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE 
FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN 
THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. 

3. The following is added at the end of Item 3: 

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person 
identified in Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal 
trademark: 

A. No such party has any administrative, criminal or material civil action 
pending against that person alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, 
antitrust, or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, 
misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or comparable 
civil or misdemeanor allegations. 

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental 
to the business, which are significant in the context of the number of 
franchisees and the size, nature or financial condition of the franchise 
system or its business operations. 
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C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere 
to a felony charge or, within the ten-year period immediately preceding the 
application for registration, has been convicted of or pleaded nolo 
contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil 
action alleging: violation of any franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; 
embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or 
unfair or deceptive practices or comparable allegations. 

D. No such party is subject to any currently effective injunctive or restrictive 
order or decree relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or 
Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice 
law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by 
a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any national 
securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the 
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person 
from membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a 
currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other 
business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or 
department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a 
real estate broker or sales agent. 

4. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled 
“Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled 
“Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer”: 

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any 
causes of action arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the 
General Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations issued 
thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this proviso that the non-
waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied. 

5. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination 
by franchisee”: 

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law. 

6. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice 
of forum”, and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”: 

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right 
conferred upon the franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General 
Business Law of the State of New York. 

7. Franchise Questionnaires and Acknowledgements--No statement, questionnaire, or 
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims 
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) 
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other 
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person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any 
document executed in connection with the franchise. 

8. Receipts—Any sale made must be in compliance with § 683(8) of the Franchise Sale Act 
(N.Y. Gen. Bus. L. § 680 et seq.), which describes the time period a Franchise Disclosure 
Document (offering prospectus) must be provided to a prospective franchisee before a 
sale may be made. New York law requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure 
Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting, ten (10) business days before the 
execution of the franchise or other agreement, or the payment of any consideration that 
relates to the franchise relationship. 
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NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

As a supplement to the information disclosed in this Disclosure Document, the following 
additional paragraphs are added: 

1. Covenants not to compete are generally considered unenforceable in North Dakota and 
all covenants restricting competition in the Franchise Agreement are subject to NDCC 
Section 9-08-06.  

2. The franchise agreement provides that the parties must agree to arbitrate disputes in the 
State of Utah.  These provisions may not be enforceable under North Dakota Law and the 
site of any arbitration or mediation must be agreeable to all parties and you may not be 
required to agree to a location remote from your place of business.  

3. The franchise agreement allows you to consent to jurisdiction in the State of Utah.  This 
provision may not be enforceable under North Dakota law.  

4. The franchise agreement requires application of the laws of the State of Utah.  This 
provision may not be enforceable under North Dakota law.  

5. The franchise agreement requires you to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive 
damages.  This provision may not be enforceable under North Dakota law. 

6. A general release may be required if you renew or transfer your franchise.  No such 
release relieves us of any liability under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.  

7. The franchise agreement requires that you consent to a limitation of claims. The statute 
of limitations under North Dakota law applies.  

8. The prevailing party in any enforcement action under the franchise agreement is entitled 
to recover all costs and expenses including attorney's fees. 

9. Item 5. Payment of the franchise fee and territory fee identified in Item 5 of the Disclosure 
Document are deferred until we have met our pre-opening obligations and until you are 
open for business. 
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NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

This Addendum (“Addendum”) is effective as of ______________, 20___ to that certain 
Franchise Agreement dated _____________, 20___ (“Agreement”) by and between Zerorez 
Franchising Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Zerorez”), and 
_________________________________ (“Franchisee”).   Notwithstanding any provisions in the 
Agreement, Zerorez and Franchisee hereby agree to the following: 

1. The following is added to Section 2.1 of the Agreement: 

Payment of the Initial Franchise Fee is deferred until we have met our pre-opening 
obligations and until you are open for business. 

2. Section 15.10 of the Agreement is amended to add the following: 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the foregoing choice of law 
should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the Zerorez or upon 
Franchisee under the laws of the State of North Dakota. 

3. Section 15.11 of the Agreement is amended to add the following: 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the site of any arbitration or 
mediation must be agreeable to all parties and you may not be required to agree to a 
location remote from your place of business.  

4. The following sentence is hereby deleted in its entirety from Section 15.11(c): 

Damages recoverable in any action shall be limited to actual damages proved and neither 
party shall be entitled to recover special, consequential, punitive, or multiplied damages. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Addendum to be effective as of the date 
set forth below: 

Date: ___________________________ 

 

ZEROREZ: FRANCHISEE: 

Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. 

By:        

Print Name:       

Title:        

Name of Franchisee:      

By:        

Print Name:       

Title:        
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VIRGINIA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

Additional Disclosures.   

The following statement is added to Item 17.h. 

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor 
to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause.  If any grounds for default or termination stated 
in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined 
in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable. 
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

The provisions of this Addendum form an integral part of, are incorporated into, and modify the 
Franchise Disclosure Document and all related agreements regardless of anything to the contrary 
contained therein.  This Addendum applies if: (a) the offer to sell a franchise is accepted in 
Washington; (b) the purchaser of the franchise is a resident of Washington; and/or (c) the 
franchised business that is the subject of the sale is to be located or operated, wholly or partly, in 
Washington. 

1. Conflict of Laws. In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington 
Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW, shall prevail. 

2. Franchisee Bill of Rights.  RCW 19.100.180 may supersede provisions in the franchise 
agreement or related agreements concerning your relationship with the franchisor, 
including in the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.  There may also be 
court decisions that supersede the franchise agreement or related agreements concerning 
your relationship with the franchisor.  Franchise agreement provisions, including those 
summarized in Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document, are subject to state law.  

3. Site of Arbitration, Mediation, and/or Litigation. In any arbitration or mediation involving 
a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation site will be either in the 
state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or 
mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or 
mediation.  In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a 
franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale 
of franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in 
Washington.  

4. General Release.  A release or waiver of rights in the franchise agreement or related 
agreements purporting to bind the franchisee to waive compliance with any provision 
under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rules or orders 
thereunder is void except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the 
agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel, in 
accordance with RCW 19.100.220(2).  In addition, any such release or waiver executed 
in connection with a renewal or transfer of a franchise is likewise void except as provided 
for in RCW 19.100.220(2).   

5. Statute of Limitations and Waiver of Jury Trial.  Provisions contained in the franchise 
agreement or related agreements that unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of 
limitations period for claims under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, 
or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.   

6. Transfer Fees.  Transfer fees are collectable only to the extent that they reflect the 
franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer. 

7. Termination by Franchisee.  The franchisee may terminate the franchise agreement 
under any grounds permitted under state law. 

8. Certain Buy-Back Provisions.  Provisions in franchise agreements or related 
agreements that permit the franchisor to repurchase the franchisee’s business for any 
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reason during the term of the franchise agreement without the franchisee’s consent are 
unlawful pursuant to RCW 19.100.180(2)(j), unless the franchise is terminated for good 
cause. 

9. Fair and Reasonable Pricing.  Any provision in the franchise agreement or related 
agreements that requires the franchisee to purchase or rent any product or service for 
more than a fair and reasonable price is unlawful under RCW 19.100.180(2)(d). 

10. Waiver of Exemplary & Punitive Damages.  RCW 19.100.190 permits franchisees to 
seek treble damages under certain circumstances.  Accordingly, provisions contained in 
the franchise agreement or elsewhere requiring franchisees to waive exemplary, punitive, 
or similar damages are void, except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement 
after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent 
counsel, in accordance with RCW 19.100.220(2). 

11. Franchisor’s Business Judgement.  Provisions in the franchise agreement or related 
agreements stating that the franchisor may exercise its discretion on the basis of its 
reasonable business judgment may be limited or superseded by RCW 19.100.180(1), 
which requires the parties to deal with each other in good faith. 

12. Indemnification.  Any provision in the franchise agreement or related agreements 
requiring the franchisee to indemnify, reimburse, defend, or hold harmless the franchisor 
or other parties is hereby modified such that the franchisee has no obligation to indemnify, 
reimburse, defend, or hold harmless the franchisor or any other indemnified party for 
losses or liabilities to the extent that they are caused by the indemnified party’s negligence, 
willful misconduct, strict liability, or fraud. 

13. Attorneys’ Fees.  If the franchise agreement or related agreements require a franchisee 
to reimburse the franchisor for court costs or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, such 
provision applies only if the franchisor is the prevailing party in any judicial or arbitration 
proceeding. 

14. Noncompetition Covenants.  Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant 
is void and unenforceable against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, 
unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, 
exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation).  In 
addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent 
contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s 
earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per 
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation).  As a result, any provision 
contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflicts with these limitations is 
void and unenforceable in Washington. 

15. Nonsolicitation Agreements.  RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, 
restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a 
franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. 
As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are 
void and unenforceable in Washington. 

16. Questionnaires and Acknowledgments.  No statement, questionnaire, or 
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims 
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under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) 
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other 
person acting on behalf of the franchisor.  This provision supersedes any other term of 
any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

17. Prohibitions on Communicating with Regulators. Any provision in the franchise 
agreement or related agreements that prohibits the franchisee from communicating with 
or complaining to regulators is inconsistent with the express instructions in the Franchise 
Disclosure Document and is unlawful under RCW 19.100.180(2)(h). 

18. Advisory Regarding Franchise Brokers. Under the Washington Franchise Investment 
Protection Act, a “franchise broker” is defined as a person that engages in the business of 
the offer or sale of franchises.  A franchise broker represents the franchisor and is paid a 
fee for referring prospects to the franchisor and/or selling the franchise. If a franchisee is 
working with a franchise broker, franchisees are advised to carefully evaluate any 
information provided by the franchise broker about a franchise. 

19. Fee Deferral. In lieu of an impound of franchise fees, Zerorez will not require or accept 
the payment of any initial franchise fees until Franchisee has (a) received all initial training 
that it is entitled to under the franchise agreement or offering circular, and (b) is open for 
business. 
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

This Addendum (“Addendum”) is effective as of ______________, 20___ to that certain 
Franchise Agreement dated _____________, 20___ (“Agreement”) by and between Zerorez 
Franchising Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Zerorez”), and 
_________________________________ (“Franchisee”).   Notwithstanding any provisions in the 
Agreement, Zerorez and Franchisee hereby agree to the following: 

The provisions of this Addendum form an integral part of, are incorporated into, and modify the 
Agreement and all related agreements regardless of anything to the contrary contained therein.  
This Addendum applies if: (a) the offer to sell a franchise is accepted in Washington; (b) the 
purchaser of the franchise is a resident of Washington; and/or (c) the franchised business that is 
the subject of the sale is to be located or operated, wholly or partly, in Washington. 

1. Conflict of Laws. In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington 
Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW, shall prevail. 

2. Franchisee Bill of Rights.  RCW 19.100.180 may supersede provisions in the Agreement 
or related agreements concerning Franchisee’s relationship with Zerorez, including in the 
areas of termination and renewal of the franchise.  There may also be court decisions that 
supersede the Agreement or related agreements concerning your relationship with 
Zerorez. Agreement provisions, including those summarized in Item 17 of the Franchise 
Disclosure Document, are subject to state law.  

3. Site of Arbitration, Mediation, and/or Litigation. In any arbitration or mediation involving 
a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation site will be either in the 
state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or 
mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or 
mediation.  In addition, if litigation is not precluded by Agreement, Franchisee may bring 
an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a 
violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.  

4. General Release.  A release or waiver of rights in the Agreement or related agreements 
purporting to bind Franchisee to waive compliance with any provision under the 
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rules or orders thereunder is void 
except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the Agreement is in effect 
and where the parties are represented by independent counsel, in accordance with RCW 
19.100.220(2).  In addition, any such release or waiver executed in connection with a 
renewal or transfer of a franchise is likewise void except as provided for in RCW 
19.100.220(2).   

5. Statute of Limitations and Waiver of Jury Trial.  Provisions contained in the Agreement 
or related agreements that unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period 
for claims under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, or rights or 
remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.   

6. Transfer Fees.  Transfer fees are collectable only to the extent that they reflect Zerorez’s 
reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer. 
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7. Termination by Franchisee.  Franchisee may terminate the Agreement under any 
grounds permitted under state law. 

8. Certain Buy-Back Provisions.  Provisions in the Agreement or related agreements that 
permit Zerorez to repurchase Franchisee’s business for any reason during the term of the 
Agreement without Franchisee’s consent are unlawful pursuant to RCW 19.100.180(2)(j), 
unless the franchise is terminated for good cause. 

9. Fair and Reasonable Pricing.  Any provision in the Agreement or related agreements 
that requires Franchisee to purchase or rent any product or service for more than a fair 
and reasonable price is unlawful under RCW 19.100.180(2)(d). 

10. Waiver of Exemplary & Punitive Damages.  RCW 19.100.190 permits franchisees to 
seek treble damages under certain circumstances.  Accordingly, provisions contained in 
the Agreement or elsewhere requiring franchisees to waive exemplary, punitive, or similar 
damages are void, except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the 
Agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel, in 
accordance with RCW 19.100.220(2). 

11. Franchisor’s Business Judgement.  Provisions in the Agreement or related agreements 
stating that Zerorez may exercise its discretion on the basis of its reasonable business 
judgment may be limited or superseded by RCW 19.100.180(1), which requires the parties 
to deal with each other in good faith. 

12. Indemnification.  Any provision in the Agreement or related agreements requiring 
Franchisee to indemnify, reimburse, defend, or hold harmless Zerorez or other parties is 
hereby modified such that Franchisee has no obligation to indemnify, reimburse, defend, 
or hold harmless Zerorez or any other indemnified party for losses or liabilities to the extent 
that they are caused by the indemnified party’s negligence, willful misconduct, strict 
liability, or fraud. 

13. Attorneys’ Fees.  If the Agreement or related agreements require a franchisee to 
reimburse Zerorez for court costs or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, such provision 
applies only if the franchisor is the prevailing party in any judicial or arbitration proceeding. 

14. Noncompetition Covenants.  Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant 
is void and unenforceable against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, 
unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, 
exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation).  In 
addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent 
contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s 
earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per 
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation).  As a result, any provision 
contained in the Agreement or elsewhere that conflicts with these limitations is void and 
unenforceable in Washington. 

15. Nonsolicitation Agreements.  RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, 
restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a 
franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. 
As a result, any such provisions contained in the Agreement or elsewhere are void and 
unenforceable in Washington. 
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16. Questionnaires and Acknowledgments.  No statement, questionnaire, or 
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims 
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) 
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other 
person acting on behalf of the franchisor.  This provision supersedes any other term of 
any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

17. Prohibitions on Communicating with Regulators. Any provision in the Agreement or 
related agreements that prohibits Franchisee from communicating with or complaining to 
regulators is inconsistent with the express instructions in the Franchise Disclosure 
Document and is unlawful under RCW 19.100.180(2)(h). 

18. Advisory Regarding Franchise Brokers. Under the Washington Franchise Investment 
Protection Act, a “franchise broker” is defined as a person that engages in the business of 
the offer or sale of franchises.  A franchise broker represents the franchisor and is paid a 
fee for referring prospects to the franchisor and/or selling the franchise. If a franchisee is 
working with a franchise broker, franchisees are advised to carefully evaluate any 
information provided by the franchise broker about a franchise. 

19. Fee Deferral. In lieu of an impound of franchise fees, Zerorez will not require or accept 
the payment of any initial franchise fees until Franchisee has (a) received all initial training 
that it is entitled to under the franchise agreement or offering circular, and (b) is open for 
business. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Addendum to be effective as of the date 
set forth below: 

Date: ___________________________ 

ZEROREZ: FRANCHISEE: 

Zerorez Franchising Systems, Inc. 

By:        

Print Name:       

Title:        

Name of Franchisee:      

By:        

Print Name:       

Title:        
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WISCONSIN ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
ZEROREZ FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 

The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law applies to most, if not all, franchise agreements and 
supersedes any provisions contained in the franchise or license agreement that are inconsistent 
with that Law. 
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EXHIBIT G 

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES 

The following states have franchise law that require that the Franchise Disclosure 
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration:  California, 
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode 
Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin. 

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document 
is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Dates state below:  

State Effective Date 

California Pending 

Hawaii Pending 

Illinois Pending 

Indiana Pending 

Maryland Pending 

Michigan Pending 

Minnesota Pending 

New York Pending 

North Dakota Pending 

Rhode Island Pending 

South Dakota Pending 

Virginia Pending 

Washington Pending 

Wisconsin Pending 
 

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, 
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted 
marketing plans.
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EXHIBIT H 

RECEIPT 

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other 
information in plain language.  Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. offers you a franchise, ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, 
Inc. must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding 
agreement with, or make a payment to, us in connection with the proposed franchise sale.  Under 
Michigan law, if applicable, this period may be 10 business days, which could be longer than 14 
calendar days.  In addition, under New York law, if applicable, ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. 
must provide this Disclosure Document to you at the earlier of your first personal meeting to discuss 
the franchise or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise of other agreement or the 
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. 

If ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if 
it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state 
law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C.  
20580 and those state administrators listed on Exhibit A.  ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. 
authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit A to receive service of process for us in 
the particular state. Universal Registered Agents, Inc., 300 Creek View Road, Suite 209, Newark, 
Delaware 19711 is authorized as our agent for service of process where ZEROREZ Franchising 
Systems, Inc. is formed. 

The franchisor is ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. located at 772 East Utah Valley Drive, 
Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 84003.  Its telephone number is (801) 443-1034.  

Our franchise sellers involved in this offering and selling the franchise to you are listed below 
(with address and telephone number), or will be provided to you separately before you sign a franchise 
agreement.  

Chantelle Lawrence, 772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 84003, (801) 899-5116. 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

I have received a Disclosure Document with an issuance date of March 31, 2025 and an effective 
date of      that included the following Exhibits:

A. State Administrators 
B. Franchise Agreement 
C. Financial Statements 
D. Franchisee Information 

E. Guarantee of Performance 
F. State-Specific Addenda 
G. State Effective Dates 
H. Receipt

Date: ______________ Your name (please print): __________________________________ 

    Your signature ___________________________________________ 

You should return one copy of the signed receipt either by signing, dating, and mailing it to ZEROREZ 
Franchising Systems, Inc. at 772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 84003, or 
by faxing a copy of the signed receipt to ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. at (801) 785-0200.  You 
may keep the second copy for your records.   
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RECEIPT 

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other 
information in plain language.  Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. offers you a franchise, ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, 
Inc. must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding 
agreement with, or make a payment to, us in connection with the proposed franchise sale.  Under 
Michigan law, if applicable, this period may be 10 business days, which could be longer than 14 
calendar days.  In addition, under New York law, if applicable, ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. 
must provide this Disclosure Document to you at the earlier of your first personal meeting to discuss 
the franchise or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise of other agreement or the 
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. 

If ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if 
it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state 
law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C.  
20580 and those state administrators listed on Exhibit A.  ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. 
authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit A to receive service of process for us in 
the particular state. Universal Registered Agents, Inc., 300 Creek View Road, Suite 209, Newark, 
Delaware 19711 is authorized as our agent for service of process where ZEROREZ Franchising 
Systems, Inc. is formed. 

The franchisor is ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. located at 772 East Utah Valley Drive, 
Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 84003.  Its telephone number is (801) 443-1034.  

Our franchise sellers involved in this offering and selling the franchise to you are listed below 
(with address and telephone number), or will be provided to you separately before you sign a franchise 
agreement.  

Chantelle Lawrence, 772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 84003, (801) 899-5116. 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

I have received a Disclosure Document with an issuance date of March 31, 2025 and an effective 
date of      that included the following Exhibits:

A. State Administrators 
B. Franchise Agreement 
C. Financial Statements 
D. Franchisee Information 

E. Guarantee of Performance 
F. State-Specific Addenda 
G. State Effective Dates 
H. Receipt

Date: ______________ Your name (please print): __________________________________ 

    Your signature ___________________________________________ 

You should return one copy of the signed receipt either by signing, dating, and mailing it to ZEROREZ 
Franchising Systems, Inc. at 772 East Utah Valley Drive, Suite 120, American Fork, Utah 84003, or 
by faxing a copy of the signed receipt to ZEROREZ Franchising Systems, Inc. at (801) 785-0200.  You 
may keep the second copy for your records. 




